
UMC Governing Board Meeting
Wednesday, February 26, 2025 2:00 pm

Delta Point Building - Emerald Conference Room - 1st Floor

Page 1 of 349 



1  

 
This meeting has been properly noticed and posted online at University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada’s website http://www.umcsn.com and at Nevada Public Notice at https://notice.nv.gov/, and 
University Medical Center 1800 W. Charleston Blvd. Las Vegas, NV (Principal Office) 

 
• The main agenda is available on University Medical Center of Southern Nevada’s website http://www.umcsn.com, For 

copies of agenda items and supporting back-up materials, please contact Stephanie Ceccarelli, Governing Board Secretary, 
at (702) 765-7949. The Governing Board may combine two or more agenda items for consideration. 

• Items on the agenda may be taken out of order. 
• The Governing Board may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item at any time. 
• Consent Agenda - All matters in this sub-category are considered by the Governing Board to be routine and may be acted 

upon in one motion. Most agenda items are phrased for a positive action. However, the Governing Board may take other 
actions such as hold, table, amend, etc. 

• Consent Agenda items are routine and can be taken in one motion unless a Governing Board member requests that an item 
be taken separately. For all items left on the Consent Agenda, the action taken will be staff's recommendation as indicated 
on the item. 

• Items taken separately from the Consent Agenda by Governing Board members at the meeting will be heard in order. 

 AGENDA 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
GOVERNING BOARD 

February 26, 2025  2:00 p.m. 
901 Rancho Lane, Las Vegas, Nevada 

Delta Point Building, Emerald Conference Room (1st Floor) 

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the UMC Governing Board has been called and will be 
held on Wednesday, February 26, 2025, commencing at 2:00 p.m. at the location listed above 
to consider the following: 

 

 

 
SECTION 1. OPENING CEREMONIES 

CALL TO ORDER 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

INVOCATION 

1. Public Comment. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT. This is a period devoted to comments by the general public about 
items on this agenda. If you wish to speak to the Board about items within its 
jurisdiction but not appearing on this agenda, you must wait until the “Comments by the 
General Public” period listed at the end of this agenda. Comments will be limited to 
three minutes. Please step up to the speaker's podium, clearly state your name and 
address, and please spell your last name for the record. If any member of the Board 
wishes to extend the length of a presentation, this will be done by the Chair or the Board 
by majority vote. 

 
2. Approval of Minutes of the meeting of the UMC Governing Board held on January 29, 

2025. (Available at University Medical Center, Administrative Office) (For possible 
action) 

 
3. Approval of Agenda. (For possible action) 

Page 2 of 349 

http://www.umcsn.com/
https://notice.nv.gov/
http://www.umcsn.com/


2  

SECTION 2: CONSENT ITEMS 
 
4. Approve the February 2025 Medical and Dental Staff Credentialing Activities for 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (UMC) as authorized by the Medical 
Executive Committee (MEC) on February 25, 2025; and take action as deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

5. Approve the UMC Policies and Procedures Committee’s activities of December 4, 2024 
and January 2, 2025 including the recommended creation, revision, and /or retirement of 
UMC policies and procedures; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible 
action)  

 
6. Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Master Agreement 

and Product Schedule with Optum360, LLC for the Optum Enterprise Computer-
Assisted Coding Platform; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute 
extensions and amendments; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible 
action) 

 
7. Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Deferred Equipment 

Agreement with Masimo Americas, Inc. for the purchase of pulse oximetry 
sensors and accessories; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute future 
amendments within his delegation of authority; or take action as deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
8. Approve and authorize the increase of funding for the Agreement for Contingent 

Permanent Placement with Optimum Healthcare Solutions, LLC; or take action as 
deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
9. Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Da Vinci Xi 4 Service 

Agreement with Intuitive Surgical, Inc; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute 
future amendments within his delegation of authority; or take action as deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
10. Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Specialist Physician 

Services Agreement with Renal Payer Solutions, Inc. dba Champion Health Plan of 
Nevada for managed care services; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For 
possible action) 

 
11. Award the RFP No. 2024-15 for Bad Debt Collections to Aargon Agency, Inc.; authorize 

the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Service Agreement and execute any extension 
options and future amendments within the not-to-exceed amount of this Agreement; or 
take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
12. Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Agreement with Abbott 

Laboratories Inc. for the lease of equipment and purchase of related disposables; or 
take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
13. Award the RFP No. 2024-11 for Managed Print Services to Advanced Imaging Services; 

authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Agreement and execute any extension 
options/amendments within the not-to-exceed amount of this Agreement; or take action 
as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
14. Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Sexual Assault Nurse 

Examiner Agreement with Rose Heart, Inc.; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to 
execute amendments or renewal options; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For 

Page 3 of 349 



3  

possible action) 
 
15. Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to Sign the Amendment (2) two to the 

Agreement for Landscaping Services with Brightview Landscape Services Inc. and 
exercise any extension options; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible 
action) 

 
SECTION 3: BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
16. Accept the appointment of Dr. John Fildes to serve on the Governing Board as an Ex-

Officio member; and take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

17. Receive recognition from Tony Sanchez, Executive Vice President of Business 
Development and External Relations at NV Energy, recognizing UMC for its participation 
in two energy efficiency projects in 2024; and direct staff accordingly. (For possible 
action) 

 
18. Receive an educational presentation from Marsha Al-Sayegh, Employee Experience 

Program Manager, regarding Wellhub at UMC; and direct staff accordingly. (For 
possible action) 

 
19. Review and discuss the Governing Board 2025 Action Plan, to include an informational 

presentation from Deb Fox, Chief Nursing Officer, regarding the S.A.N.E. services at 
UMC; and direct staff accordingly. (For possible action)  

 
20. Receive a report from the Governing Board Clinical Quality and Professional Affairs 

Committee; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 
21. Receive a report from the Governing Board Strategic Planning Committee; and take 

any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 
22. Receive a report from the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee; and take any 

action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 
23. Receive the monthly financial report for January FY25; and take any action deemed 

appropriate. (For possible action) 
 
24. Receive an update from the Dean of the Kirk Kerkorian School of Medicine at UNLV; 

and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 
25. Receive an update from the Hospital CEO; and take any action deemed appropriate. 

(For possible action) 
 

26. Recommend to the Board of Hospital Trustees for University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada, an amendment to the Bylaws of University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada, and direct staff accordingly. (For possible action) 
 

SECTION 4: EMERGING ISSUES 
 
27. Identify emerging issues to be addressed by staff or by the Board at future meetings; 

and direct staff accordingly. (For possible action) 
 

 
 
 

Page 4 of 349 



4  

UMCSN ADMINISTRATION KEEPS THE OFFICIAL RECORD OF ALL PROCEEDINGS OF UMCSN GOVERNING 
BOARD. IN ORDER TO MAINTAIN A COMPLETE AND ACCURATE RECORD OF ALL PROCEEDINGS, ANY 
PHOTOGRAPH, MAP, CHART, OR ANY OTHER DOCUMENT USED IN ANY PRESENTATION TO THE BOARD 
SHOULD BE SUBMITTED TO UMCSN ADMINISTRATION. IF MATERIALS ARE TO BE DISTRIBUTED TO THE 
BOARD, PLEASE PROVIDE SUFFICIENT COPIES FOR DISTRIBUTION TO UMCSN ADMINISTRATION. 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 
 
A period devoted to comments by the general public about matters relevant to the Board’s 
jurisdiction will be held. No action may be taken on a matter not listed on the posted agenda. 
Comments will be limited to three minutes. Please step up to the speaker’s podium, clearly 
state your name, and address and please spell your last name for the record. 

 
 
All comments by speakers should be relevant to the Board’s action and jurisdiction. 

 
 

 

THE BOARD MEETING ROOM IS ACCESSIBLE TO INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES. WITH TWENTY-FOUR (24) 
HOUR ADVANCE REQUEST, A SIGN LANGUAGE INTERPRETER MAY BE MADE AVAILABLE (PHONE: 702-765- 
7949). 

Page 5 of 349 



University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
Governing Board Meeting 
January 29, 2025 
______________________________________________________________________ 
Emerald Conference Room (1st Floor) 
Delta Point Building 
901 Rancho Lane 
Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada 
Wednesday, January 29, 2025 
2:00 PM 
 
The University Medical Center Governing Board met in regular session, at the location and date 
above, at the hour of 2:00 PM.  The meeting was called to order at the hour of 2:12 PM by Chair 
O’Reilly. The following members were present, which constituted a quorum of the members 
thereof: 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Board Members: 
 

Present: 
John O’Reilly, Chair 
Donald Mackay, M.D., Vice-Chair  

 Laura Lopez-Hobbs  
Mary Lynn Palenik 
Robyn Caspersen 
Harry Hagerty 
Renee Franklin (WebEx)  
Chris Haase 
Bill Noonan 
 

Ex-Officio Members: 
 
 Present: 

 
Dr. Marc Kahn, Dean of Kirk Kerkorian SOM at UNLV 
Steve Weitman, Ex-Officio (WebEx) 
 
Absent:  
Dr. Meena Vohra, Chief of Staff  
 

 Others Present: 
Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
Tony Marinello, Chief Operating Officer 
Jennifer Wakem, Chief Financial Officer 
Debra Fox, Chief Nursing Officer 
Shana Tello, Administrative and External Affairs Administrator 
Regan Comis, R&R Partners 
Patty Scott, Quality Patient Safety and Regulatory Officer 
Susan Pitz, General Counsel 
James Conway, Assistant General Counsel 
Stephanie Ceccarelli, Governing Board Secretary 

Page 6 of 349 



UMC Governing Board 
January 29, 2025  Page 2 of 12 
 
SECTION 1.  OPENING CEREMONIES 
 
 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 INVOCATION 
 
ITEM NO. 1 PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Chair O’Reilly asked if there were any persons present in the audience wishing to 
be heard on any item on this agenda. 

 
 Speakers: None 
 
ITEM NO. 2 Approval of Minutes of the meeting of the UMC Governing Board held on 

December 11, 2024. (Available at University Medical Center, Administrative 
Office) (For possible action)  

 
FINAL ACTION: 
 
A motion was made by Member Mackay that the minutes be approved as 
presented.  Motion carried by unanimous vote.  

 
ITEM NO. 3 Approval of Agenda (For possible action) 
 

FINAL ACTION:  
 
A motion was made by Member Hobbs that the minutes be approved as 
recommended.  Motion carried by unanimous vote.  

 
SECTION 2: CONSENT ITEMS 
 
ITEM NO. 4 Approve the December 2024 and January 2025 Medical and Dental Staff 

Credentialing Activities for University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
(UMC) as authorized by the Medical Executive Committee (MEC) on December 
24, 2024 and January 28, 2025; and take action as deemed appropriate. (For 
possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Credentialing Activities 
 

ITEM NO. 5 Ratify the Amendment to the Hospital Services Agreement with 
Aetna Health, Inc. for managed care services; or take action as 
deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 

Page 7 of 349 



UMC Governing Board 
January 29, 2025  Page 3 of 12 
 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  

- Hospital Transplant Agreement 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 6  Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 

Amendment to the Hospital Services Agreement with Health Direct 
Partners for Managed Care Services; or take action as deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
  DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  

- Amendment to Hospital Service Agreement 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 7  Ratify the Provider Services Agreement with Hometown Health Plan, Inc. 

and Hometown Health Providers Insurance Company, Inc. for Managed 
Care Services; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible 
action) 

  
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Provider Service Agreement 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 8 Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Dialysis 

Products Purchase Agreement with Vantive US Healthcare, LLC, for the 
purchase of dialysis products; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For 
possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Dialysis Products Purchase Agreement 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 9 Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Purchaser-

Specific Agreement and Addendum with CyraCom, LLC for Interpretation 
and Translation Services; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to exercise 
any renewal options; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible 
action) 

   DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Purchaser Specific Agreement 
- Addendum 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 10 Award the Bid No. 2024-16, UMC 5409 E Lake Mead Blvd Remodel Project 

PWP# CL-2025-183, to Monument Construction the lowest responsive and 
responsible bidder, contingent upon submission of the required bonds 
and insurance; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute change 
orders within his delegation of authority; or take action as deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  

Page 8 of 349 



UMC Governing Board 
January 29, 2025  Page 4 of 12 
 

- ITB 2024-16 - UMC 5409 E Lake Mead Remodel Project Agreement 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 11 Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Order Form 

with CarePort Health, LLC for CarePort Transition implementation and 
subscription services; execute the extension options and future 
amendments within his yearly delegation of authority; or take action as 
deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Order Form 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 12 Approve and recommend for approval by the Board of County 

Commissioners, also sitting as the Board of Hospital Trustees for 
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, the settlement in the matter 
of District Court Case No. A-24-899947-C, entitled Frazier v. University 
Medical Center of Southern Nevada, et al.; and authorize the Chief 
Executive Officer to execute any necessary settlement documents.  (For 
possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Settlement Agreement and Release 

 
ITEM NO. 13 Approve and recommend for approval by the Board of County 

Commissioners, also sitting as the Board of Hospital Trustees for 
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, the settlement in the matter 
of District Court Case No. A-20-809620-C, entitled David Monk as Special 
Administrator of the Estate of Sharon Monk v. University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada, et al; and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to 
execute any necessary settlement documents.  (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Settlement Agreement and Release 

 
ITEM NO. 14 Approve and recommend for approval by the Board of County 

Commissioners, also sitting as the Board of Hospital Trustees for 
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, the settlement in the matter 
of District Court Case No. A-23-875382-C, entitled Gordon v. University 
Medical Center of Southern Nevada, et al.; and authorize the Chief 
Executive Officer to execute any necessary settlement documents.  (For 
possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Settlement Agreement and Release 

 
FINAL ACTION:  
 
A motion was made by Member Haase that Consent Items 4-14 be approved as 
presented. Motion carried by unanimous vote.  
 

Page 9 of 349 



UMC Governing Board 
January 29, 2025  Page 5 of 12 
 
SECTION 3: BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
ITEM NO. 15   Receive an update from Shana Tello, UMC Academic and External Affairs 

Administrator, regarding the 2025 Legislative Session; and direct staff 
accordingly. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- PowerPoint Presentation 

 
DISCUSSION:  

 
Mr. Van Houweling introduced Shana Tello, UMC Academic and External Affairs 
Administrator, and Reagan Comis, R&R Partners, who presented updates 
regarding the legislative session.  
 
The 83rd Legislative Session begins February 3, 2025 and concludes on June 
2nd. A timeline was presented. 
 
Ms. Comis shared highlights from the Governor’s State of the State Priorities. 
The priorities include improved access and affordability to healthcare, criminal 
justice reform, election reform and education reform. 
 
Ms. Tello provided an update on the legislative activities and the process for 
reviewing bills at UMC. The County has implemented a legislative tracking 
system, which records all of the information from bills and bill drafts, allowing 
UMC to review bills that will impact UMC. Legislative representation from 
organizations such as NHA, AAMC, R&R, and others provides feedback on 
legislative matters of interest. UMC subject matter experts and the UMC finance 
team are also resources used to review and provide analysis of fiscal notes. 
Currently there are 986 BDRs that have been submitted. 
 
A list of Federal and State priority bills was reviewed, including UMC’s bill, 
updating NRS 450—Crisis Stabilization & Modernize Training Terms (BDR 559) 
and a bill regarding Military Malpractice Caps (BDR 722). 
 
A discussion ensued regarding executive orders that pertain to federal loans and 
grants and the potential impact they may have at UMC and another discussion 
regarding the use of the term “medical malpractice” in the legislation, as 
compared to “medical liability”. 
 
FINAL ACTION:  

 
  None 
 
ITEM NO. 16 Receive an update from Patty Scott, UMC Quality Patient Safety and 

Regulatory Officer, regarding the new DNV Healthcare Management 
Certification and Accreditation Program; and direct staff accordingly. (For 
possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- PowerPoint Presentation 

Page 10 of 349 



UMC Governing Board 
January 29, 2025  Page 6 of 12 
 

DISCUSSION:  
 
Patty Scott, UMC Quality Patient Safety and Regulatory Officer, provided an 
update on the new DNV Accreditation Program, (Det Norske Veritas – “The 
Norwegian Truth). Multiple hospital facilities and systems nationwide are 
accredited and certified with DNV. 
 
DNV is an integrated accreditation program utilizing the National Integrated 
Accreditation for Healthcare Organizations (NIAHO) standards and the ISO:9001 
Quality Management System Certification standards.  These standards mirror the 
CMS conditions of participation.  The annual survey process fosters continual 
regulatory readiness and aligns with UMC’s quality, safety and regulatory 
initiatives. 

 
The first survey with DNV is considered year zero; it is an unannounced, full 
accreditation survey. Accreditation is awarded after the survey and plan of 
correction are accepted. The second and third years are considered periodic 
checks, and the fourth survey is more in-depth.  
 
Ms. Scott next explained the journey to ISO 9001 Certification and the timeline to 
reach this certification. A discussion ensued regarding the processes for 
information and policy management, as well as software systems used to 
streamline the survey process.  
 
The agreement with The Joint Commission will remain in place during the first 
survey year.  
 
FINAL ACTION:  

 
  None 
 
ITEM NO. 17 Review and discuss the potential topics to include on the Governing 

Board 2025   Action Plan calendar; and take any action deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- None  
 
DISCUSSION:  

Chair O’Reilly thanked all Board members for their participation in the Governing 
Board survey. He highlighted that the purpose of the survey is to use the 
information as an action plan for the year. The comments and suggestions will be 
a part of the agenda going forward.  
 
The comments and suggestions are highlighted are as follows: 
 

• Focus on strategic initiatives to effectively improve quality care in 
the community 

Page 11 of 349 



UMC Governing Board 
January 29, 2025  Page 7 of 12 
 

• Effectively use technology to control and manage costs (i.e. 
Artificial Technology and Epic) 

• Review areas of specialty services to forecast budgets, including 
income and expenses 

• Review and develop a succession plan for C-Suite employees with 
long and short-term goals 

• Review and update long-term facility plans 
• Focus on the future of UMC as an Academic Medical Center and 

develop a new relationship with UNLV 
• UMC’s role as leader of an Academic Center in the community, as 

well as nationally and internationally renowned Center of 
Excellence, with a focus on clinical trials. 

Chair O’Reilly stated that other items can be forwarded to staff, as the topics 
could be used as future action items throughout the year. There was continued 
discussion regarding the investment and use of artificial intelligence technology. 

Chairman O’Reilly added that a joint meeting with the Board of Hospital Trustees 
may be scheduled for the March meeting. 
 
FINAL ACTION:  
 
None 
 

ITEM NO. 18 Receive a report from the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee; 
and take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- None 
 
DISCUSSION:  

Member Caspersen provided a report on the meeting, which was held on 
Wednesday, January 22, 2025, at 2:00 p.m. A quorum was in attendance. There 
was no public comment, and the minutes and agenda were both approved 
unanimously.   
 
The Committee received a quarterly update on the status of the ReVITALize 
project. An overview of activities and expenditures to date was provided. The 
project is on track to be completed on time and on budget by the end of the fiscal 
year. 
 
Next, the CFO provided a report on the monthly financial results and fiscal year-
end financials for November and December 2024. The discussion included 
successes and challenges in operational improvements and initiatives to improve 
budget results. An update on the status of the organizational performance goals 
was also provided. 
 

Page 12 of 349 



UMC Governing Board 
January 29, 2025  Page 8 of 12 
 

The business items were reviewed and approved or ratified by the Committee 
during the meeting. All of the contracts that were approved during the meeting 
are a part of today’s consent agenda.  
 
There was no public comment, and the meeting adjourned. 

FINAL ACTION:  
 
None 
 

ITEM NO. 19  Receive the monthly financial report for November and December FY25; 
and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  

- November and December FY25 Financial Reports 
 
DISCUSSION:  

Ms. Wakem provided a summary of the monthly financial reports for November 
and December FY2025. 
 
The key indicators for November showed admission 7.5% below budget. The 
average length of stay was 5.9. days. Overall acuity was 1.84 and Medicare CMI 
was 1.99. Inpatient surgeries were 11% below budget and outpatient surgeries 
were 5.64% above budget. There were 15 transplant cases.  
 
ER visits were below budget 3.5%.  Conversion rate was 21.78%. Quick cares 
and primary cares were below budget. Telehealth had 535 visits for the month. 
Orthopedic Clinic volumes was on budget. Deliveries were 13.73% below budget.  

The income statement for the month showed operating revenue above budget 
$17.2 million and operating expenses exceeded budget $24.6 million. Year to 
date we are $8.2 million on a budget of $15.3 million, leaving us $7.3 million 
below budget. 
 
Key indicators for December showed that admissions were above budget 5%. 
There were 742 observation cases. The length of stay dropped to 5.62. Overall 
hospital acuity was 1.77, and Medicare CMI was 1.91. Inpatient surgeries were 
below budget by 8%, and outpatient surgeries were up 2.61%. There were 17 
transplants. ER visits hit a record high at over 10,000 cases. The conversion rate 
dropped. She explained that we currently have 24/7 hospitalists in the 
emergency room and use the clinical decision unit.  
 
Quick cares were on budget and primary cares were significantly above budget. 
Telehealth visits were at 540 for December; outpatient orthopedic clinic visits 
were at a record high. There were 106 deliveries. 
 

Page 13 of 349 



UMC Governing Board 
January 29, 2025  Page 9 of 12 
 

Chairman O’Reilly inquired about the decline in telehealth visits and deliveries. 
Ms. Wakem noted that there has been a decline, and it is a service that is being 
monitored.  
 
A discussion ensued regarding the decline in deliveries. Dean Kahn requested a 
breakout of UNLV deliveries vs. total deliveries at UMC. Chairman O’Reilly 
commented on the possibility that deliveries are going to other facilities instead of 
UMC. Dean Kahn responded that deliveries are not being sent to other facilities. 
Chairman O’Reilly would like to have this discussion in his agenda item. 

The income statement for December showed net revenue above budget $1.2 
million and operating expenses were slightly above budget. Total income from 
ops showed earnings of $3.7 million on a $3 million budget, leaving the month 
above budget $679k. Ms. Wakem next reviewed the year-to-date income 
statement.  
 
Salaries, wages and benefits showed overtime down significantly for the month. 
Contract labor was above budget, primarily due to radiology.  All other expenses 
were above budget 1.3%.  

Lastly, Ms. Wakem reviewed the timeline for the FY26 budget. 

FINAL ACTION:  
None 

ITEM NO. 20 Receive an update from the Dean of the Kirk Kerkorian School of Medicine 
at UNLV; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- None 
 
The Dean began the discussion stating that the parties should come together to 
discuss a new affiliation agreement and decide what it would look like to best 
care for the community and this should be a collective mission. 
 
There are 12 approved ongoing clinical trials and 7 more pending. The goal is to 
increase the number of clinical trials at UMC over the next few months. He added 
that brain health research is now housed in the school of medicine as of January 
1st, which will significantly improve clinical trials in Alzheimer’s research. 
 
Match Day is the 3rd Friday in March at 9:00 a.m. at the Medical Education 
Building. The Board is invited to come.  
 
Lastly, he commented on the legislative session and the importance of increasing 
GME slots. 
 
Member Caspersen asked if the clinical trials are funded privately. Dean Kahn 
confirmed that they are funded privately. 

Page 14 of 349 



UMC Governing Board 
January 29, 2025  Page 10 of 12 
 

Member Hagerty commented on the path to becoming a Comprehensive Stroke 
Center of Excellence and thanked the Dean for the suggestion provided in prior 
years.  
 
FINAL ACTION:  
None 

ITEM NO. 21 Receive an update from the Hospital CEO; and take any action deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  

- PowerPoint Presentation 
 
DISCUSSION:  

Mason Van Houweling, UMC CEO, echoed the invitation to attend the Match Day 
at the school and watch dreams come true on March 21st. 

He next provided the following updates: 

• Level I Trauma update – UMC was successful in defending being the only 
Level I Trauma center in Southern Nevada.  

• Sponsoring Institution – UMC was approved through the ACGME to be a 
sponsoring institution. There were no deficiencies. This will allow UMC to do 
a hospital based residency in radiology. 

• Infusion Clinic – The location at 701 Rancho is opening supporting 
infusion/chronic care management. 

• Interventional Radiology—the volume is up, and there have been increased 
clinical trials in PEs, VTEs, and strokes.  

• DNV Comprehensive Initial Accreditation is anticipated in Feb/March 

• DNV Comprehensive Survey is scheduled for May 20th   

• 1st floor renovations are underway - 8 months to completion  

• 2040 renovations are underway – 6 months to completion. The 4th and 5th 
floors of the Trauma Building will become a rehab center.  

• CVS on Charleston has been leased by UMC to be used for patient care. 

• Delta Point working with the owners to use for outpatient medical office 
space. 

• NV Energy recognizes UMC with the highest annual energy savings award. 
Congratulations! 

FINAL ACTION:  
 
None 
 

Page 15 of 349 



UMC Governing Board 
January 29, 2025  Page 11 of 12 
 
ITEM NO. 22 Review and determine the committee assignments for the calendar year 

2025; and take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Committee Assignments  
 
DISCUSSION:  

The Board reviewed the current committee assignments for the 2025 calendar 
year.  
 
Chair O’Reilly appointed Laura Lopez-Hobbs as the Chair of the Human 
Resources and Executive Compensation Committee. 
 
Committee assignments will remain as they are now, with the following 
exceptions: 
 
- Member Mackay will come off of the Audit and Finance Committee and will 

be added as a member of the Human Resources and Executive 
Compensation Committee. 
 

- Member Noonan will now be a voting member on the Audit and Finance 
Committee and the Human Resources and Executive Compensation 
Committee and will come off of the Clinical Quality and Professional Affairs 
Committee. 
 
Chairman O’Reilly added that the appointments may be subject to change as 
necessary. 

 
FINAL ACTION:  
 
A motion was made by Member Caspersen that Committee appointments be 
approved as announced. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 

SECTION 4: EMERGING ISSUES 
 
ITEM NO. 23 Identify emerging issues to be addressed by staff or by the Board at future 

meetings; and direct staff accordingly. (For possible action) 
 

DISCUSSION:  
 
Member Palenik inquired about the impact of the President’s Executive Orders 
and HHS and how these may financially affect UMC.  
 
Chairman O’Reilly suggested considering agenda items that will address areas of 
focus in healthy living. 
 
FINAL ACTION:  
 
None 

Page 16 of 349 



UMC Governing Board 
January 29, 2025  Page 12 of 12 
 

 
 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC: 
 
Comments from the general public were called. No such comments were heard. 
 
At this time, a motion was made by Member Mackay to go into closed session. 
 
FINAL ACTION TAKEN:  
 
At the hour of 3:32 PM, a motion was made by Member Mackay that the Board 
go into closed session. Motion carried by unanimous vote.  
  

SECTION 5:  CLOSED SESSION 

ITEM NO. 24 Go into closed session pursuant to NRS 241.015(4)(c), to receive information 
  from UMC’s Office of General Counsel regarding potential or existing 
  litigation involving a matter over which the Board has supervision, control,  
  jurisdiction or advisory power, and to deliberate toward a decision on the  
  matter; and direct staff accordingly.   
 

The meeting was reconvened in closed session at 3:35 PM. 
 
At the hour of 4:05 PM, the closed session on the above topic ended. 
 
FINAL ACTION TAKEN:  
 
None 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board at this time, at the 
hour of 4:05 PM, Chair O’Reilly adjourned the meeting.   
 

 
APPROVED:  
Minutes Prepared by: Stephanie Ceccarelli, Governing Board Secretary 
 

Page 17 of 349 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 

Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling 

Recommendation: 

That the Governing Board approve the February 2025 Medical and Dental Staff 
Credentialing Activities for University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (UMC) as 
authorized by the Medical Executive Committee (MEC) on February 25, 2025; and 
take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 

 

BACKGROUND: 
 
As per Medical Staff Bylaws, Credentialing actions will be approved by the Medical Executive Committee 
(MEC) and submitted to the Governing Board monthly.  
 
This action grants practitioners and Advanced Practice Professionals the authority to render care within UMC.  
At the February 20 , 2025 meeting, these activities were reviewed by the Credentials Committee and 
recommended for approval by the MEC.  
 
The MEC reviewed and approved these credentialing activities at the February 25, 2025 meetings.

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cleared for Agenda 
February 26, 2025 
 
      Agenda Item # 

     4 

Page 18 of 349 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                       Page 1 

GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                           February 26, 2025   

 
Date:   February 26, 2025 

To:   Governing Board  

From:  Credentials Committee  

Subject:  February 20, 2025 Credentialing Activities 

 

I. NEW BUSINESS  

 

II. CREDENTIALS 

A. INITIAL FPPE FOR MEMBERSHIP AND PRIVILEGES 
 

1 Alkadri Mohi MD 
02/25/2025 - 
06/30/2026 

Interventional 
Cardiology 

Nevada Heart and 
Vascular  

Category 1 

2 Boulos Sarah DO 
02/25/2025 - 
02/28/2026 

Emergency 
Medicine 

UMC Emergency 
Medicine 

Category 1 

3 Bowers Rachel PAC 
02/25/2025 - 
08/30/2026 Surgery/Urology Las Vegas Urology 

Category 1 

4 Cabanit Kristian APRN 
02/25/2025 - 
12/31/2026 Family Medicine Platinum Hospitalists, LLP 

Category 1 

5 Calvillo Gloria PAC 
02/25/2025 - 
02/28/2026 Family Medicine 

Mike O'Callaghan Military 
Hospital 

Category 1 

6 Caparros MA Renzel APRN 
02/25/2025 - 
06/30/2026 Family Medicine Pioneer Healthcare 

Category 1 

7 Engelhardt Mary APRN 
02/25/2025 - 
11/30/2026 OB/GYN UNLV Health 

Category 1 

8 Estvold Soren MD 
02/25/2025 - 
02/28/2026 Family Medicine 

Mike O'Callaghan Military 
Hospital 

Category 1 

9 Frias Jason CRNA 
02/25/2025-
02/28/2026 Anesthesiology 

Mike O'Callaghan Military 
Hospital 

Category 1 

10 Garica Diana MD 
02/25/2025 - 
02/28/2026 Pathology 

Associated Pathologists, 
Chartered 

Category 1 

11 Ichinoe Denice DO 
02/25/2025 - 
06/30/2026 Family Medicine UNLV Health 

Category 1 

12 Korczynski Michael DO 
02/25/2025 - 
09/30/2026 Radiology  UMC Radiology  

Category 1 

13 Lange  Kristopher  DO 
02/25/2025 - 
05/30/2026 

Emergency 
Medicine 

UMC Emergency 
Medicine 

Category 1 

14 LeBarr Mindy APRN 
02/25/2025-
08/31/2026 Family Medicine 

Mike O'Callaghan Military 
Hospital 

Category 1 

15 Li Yiting MD 
02/25/2025 - 
12/31/2026 Pathology 

Associated Pathologists, 
Chartered 

Category 1 

16 Lopez Madison PAC 
02/25/2025 - 
01/31/2027 

Emergency 
Medicine 

UMC Emergency 
Medicine 

Category 1 

17 Mehdi Raja MD 
02/25/2025 - 
10/31/2026 Oncology 

American Oncology 
Partners 

Category 1 

18 Mitchell Errin MD 
02/25/2025 - 
09/30/2026 

Pediatric Critical 
Care 

Las Vegas Pediatric 
Critical Care Associates 

Category 1 

19 Mobini Narciss MD 
02/25/2025 - 
07/31/2026 Pathology 

Associated Pathologists, 
Chartered 

Category 1 

20 Moderow Shelby PAC 
02/25/2025-
05/31/2026 Family Medicine 

Mike O'Callaghan Military 
Hospital 

Category 1 

21 Mukherjee Rita MD 
02/25/2025-
04/30/2026 Oncology 

The Oncology Institute of 
Hope & Innovation 

Category 1 

22 Noble Jade DO 
02/25/2025-
09/30/2026 Family Medicine 

Mike O'Callaghan Military 
Hospital 

Category 1 

Page 19 of 349 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                       Page 2 

GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                           February 26, 2025   

 

23 Olen Rebecca PAC 
02/25/2025-
08/31/2026 

Emergency 
Medicine 

UMC Emergency 
Medicine 

Category 1 

24 Planes Jamie PAC 
02/25/2025-
09/30/2026 

Emergency 
Medicine 

UMC Emergency 
Medicine 

Category 1 

25 Reed Kenneth DMD 
02/25/2025-
07/31/2026 

Oral Maxillofacial 
Surgey Kenneth L. Reed, DMD 

Category 1 

26 Valladares Jose MD 
02/25/2025-
02/28/2026 Oncology 

The Oncology Institute of 
Hope & Innovation 

Category 1 

27 Walls Andrew MD 
02/25/2025-
10/31/2026 Pediatrics 

Pediatric Critical Care 
Medicine 

Category 1 

28 Wasserman Richard MD 
02/25/2025-
05/31/2026 OB/GYN Las Vegas Urology 

Category 1 

 

B. REAPPOINTMENTS TO STAFF 

1 Adrangi Bahbak M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 Anesthesiology 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Medicus Healthcare 
Solutions 

2 Arsulo Maritess APRN 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2026 Ambulatory Care 

APP 
Independent 
Membership 
and Privileges 

UMC-Spring Valley Quick 
Care 

3 Brown Jonathan M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 Ambulatory Care 

Active 
Membership 
and Privileges 

UMC-Enterprise Quick 
Care 

4 Carag Charissa Marie M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 

Medicine/Nephrolo
gy 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Kidney Specialists of 
Southern Nevada 

5 Choi Clark M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 Anesthesiology 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges Clark Choi MD PC 

6 Dunetz Wayne D.P.M 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 

Orthopaedic 
Surgery/Podiatry 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Wayne Dunetz DPM PAC 
LLC 

7 Duong Scott M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 Anesthesiology 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges Duong Anesthesia PLLC 

8 Edano Debbie M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 Ambulatory Care 

Active 
Membership 
and Privileges UMC-Nellis Quick Care 

9 Fadell David D.O. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 

Orthopaedic 
Surgery & 

Orthopaedic Hand 
Surgery 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Hand Surgery Specialists 
of Nevada 

10 Feng Waldo M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 Surgery/Urology 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Pediatric Urology of Las 
Vegas 

Page 20 of 349 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                       Page 3 

GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                           February 26, 2025   

 

11 Figueroa Evelyn APRN 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 Ambulatory Care 

APP Active 
Independent 
Membership 
and Privileges UMC-Sunset Quick Care 

12 Gollard Russell M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 

Medicine/Hematolo
gy/Oncology 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges Nevada Cancer Specialists 

13 Green Kimberly APRN 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 Ambulatory Care 

APP 
Independent 
Membership 
and Privileges UMC-Wellness Center 

14 Griffard Jared M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2026 

Surgery/General 
Surgery & Trauma 
Surgery & Trauma 

Critical Care 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges UNLV Health 

15 Hansen Mark M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 

Medicine/Pulmonar
y 

Medicine/Respirato
ry Care 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Mike O'Callaghan Military 
Medical Center 

16 Ho Arthur M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 

Anesthesia & 
Trauma Anesthesia 

Affiliate Initial 
FPPE 

Membership 
and Privileges UMC Anesthesia 

17 Holmes Madison APRN 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2026 Ambulatory Care 

APP Initial FPPE 
Privileges 

UMC-Summerlin Quick 
Care 

18 Lee Daniel M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 

Orthopaedic 
Surgery & Trauma 

Orthopaedic 
Surgery 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Desert Orthopaedic 
Center 

19 Limtao Ferdinand APRN 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 Ambulatory Care 

APP Active 
Independent 
Membership 
and Privileges UMC-Sunset Primary Care 

20 Lippmann Frederick M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 Ambulatory Care 

Active 
Membership 
and Privileges 

UMC-Centennial Primary 
Care 

21 Luna Carlos M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 Pediatrics 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Children's Heart Center 
Nevada 

22 Luna Diane APRN 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 Ambulatory Care 

APP 
Independent 
Membership 
and Privileges UMC Online Care 

Page 21 of 349 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                       Page 4 

GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                           February 26, 2025   

 

23 McAuliffe Matthew M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2026 

Medicine/Physical 
Medicine/Rehabilita

tion 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges Monitoring Associates 

24 Mercadante Austin M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2026 Pediatrics 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Children's Heart Center 
Nevada 

25 Nakamura Craig M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 Pediatrics 

Active 
Membership 
and Privileges 

to Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges Children's Lung Specialists 

26 Ochoco Mario APRN 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 Medicine 

APP 
Independent 
Membership 
and Privileges Platinum Hospitalists 

27 Pietryga Janel M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2026 

Orthopaedic 
Surgery & Trauma 

Orthopaedic 
Surgery 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

UMC Orthopedic & Spine 
Institute 

28 Pillon Luana M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 

Medicine/Nephrolo
gy 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Kidney Dialysis & 
Hypertension Specialist 

29 Pinette William M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 

Surgery/General 
Surgery 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Office of Military 
Medicine 

30 Rudnitsky Benjamin M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 

Medicine/Nephrolo
gy 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges NKDHC, PLLC 

31 Tahir Nauman M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 

Medicine/Nephrolo
gy 

Active 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Kidney Specialists of 
Southern Nevada 

32 Tiu Hannah M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 

Medicine/Nephrolo
gy 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges NKDHC, PLLC 

33 Torio Nerissa APRN 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 

Medicine/Internal 
Medicine 

APP 
Independent 
Membership 
and Privileges Platinum Hospitalists 

34 Weltman James D.O. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 

Medicine/Nephrolo
gy 

Active 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Kidney Specialists of 
Southern Nevada 

35 Xu Jun M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 

Surgery/Cardiovasc
ular/Thoracic 

Surgery 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Las Vegas Surgical 
Associates 

Page 22 of 349 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                       Page 5 

GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                           February 26, 2025   

 

36 Yang Robert D.O. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 

Emergency 
Medicine/Adult 

Emergency 
Medicine 

Active 
Membership 
and Privileges 

UMC Emergency 
Medicine 

 

 C.      MODIFICATION OF PRIVILEGES AT REAPPOINTMENT 

1 Fadell David D.O. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 

Orthopaedic Surgery & 
Orthopaedic Hand 

Surgery 
New Privilege - Arthroscopic Surgery 
Withdraw Privilege - Telemedicine   

2 Griffard Jared M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2026 

Surgery/General Surgery 
& Trauma Surgery & 
Trauma Critical Care 

Withdraw Privileges - Telemedicine and 
Da Vinci  

3 Hansen Mark M.D. 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 

Medicine/Pulmonary 
Medicine/Respiratory 

Care 
Withdraw Privileges - Therapeutic Whole 
Lung Lavage 

4 Limtao Ferdinand APRN 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 Ambulatory 

Withdraw Privilege: Incision/Drainage of 
superficial abscesses 

5 Pillon Luana MD 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 Medicine/Nephrology 

Withdraw Privilege: Internal Medicine 
Privileges 

6 Torio Nerissa APRN 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 

Medicine/Internal 
Medicine 

Withdraw Privilege: Cleanse and debride 
wounds, suture lacerations, remove 
sutures and staples; Interpret 
electrocardiogram tracing; Apply and 
remove orthopaedic splints, casts and 
traction 

7 Weltman James DO 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 Medicine/Nephrology 

New Privilege: Total Parenteral Nutrition 
(TPN) 

8 Xu Jun MD 
04/01/2025-
03/31/2027 Surgery/CVT 

Withdraw Privileges: Ambulatory & Basic 
CV/TH Privileges 

D.       MODIFICATION OF PRIVILEGES 

1 Bonney Caitlin MD 

"Emergency 
Medicine/Adult 

Emergency Medicine 
Modification of Privileges – Withdraw Privilege: Pediatric 
Cross Coverage  

2 Kravetz Kyle  MD Anesthesiology 
Modification of Privileges – New Privilege: Trauma 
Anesthesiology 

3 Nguyen Cuong MD Medicine/Cardiology 

Modification of Privileges – Withdraw Privileges: Invasive 
Cardiology Core // Peripheral Angiography and Intervention--
Peripheral Atherectomy // Percutaneous Transluminal 
Angioplasty/Stent Placement (PTA- 
Peripheral/Atherectomy/Thrombectomy) // Percutaneous 
Coronary Artherectomy  

4 Roberts  Catherine MD Radiology 

Modification of Privileges:  New Privilege: Core (Routine 
Interpretation) Withdraw: ROUTINE PLAIN FILM AND 
FLUOROSCOPY INTERPRETATION, ROUTINE PLAIN FILM 
INTERPRETATION AND FLUOROSCOPY PROCEDURES, 
ULTRASOUND INTERPRETATIONS AND ULTRASOUND GUIDED 

Page 23 of 349 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                       Page 6 

GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                           February 26, 2025   

 
PROCEDURES, COMPUTED TOMOGRAPHY AND CT GUIDED 
PROCEDURES, MAGNETIC RESONANCE IMAGING (MRI) 

5 Tisminezky Bernardo MD 
Anesthesiology/  

Trauma/Anesthesia Modification of Privileges – Withdraw: Trauma Anesthesia 

E.      MODIFICATION OF PRIVILEGE – TEMPORARY-PROCTORING  

1 Berry Keith MD 
Sugery/General 

Surgery 
Modification of Privilege: New Temp Privilege - Moderate 
Sedation (Proctoring) 

2 Gomez Nadia MD 
Obstetrics and 

Gynecology 
Modification of Privilege: New Temp Privilege – Co2 Laser 
Surgery (Proctoring) 

3 Kashtan Harris MD 

Surgery/General 
Surgery  

Trauma/General 
Surgery 

Modification of Privilege: New Temp Privilege – Deep 
Sedation (Proctoring) 

4 Massey II Bentley MD 
Sugery/General 

Surgery 
Modification of Privilege: New Temp Privilege - Moderate 
Sedation (Proctoring) 

5 Nizamani Rabia MD 
Surgery/General 

Surgery 
Modification of Privilege: New Temp Privilege - Laser Surgery: 
Co2 (Proctoring) 

F.      EXTENSION OF INITIAL FPPE  

1 Ahmed Shamoona M.D. 
Medicine/Internal 

Medicine 
Extend FPPE for Ambulatory Medicine & Telemedicine 
through August 2025 due to not able to provide cases 

2 Alali Abdallah M.D. Medicine/Nephrology 
Extend FPPE for Total Parenteral Nutrition (TPN) through 
August 2025 due to not being able to provide cases 

3 Altshuler Paulina DO 
Obstetrics and 

Gynecology 
Extend FPPE for Da Vinci Robotic through August 2025 due 
to not being able to provide cases 

4 Brown Aubrey PAC 
Medicine/Family 

Medicine 
Extend Initial FPPE through August 2025 due to not being 
able to provide cases 

5 Fleming Irma M.D. 

Surgery/General & 
Trauma Burn Care & 
Trauma Critical Care 

Extend FPPE for Ambulatory Medicine and Amputations 
through August 2025 due to not being able to provide cases 

6 Mecham Kyle DO 
Surgery/General 

Surgery 
Extend Initial FPPE through August 2025 due to not being 
able to provide cases 

7 Miles Shana M.D. 
Obstetrics and 

Gynecology 

Extend FPPE for Hysterectomies // Simple: Vaginal and 
Abdominal // Primary Closure // Cystotomies // 
Cystoscopies // Acute Intraoperative Bleeding // Injuries to 
Bladder, Ureters, Vessels, Nerves, Bowel and any other 
intra-abdominal organ through August 2025 due to not able 
to provide cases 

8 Wyn Brian MD Anesthesiology 
Extend Initial FPPE through August 2025 due to not being 
able to provide cases 

 
 

 

Page 24 of 349 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                       Page 7 

GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                           February 26, 2025   

 
G.   CHANGE IN STAFF STATUS / COMPLETION OF INITIAL FPPE 

1 Aggarwal Abhimanyu MD Radiology/Radiology 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial 
FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate 
Membership and Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

2 Abalos Cherylene DO 
Medicine/Internal 

Medicine 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial 
FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate 
Membership and Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

3 Coughlin Dylan MD Anesthesiology 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial 
FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate 
Membership and Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

4 Deol Baljit MD Radiology 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial 
FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate 
Membership and Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

5 Garst Geoffrey MD 

Emergency 
Medicine/Emergency 

Medicine 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial 
FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate 
Membership and Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

6 Haas Blake  MD Radiology 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial 
FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate 
Membership and Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

7 Habashy Jonathan MD Medicine/Internal 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial 
FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate 
Membership and Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

8 Johnson Jennifer PAC Radiology 
Change in Staff Status - Release from APP Initial 
FPPE Privileges to APP Dependent Privileges 

9 Khan Zubair MD 
Medicine/Cardiovascular 

Disease 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial 
FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate 
Membership and Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

10 Kushnir Christina MD 
Obstetrics and 

Gynecology 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial 
FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate 
Membership and Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

11 Naginani Bhavani MD Ambulatory Care 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial 
FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate 
Membership and Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

12 Owens Tyler DO Anesthesiology 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial 
FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate 
Membership and Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

13 Pamulapati Vivek MD Surgery/General Surgery 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial 
FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate 
Membership and Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

14 Salazar Stephanie APRN Medicine/Internal 

Change in Staff Status - Release from APP Initial 
FPPE Privileges to APP Independent Membership 
Privileges 

15 Taha Ammar MD Radiology/Radiology 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial 
FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate 
Membership and Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

Page 25 of 349 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                       Page 8 

GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                           February 26, 2025   

 

16 Veeragaghavan Srivathsa MD Radiology 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial 
FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate 
Membership and Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

17 Wilensky Adam MD Surgery/General Surgery 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial 
FPPE Membership and Privileges to Affiliate 
Membership and Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

H.  REMOVAL/RESIGNATIONS  

1 Andreasen Lance PAC 

Medicine/Internal 

Medicine 

Office of Military 

Medicine 

Rotator- LOA -Remove from 

staff per Jen Foy. Email 

11/14/24 

2 Dhillon Rajesh MD Radiology UMC Resignation 

3 Estrada Christine DO Family Medicine 

ProCare Hospice of 

Nevada 

Resignation – New 

position/promotion in Florida 

4 Evans Edd MD Anesthesiology 

US Anesthesia 

Partners 

Voluntary resignation - no 

response, didn't return 

packet. 

5 Fu Pei-Chi MD Ambulatory Care 

UMC Peccole Primary 

Care Resignation 

6 Gravett Michael MD 

Medicine/Family 

Medicine 

Office of Military 

Medicine 

Resignation - I was only on 

staff to complete a training 

course for the USAF 

(Rotator). 

7 Kumar Jennifer MD Medicine/Nephrology 

Kidney Specialists of 

Southern Nevada 

Resignation letter received 

1/21/25. 

8 Mendoza Charles MD Anesthesia 

US Anesthesia 

Partners 

Voluntarily Resignation - No 

Reappt Submitted 

9 Ostrom Sarah PAC 

Emergency 

Medicine/Adult 

Emergency Medicine 

Sound Physicians-

Emergency Medicine 

Resignation – No longer 

working at UMC 

10 Ramirez Richmond MD 

Ambulatory 

Care/Primary Care 

UMC- Nellis Primary 

Care 

Resignation - Opened his 

private practice 

11 Ramos Everlino PAC 

Emergency 

Medicine/Adult 

Emergency Medicine 

Mike O'Callaghan 

Military Hospital 

Resignation - Withdrawn 

from EMPA Fellowship 

12 Sameh Assad MD Anesthesia Medicus Resignation 

13 Schirding Stephanie MD 

Ambulatory 

Care/Quick Care 

UMC Centennial 

Quick Care Resignation - Relocating 

14 Sun Josephine MD Pediatrics UNLV Resignation 

15 Wiederholt Bryan CRNA Anesthesiology UMC Anesthesia Resigning February 2, 2025 

16 Wickens Jason MD 

Surgery/Ophthalmolo

gy  

Voluntarily Resignation - No 

Reappt Submitted 

17 Yang Austin DO 

Medicine/Internal 

Medicine 

Mike O'Callaghan 

Military Medical Resignation - Relocating 

Page 26 of 349 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                       Page 9 

GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                           February 26, 2025   

 
Center, Internal 

Medicine 

18 Zapawa Jeffrey MD Radiology Medicus 

Voluntarily Resignation - No 

Reappt Submitted 

 

I.  ADJOURNMENT   

 

 

Page 27 of 349 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 26, 2025 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

5 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue:            UMC Policies and Procedures   

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the UMC Governing Board approve the Clinical Quality and Professional Affairs 
Committee’s recommendation for approval of the UMC Policy and Procedures 
Committee’s activities from its meetings held on  December 4, 2024 and January 2, 2025; 
and take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
At their meeting held on February 3, 2024, the Clinical Quality and Professional Affairs Committee 
reviewed and approved the UMC Policies and Procedures Committee’s activities of December 4, 
2024 & January 2, 2025, including the recommended creation, revision, and/or retirement of UMC 
policies and procedures and recommend for approval by the Governing Board. 
 

Page 28 of 349 



 

 
NMU01062A 

December 4, 2024 Hospital Policy / Procedure Committee 
As part of our regular policy review, the attached policies have been reviewed and updated by 
necessary hospital leaders/experts in order to reflect current regulatory rules and industry 
standards.  A summary of the changes to each policy is included below.  
Total of 22 Approved, 3 Retired 

 

POLICY NAME 
NEW/ 

REVISED 

HPP 
COMMITTEE 
DECISION 

SUMMARY 

Controlled Substances – 
Controlled Substance 
Automated Dispensing Cabinet 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Added to purpose - decrease risk of diversion. 

Added daily requirement to review CS-ADC and 
ADC variances. Defined non-retrievable. Added 

in reverse distributor process. Vetted by 
Pharmacy.  

Pharmacy Department Dress 
Code 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Updated policy to allow all pharmacists in direct 

patient care roles to wear scrubs after receiving 
approval from the Director of HR. Vetted by 

Pharmacy Department. 

Personnel Competency Training 
and Validation (Initial and 
Ongoing) in the IV Room 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Updated format; included competencies 
required for each type of personnel. Vetted by 

Assistant Director of Pharmacy and Director of 

Pharmacy.  

Training and Competency - 
Surface Cleaning of the Sterile 
Compounding Hood 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Moved to new template; added purpose 

statement and citation; removed specifics and 

referred to competency documentation. Vetted 
by Assistant Director of Pharmacy and Director 

of Pharmacy. 

Compounded Sterile Product 
Labeling 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Updated format; added detail and clarification 
from NRS/NAC to statements. Added syringe 

labeling detail. Vetted by Assistant Director of 
Pharmacy and Director of Pharmacy. 

Hazardous Medication Handling 
in the Pharmaceutical 
Department 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Renamed policy, added more definitions, 

updated compounding requirements for USP 
800, added disposal, repackaging, dispensing, 

and transportation requirements. Vetted by 
Assistant Director of Pharmacy and Director of 

Pharmacy. 

Pharmacy Purchasing and 
Receiving Procedures 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Combined “Receiving Procedure for 
Pharmaceuticals and Supplies Guideline” and 

“Pharmacy Purchasing Procedures will retire 

both individual policies. Updated name of 
document. Vetted by Assistant Director of 

Pharmacy and Director of Pharmacy. 

Medication Management 
Surveys 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Scheduled review, no changes. Vetted by 
Rehabilitation Services Director and ACNO. 

Physical Therapy Code of 
Conduct 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Scheduled review, no changes. Vetted by 
Rehabilitation Services Director and ACNO. 

Page 29 of 349 



 

 
NMU01062A 

POLICY NAME 
NEW/ 

REVISED 

HPP 
COMMITTEE 
DECISION 

SUMMARY 

Physical Therapy Scope and 
Standards of Practice Revised 

Approved as 
Submitted 

Introduced the ideal response time to a PT 

Evaluation and Treat order of less than 24 
hours. “Physical Therapy department will 

respond specifically to the services requested 
through the evaluation order ideally within 24 

hours, and no later than 28 hours.” Vetted by 
Rehabilitation Services Director and ACNO.  

Updating Discharge Status New 
Approved as 
Submitted 

New policy. Vetted by Director of Patient 

Accounting and Director of Health Information 
Management. 

Non-Blood Specimen Collection 
for Routine Testing and Culture 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Scheduled review, no changes. Vetted by 

General Laboratory Services Manager and 
Laboratory Services Director. 

Respiratory Protection Program Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Added section on annual TB Risk Assessment. 

Vetted by Director of Infection Prevention and 
Safety Manager. 

Employee Health Services Revised 
Approved 

with Revisions 

Compliance language added per HR request. 

Vetted by Director of Infection Prevention/ 
Employee Health, Medical Director Inpatient & 

Outpatient Infectious Disease Services & Quality 

Patient Safety & Regulatory Officer. 

ECLS Guidelines Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Policy reviewed and minor changes made to 
verbiage. Vetted by ECLS Workgroup, EVA 

Consultants, Critical Care Services Clinical 
Director and ACNO. 

Adult Medical Emergency 
Response Team (MERT) 

Revised 
Approved 

with Revisions 

Defined who MERT team responders includes. 

Defined MERT designees, to include 
documentation and protocol usage. ICU 

upgrade added to MERT criteria. Added 
Residents notifying attending physician of MERT 

activation, medications added to protocol and 

vetted by pharmacy and respiratory. Labs 
orders added to protocol. Outlined outpatient 

MERT activation procedure. Vetted by 
Pharmacy, Respiratory and Critical Care 

Committee. 

Use of Medicare Outpatient 
Observation Notice (MOON) 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Added to new template. Scheduled review, no 
changes. Vetted by Director of Case 

Management and CFO. 

Condition Code 44 - Inpatient 
to Outpatient Status Change 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Added to new template. Scheduled review, no 
changes. Vetted by Director of Case 

Management and CFO. 

Criteria Product Interqual Revised 
Approved 

with Revisions 

Added to new template. Scheduled review, no 
changes. Vetted by Director of Case 

Management and CFO.  

Page 30 of 349 



 

 
NMU01062A 

POLICY NAME 
NEW/ 

REVISED 

HPP 
COMMITTEE 
DECISION 

SUMMARY 

Helicopter Safety Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Transcribed to new template. Updated to reflect 

current practice. Transition to Public Safety 
Policy. Vetted by Trauma Department. 

Provider Attribution Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Updated Emergency Medicine Discharging and 

definition of Discharging Physician. Vetted by 
Department Chairs and Executive Director of 

Medical Staff and Managed Care. 

Pediatric Trauma Patients Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Updated age and response parameters. Vetted 

by Trauma Program Manager. 

 

Page 31 of 349 



 

 
NMU01062A 

January 2, 2024 Hospital Policy / Procedure Committee 
As part of our regular policy review, the attached policies have been reviewed and updated by 
necessary hospital leaders/experts in order to reflect current regulatory rules and industry 
standards.  A summary of the changes to each policy is included below.  
Total of 53 Approved, 9 Retired 

 

POLICY NAME 
NEW/ 

REVISED 

HPP 
COMMITTEE 
DECISION 

SUMMARY 

Coding – Quality Review Plan New 
Approved as 
Submitted 

New Policy, implemented in draft mode June 

2024. Vetted by Assistant Director CDI/Coding. 

Pediatric Early Warning Score 
(PEWS) 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Template update, respiratory scoring adjusted. 
Score 2 extra adjusted. Vetted by Pediatric 

Department. 

Pediatric Medical Emergency 
Response Team (MERT) 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Revised to current practice. Vetted by Pediatric 
Department. 

Reporting of Adverse Drug 
Events and Medication Errors 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Added to new template. Added reference to 

Just Culture and staff support. Included 
additional steps in the Medication Use 

Process. Clarified instances where reporting to 
providers is necessary. Vetted by Director of 

Pharmacy, Director of Patient Safety, ACNO. 

Controlled Substances: 
Transport to UMC Off-Site 
Clinics 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Added statement for appropriate state licensure 
and DEA registration. Re-organized procedure. 

Added the option to document witness in ADC. 

Added statement about returning controlled 
substances to CS-ADC and reconciliation. Vetted 

by Director of Pharmacy. 

Controlled Substance: 
Prescribing, Distribution, 
Storage, Administration, Waste 
and Monitoring 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Reformatted sections. Added more robust 
procedures and section on waste, including 

waste timing of 30 minutes, if not immediate; 
Added requirement for nursing unit inventory of 

accessed controls at shift change. Removed 

Procurement as it is addressed in the 
Controlled Substances: Pharmacy Specific 

Procedures Policy. Added Appendix A – 
Resolving ADC Discrepancies; approved by 

Director of Pharmacy and ACNO. 

Specialty Response Carts (Main 
OR, Trauma OR, and Perinatal) 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Updated to incorporate new process for 
replacing anesthesia trays in epidural carts; 

updated language and added in the 
supply chain material handlers responsibility; 

vetted by Director of Pharmacy, Clinical 

Manager in Perinatal Unit, Director of Materials 
Management/Supply Chain, Director of 

Peri-Operative Services. 

Page 32 of 349 



 

 
NMU01062A 

POLICY NAME 
NEW/ 

REVISED 

HPP 
COMMITTEE 
DECISION 

SUMMARY 

Concentrated Hypertonic Saline 
Infusion for the Pediatric and 
Adult Traumatic Brain Injury 
Patient 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Added references. Vetted by Director of 
Pharmacy. 

Pharmacy Corporate 
Compliance 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Moved to new template, removed old practices 
based on previous EHR systems. Vetted by 

Director of Pharmacy. 

Pregnant Patients Presenting to 
the Adult Emergency 
Department with Signs and 
Symptoms of Labor 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Placed on new template. No practice changes. 

Vetted by Adult ED Nurse Supervisor, Director 
of Emergency Services and ACNO. 

Ambulation on Discharge in the 
Adult Emergency Department 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Added #5 for clarification in process. Vetted by 
ED Medical Directors. 

Vital Signs Frequency and 
Addressing Abnormal Vital 
Signs in the Adult Emergency 
Department 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Changed midlevel to advanced practice 
provider; changed Heart Rate from 120 to 100 

as requested by ED Medical Directors. 

De-Identified Health 
Information 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Performed scheduled review. Minor formatting 

changes made. No content changes added. 
Vetted by Privacy Officer. 

Active Surveillance Testing Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Updated the MRSA screening protocol to include 

selected med-surg patients. Vetted by Director 
of Infection Prevention & Control. 

Purchasing Authorization Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Changed AllScripts to Veradigm, Veradigm 

eProcurement module. Changed Value Analysis 
Coordinator to Value Analysis Manager. 

Formatting updates. Vetted by Director of 

Supply Chain Services and Assistant Controller. 

Receiving of all Supplies and 
Equipment 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Removed reference to Gift Shop deliveries. 

Modified verbiage of notification from 

Distribution Manager to Supply Chain Manager. 
Vetted by Director of Supply Chain Services. 

Provider’s Orders for the 
Outpatient Burn Clinic 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Scheduled review, no changes. Vetted by Burn 

Program Manager, Critical Care Director and 
ACNO. 

Burn Care Unit, Criteria for 
Admission, Triage, And 
Discharge Guideline 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Changed verbiage from “Burn Administrator” to 

“Burn Leadership.” Added NP in several areas. 

Burn Consult  Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Scheduled review, no changes. Vetted by Burn 

Program Manager, Critical Care Director and 
ACNO. 

Page 33 of 349 



 

 
NMU01062A 

POLICY NAME 
NEW/ 

REVISED 

HPP 
COMMITTEE 
DECISION 

SUMMARY 

Burn Psychiatric Consult Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Scheduled review, no changes. Vetted by Burn 

Program Manager, Critical Care Director and 
ACNO. 

Burn Reporting  Revised 
Approved 

with Revisions 

Delineated the Burn Program Coordinator as the 

person responsible for reporting, removed 
attachment. Vetted by Burn Program Manager, 

Critical Care Director and ACNO. 

Guidelines for Early Palliative 
Care Consultation in the Burn 
Patient 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Scheduled review, no changes. Vetted by Burn 
Program Manager, Critical Care Director and 

ACNO. 

Initial Management for 
Pediatric Burn Patients 

Revised 
Approved 

with Revisions 

Scheduled review, no changes. Vetted by Burn 

Program Manager, Critical Care Director and 

ACNO. 

Initial Management for Large 
Burn Patients 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Scheduled review, no changes. Vetted by Burn 

Program Manager, Critical Care Director and 
ACNO. 

Dressing Change Guideline for 
Pediatric Burn Patients 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Scheduled review, no changes. Vetted by Burn 

Program Manager, Critical Care Director and 
ACNO. 

Early Enteral Feeding for Large 
Burn Patients – Adults 
Guideline 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Scheduled review, no changes. Vetted by Burn 
Program Manager, Critical Care Director and 

ACNO. 

Outpatient Follow-up Before 
Grafting Checklist 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Scheduled review, no changes. Vetted by Burn 
Program Manager, Critical Care Director and 

ACNO. 

PICU Involvement on Pediatric 
Burn Admissions 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Scheduled review, no changes. Vetted by Burn 

Program Manager, Critical Care Director and 

ACNO. 

Family at the Bedside in the 
Trauma ED 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Scheduled review; transcribed to updated 

formatting; updated language; removed 
language stating what was to be posted in the 

Trauma ED Waiting Room. Vetted by Trauma 

Clinical Manager, Critical Care Director and 
ACNO. 

Geriatric Trauma Treatment 
Guidelines 

Revised 
Approved 

with Revisions 

Researched, written and reviewed by Brittny 
Roso, RN and Doris Cowell, RN in consultation 

with stakeholders and involved departments. 
Reviewed by G60 Operational Committee. 

Vetted by Trauma Department. 

Trauma Sub-Specialty 
Consultation 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Scheduled review. Transcribed to new format. 
Vetted by Trauma Program Manager, Critical 

Care Director and ACNO. 

Trauma Follow-up Care Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Scheduled review. Transcribed to new format. 

Previous Purpose and Policy Statement 

combined to create new Purpose Statement. 

Page 34 of 349 



 

 
NMU01062A 

POLICY NAME 
NEW/ 

REVISED 

HPP 
COMMITTEE 
DECISION 

SUMMARY 

Previous Procedures, now contents of Guideline. 
Vetted by Trauma Program Manager, Critical 

Care Director and ACNO. 

Trauma Response Team – 
Laboratory Technician 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Scheduled review. Transcribed to new format. 

Previous Purpose and Policy Statement 

combined to create new Purpose Statement. 
Previous Procedures, now contents of Policy. 

Vetted by Trauma Clinical Manager, Clinical 
Director Critical Care Services – Trauma and 

ACNO. 

Adult Extracorporeal Life 
Support (ECLS) Services 

Revised 
Approved 

with Revisions 

Annual Guideline Review completed with 
minimal changes. Vetted by ECLS Coordinator, 

ECLS Program Director and Pediatric ECLS 
Program Director. 

Extracorporeal Life Support 
(ECLS) Perfusion Presence 

Revised 
Approved 

with Revisions 

Scheduled review, formatting updates. Vetted 
by ECLS Coordinator, Critical Care Director, 

ACNO, ECLS Program Director and Pediatric 

ECLS Program Director. 

Emergency Management of 
Massive Air Entrainment into 
Extracorporeal Life Support 
(ECLS) Circuit 

Revised 
Approved 

with Revisions 

Removed “bring a primed circuit to bedside” 

since policy is to keep a primed ready circuit at 
bedside. Vetted by ECLS Coordinator, ECLS 

Specialist, Critical Care Director, ACNO, ECLS 

Program Director and Pediatric ECLS Program 
Director. 

Extracorporeal Life Support 
(ECLS) Oxygenator Failure and 
Change Out 

Revised 
Approved 

with Revisions 

Scheduled review, no changes. Vetted by ECLS 
Coordinator, Critical Care Director, ACNO, ECLS 

Program Director and Pediatric ECLS Program 

Director. 

Extracorporeal Life Support 
(ECLS) Equipment 
Maintenance, Storage and 
Cleaning 

Revised 
Approved 

with Revisions 

Removed reference to Novalung. Vetted by 
ECLS Coordinator, Critical Care Director and 

ACNO. 

Weaning and Termination of 
Extracorporeal Life Support 
(ECLS)  

Revised 
Approved 

with Revisions 

Scheduled review, no changes. Vetted by ECLS 
Coordinator, Critical Care Director, ACNO, ECLS 

Program Director and Pediatric ECLS Program 
Director. 

Extracorporeal Life Support 
(ECLS) Roles 

Revised 
Approved 

with Revisions 

Scheduled review, grammatical update. Vetted 

by ECLS Coordinator, Critical Care Director and 
ACNO. 

Centrifugal Pump Head Change 
Out on Extracorporeal Life 
Support (ECLS) 

Revised 
Approved 

with Revisions 
Scheduled review, no changes. Vetted by ECLS 

Coordinator, Critical Care Director and ACNO. 

Extracorporeal Life Support 
(ECLS) Team Activation 

Revised 
Approved 

with Revisions 
Scheduled review, no changes. Vetted by ECMO 
Coordinator, Critical Care Director and ACNO. 

Page 35 of 349 



 

 
NMU01062A 

POLICY NAME 
NEW/ 

REVISED 

HPP 
COMMITTEE 
DECISION 

SUMMARY 

Cardiac Intermediate Care Unit 
(CIMC) Criteria for Triage, 
Admission and Discharge 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Scheduled review, no changes. Vetted by 

Director Critical Care Services and ACNO. 

Intermediate Care Unit (3 
South & 3 West) Criteria for 
Triage, Admission and 
Discharge 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Scheduled review, no changes. Vetted by 

Director Critical Care Services and ACNO. 

Cardiovascular Intensive Care 
Unit and Coronary Care Unit 
(CVCU/CCU) Criteria for Triage, 
Admission and Discharge 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Scheduled review, no changes. Vetted by 
Director Critical Care Services and ACNO. 

Petty Cash Funds Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Scheduled review, no changes. Vetted by 

Assistant Controller and CFO. 

Grant Allocation (Ryan White) Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Updated indirect % to 30%. Removed specific 

Indirect Cost Allocation Rate; replaced with 
language describing negotiations and maximum 

% regardless of negotiated rate. Vetted by 

Ambulatory Clinical Manager, Assistant 
Controller and CFO. 

Adult Organ Donation Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Updated per NRS requirements. Added to new 

template. Vetted by Critical Care Director. 

Respiratory – Handling and 
Storage of Oxygen 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Updated to new template. Made a stand-alone 

policy specifically centered on handling and 
storage. Vetted by Director of Respiratory 

Services. 

Rapid HIV Testing for Mothers 
and/or Newborns 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Scheduled review, updated references. Vetted 
by Clinical Manager, Perinatal Unit, Clinical 

Director – Maternal-Child Services and 
Chairman of the OB/GYN Department. 

Small Balance Adjustment Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

Scheduled review, update to current template. 

Vetted by Director Patient Accounting, Patient 
Account Manager and Patient Accounting 

Assistant Director. 

HIPAA Support of Reproductive 
Health Care Privacy 

Revised 
Approved as 
Submitted 

New policy. Vetted by Privacy Officer and HIM. 

Observation Status Patients Revised 
Approved 

with Revisions 

Added to new template. Updated physician 
notification process - to be completed by 

placing order in Epic. Vetted by Director of Case 

Management and CFO. 

 

Page 36 of 349 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 26, 2025 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

6 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Master Agreement and Product Schedule with Optum360, LLC 
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 
Master Agreement and Product Schedule with Optum360, LLC for the Optum Enterprise 
Computer-Assisted Coding Platform; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute 
extensions and amendments; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number: 5420.000      Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center: 3000870000     Funded Pgm/Grant: N/A 
Description: Optum Enterprise Computer-Assisted Coding Platform      
Bid/RFP/CBE: NRS 332.115(1)(h) – Computer Software 
Term: 2/26/2025 – 2/25/2030 
Amount: NTE $4,500,000.00     
Out Clause:  Early Termination at any time after year 3 with 60-day notice 
  

BACKGROUND: 
 
This request is to enter into a new Master Agreement and Product Schedule with Optum360, LLC (“Optum”) 
for the Optum Enterprise Computer-Assisted Coding platform. This solution offers capabilities in Computer-
Assisted Coding (CAC) and Clinical Documentation Improvement (CDI), through a cloud-based Software as 
a Service (SaaS) model. This design strategically minimizes the technical demands placed on UMC, allowing 
for greater focus on patient care. Additionally, Optum will provide a sophisticated functionality of Clinical 
Language Intelligence (CLI), which will significantly enhance UMC’s coding and CDI processes through 
automation and intelligent insights. This agreement will replace the current service provider, resulting in 
estimated cost savings of $275,905 once the Optum software is fully implemented. 
 
UMC will compensate Optum a not-to-exceed amount of $4,500,000 for five (5) years from February 26, 
2025, through February 25, 2030. After the conclusion of the third year, UMC has the option to terminate at 
any time with a 60-day written notice. 
 
UMC’s Director of Health Information Management has reviewed and recommends approval of these 
Agreements.  These Agreements have been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 

Page 37 of 349 



Page Number 
2 

These Agreements were reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their February 19, 
2025 meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board.  

Page 38 of 349 



MASTER AGREEMENT 

1 

 

OPTUM 
MASTER AGREEMENT 

 
This Master Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made as of February 26, 2025 (the “Agreement Date”), by and between 
Optum360, LLC, with a principal place of business at 1 Optum Circle, Eden Prairie, Minnesota 55344 (“Optum”), and 
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, a publicly owned and operated hospital created by virtue of Chapter 
450 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, with a principal place of business at 1800 West Charleston Boulevard Las Vegas, 
NV 89102 (“Customer”). 
 
Customer wishes to obtain certain services and products from Optum. This Agreement sets forth the terms under 
which Optum will provide the requested products and services. 
 
1. Definitions. 
 

1.1 The following definitions apply to this Agreement, including all Schedules (defined below) made 
pursuant to this Agreement: 

 
1.1.1 “Affiliate” means a company, which controls, is controlled by or is under common control with a 
party to this Agreement. For the purpose of this definition, “control” means majority ownership. 
1.1.2 Intentionally Omitted. 
1.1.3 “Customer Data” means claims, eligibility, provider, and other health care related data that 
Customer owns and that Customer or a Data Source delivers to Optum pursuant to this Agreement. 
1.1.4 “Data Products” or “Data” means all databases, data sets and other collections of information that 
Customer licenses from Optum pursuant to this Agreement. 
1.1.5 “Data Sources” means Customer and its administrators, claims payers, vendors and other sources 
of Customer Data to be delivered to Optum. 
1.1.6 “Documentation” means all user manuals and other written specifications distributed to Customer 
in connection with the Data Products or Software. 
1.1.7 “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and its 
corresponding regulations, as amended from time to time. 
1.1.8 “Services” means all consulting, training, Software hosting, analytical, data management, support, 
maintenance, reporting, Plan support services, and other services Customer obtains from Optum pursuant 
to this Agreement as specified in Schedules, signed by Optum and Customer, from time to time. 
1.1.9 “Software” means all computer software programs Customer licenses from Optum pursuant to 
this Agreement, whether installed at Customer’s location or hosted at Optum or elsewhere, all updates and 
revisions to such software that Optum provides to Customer, and all Documentation provided with such 
computer software programs. 
1.1.10 “Schedule” means a product schedule or statement of work entered into between the parties or 
an Affiliate that describes the Software, Data Products and/or Services and/or products including the terms 
and conditions applicable to them. 
1.1.11 “Useable Data” means complete, readable Customer Data in the format required for the applicable 
Software, Data Products or Services, conforming to the source data standard set forth in a Schedule, and 
including appropriate documentation, which has been tested and inspected by Optum, and determined to 
be Useable Data by Optum. 

 
1.2 When Customer agrees to purchase or license and Optum shall provide Services, Software, or Data 

Products to Customer under this Agreement, the parties shall sign appropriate Schedules to this Agreement. 
Execution of this Agreement does not bind Customer to purchase or license any Services, Software, or Data Products. 
 

1.3 Affiliate Schedules. Any Optum Affiliate may execute a Schedule hereunder and in such case, all 
obligations of, and references to, Optum in this Agreement shall instead refer to such Affiliate.  

 

Page 39 of 349 



MASTER AGREEMENT 

2 

 

1.4 The terms of the Software and Data License Addendum, attached hereto are incorporated herein 
by reference. 
 
2. Customer’s Responsibilities; Customer Data. 
 

2.1 If a Schedule requires Customer to deliver Customer Data to Optum, Customer shall provide 
Optum with all Useable Data required, in the format required for the applicable Services, Software, or Data Products. 
Optum will allow Customer the ability to correct data format within thirty (30) days, before its obligation to perform 
is cancelled. 
 

2.2 Customer and the Data Sources shall be responsible for their data entry activities. Customer 
represents that the Customer Data it provides to Optum under this Agreement (if any) contains true and accurate 
data and information, to the best of Customer’s knowledge. Optum shall not be responsible for errors or omissions 
in Customer Data or data entry done by Customer or the Data Sources, or for errors in Services, programs, hardware, 
data files, or output Optum provides to or maintains for Customer pursuant to this Agreement, if those Optum errors 
result from errors, omissions, illegible text or false or misleading statements in Customer's or the Data Sources’ input 
data, or from Customer's failure to comply with this Agreement. Customer is responsible for obtaining, prior to 
furnishing any data or information to Optum, any necessary permissions, consents, or releases, including entering 
into business associate agreements as applicable, which are required by applicable federal, state or local laws and/or 
regulations for the delivery of Customer Data to Optum and for Optum to use and disclose such Customer Data as 
set forth under this Agreement or required by law. 
 

2.3 During and after the term of this Agreement, Optum may use Customer Data for preparing 
commercially available normative and benchmark data, for internal and external research and analytics, and for 
creating de-identified data in accordance with the HIPAA standards. Optum may create, use and disclose de-
identified data in accordance with applicable law. Optum will not reveal the identity of Customer when disclosing 
de-identified data, or when providing certain normative and benchmark data to clients, except to the extent 
otherwise permitted by applicable law, this Agreement or any other agreement between the parties. Consistent with 
Section 4 of this Agreement, Optum shall not use or disclose Customer Data in any manner that would reveal the 
identity of patients or members (other than for explicit use of Customer Data by Customer under this Agreement), 
except to the extent permitted by applicable law, this Agreement, or any other agreement between the parties. 
However, Optum shall only use data provided for the purposes of this Agreement; and at no point is data provided 
to be used against Customer.  
 

2.4 If Customer uses or accesses any information or communication systems of Optum and/or its 
Affiliates (“Optum Systems”) in the course of the parties performing under this Agreement, Customer shall use such 
access only as authorized in this Agreement, and for no other purposes, and shall comply with all security controls, 
policies, standards, and guidelines applicable to Optum Systems which are disclosed to Customer as part of a log-in 
procedure. Customer shall  not (i) knowingly introduce any virus or disabling code into the Optum Systems; (ii) allow 
third parties to have access to the Optum Systems; (iii) attempt to access any portions of the Optum Systems that 
are not required for Customer’s performance under this Agreement; (iv) use the Optum Systems in any manner that 
may damage or impair the Optum Systems, Optum, or its Affiliates, or (v) attempt to circumvent or bypass Optum’s 
security procedures for the Optum Systems. 
  
3. Prices and Payment. 
 

3.1 Customer shall pay Optum for the Services, Software, and Data Products in the amounts set forth 
on each Schedule. Customer shall pay Optum for any additional billable services, which Customer requests and 
Optum performs and which are not specified in any Schedules, at Optum's then-current time and materials rates.  
Optum will be reimbursed for pre-approved actual travel expenses including airfare, car rental, ground 
transportation, parking, meals and lodging. All expenses must be reasonable and supported by written receipts.  
Optum agrees to comply with Customer’s Travel Policy as set forth in detail in Exhibit C of this Agreement.  Expenses 
reimbursed under this Section are not refundable by Optum to Customer for any reason. All invoices will be stated 

Page 40 of 349 



MASTER AGREEMENT 

3 

 

in and all payments made in U.S. dollars. Customer shall pay all applicable sales, use, and any other taxes (other than 
Optum's income taxes), however designated, which are collected or levied on account of this Agreement, unless 
Customer is exempt from such taxes and provides Optum with appropriate documentation of the exemption. 
 

3.2 Unless otherwise set forth on a Schedule, Customer shall pay all fees and expenses invoiced by 
Optum within thirty (30) days after the date of each undisputed invoice. Undisputed payments not received by the 
due date shall bear interest at a rate equal to the lesser of one and one half percent (1½%) per month, or the 
maximum rate allowed by law, provided Customer’s appropriated funds are not exceeded. Upon thirty (30) days 
written notice to Customer, Optum may inspect and audit Customer’s records relating to this Agreement, to confirm 
the calculation of fees due under this Agreement and Customer’s compliance with this Agreement. Optum shall hold 
such records in confidence. Such audits will occur no more often than once per year, and must be conducted with 
the least interruption to Customer’s normal business operations as feasible. 
 
4. HIPAA Compliance. 
 

4.1 This Section 4 applies only in the event that Optum is receiving Customer Data from or on behalf 
of Customer, which constitutes Protected Health Information. The parties hereby agree to the Business Associate 
Addendum (“BAA”), attached to this Agreement as Exhibit B. Unless otherwise specified in this Agreement, all 
capitalized terms used in this Section 4 or the BAA and not otherwise defined have the meaning established for 
purposes of the Privacy Rule and the Security Rule under HIPAA, as amended from time to time. When providing PHI 
to Optum, Customer or its Data Sources shall retain a copy of such PHI, and Optum will not possess the only copy of 
such PHI, unless Optum has agreed in writing to hold the only copy. 
 

4.2 The terms of this Section 4 and the BAA have been included based solely on the understanding by 
the parties that the tems of Section 4 and the BAA are required by HIPAA or other applicable laws. To the extent 
that any relevant provision of HIPAA is materially amended or interpreted in a manner that changes the obligations 
of Customer or Optum under this Agreement, the parties shall negotiate in good faith appropriate amendment(s) to 
this Agreement to give effect to such revised obligations. The terms of this Agreement will be construed in light of 
any interpretation of and/or guidance on HIPAA issued by the Department of Health and Human Services or the 
Office of Civil Rights, from time to time. 
 
5. Limitation of Remedies and Indemnification. 
 

5.1 Limitation of Liability. Each party’s liability to the other party for direct damages arising out of this 
Agreement will not exceed the amount customer has paid or owes Optum under the Schedule at issue for the 12-
month period immediately prior to the incident giving rise to the cause of action. Neither party nor third-party 
vendors will be responsible under this Agreement for any indirect, incidental, punitive, special or consequential 
damages, even if such party has been advised of the possibility of such damages arising from performance or failure 
to perform under this Agreement, resulting from either party’s performance or failure to perform under this 
Agreement, including, without limitation, the use of or inability to use the Software, Data Products or Services, any 
damage to equipment and any cost of recovering lost data or of reprogramming. Notwithstanding the above, this 
Section 5.1 does not limit (a) the parties’ liability for breach of their obligations to each other under Sections 5.2 or 
5.3 of this Agreement; (b) the liability either party may have to the other party for breach of Sections 4 (HIPAA 
Compliance) or 6 (Confidentiality) of this Agreement; (c) Customer’s liability for breach of obligations as set forth in 
an addendum or a Schedule, arising out of or related to: (i) Customer’s use of any third party to host or store data; 
(ii) Customer’s breach of data security requirements; (iii) Customer’s breach of obligations prohibiting re-
identification or linking of data or use of data beyond what is expressly permitted in the applicable Schedule; (d) the 
parties’ liability for violation of law; or (e) Customer’s liability to Optum for failure to pay amounts due under this 
Agreement or any Schedule. 
 

5.2 Indemnification by Optum. When a third party sues Customer or a governmental agency assesses 
a fine or penalty against Customer, Optum shall indemnify and defend Customer against and hold it, its officers, 
directors, employees, Affiliates, agents, successors, and assigns harmless from all third-party claims, actions, 

Page 41 of 349 



MASTER AGREEMENT 

4 

 

damages, liabilities, losses, fines, penalties, costs or expenses and all related costs and expenses, including but not 
limited to taxes, court costs, reasonable legal fees and disbursements, costs of investigation, litigation, settlement, 
judgment, and interest (collectively “Losses”) to the extent such Losses are directly arising or resulting from Optum’s 
(a) gross negligence or willful misconduct; (b) material breach of this Agreement; (c) infringement, violation or 
misappropriation of United States intellectual property rights; or (d) violation of applicable law; provided that 
Customer gives Optum prompt, written notice of any such Losses, sole control of the defense and settlement of such 
Losses, and all reasonable assistance to defend such Losses. Customer shall not settle the Losses without Optum’s 
written consent, provided that such consent is not unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. Optum shall have 
no obligations under this Section 5.2 to the extent such Losses arise, result from or relate to Customer's act, omission, 
or breach of this Agreement, Optum’s compliance with Customer’s directions or practices, or Customer's 
unauthorized or inappropriate use of or modifications to the Services, Software or Data Products. This 
indemnification provision will survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement and will not be deemed to 
waive or limit any other rights. 
 

5.3 Indemnification by Customer. To the extent permitted by Nevada law, when a third party sues 
Optum or a governmental agency assesses a fine or penalty against Optum, Customer shall indemnify, defend and 
hold Optum, its officers, directors, employees, Affiliates, agents, successors, and assigns harmless from all third-
party Losses to the extent such Losses are directly arising or resulting from Customer’s: (a) gross negligence or willful 
misconduct; (b) material breach of this Agreement; (c) infringement, violation or misappropriation of United States 
intellectual property rights; (d) violation of law; (e) use of Customer Data by any third party to whom Customer has 
directed Optum to deliver such data; (f) Customer's business decisions made after use of the Software or Data 
Products (except for Losses which fall under Section 5.2 of this Agreement) or (g) Customer’s business decisions 
made after use of the Services or Deliverables; provided that Optum gives Customer prompt, written notice of any 
such Losses, and all reasonable assistance to defend such Losses. Optum shall not settle the Losses without 
Customer’s written consent, provided that such consent is not unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. 
Customer shall have no obligation under this Section 5.3 to the extent such Losses arise, result from or relate to 
Optum’s act, omission, or breach of this Agreement. This indemnification provision will survive the termination or 
expiration of this Agreement and will not be deemed to waive or limit any other rights. 
 
6. Confidentiality. 
 

6.1 Each party acknowledges that in the course of performing under this Agreement, or in the course 
of discussing or negotiating Schedules or future agreements between the parties, each party may learn, directly or 
indirectly, regardless of form (e.g. written, electronic, oral or visual) confidential, trade secret, or proprietary 
information concerning the other party or third parties to whom the other party has an obligation of confidentiality, 
whether marked, designated or otherwise identified as “confidential,” including, without limitation, information 
clearly designated as confidential at the time of disclosure, or under the circumstances surrounding disclosure, the 
receiving party knows, or ought to reasonably know, is confidential (“Confidential Information”). 

 
6.2  Without limiting the foregoing, Optum’s Confidential Information means, the terms of this 

Agreement, financial information; employee information; information regarding Optum products, marketing plans, 
business plans, customer names and lists, Software, Data Products, Services and Documentation; reports generated 
by or for Optum; Optum’s methods of database creation; Optum’s translation, standardization, enhancement, and 
health data analysis techniques, health data reporting and profiling methods and formats; software tools for report 
creation, distribution and retrieval; and associated algorithms, developments, improvements, know-how, code 
(object and source), programs, software architecture, technology, trade secrets, pricing, rates, manuals, documents, 
records, work product, systems, business plans, proposals, policies, processes, procedures, methods, protocols, 
information systems, data, formulas, algorithms, network information, discounts, business relationships, any lists or 
information pertaining to any supplier, contractor, provider, vendor, locations, facilities, and any derivatives, copies, 
notes, and summaries of the foregoing that may be derived, in whole or in part, from any Confidential Information. 
Without limiting the foregoing, Customer’s Confidential Information includes information regarding Customer’s 
business and information regarding Customer's patients, premiums and claims data. Confidential Information will 
not include PHI, which is subject to Section 4 of this Agreement. 

Page 42 of 349 



MASTER AGREEMENT 

5 

 

 
6.3 Each party shall (a) use the other party’s Confidential Information only as may be necessary in the 

course of performing duties, receiving Services or exercising rights under this Agreement; (b) treat such information 
as confidential and proprietary; (c) not disclose such information orally or in writing to any third party without the 
prior written consent of the other party or reverse engineer, disassemble, decompile or create derivative works 
using Confidential Information learned as a result of this Agreement; (d) take all reasonable precautions to protect 
the other party’s Confidential Information; (e) not otherwise appropriate such information to its own use or to the 
use of any other person or entity. 

 
6.4 Without limiting the foregoing, each party shall protect the other party’s Confidential Information 

as it takes to protect its own Confidential Information of a similar nature. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each party 
hereby authorizes the other party to disclose Confidential Information, or portions thereof, to its employees, 
officers, directors, and Affiliates, and their respective employees, attorneys and accountants (hereinafter collectively 
referred to as the “Representatives”) who will be bound by standards of confidentiality no less than as set forth 
herein and who have a bona-fide need-to-know or need for access to such information to perform in accordance 
with this Agreement. Each party is solely responsible for all use of the other party’s Confidential Information by 
anyone who gains access to the Confidential Information under such party’s authorization. Upon termination or 
expiration (without renewal) of this Agreement, each party will, to the extent feasible, return to the other party or 
certify upon request as destroyed all Confidential Information received of the other party’s that are held by that 
party or its Representatives. 

 
6.5 If return or destruction of any or all Confidential Information is not feasible, the receiving party 

shall extend all protections contained in this Agreement to any Confidential Information retained after termination 
and limit further uses and disclosures to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible. Each party 
may retain Confidential Information when necessary for purposes of compliance with applicable laws or when 
necessary to complete performance of any Services or for post termination Services. Further, each party may retain 
appropriate copies of Confidential Information in accordance with the receiving party’s retention policies: (i) for 
archival purposes; (ii) for purposes to defend its work product or performance, provided that the copy is retained in 
secure storage and held in confidence only for so long as receiving party's obligations under this Agreement 
continue, and subject to all protections and terms and conditions of this Agreement to limit further uses and 
disclosures to those purposes such Confidential Information is retained. Each party shall notify the other party in 
writing if it becomes aware of any unauthorized use or disclosure of the other party’s Confidential Information and 
use reasonable efforts to minimize the damage from the breach. The obligations of this Section last until the 
Confidential Information becomes available to the public other than through breach of this Agreement, or longer as 
provided by applicable law. 
 

6.6 If either party believes it is required by law or by a subpoena or court order to disclose any of the 
other party’s Confidential Information, it shall, if legally permissible, promptly notify the other party and shall use all 
reasonable efforts to allow the other party an opportunity to seek a protective order or other judicial relief prior to 
any disclosure. If a protective order or other remedy is not obtained, the party subject to the compelled disclosure 
shall disclose only that portion of the Confidential Information that it is legally required to disclose and will exercise 
reasonable efforts to obtain assurances that the recipient will hold the Confidential Information in confidence. 
 

6.7 Nothing in this Agreement will be construed to restrict disclosure or use of information that (a) 
was rightfully in the possession of  the recipient, without an obligation to maintain its confidentiality, prior to receipt 
from the other party; (b) at the time of disclosure is, or thereafter becomes generally available to and known by the 
public without violation of this Agreement; (c) is obtained by the recipient in good faith from a third party having 
the right to disclose it without an obligation of confidentiality; or (d) is independently developed by the receiving 
party without reference to, or use of, the other party’s Confidential Information. 

 
6.8 Optum acknowledges that Customer is a public, county-owned hospital which is subject to the 

provisions of the Nevada Public Records Act, Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 239, as may be amended from time 
to time. As such, its contracts are public documents available for copying and inspection by the public.  

Page 43 of 349 



MASTER AGREEMENT 

6 

 

 
7. Term and Termination. 
 

7.1 This Agreement commences as of the Agreement Date. Unless earlier terminated as provided in 
this Agreement, this Agreement continues until the later of (a) five years after the Agreement Date or (b) the 
expiration of all Schedules to this Agreement. Section 2.3 and all Sections of this Agreement (including the Schedules) 
relating to confidentiality, HIPAA compliance, ownership of intellectual property, indemnification, or limitations of 
liability shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

 
7.2 Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, Customer shall, within thirty (30) days, return 

all copies of all Software, Data Products, Documentation and related user materials to Optum. With Optum’s consent 
(via e-mail), Customer may certify that it has ceased using and has destroyed the Software, Data Products, rather 
than return them. 
 

7.3 Failure by either party (the “Breaching Party”) to comply with any material provision of this 
Agreement shall entitle the other party (the “Non-breaching Party”) to give notice of breach to the Breaching Party 
specifying the nature of the breach and requiring the Breaching Party to cure such breach within thirty (30) days of 
such notice. If the Breaching Party disagrees with the existence, extent, or nature of the breach, the parties shall use 
reasonable efforts to resolve the dispute within thirty (30) days, and each party shall proceed diligently with the 
performance of this Agreement pending the resolution of any dispute. If (i) such breach is not cured within such 
thirty (30) day period after the receipt of such notice or (ii) the parties have not otherwise resolved the breach during 
such thirty (30) day period, the Non-breaching Party may terminate the Schedule that was breached or the 
Agreement (if the breach related to multiple Schedules), by delivering a second notice to the Breaching Party, 
specifying a termination date. The termination date may be immediate upon delivery of the second notice or up to 
ninety (90) days after the second notice. 

 
7.4 Notwithstanding any provision contained in this Agreement to the contrary, a party to this 

Agreement may terminate this Agreement, upon written notice to the other party: 
 

7.4.1 If the other party (i) applies for or consents to the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian, 
or liquidator because of its inability to pay its debts as they mature, (ii) makes a general assignment for the 
benefit of creditors, (iii) becomes adjudicated as bankrupt or insolvent or becomes the subject of an order 
for relief under Title 11 of the United States Code, (iv) files a voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or a petition 
or an answer seeking reorganization, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation law or 
statute, or an answer admitting the material allegations of a petition filed against it in any proceeding under 
such law, or (v) suffers the filing against it of an involuntary petition seeking relief under Title 11 of the 
United States Code, and any such action remains unremedied for ninety (90) consecutive days; or 
7.4.2 An order, judgment or decree is entered, without the application, approval or consent of the other 
party, by any court of competent jurisdiction, approving a petition seeking reorganization or appointing a 
receiver of such company or substantially all of the assets of such company, and such order, judgment or 
decrees continues unstayed and in effect for any period of sixty (60) consecutive days; or 
7.4.3 If any Certificate of Authority, license or other registration permitting a party to operate is revoked 
or suspended by order of the appropriate local, state or federal agency and such order continues unstayed 
and in effect for a period of ninety (90) days provided such loss is not the result of the terminating party's 
performance or failure to perform under this Agreement. 
 
7.5 In accordance with the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS 354.626), the financial obligations under this 

Agreement between the parties shall not exceed those monies appropriated and approved by Customer for the then 
current fiscal year under the Local Government Budget Act. This Agreement shall terminate and Customer's 
obligations under it shall be extinguished at the end of any of Customer's fiscal years in which Customer’s governing 
body fails to appropriate monies for the ensuing fiscal year sufficient for the payment of all amounts which could 
then become due under this Agreement. Customer agrees that this section shall not be utilized as a subterfuge or in 
a discriminatory fashion as it relates to this Agreement.  In the event this section is invoked, this Agreement will 

Page 44 of 349 



MASTER AGREEMENT 

7 

 

expire on the 30th day of June of the current fiscal year. Termination under this section shall not relieve Customer 
of its obligations incurred through the 30th day of June of the fiscal year for which monies were appropriated. 
 
8. Dispute Resolution. 

 
8.1 Subject to  Section 8.2 , any dispute between the parties regarding this Agreement that is not cured 

or otherwise resolved through the processes described in Section 7.3 must be resolved through arbitration 
conducted in accordance with the Commercial Dispute Resolutions Rules of the American Arbitration Association 
then in effect. The arbitration proceeding will be conducted in the English language. The arbitrator(s) may grant any 
remedy or relief deemed just and equitable with the exception of punitive or exemplary damages. The arbitrator(s) 
must not vary or ignore the terms of this Agreement and will be bound by controlling law. The decision of the 
arbitrator, or a majority of the arbitration panel, will be final and binding upon the parties with no right to appeal. 
Judgment may be entered upon the award of the arbitrator(s) in any court of competent jurisdiction. Each party will 
assume its own costs, and the compensation and expenses of the arbitrator(s) and any administrative fees or costs 
associated with the arbitration proceeding shall be borne equally by each party. The parties shall proceed diligently 
with the performance of this Agreement pending the resolution of any dispute. 
 

8.2 Notwithstanding Sections 7.3 or 8.1 (collectively, the “Dispute Resolution Processes”), in the event 
that a party breaches this Agreement, the Non-breaching Party may apply to a court of competent jurisdiction for 
emergency injunctive relief during or prior to the invocation of the Dispute Resolution Processes. Once the court has 
ruled on the Non-breaching Party’s initial application for emergency injunctive relief, however, the Non-breaching 
Party may not seek additional relief from the court and shall resolve any additional issues through the Dispute 
Resolution Processes. 

 
9. Services Warranty. Optum warrants to Customer that each of Optum’s employees, agents and 
subcontractors assigned to perform any Services will have the proper skill, training, and experience to perform the 
Services, the Services will be performed in a competent and professional manner, and Optum’s employees, agents 
and subcontractors will observe any working rules of Customer, while on Customer’s premises to the extent 
conveyed by Customer. Optum will reperform any Services not in compliance with this warranty that are brought to 
its attention in writing within thirty (30) days after those Services are delivered to Customer. Except as expressly 
provided in this Agreement, Optum and its licensors make no representations or warranties relating to the 
Services, express or implied, and specifically disclaim the warranties of mechantibility and fitness for a particular 
purpose. 
 
10. General. 
 

10.1 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the parties and 
supersedes all prior proposals, communications and agreements between the parties relating to its subject matter. 
This Agreement (including its Addenda), and any Schedules executed hereunder shall constitute the entire 
agreement between Customer and Optum. No amendment, change, or waiver of any provision of this Agreement 
or any Schedule or terms on any purchase order or other document will be binding unless in writing and signed by 
both parties. Terms of a purchase order or other ordering or shipping document do not modify, amend, or add to 
the terms of this Agreement, and will have no effect. In the event one or more of the provisions of this Agreement 
are found to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable by a court with jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall continue 
in full force and effect. 

 
10.2 Subcontractors. Optum may use its Affiliates or third parties as subcontractors to perform Services 

under this Agreement. Optum shall be responsible for any Services performed by its subcontractors. 
 

10.3 Independent Contractor. Optum’s relationship to Customer is that of an independent contractor. 
Neither party will be deemed to be or hold itself out as a partner, agent, employee or joint venture partner of the 
other party. 
 

Page 45 of 349 



MASTER AGREEMENT 

8 

 

10.4 Assignment. Neither party may assign or transfer this Agreement or any of the rights, obligations 
or licenses granted under it without the other party’s express, prior written consent, which the other party will not 
be unreasonably withhold, condition, or delay. Notwithstanding the forgoing, either party may assign this 
Agreement in connection with any merger, consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of its stock or assets. 
 

10.5 Notices. Any notices permitted or required under this Agreement must be in writing and will be 
sent by certified United States mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or overnight courier service, 
addressed to the party as set forth in this Section, or at a different address as a party has notified the other party in 
writing. 
 
Optum: Customer: 

Attention: General Counsel Attention: Legal Department 
Optum360, LLC University Medical Center of Southern Nevada  
1 Optum Circle 1800 West Charleston Boulevard 
Eden Prairie, MN Las Vegas, NV 
55344 89102 
 

 

10.6 Force Majeure. 
 
10.6.1 “Force Majeure Event” means an event or circumstance, whether or not foreseeable, that 
prevents a party from fulfilling its obligations under this Agreement and (1) was not in the control 
of the claiming party and (2) with respect to the damage caused, could not have been reasonably 
mitigated by the claiming party.  A Force Majeure Event does not include (1) a strike or other labor 
unrest that affects only the claiming party, (2) an increase in prices or other change in general 
economic conditions, (3) a change in law, or (4) an event or circumstance that results in that party’s 
not having sufficient funds to comply with an obligation to pay money and any consequences of 
that event or circumstance. 
10.6.2 If a Force Majeure Event occurs, the noncomplying party shall promptly notify the other 
party of occurrence of that Force Majeure Event, its effect on performance, and how long the 
noncomplying party expects the noncompliance to last. The noncomplying party shall provide 
ongoing updates to the compliant party, and shall use reasonable efforts to limit damages to the 
other party and to resume its performance under this Agreement. 
10.6.3 If a Force Majeure Event prevents a party from complying with any one or more 
obligations under this Agreement the noncomplying party will not be deemed in breach of the 
Agreement if (1) that party uses reasonable efforts to perform its obligations under the 
Agreement, (2) that party’s inability to perform those obligations is not due to its failure to (A) take 
reasonable measures to protect itself against events or circumstances of the same type as that 
Force Majeure Event or (B) develop and maintain a reasonable contingency plan to respond to 
events or circumstances of the same type as that Force Majeure Event. 
10.6.4 If a Force Majeure Event continues for an extended period of time, the compliant party 
may request that senior leadership of the parties consult and negotiate with each other, in good 
faith, to attempt to resolve any claim, dispute, question or disagreement arising out the Force 
Majeure Event that is preventing the noncomplying party from performing its obligations under 
the Agreement. 

 

10.7 Compliance with Laws. Each party shall perform under this Agreement in compliance with all 
applicable laws. Optum shall obtain and maintain any applicable licenses or regulatory approvals necessary for it to 
perform its Services under the Agreement. 
 

10.8 Use of Names. The parties shall not use each other's name, logo, service marks, trademarks or 
other identifying information including without limitation, links and phone numbers, without the written permission 

Page 46 of 349 



MASTER AGREEMENT 

9 

 

of the other. Optum may, however, use Customer’s name, logo, service marks, trademarks or other identifying 
information to the extent necessary for Optum to carry out its obligations under this Agreement. 

10.9 Survival. In addition to those terms in this Agreement that are expressly stated to survive 
expiration or termination of this Agreement, any Services or provisions of this Agreement which by their nature, 
extend beyond the expiration or termination date of this Agreement, will survive the expiration or termination of 
this Agreement, and shall remain in effect and be governed by the terms and conditions of this Agreement until all 
such obligations are satisfied. 
 

10.10 Counterparts. The parties may execute this Agreement or any Schedule in counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed an original and all of which together shall be considered one and the same agreement. 
Additionally, electronic or digital signatures be will valid and legally binding, equivalent to a handwritten signature 
by a person with the intent to sign this Agreement or such Schedule. 
 

10.11 Controlling Terms. To the extent the terms of a Schedule conflict with the terms of this Agreement, 
the terms of the Schedule will control. In the event of a conflict between the terms of any particular Schedule, an 
Addenda, or the Agreement, the following order of precedence shall apply: (i) Schedule, (ii) Addenda, (iii) Agreement, 
unless otherwise explicitly agreed by the Parties in writing. 

 
10.12  Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 

the State of Nevada without regard to its choice of law provisions. 
 
10.13 Non-Excluded Healthcare Provider.  Optum represents and warrants to Customer that neither it 

nor any of its affiliates (a) are excluded from participation in any federal health care program, as defined under 42 
U.S.C. §1320a-7b (f), for the provision of goods or services for which payment may be made under such federal 
health care programs and (b) has arranged or contracted (by employment or otherwise) with any employee, 
contractor or agent that such party or its affiliates know or should know are excluded from participation in any 
federal health care program, to provide goods or services hereunder.  Optum represents and warrants to Customer 
that no final adverse action, as such term is defined under 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7e (g), has occurred or is pending against 
such Optum or its affiliates or to their knowledge against any employee, contractor or agent engaged to provide 
goods or services under the Agreement. (collectively “Exclusions / Adverse Actions”). 

 
10.13 Insurance.  Each party shall secure and maintain, or cause to be secured and maintained during 

the term of the Agreement, commercial general liability in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and 
$2,000,000 aggregate, and workers compensation insurance in amounts generally required by the country, state, 
province, or territory exercising over employees, and professional liability insurance providing minimum limits of 
liability of $1,000,000 per claimand $3,000,000 in aggregate. Such coverage may be provided through policies 
obtained from third party insurance carriers or through a program of self-insurance. A party shall deliver to the other 
party certificate(s) of insurance (COI) evidencing such insurance coverage upon request by the other party. Optum 
shall list Customer as Additional Insured, as it relates to general liablity, in its COI accompanied with the Endorsement 
Page confirming Customer is an Additional Insured. Said insurance shall survive the termination of the Agreement. 

 
 

[Signature Page Follows] 

 

 

 

 

Page 47 of 349 



MASTER AGREEMENT 

10 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date set forth above. 

Optum360, LLC  University Medical Center of Southern Nevada  

Signature: 
 

{{Sig_es_:signer2:signature}}  Signature: {{Sig_es_:signer1:signature}} 

Print Name: 
 

{{N_es_:signer2:fullname}}  Print Name: {{N_es_:signer1:fullname}} 

Print Title: 
 

{{*Ttl_es_:signer2:title}}  Print Title: {{N_es_:signer1:fullname}} 

     
Agreement Number: 01413441.0    

 

 

 

 
  

Michael Landen (02/11/2025 06:48 PST)
Michael Landen

Michael Landen

OI Provider SVP

Page 48 of 349 

https://unitedhg.na3.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAZQq5hLLri5B1ye02i3x-YkmaZb_HdHyS


MASTER AGREEMENT 

11 

 

EXHIBIT A 
SOFTWARE AND DATA LICENSE TERMS ADDENDUM 

 
1. Software and Data License. 

 
1.1 As of the Effective Date of the applicable Schedule, Optum hereby grants Customer a nonexclusive, 
nontransferable license to use the Software or Data Products for Customer’s internal use within the United 
States, pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. Customer may use the Software or Data Products only as 
permitted in the applicable Schedule, and for no other purposes. 
 
1.2 If Customer wishes to use a third party as its agent to access the Software, the Data Products or a 
database of Customer Data produced through use of any Software, Optum must approve access by such 
third party and the third party must sign an appropriate nondisclosure agreement with Customer or with 
Optum. However, Optum’s approval is not required for third party contractors that will have only incidental 
contact with or use of such items. Customer, however, shall protect the confidentiality of the Software, 
Data Products, and Services it obtains from Optum. Except as permitted by this Agreement, Customer shall 
not allow any person or entity who is not a party to this Agreement or an Affiliate of Customer to access 
the Software or Data Products directly or indirectly in any way. 
 
1.3 Customer may make copies of the Software and the Data Products only for backup, archival, 
disaster recovery, and disaster recovery testing purposes. On each copy of the Software or Data Products, 
Customer shall reproduce all notices or legends appearing on the original copy, including the copyright 
notice. All copies of the Software and Data Products made or received by Customer can be used only as 
permitted under this Agreement. At any time within ten (10) days after Optum's written request, Customer 
shall inform Optum of the number and location of all copies of the Software and Data Products Customer 
has made or received. 
 
1.4 Customer shall not (i) copy, reproduce, modify, or excerpt any of the Software or Data Products 
for any purpose other than as expressly permitted under this Agreement; (ii) distribute, rent, sublicense, 
share, transfer or lease the Software or Data Products to any person or entity that is not a party to this 
Agreement or an Affiliate of Customer, or use the Software or Data Products to provide service bureau or 
similar services to third parties (unless expressly permitted on a Schedule); or (iii) attempt to reverse 
engineer or otherwise obtain copies of the source code for the Software or the identity of individual patients 
or members, Data Sources, persons, payers, or providers reflected in any Data Products. 
 
1.5 Optum shall furnish to Customer without charge only those updates to or new versions of Software 
or Data Products that Optum furnishes without charge to all other licensees for the Software or Data 
Products. If Optum notifies Customer that an update supersedes the preceding version, Customer will have 
a reasonable time in which to move to the updated version, and thereafter, Optum will have no further 
obligation to provide maintenance services for the superseded Software or Data Products versions. When 
Optum hosts Software or Data Products for Customer, Optum will use the then-current version of the 
Software or Data Products on behalf of Customer. 

 
2. Software and Data Warranties 
 

2.1 Optum represents and warrants to Customer that Optum has the right to license the Software and 
Data Products to Customer. All rights in patents, copyrights, trademarks and trade secrets encompassed in 
the Software and Data Products will remain in Optum or its licensors, as applicable. Customer is not 
obtaining any rights in the Software or Data Products except the limited right to use the Software and Data 
Products as provided herein and in the Schedules. 
 
2.2 Optum warrants that the Software will perform substantially in accordance with the applicable 
Documentation for the licensed release. If the Software fails to perform in accordance with the 

Page 49 of 349 



MASTER AGREEMENT 

12 

 

Documentation within ninety (90) days after the initial delivery of the first licensed release of the Software 
to Customer, Customer shall notify Optum in writing prior to the expiration of such ninety- (90) day period, 
and Optum shall repair or replace the Software. If Optum is unable to repair or replace the Software after 
receipt of such notification from Customer, upon Customer’s request Optum will refund the license fees 
Customer paid for such Software (if any), and the license to use such Software shall be deemed to be 
terminated. Optum warrants that the Data Products, upon delivery to Customer, shall consist of an accurate 
copy of the data sets or databases described in the Documentation for the Data Products. However, to the 
extent that the Data Products contain information Optum has received from third parties, Optum warrants 
only that the Data Products contain an accurate copy of the information that was delivered to Optum.  
These warranties are void if Customer modifies the Software or the Data Products, Customer uses the 
Software or Data Products in any manner that is not allowed under this Agreement, or Customer allows 
unauthorized persons to use the Software or Data Products. 
 
2.3 Optum represents and warrants to Customer that the Software and Data Products and any 
medium by which they are delivered to Customer do not contain any virus or any other contaminant or 
disabling devices. This Section does not apply to disabling code used to terminate an evaluation or trial 
period for Software or Data Products. 
 
2.4 For the duration of any maintenance or support Services that Customer obtains from Optum 
pursuant to a Schedule, the Software or Data Product that is being maintained or supported by Optum will 
perform substantially in accordance with its then-current Documentation. 
 
2.5 Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Optum and its licensors make no warranties or 
representations relating to the Software or the Data Products express or implied, and specifically disclaim 
the warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose. 
 

3. Customer Responsibilities. Customer shall provide and maintain all computer hardware, software, 
communications equipment, and associated peripherals and support necessary to use the Software and the Data 
Products. Any failure to perform by Optum shall not be considered a breach of this Agreement if such failure to 
perform results from Customer’s failure to provide the recommended computer hardware, software, 
communications equipment, and/or associated peripherals and/or support. 
 
4. U.S. Government Rights. Customer acknowledges that the Software and Data Products include commercial 
technical data and/or computer licensed databases and/or commercial computer software and/or commercial 
computer software documentation, as applicable, which were developed exclusively at private expense by Optum 
and/or its licensors. U.S. Government rights to use, modify, reproduce, release, perform, display, or disclose these 
technical data and/or computer licensed databases and/or commercial computer software and/or commercial 
computer software documentation are subject to the limited rights restrictions of DFARS 252.227-7015(b)(2) and/or 
subject to the restrictions of DFARS 227.7202-1(a) and DFARS 227.7202-3(a), as applicable for U.S. Department of 
Defense procurements and the limited rights restrictions of FAR 52.227-14 and/or subject to the restricted rights 
provisions of FAR 52.227-14 and FAR 52.227-19, as applicable, and any applicable agency FAR Supplements, for non-
Department of Defense Federal procurements. 
 
5. Licensed Content. Certain Optum Software and Data Products contain Current Procedural Terminology 
Codes (“CPT”) owned and copyrighted by the American Medical Association (“AMA”), and/or Current Dental 
Terminology (“CDT”) codes owned and copyrighted by the American Dental Association (“ADA”), and/or ASA content 
(“ASA Content”) owned and copyrighted by the American Society of Anesthesiologists (“ASA”), and/or AHA content 
(“AHA Content”) owned and copyrighted by the American Hospital Association (“AHA”) (collectively, the “Vendors”). 
Collectively, the CPT codes, CDT codes, ASA Content and AHA Content are referred to as the “Licensed Content.” The 
terms of this Section 5 apply only to Software and Data Products that contain Licensed Content. Customer acquires 
no proprietary interest in the Licensed Content. Optum’s agreements with the Vendors require that Customer must 
agree to the following: 
 

Page 50 of 349 



MASTER AGREEMENT 

13 

 

5.1 Grant. Optum hereby grants Customer a limited, nontransferable, nonexclusive, non-sublicensable 
license, for the sole purpose of internal use of the Licensed Content in Optum products, by Customer within 
the United States. Customer is prohibited from publishing, distributing via the Internet or other public 
computer-based information system, creating derivative works (including translating), transferring, selling, 
leasing, licensing or otherwise making available to any unauthorized party the Licensed Content, or a copy 
or portion of Licensed Content. Customer shall ensure that anyone with authorized access to the Licensed 
Content complies with the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
5.2 Vendors. Provision of updated Licensed Content is dependent on continuing contractual 
relationships between Optum and the Vendors. Customer hereby grants Optum permission to provide 
Vendors with Customer’s name. 
 
5.3 Copyright. CPT is copyrighted by the AMA and that CPT is a registered trademark of the AMA.  ADA 
owns all right, title and interest (including all intellectual property rights) in CDT, all other rights of 
commercialization, rental or sale of CDT or any part thereof, the right to make derivatives of CDT and 
the right to distribute CDT and copies thereof. Except for the limited rights expressly granted to 
Customer herein, all other rights in Licensed Content are owned and retained by Vendors.  Customer 
shall not remove copyright notices. 
 
5.4 Disclaimers. Except as expressly stated herein, the Licensed Content is provided "as is" without 
warranty of any kind, express or implied including, but not limited to, warranties of performance or 
merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose. End user bears all risk relating to quality, accuracy and 
performance of the licensed codes. Vendors have no liability for consequential or special damages, or lost 
profits for sequence, accuracy, or completeness of Licensed Content, or that it will meet the Customer’s 
requirements, and that the vendors’ sole responsibility is to make available to Optum replacement copies 
of the Licensed Content if the data is not intact; and that the vendors disclaim any liability for any 
consequences due to use, misuse, or interpretation of information contained or not contained in Licensed 
Content. 
 
5.5 Beneficiaries. Vendors are third-party beneficiaries of this Agreement. 
 
5.6 Use of CPT. In addition to the terms of this Section 5, the following shall also apply to Customers 
use of CPT in Optum Products: 
 

5.6.1 The sublicense granted hereunder shall automatically terminate upon termination of the 
agreement between Optum and AMA, unless prior written consent of AMA is obtained by Optum or a direct 
license between Customer and AMA is entered. Customer is prohibited from making CPT publicly available, 
creating derivative works (including translating), transferring, selling, leasing, licensing, or otherwise making 
available to any unauthorized party the CPT, or a copy or portion of CPT to any unauthorized party, including 
a subsidiary, affiliate, or other legal entity, however designated, for any purpose whatsoever except as 
expressly permitted in this Agreement.   

 
5.6.2 CPT is commercial technical data, which was developed exclusively at private expense by 

the AMA, 330 North Wabash Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 60611. This Agreement does not grant the Federal 
Government a direct license to use CPT based on FAR 52.227-14 (Data Rights - General) and DFARS 252.227-
7015 (Technical Data - Commercial Items).  

 
5.6.3  Customer is required to keep records and submit reports including information necessary 

for the calculation of royalties payable to the AMA by Optum, of the same type as required of Optum under 
its agreement with AMA. Customer consents to the release of such information to the AMA. Customer 
further agrees to provide, without delay, additional information that the AMA (as a third-party beneficiary) 
may reasonably request, to verify the information. Nothing herein shall require Customer to submit or 
release information that would cause Customer to be in violation of applicable Federal or state privacy laws. 

Page 51 of 349 



MASTER AGREEMENT 

14 

 

 
5.6.4  Customer expressly acknowledges and agrees to the extent permitted by applicable 

law, use of CPT is at Customer’s sole risk and CPT is provided "as is" without warranty of any kind. The 
AMA does not directly or indirectly practice medicine or dispense medical services. Fee schedules, 
relative value units, conversion factors and/or related components are not assigned by the AMA, are not 
part of CPT, and the AMA is not recommending their use. The AMA assumes no liability for data contained 
or not contained herein.  

 
5.7 Use of CDT Codes. Customer may: install and use the CDT on Customer's computer system; to retrieve 

CDT codes, descriptors and nomenclature via commands contained in the Optum Products for the 
exclusive use of Customer its employees; to reproduce and distribute partial listings of the CDT codes, 
nomenclature and descriptors in various printed and electronic documents for purposes of claims 
processing, billing and patient treatment, via commands contained in the Software or Data Product; 
to print limited portions of the CDT solely for the exclusive use of Customer; and to print a complete 
listing of the CDT codes, nomenclature and descriptors solely for the exclusive use of Customer. 
 
5.7.1 CDT Restrictions. Except as expressly permitted in this Agreement, Customer shall not permit 
anyone else to (a) copy the CDT; (b) alter, amend, change or modify the CDT, including the CDT codes, 
nomenclature and descriptors or other content of the CDT; (c) remove any copyright or other  
proprietary notices, labels or marks from the CDT or from output created by using the Software or 
Data Product; or (d) use the CDT, whether on a time-sharing, remote job entry or other multiple user 
arrangement. Customer shall take reasonable measures to maintain the security of the CDT. Customer 
shall not add additional content to the Software or Data Products. In no event shall end user use the CDT 
codes for or on behalf of any third party, including but not limited to use of the CDT products to provide 
consulting, time sharing or outsourcing services or to act as a service bureau operation. End user is 
expressly prohibited from distributing output, including the code or portions thereof, to any person, firm or 
entity. The foregoing restriction will not be deemed to restrict the Customer from using the CDT codes 
in the ordinary course of its business, to identify procedures used in the treatment of patients and 
processing of insurance claims. 
 
5.7.2 ADA Indemnification. To the extent permitted by Nevada law, Customer shall indemnify ADA 
(including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs of litigation) against and hold ADA harmless from any and 
all claims, liability, losses, damages and expenses resulting from Customer's use of the CDT, in breach of 
any of the terms of this Agreement, or Customer's use of any data or documentation received from ADA, 
regardless of the form of action. 
 

5.8 Use of AHA Content. Customer may install and use the AHA Content on Customer's computer system; 
reproduce and distribute excerpts of AHA Content without modification in various printed and electronic documents 
solely for purposes of claims processing, billing and patient treatment, via commands contained in the Optum 
Product; print limited portions of the AHA Content without modification solely for the exclusive use of Customer 
with copyright and government rights notices. 

 
5.8.2 AHA Disclaimer. AHA disclaims, and will  have no liability for, any errors, omissions or inaccuracies 
in the AHA Content or any uses, misuses or interpretations of the information contained in or not contained 
in the AHA Content. AHA also does not warrant that the AHA Content will be accessible in any particular 
hardware/software environment. Customer will be solely responsible for the use, efficiency, and suitability 
of the AHA Content. AHA’s liabilities under this Agreement, if any, will not exceed the sum of the fees 
actually received by Optum in connection with this Agreement for the applicable AHA Content. 
 
5.8.3 AHA Content for Government Users. Any Customer that is a government agency agrees to the 
following. The Software and Data may contain AHA CODING CLINIC® FOR ICD, AHA CODING CLINIC® FOR 
HCPCS, and/or OFFICIAL UB-04 DATA SPECIFICATIONS MANUAL content which is commercial technical 
data and/or computer data bases and/or commercial computer software and/or commercial computer 

Page 52 of 349 



MASTER AGREEMENT 

15 

 

software documentation, as applicable, which was developed exclusively at private expense by the 
American Hospital Association, 155 N. Wacker Dr., Suite 400, Chicago, Illinois 60606. U.S. government 
rights to use, modify, reproduce, release, perform, display, or disclose these technical data and/or 
computer data bases and/or computer software and/or computer software documentation are subject 
to the limited rights restrictions of DFARS 252.227-7015(b)(2) (November 1995) and/or subject to the 
restrictions of DFARS 227.7202-l(a) (June 1995) and DFARS 227.7202-3(a) (June 1995), as applicable, 
for U.S. Department of Defense procurements  and the limited rights restrictions of FAR 52.227-14 
(December 2007) and/or subject to the restricted rights provisions of FAR 52.227-14 (December 2007) 
and FAR 52.227-19 (December 2007), as applicable, and any applicable agency FAR Supplements, for 
non-Department of Defense Federal procurements. 
 

  

Page 53 of 349 



MASTER AGREEMENT 

16 

 

EXHIBIT B 
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE ADDENDUM 

 
This Business Associate Addendum (“BAA”) is incorporated into and made part of the services agreements 

(collectively, the “Agreement”), by and between OptumInsight, Inc., on behalf of itself and its subsidiaries and affiliates 
(“Business Associate”), and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, a publicly owned and operated hospital 
created by virtue of Chapter 450 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (“Covered Entity”), that involve the use or disclosure of 
PHI (as defined below). The parties agree as follows: 

1. DEFINITIONS. 

1.1 All capitalized terms used in this BAA not otherwise defined herein have the meanings established for 
purposes of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and its implementing regulations, as 
amended and supplemented (collectively, “HIPAA”). 

1.2 “Breach” means the acquisition, access, use or disclosure of PHI in a manner not permitted by the 
Privacy Rule that compromises the security or privacy of the PHI, subject to the exclusions in 45 C.F.R. § 164.402. 

1.3 “PHI” means Protected Health Information, as defined in 45 C.F.R. § 160.103, and is limited to the 
Protected Health Information received from, or received, created, maintained or transmitted on behalf of, Covered 
Entity. 

1.4 “Privacy Rule” means the federal privacy regulations, and “Security Rule” means the federal security 
regulations, as amended, issued pursuant to HIPAA and codified at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164 (Subparts A, C & E). 

1.5 “Services” means the services provided by Business Associate to Covered Entity to the extent they 
involve the receipt, creation, maintenance, transmission, use or disclosure of PHI. 

2. RESPONSIBILITIES OF BUSINESS ASSOCIATE. With regard to its use and/or disclosure of PHI, Business 
Associate agrees to: 

2.1 not use and/or further disclose PHI except as necessary to provide the Services, as permitted or 
required by this BAA and in compliance with the applicable requirements of 45 C.F.R. § 164.504(e), or as Required by 
Law; provided that, to the extent Business Associate is to carry out Covered Entity’s obligations under the Privacy Rule, 
Business Associate will comply with the requirements of the Privacy Rule that apply to Covered Entity in the performance 
of those obligations. 

2.2 implement and use appropriate administrative, physical and technical safeguards and comply with 
applicable Security Rule requirements with respect to ePHI, to prevent use or disclosure of PHI other than as provided 
for by this BAA. 

2.3 without unreasonable delay, report to Covered Entity (i) any use or disclosure of PHI not provided for 
in this BAA and/or (ii) any Security Incident of which Business Associate becomes aware in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 
164.314(a)(2)(i)(C). For the purposes of reporting under this BAA, a reportable “Security Incident” shall not include 
unsuccessful or inconsequential incidents that do not represent a material threat to confidentiality, integrity or 
availability of PHI (such as scans, pings, or unsuccessful attempts to penetrate computer networks). 

2.4 report to Covered Entity within ten business days: (i) any Breach of Unsecured PHI of which it becomes 
aware in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 164.504(e)(2)(ii)(C). Business Associate shall provide to Covered Entity a 
description of the Breach and a list of Individuals affected (unless Covered Entity is a plan sponsor ineligible to 
receive PHI). Business Associate shall provide required notifications to Individuals and the Media and Secretary, 
where appropriate, in accordance with the Privacy Rule and with Covered Entity’s approval of the notification text. 
Business Associate shall pay for the reasonable and actual costs associated with those notifications and with credit 
monitoring, if appropriate. 

2.5 in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 164.502(e)(1)(ii) and 45 C.F.R. § 164.308(b)(2), ensure that any 
subcontractors of Business Associate that create, receive, maintain or transmit PHI on behalf of Business Associate agree, 
in writing, to the same restrictions on the use and/or disclosure of PHI that apply to Business Associate with respect to 
that PHI, including complying with the applicable Security Rule requirements with respect to ePHI. 

Page 54 of 349 



MASTER AGREEMENT 

17 

 

2.6 make available its internal practices, books and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the 
Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with the Privacy Rule, in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 
164.504(e)(2)(ii)(l). 

2.7 within ten business days after receiving a written request from Covered Entity or an Individual, make 
available to Covered Entity or an Individual information necessary for an accounting of disclosures of PHI about an 
Individual, in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 164.528. 

2.8 provide access to Covered Entity or an Individual, within ten business days after receiving a written 
request from Covered Entity or an Individual, to PHI in a Designated Record Set about an Individual, sufficient for 
compliance with 45 C.F.R. § 164.524. 

2.9 to the extent that the PHI in Business Associate’s possession constitutes a Designated Record Set, 
make available, within ten business days after a written request by Covered Entity or an Individual, PHI for 
amendment and incorporate any amendments to the PHI as requested in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 164.526. 

3. RESPONSIBILITIES OF COVERED ENTITY. Covered Entity: 

3.1 shall identify the records it furnishes to Business Associate that it considers to be PHI for purposes 
of the Agreement, and provide to Business Associate only the minimum PHI necessary to accomplish the Services. 

3.2 in the event that the Covered Entity honors a request to restrict the use or disclosure of PHI 
pursuant to 45 C.F.R. § 164.522(a) or makes revisions to its notice of privacy practices of Covered Entity in accordance 
with 45 C.F.R. § 164.520 that increase the limitations on uses or disclosures of PHI or agrees to a request by an 
Individual for confidential communications under 45 C.F.R. § 164.522(b), Covered Entity agrees not to provide 
Business Associate any PHI that is subject to any of those restrictions or limitations, unless Covered Entity notifies 
Business Associate of the restriction or limitation and Business Associate agrees in writing to honor the restriction 
or limitation. 

3.3 shall be responsible for using administrative, physical and technical safeguards to maintain and 
ensure the confidentiality, privacy and security of PHI transmitted to Business Associate pursuant to the Agreement, 
in accordance with the requirements of HIPAA. 

3.4 shall obtain any consent or authorization that may be required by applicable federal or state laws 
prior to furnishing Business Associate the PHI for use and disclosure in accordance with this BAA. 

3.5 if Covered Entity is an employer sponsored health plan, Covered Entity represents that to the 
extent applicable, it has ensured and has received certification from the applicable Plan Sponsor that the Plan 
Sponsor has taken the appropriate steps in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 164.504(f) and 45 C.F.R. § 164.314(b) to 
enable Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to disclose PHI to Plan Sponsor, including but not limited to 
amending its plan documents to incorporate the requirements set forth in 45 C.F.R. § 164.504(f)(2) and 45 C.F.R. § 
164.314(b). Covered Entity shall ensure that only employees authorized under 45 C.F.R. § 164.504(f) shall have 
access to the PHI disclosed by Business Associate to Plan Sponsor. 

 
4. PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES OF PHI. Business Associate may: 

4.1 use and disclose PHI as necessary to provide the Services to Covered Entity. 

4.2 use and disclose PHI for the proper management and administration of Business Associate or to 
carry out the legal responsibilities of Business Associate, provided that any disclosures are Required by Law or any 
third party to which Business Associate discloses PHI provides written assurances that: (i) the information will be 
held confidentially and used or further disclosed only for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party or 
as Required by Law; and (ii) the third party promptly will notify Business Associate of any instances of which it 
becomes aware in which the confidentiality of the information has been breached, in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 
164.504(e)(4). 

4.3 De-identify any PHI received or created by Business Associate under this BAA in accordance with 
the Privacy Rule and create, use and disclose de-identified data in accordance with applicable law. 

Page 55 of 349 



MASTER AGREEMENT 

18 

 

4.4 provide Data Aggregation services relating to the Health Care Operations of the Covered Entity in 
accordance with the Privacy Rule. 

4.5 use PHI for Research projects conducted by Business Associate, its Affiliates or third parties, in a 
manner permitted by the Privacy Rule, by obtaining documentation of individual authorizations, an Institutional 
Review Board, or a privacy board waiver that meets the requirements of 45 C.F.R. § 164.512(i)(1), and providing 
Covered Entity with copies of such authorizations or waivers upon request. 

4.6 make PHI available for reviews preparatory to Research in accordance with the Privacy Rule at 45 
C.F.R. § 164.512(i)(1)(ii). 

4.7 use the PHI to create a Limited Data Set (“LDS”) and use or disclose the LDS for the health care 
operations of the Covered Entity or for Research or Public Health purposes as provided in the Privacy Rule. 

5. TERMINATION. 

5.1 Covered Entity may terminate this BAA and the Agreement if Business Associate materially 
breaches this BAA, Covered Entity provides written notice of the breach to Business Associate, and Business 
Associate fails to cure the breach within the reasonable time period set by Covered Entity. 

5.2 Within thirty (30) days after the expiration or termination for any reason of the Agreement and/or 
this BAA, Business Associate shall return or destroy all PHI, if feasible to do so, including all PHI in possession of 
Business Associate’s subcontractors. In the event that return or destruction of the PHI is not feasible, Business 
Associate may retain the PHI subject to this Section 5.2. Business Associate shall extend any and all protections, 
limitations and restrictions contained in this BAA to Business Associate’s use and/or disclosure of any PHI retained 
after the expiration or termination of the Agreement and/or this BAA, and shall limit any further uses and/or 
disclosures solely to the purposes that make return or destruction of the PHI infeasible. 

 

6. MISCELLANEOUS. The terms of this BAA shall be construed to allow Covered Entity and Business 
Associate to comply with HIPAA. Nothing in this Addendum shall confer upon any person other than the parties and 
their respective successors or assigns, any rights, remedies, obligations or liabilities whatsoever. Sections 4 and 5.2 
shall survive the expiration or termination of this BAA for any reason. 

7.  NOTICES. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing, 
shall specifically refer to this Agreement, and shall be addressed to the appropriate Party at the address specified 
below. 

Covered Entity Business Associate 

Attn: Privacy Officer 
University Medical Center of Southern 

Nevada 
1800 W Charleston Blvd. 

Las Vegas, NV 89102 
 

With a copy to: 
privacy@umcsn.com 

Attention: General Counsel 
 

Optum360, LLC 
1 Optum Circle 

Eden Prairie, MN 
55344 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 56 of 349 



MASTER AGREEMENT 

19 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 
TRAVEL POLICY 

 

A. Pursuant to Chapter 2.46 of the Clark County Code, Customer shall ensure that business travel costs incurred by 

Optum’s traveler(s) are kept to an absolute minimum consistent with the effective conduct of business. 

B. The following are the acceptable travel guidelines for reimbursement of travel costs:  

Reimbursement shall only be for the contract personnel/traveler. Customer assumes no obligation to 
reimburse travelers for expenses that are not pre-approved by Customer’s representative or their designee 
which are not in compliance with this Travel Policy. 

Airfare: Domestic Airline (Coach Ticket); purchased at least twenty-one (21) days in advance unless 
exception was granted by Customer for exceptional circumstances; one (1) checked bag fee.  Number of 
trips must be approved by Customer. 
Parking: Airport parking (Economy Lot only) 

Meals: All meal charges will be paid up to and not to exceed $65 per day per traveler. This includes a 20% 
tip.  
Lodging: Lodging will either be booked by Customer or reimbursed for costs of a reasonable room rate 
plus taxes for Las Vegas, NV, not to exceed $150 per night excluding taxes and fees (Monday to Thursday) 
and not to exceed $225 per night excluding taxes and fees (Friday to Sunday).  
Rental Vehicles:  

- One (1) automobile rental will be authorized per four (4) travelers. Rental must be standard-size 

or smaller, and must have full insurance coverage through the rental car company (traveler’s 

personal insurance is not permitted).  Customer will reimburse up to $125 per day.   

- Under no circumstances should a traveler allow others to drive a rental car which has been rented 

in the traveler’s name, for the purpose of conducting business at Customer. 

- Travelers may be allowed to rent a car to travel TO their destination when: 

• Air travel is not available 

• The distance to the destination is less than 150 miles 

• Transporting large or bulky materials is more cost effective in a rental car than other means of 

transportation 

- Travelers may be allowed to rent a car AT their destination when: 

• It is less expensive than other transportation modes such as taxis, airport shuttles, ride share, 

etc. 

• Transporting large or bulky materials 

- Rental cars should be returned: 

• To the original rental city unless approved for one-way rental 

• Intact (i.e., no dents, scratches or other damage within the traveler’s control) 

• On time, to avoid additional charges 

• With a full tank of gas 

Page 57 of 349 



MASTER AGREEMENT 

20 

 

Uber/Lyft/Taxi/Shuttle Vehicles: When available, the use of shuttle service is required. Otherwise, 
Uber/Lyft/Taxi or equivalent ride sharing option can be used.  Customer will reimburse up to $125 per 
day. 

 
Each traveler shall submit the following documents in order to claim travel reimbursement. The documents 
shall be readable copies of the original itemized receipts with each traveler’s full name. Only actual costs 
(including all applicable sales tax) will be reimbursed.  Credit card statements are not considered original 
receipts and will not be accepted. 

- Optum’s Invoice 

• With copy of executed Agreement highlighting the allowable travel 

• List of travelers 

• Number of days in travel status 

- Hotel receipt 

- Meal receipts for each meal (must provide itemized receipts) 

- Airline receipt 

- Car rental receipt (identify driver and passengers) 

- Airport parking receipt (traveler’s Airport origin) 

- Gas receipt(s) 

- Ride share receipt(s) 

 
The following are some of the charges that will NOT be allowed for reimbursement (not all inclusive): 

-  Personal vehicle (Customer will not pay costs associated to driving a personal vehicle in lieu of air 
travel or if applicable, rental vehicle) 

- Baggage fees exceeding one (1) checked bag; overweight charges 
 -  Upgrades for flights (e.g., seat, Pre-Check, priority boarding), transportation, lodging, or 

vehicles/rentals (e.g., Premium/Luxury rides) 
-  Alcohol 

 -  Room service 
-  In-room movie rentals 
- In-room beverage/snacks 
- Housekeeping gratuity 
-  Gas for personal vehicles 
- Transportation to and from traveler’s home and the airport 
- Rental vehicle expenses incurred over and above normal charges (i.e., unauthorized drop-off 

fees, rental dates not identified as official business dates) 
- Mileage 
- Travel time 
- Traveler’s regular days off 
 

C. Any other additional expenses not specified herein will not be reimbursed by Customer. 

D. The terms of this Exhibit are in accordance with Customer’s Travel/Education Authorization and Reimbursement 

Policy, as amended, a copy of which can be provided to Optum upon request. 

All Travel expenses shall have prior written approval from Customer. 

 

Page 58 of 349 



UMC - Master
Final Audit Report 2025-02-11

Created: 2025-02-11

By: Tammy Le (tammy.le2@optum.com)

Status: Signed

Transaction ID: CBJCHBCAABAAZQq5hLLri5B1ye02i3x-YkmaZb_HdHyS

Documents: UMC_Optum_MSA_(01413441.0) FINAL.docx (20 pages)

Number of Documents: 1

Document page count: 20

Number of supporting files: 0

Supporting files page count: 0

"UMC - Master" History
Document created by Tammy Le (tammy.le2@optum.com)
Documents: UMC_Optum_MSA_(01413441.0) FINAL.docx
2025-02-11 - 2:44:40 PM GMT- IP address: 155.226.157.255

Document emailed to mike.landen@optum.com for signature
2025-02-11 - 2:46:17 PM GMT

Email viewed by mike.landen@optum.com
2025-02-11 - 2:47:21 PM GMT- IP address: 136.226.65.72

Agreement viewed by mike.landen@optum.com
Documents: UMC_Optum_MSA_(01413441.0) FINAL.docx
2025-02-11 - 2:47:22 PM GMT- IP address: 136.226.65.72

Signer mike.landen@optum.com entered name at signing as Michael Landen
2025-02-11 - 2:48:06 PM GMT- IP address: 136.226.65.72

Document e-signed by Michael Landen (mike.landen@optum.com)
Documents: UMC_Optum_MSA_(01413441.0) FINAL.docx
Signature Date: 2025-02-11 - 2:48:08 PM GMT - Time Source: server- IP address: 136.226.65.72

Agreement completed.
2025-02-11 - 2:48:08 PM GMT

Page 59 of 349 



1 

OPTUM ENTERPRISE CAC, OPTUM CAC PROFESSIONAL, AND OPTUM CDI 3D PRODUCT 
SCHEDULE 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, a publicly owned and 
operated hospital created by virtue of Chapter 450 of the Nevada Revised Statutes 

February 26, 2025 
is incorporated into and made a part of the  Master Agreement between Optum360, LLC and Customer, dated February 
26, 2025 

I. Definitions.  The following definitions shall apply to this Schedule: 

A. Hosted System
hardware, third party owned software, networks, 

program fixes, program releases, operating system software, and database software, as deemed necessary by 

B. Services
to the Hosted System, related support and implementation services (as set forth on Exhibits A and B, 
respectively), readiness assessments, and other professional Services provided to Customer pursuant to this 
Schedule and any additional Exhibits, as applicable. 

C. Software an the following Software applications accessible through the Hosted System, 
including all updates, enhancements, and versions thereto: 

Optum Enterprise Computer-Assisted Coding Platform : Generates 
medical codes for review, validation, and use based on clinical documentation for inpatient and 
outpatient cases.  

Optum Coding and Reimbursement Module : Integrates within Optum 
Enterprise CAC to provide a single comprehensive coding, compliance and reimbursement 
capabilities, including: 

o Logic and Book encoding
o Edits (including MCE, OCE, CCI, and other clinical edits)
o References (including Coding Clinic, Coding Clinic for HCPCS, CPT® Assistant, Clinical

Documentati
o Medicare Inpatient Prospective Payment System (PPS) - supports acute care hospital

reimbursement which is MS DRG-based.
o Medicare Outpatient PPS based on APCs
o Medical Reference Engine (MRE) - A comprehensive regulatory, coding, billing and

reimbursement search and research tool which includes the following sources:  CMS
Transmittals, OIG Workplan, CIAs, Advisory Opinions, Fraud Alerts, MLN Matters,
Proposed and Final Rules, CMS Pub. 100, RAC Audit, Code of Federal Regulations,
Fee Schedules, LCD/NCD Policies, Internet Only Manuals, CMS Press Releases,
PQRI,  and ICD-10.

o LCD Data FOR THE FOLLOWING STATES  (Data will be for the CMS contractor
as of the Effective Date and any replacements for that contractor):

List State Part A 

Nevada 

01301 
Palmetto 

GBA 

Page 60 of 349 



2 
 

o APR-DRG Grouper:  The APR-DRG Grouper is made up of a collection of programs 
designed to assign APR-DRGs to inpatient hospital cases using ICD diagnoses, ICD 
procedures, age, discharge status and sex.  The APR-DRG methodology is based on 

3M Health Information Systems.  The APR-DRG Grouper works in conjunction with the 
 

 
 Zhealth Product:   Interventional Radiology Coding Reference 

Book -  a comprehensive manual that details the appropriate coding and charging for the complex 
and specialized Interventional Radiology procedures (vascular and non-vascular)  It provides details 
and clear guidelines about coding and billing rules for such Interventional Radiology 
procedures.  Also covers coding rules for physicians and hospitals. 

 Optum CDI 3D : Integrates with the Optum Enterprise Computer-Assisted 
Coding Platform.  Analyzes inpatient clinical documentation using LifeCode® natural language 
processing technology and case-finding rules to identify cases for review and potential query 
opportunities.   Optum CDI 3D relies on the Optum Coding and Reimbursement and Workflow 
Modules to prioritize workflow, track query status, determine DRG and projected reimbursement.     

o Optum Coding and Reimbursement Module: Available within Optum CDI 3D for hospital 
inpatient Clinical Documentation Improvement (CDI) Specialists: 

 References (including Coding Clinic, Clinical Documentation Guidelines 
 

 Medicare Inpatient Prospective Payment System (PPS) - supports acute care 
hospital reimbursement which is MS-DRG-based.  

o APR-DRG Grouper:  The APR-DRG Grouper is made up of a collection of programs 
designed to assign proposed APR-DRGs to inpatient hospital cases using ICD diagnoses, 
ICD procedures, age, discharge status and sex.  The APR-DRG methodology is based on 

3M Health Information Systems.  The APR-DRG Grouper works in conjunction with the 
 

o Optum Workflow Module (for use only with Optum CDI 3D): Automates case assignment 
to coders.  Provides managers the ability to build and maintain individual work queues.  
 

 Optum Computer-Assisted Coding Professional :  Generates 
medical codes for review, va
industry standards, and customer-specific guidelines.  Optum CAC Professional includes the 
following modules: 

o Optum Computer- : Provides a sampling 
method for random statistical auditing and scoring methodology for medical records and 
charge data, and access to pre-designed reports that will enable Customer review of 
medical record and charge data audits, and evaluation of physician documentation. 
 

 TRICARE/CHAMPUS Inpatient PPS: The TRICARE/Civilian Health and Medical 
Programs of the Uniformed Services (CHAMPUS) Grouper is made up of a collection of 
programs designed to assign Diagnosis Related Groups (DRGs) to inpatient acute care 
discharges using ICD-9-CM diagnoses, ICD-9-CM procedures, age in years, age in days at 
admission, age in days at discharge, discharge status and sex.  Requirements for the 
TRICARE/CHAMPUS Grouper are defined by the Department of Defense.  Generally, this 
product is updated yearly. 

 
II. Services Subscription.   
 

Page 61 of 349 



3 
 

A. Optum Services.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this Schedule and the Agreement, Optum  
shall provide to Customer access to and use of the Hosted System and the other Services described in this 
Schedule, provided in the event of any conflict between the terms of this Schedule and the Agreement, this 
Schedule shall control.  Customer may access and use the Hosted System and other Services only as described 
in this Schedule. The Hosted System includes a sublicense to use the CPT codes embedded in the Software.  
Customer may access and use the Hosted System only from locations within the United States, or from other 
locations permitted by Optum. 
 
B. CAC Readiness Assessment.  
implementing Optum Enterprise CAC, which will consist of the following.  Optum shall: 

 
1. 
will be modified and/or improved with the introduction of CAC technology. 
 
2. Identify and assess key HIM organizational infrastructure requirements.  
 
3. Assess current HIM and coding workflow and business practice and document improvement 
opportunities with introduction of CAC. 

 
4. Advise Customer on organizational change management requirements and strategies to 
facilitate adoption of CAC. 
 
5. 
for HIM and Coders. 
 
6. ning a 
summary of above observations and recommendations that will support subsequent implementation 
phases, including: 

 Current processes and practices in need of change and proposed changes in order to 
maximize CAC functionality. 

 Current HIM and coder business/productivity measurements and estimated improvement 
based on CAC implementation. 

 HIM and coder education and change management strategy. 
 Initial KPI measures for CAC influenced/enabled coding and revenue cycle workflow. 

 
C. Functionality of the Hosted System.  The functionality of the Hosted System provides assignment 

industry standards.  Customer will have access to pre-designed reports that will enable Customer review of 
coder productivity, analysis of coding and flagging results, and evaluation of physician documentation, and 
online access for Customer to current patient data for export into billing systems.   
 

1. Front End Software.  Cloverleaf Secure Courier Client front-end software shall be deployed on 

Hosted System. The Cloverleaf Secure Courier Client initiates the connection/session between the 
Cloverleaf Secure Courier Server and the Hosted System. Customer is the source for the transmitting 
and receiving of HL7, OCR image text, cold feeds, and other data from the Cloverleaf Secure 
Courier Server to the Hosted System. The data is first encrypted using the Advanced Encryption 
Standard (AES) and then transmitted via the internet using TLS 256 bit. 

   
  2. Coding Clinic.  The Coding Module will contain the Coding Clinic for ICD-10-CM, which is 

owned by the American Hospital Association 
Clinic as included in the Coding Module. 

(a) Ownership.  Coding Clinic For ICD-10-CM is copyrighted by the AHA, Chicago, Illinois, 
which licenses its use.  No portion of Coding Clinic may be copied without the express written 
consent of Optum and AHA.  Customer is prohibited from printing or downloading Coding Clinic 
by any user, other than the printing of an entire article from Coding Clinic on a specific topic 

Page 62 of 349 



4 
 

without any modification to the article and for internal use only, as long as the source of the 
article(s) is printed on the printout(s).  Customer agrees that the text of Coding Clinic is and shall 
remain inaccessible to other programs capable of generating paper printouts of Coding Clinic 
(excluding the print screen functionality of Windows software) provided Optum encrypts all files 
containing source text of Coding Clinic. 
(b) Use in Software.  AHA did not enter the Coding Clinic information and data into the Coding 
Module and therefore AHA is not responsible for the accuracy, completeness or appropriateness 
of the information.  AHA makes no warranties of merchantability or fitness for a particular 
purpose.  AHA shall have no liability to anyone, including Customer, for lost profits or indirect 
or consequential damages.  AHA makes no warranties of any kind with respect to Optum or its 
products or services.  

 
  3. Restricted Use.  -DRG Grouper embedded in the Coding Module or 

Optum CDI 3D  is restricted to use in conjunction with an interactive coding system linked from, or 
embedded in, an interactive encoder system to provide Customer with the impact of secondary 
diagnoses on the assignment of the APR-DRG classification as well as those secondary diagnoses and 
the procedures which impact the severity of illness and risk of mortality.   Customer agrees to the 
terms of the 3M Software License Attachment to this Schedule. 

 
4. .  Optum hereby grants to Customer, 
under the terms of this Schedule and the Agreement, a sublicense to use the Symphonia Message 
Mapper API Connector, which is owned and licensed to Optum by Orion Health Inc., at the specified 
number of data centers listed in the ISOS.  Symphonia Message Mapper is required for the API 

and Optum Enterprise CAC.  
 
D. Site(s).  Customer may use the Software to process cases for the following site(s).  Customer may 
also use the Software to process cases for its ambulatory departments or sites owned by Customer not 
physically located at the sites listed below whose inpatient admission and outpatient visit volumes are 
included in the Allowed Admissions and Allowed Vists set forth below.  

 
 University Medical Center of Southern Nevada at 1800 West Charleston Blvd. Las Vegas, 

Nevada 89102 
 

1. Customer may add sites (including Affiliate sites) to this Schedule by executing an amendment 
to this Schedule setting forth the additional implementation plan and any related fees, and binding 
each Affiliate in writing to all the same terms and conditions applicable to Customer under this 
Schedule and the Agreement, if applicable.   

 
III.  Customer Support.  Optum will provide the support Services set forth in Exhibit A to this Schedule.  Optum 
may, from time to time, modify or enhance the support Services set forth in Exhibit A, as long as Optum does not 
materially degrade such Services. Upon request and if mutually agreed, Optum will provide to Customer additional 
prof

 
 
IV. Implementation.  Implementation Services for the Hosted System are set forth in the Implementation Scope 
of Services document attached as Exhibit B and Exhibit C  
 
V. Customer Responsibilities.   

 
A. Operating Environment.  Customer will provide an operating environment required to access and 
use the Hosted System, as defined during implementation.  Optum may periodically modify the minimum 
operating environment requirements.  Customer is responsible for obtaining and formatting its own data for 
use with the Hosted System and any third-party interface charges.   

 

Page 63 of 349 



5 
 

B. Limitations of Optum Responsibilities; Pass-code Protection.  The accuracy and adequacy of the 
Customer Data shall be the exclusive responsibility of Customer.  Customer acknowledges and agrees that 
Optum (1) is not responsible for, and has had no involvement or participation in, the gathering, preparation 
or development of the back-up documentation which substantiates or evidences the Customer Data; and (2) 
is not responsible for validating, verifying or determining the accuracy of the Customer Data or detecting or 
correcting prior errors with regard to the Customer Data.  Customer is solely responsible for protecting 

-code utilized in accessing the Hosted System and Optum shall not be responsible 
-code.  

In no event shall Optum be liable for claims caused by modifications or adaptations to the Hosted System or 
Services by anyone other than Optum.    

 
 
VI. Fees and Payment Terms. Customer agrees to pay Optum for the performance of services described below 
for the fixed not-to-exceed fee of $4,500,000.00.   
 

A. Implementation and Pre Production Fees.   
 
 

1. Implementation.  For implementation of each module of the Software set forth in the table 
below, Customer shall pay Optum the non-refundable implementation fees set forth below, with 
payment for each due as follows: fifty percent (50%) as of the Effective Date, and the remainder 

processed through the applicable module of the Software and used in production operations at the 
first site for that module.  First Productive Use shall not include parallel running of an application 

 
production operations.  Optum and Customer agree that the earlier of the First Productive Use of 
Optum Enterprise CAC or November 1, 2025 

tum Enterprise CAC has not 
occurred on or before the FPU Backend Date, and the delay is caused solely by Optum, the parties 
may mutually agree in writing to extend the date that becomes the CAC Start Date or the Invoice 
Date. 

  

Module 

 
Total Fee 50% upon 

Effective 
Date 

50% upon 
earlier of 
FPU or 
Invoice 

Date 

Invoice Date 

Optum Enterprise CAC    
November 1, 

2025 

Coding and Reimbursement Module         
November 1, 

2025 

APR-DRG Grouper         
November 1, 

2025 

TRICARE/CHAMPUS Inpatient PPS         
November 1, 

2025 
Optum CDI 3D, technical implementation 
and training   

        
November 1, 

2025 
Optum CAC Professional:  for 

$5,000 for each additional site.   
     

 
   

November 1, 
2025 

Optum CAC Professional: Audit Module       
 November 1, 

2025 

TOTAL       
November 1, 

2025 

Page 64 of 349 



6 
 

 
  

B. Payment of Annual Subscription Fees.  For each Contract Year, beginning upon the CAC Start Date 
and thereafter on each anniversary of the CAC Start Date, Optum will invoice Customer for, and Customer 
shall pay 

of CAC Start Date, or an anniversary of the CAC Start Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing: 
 

 If Customer begins processing live data through the Optum CAC Professional module prior to the 
CAC Start Date, Customer shall pay Optum a monthly fee of $9,135.08, beginning as of such 
processing of live data at the first site and ending as of the CAC Start Date.  Optum shall invoice 
Customer for the full Contract Year 1 Optum CAC Professional Annual Fee upon the CAC Start 
Date.  The parties acknowledge and agree that if First Productive Use not occur on the first of the 
month, Customer shall pay Optum a pro-rated monthly fee for the period of time from First 
Productive Use of Optum CAC Professional to the Start Date. 

 If Customer begins processing live data through the Optum CDI 3D module prior to the CAC Start 
Date, Customer shall pay Optum a monthly fee of $19,484.92, beginning as of such processing of 
live data at the first site and ending as of the CAC Start Date.  Optum shall invoice Customer for 
the full Contract Year 1 Optum CDI 3D Annual Fee upon the CAC Start Date.  The parties 
acknowledge and agree that if First Productive Use not occur on the first of the month, Customer 
shall pay Optum a pro-rated monthly fee for the period of time from First Productive Use of Optum 
CDI 3D to the Start Date. 

 
The fees set forth in the following table represent an Annual Fee increase of three percent (3.0%) commencing 
upon the first anniversary of the CAC Start Date.  However, the Annual Fees will actually increase annually 
on each anniversary of the CAC Start Date during the term of this Schedule by the greater of (i) three percent 
(3.0%), or (ii) a percentage equal to the 12-month  percentage increase in the ECI (as defined below), up to 

t seasonally 
adjusted) for total compensation, for private industry workers, by occupational group  management, 
professional and related, as published quarterly by the Bureau of Labor Statistics at the end of the month 
following the quarter measured.  Optum will use the most recently published ECI available as of each 
anniversary of the CAC Start Date to determine the 12-month percentage increase in ECI.  For example, if a 
CAC Start Date anniversary is January 1, 2026, and the ECI was most recently published in the third quarter 
of 2025, then Optum will use the ECI from the third quarter of 2025 to determine the applicable fee increase 
for January 1, 2026.  In the event that the percentage increase in the ECI exceeds five percent (5%), the 
parties agree to meet and negotiate in good faith a mutually agreeable increase in the Annual Fees for the 
annual period in question, but in no event shall the annual increase in Annual Fees exceed five percent (5%) 
without mutual written agreement of the parties.  If the ECI is discontinued or if data required to measure the 
ECI is missing and no government index or computation or substitute data replaces the same, Optum and 
Customer shall in good faith agree upon a suitable substitute to determine the annual fee increase. 

 
 

Module Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 

Optum Enterprise 
CAC Inpatient Annual 
Fees:  Based on up to 
25,750 annual inpatient 
admissions 

  

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Optum Enterprise 
CAC Outpatient 
Annual Fees:  Based on 
up to 98,880 annual 
outpatient visits. 

  

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Coding Module 
Annual Fees (including 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 65 of 349 



7 
 

single LCD Data rule 
set):    
APR-DRG Annual 
Fees:  Based on up to 
25,750 annual inpatient 
admissions. 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

TRICARE/CHAMPUS 
Annual Fees:  Based on 
up 25,000 annual 
inpatient admissions. 

 
 
 

      
Dr. Z Annual Fees:  
Based on up to 12 
unique users per 
Contract Year 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Optum CDI 3D 
Annual Fees: Based on 
up to 25,000annual 
inpatient admissions  

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

CAC Professional 
Annual Fees:  Based on 
a total of up to 430,000 
annual Transactions 

1  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Audit Module Annual 
Fees:   

    
TOTAL ANNUAL 

FEES 
$697,114  

$720,154  $743,992  $768,656  $794,179  

 *The parties acknowledge and agree that the Annual Fees provided above do not include any additional applicable 
overages or third party royalty pass-through costs (as described in Section VI.D below). 
 

1. Optum Enterprise CAC.  As of the Effective Date, the Annual Fees set forth above are based 
on up t  up to the number of 

At least thirty (30) days before the anniversary of the CAC Start Date, Customer shall report to 
Optum the number of inpatient admissions, outpatient visits, and/or the number of Unique Users 

audit the Customer Reported Metrics for any twelve (12) month period using HIMSS Analytics, 
AHD.com, AHA, Hospital Blue Book or 

.  If Customer does not provide the metrics as described 
above, Optum may audit Customer Reported Metrics for any twelve (12) month period using 
the application system and/or Third Party Sources, as applicable, and Customer grees that such 
metrics will become the Customer Reported Metrics. .  For each inpatient admission and 
outpatient visit in excess of the Allowed Admissions or Allowed Visits during the applicable 
Contract Year, Optum shall invoice Customer annually at the rates specified in the table below. 
 

 
Optum Enterprise CAC Fee  
Per Inpatient Admission 

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 

Above 25,750           
 

Optum Enterprise CAC Fee 
Per Outpatient Visit 

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 

Above 98,880          
 

2. Unique Users.  Customer may use Enterprise CAC, the Coding Module, and Optum CDI 3D 
with up to twelve (12 Unique User each 

Page 66 of 349 



8 
 

individual authorized to access and use the Hosted System under this Schedule via a unique user id 
and password.  Upon the CAC Start Date and within thirty (30) days of each anniversary of the CAC 
Start Date, Customer shall report to Optum the total number of Unique Users for the previous twelve 
(12) months.  For any Unique Users over the number set forth above, Customer shall pay Optum 
any associated third-party royalties, as provided in Section VI.E, below.   

 
3. APR-DRG Grouper.  As of the Effective Date, the annual royalty fees for the APR-DRG 
Grouper included in this Schedule are based on the Allowed Admissions per year.  If the number of 
admissions exceeds the Allowed Admissions for a Contract Year, the date on which Customer 
exceeded the Allowed Admissions shall be provided to Optum at least thirty (30) days before the 
anniversary of the CAC Start Date.  Optum shall invoice Customer for the incremental, prorated 
portion of the APR-DRG annual royalty fee in accordance with the table below, based on the date 
on which Customer exceeded the Allowed Admissions.  Optum may also adjust the invoice for the 
following Contract Year to reflect the updated admission totals. 
 

 
 
 

 
4. TRICARE/CHAMPUS.  As of the Effective Date, the annual royalty fees for 
TRICARE/CHAMPUS included in this Schedule are based on the Allowed Admissions per year.  If 
the number of admissions exceeds the Allowed Admissions for a Contract Year, the date on which 
Customer exceeded the Allowed Admissions shall be provided to Optum at least thirty (30) days 
before the anniversary of the CAC Start Date.  Optum shall invoice Customer for the incremental, 
prorated portion of the TRICARE/CHAMPUS annual royalty fee in accordance with the table 
below, based on the date on which Customer exceeded the Allowed Admissions.  Optum may also 
adjust the invoice for the following Contract Year to reflect the updated admission totals.  
 
 
 
 
 

# Annual 
Outpatient Visit       Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 

Up to  115,599   
included in above fee 
schedule    

Between 115,600 132,899             

Between 132,900 151,999             

Above 151,999       To Be Negotiated       
 
 

5. Optum CDI 3D.  Optum CDI 3D Annual Fees for each Contract Year are based on the Allowed 
Admissions.  For each inpatient admission in excess of the Allowed Admissions during the 
applicable Contract Year, Optum shall invoice Customer annually at the rates specified in the table 
below for additional Optum CDI 3D fees. 

 
Optum CDI 3D Fees 
Fee per Inpatient Admission 

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 

Above 25,750        
 

# Annual Inpatient 
Admissions     Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 

Up to  27,999   
included in above fee 
schedule    

Between 28,000 31,499             
Between 31,500 35,249             
Above 35,249       To Be Negotiated       

Page 67 of 349 



9 
 

6.   Optum CAC Professional.   Optum CAC Professional Annual Fees for each Contract Year are 
based on the types of Transactions set forth in the ISOS and up to the annual number of Transactions 

n 
excess of the Allowed Transactions during the applicable Contract Year, in addition to the Annual 
Fee set forth above, Customer shall pay a Per Transaction Fee as set forth in the table for each 
Transaction sent to the Software in excess of the Allowed Transactions.  
Optum CAC Professional product is defined as a single encounter between a billing provider and a 
patient, regardless of the number of diagnosis or procedure codes that are processed through the 
Hosted System.  If there are multiple services from a single encounter documented as amended or 
subsequent clinical notes, then each note is processed separately and charged separately. The parties 
may add additional Transaction types by amending this Schedule. 

 
Optum CAC Professional Fees 
Per Transaction 

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 

Above 442,900           
 
 
  C.  Invoices.  Customer shall pay all amounts due under this Schedule within thirty (30) days of the 

date of each invoice.   
 
  D.  Third Party Royalties.  During the Term, Optum may pass-through to Customer (without mark-up) 

and Customer shall reimburse Optum for royalty fees paid to third parties related to the Software (such as 
the 3M, AMA, ADA and AHA), which are based on Customer sites, Allowed Admissions, Allowed Visits 
or number of Unique Users.   A Unique User each individual authorized to access and use the 
Hosted System under this Schedule via a unique user id and password.  Customer agrees to reimburse Optum 
for any increases in third party royalty fees.  Optum shall use commercially reasonable efforts to provide 
notice of the increases at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of the increases.   

 
  E.  Suspension of Services.  In addition to any other remedy available at law or in equity, upon ten (10) 

days written notice thereof, Optum may suspend its Services or access to and use of the Hosted Software by 
n sixty (60) days from the date of invoice and has 

failed to cure such delinquency within ten (10) days after written notice thereof. 
 

F. Fees for Other Services.  Charges for certain other services performed by Optum for Customer will 
be subject to a charge based on either a variable labor rate or a fixed fee.  The parties will mutually agree in 
writing on fees and scope prior to Optum providing any additional services.  
 

1. Professional Service Charge Subject to a Variable Hourly Labor Rate.  For certain professional 
services performed by Optum that are in addition to the Services under this Schedule, Optum will 

then current rates), which shall be subject to an annual escalation at a rate of five percent (5%) per 
year, effective each year on the anniversary of the CAC Start Date.  The types of services subject to 
an hourly service charge include, but are not limited to, the following: 

(a) Reimbursement for excess Optum work, where such excess effort is directly attributable to 
a Customer-related change in a key work element of the implementation workplan.  
(b) Requests for customized reports, customized output, customized queues, and non-standard 
queries to the Optum database. 
(c) Requests for training of Customer personnel following the implementation process, where 
such training is conducted via telephonic or WebEx  sessions. 
(d) de fees for 
professional services plus reimbursement for travel related expenses). 
(e) Changes following the implementation process to formats for transcription file, billing 
export file, or demographic file. 

 (f)   Configuration, support and assistance related to new releases of the Software. 
 

Page 68 of 349 



10 
 

Rate Card Hourly Rate 
Project Manager   
Technical Business Analyst  
Product Specialist  
Development/Customizations  
Methodology Consultant  

 
2. Fees Subject to Fixed Charges.  Optum will charge a fixed fee for selected other services, such 
as those shown below: 

(a) Return of Customer Data -  Upon completion or termination of this Schedule, Customer 
will be entitled to a copy of all electronic report files and coding results related to Customer 
provided reports and data via a CD with look up and print functionality, for a charge of $7,500, 
plus $5 per GB of data; provided, however, that if Customer terminates the Agreement or this 
Schedule for cause prior to the end of the term, this charge will not apply.  
(b) Monthly Storage Fee -  
archive system after expiration or termination of this Schedule, Customer will be charged a 
monthly storage fee at the then current monthly storage fee of Optum. 

 
 
VII. Term and Termination.  This Schedule is effective as of the Effective Date, and continues for five (5) Contract 

terminated pursuant to the Agreement, provided after expiration of Contract 
Year 3, Customer can terminate this Schedule at any time during Contract Year 4 
notice to Optum  access to and use of the Hosted System and 
Services shall terminate and Customer shall have no remaining rights to access and use the Hosted System and 
Services. 
 
VIII. . Optum may use Customer Data for the purpose of (a) providing the 
Services and (b) creating  de-identified data. Customer acknowledges and agrees that Optum has the right to use the 
de-identified data in accordance with applicable law. 
 
IX. Change Request Process.  Changes in project scope, schedule or timeline for any Services under this Schedule 
or a Scope of Services require a change request and may result in a new or revised schedule or Scope of Services and 
associated fees.  All requests to change project scope will use the following procedure.  Either Optum or Customer 
may initiate a change of scope request in writing, specifying the description of the proposed change.  The impact on 
costs, staffing, workloads, and schedule will be documented by Optum.  Optum may also specify the date before which 
Customer must respond to avoid uncontrolled impacts on the project plan.  If the change of scope is approved by both 
parties, Optum will revise this Schedule or the Scope of Services and budget as needed and schedule the work to 
commence accordingly.  The signatures of Customer and Optum on the change of scope request form will confirm 
approval or rejection of the request.  Optum will not commence work on the change request without approval. 
 
The parties have accepted and agreed to this Schedule as of the Effective Date. 
 
 

 OPTUM360, LLC 
 

 
UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER 
OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 

BY:   BY:  

     

PRINT NAME:   PRINT NAME:  

     

TITLE:   TITLE:  

Agreement No. 01413446.0 
 
  

Page 69 of 349 



11 
 

 
EXHIBIT A  

 
SUPPORT 

 
 

 
 
During the term of the Schedule, Optum agrees to provide the following support for the Hosted System:  
 
1. Uptime:  The Hosted System is built around a highly scalable and redundant network and server design 
topology that guarantees high availability across networking and server components.  The servers and Services that 
host the Hosted System are enterprise grade systems with redundant high efficiency power supplies, mirrored internal 
storage, and multiple network connections and host bus storage adapters to provide redundant storage and network 
interconnects. 

Consistent with sound industry operating practice, Optum will use commercially reasonable efforts to assure 
availability of the Hosted System at greater than or equal to 99.5% system uptime, calculated over any rolling three 
(3) month period, and not including scheduled downtime for updates and maintenance.  Scheduled maintenance times 

n-scheduled 
  Outages due to scheduled maintenance, non-

scheduled maintenance with appropriate notice from Optum, or hardware, power, internet or operating system 
ite, are not included in the calculation of uptime service level performance. 

 
2. Updates:  Optum shall furnish to Customer standard updates that Optum furnishes without charge to all other 
users of the Hosted System, in accordance with regular release schedules.  Optum shall use commercially reasonable 
efforts to provide sixty (60) days notice to Customer of major Optum Enterprise CAC system upgrades and 
enhancements, including documentation related to such upgrade, such as release notes or other communication. 
Customer will have reasonable time (no fewer than thirty (30) days) before the major system release is migrated to 
production.  Optum will make a preview environment available for the testing of third party interfaces and integration. 
 
3. System Maintenance:  Consistent with sound industry operating practice, Optum will take down the Hosted 
System for regularly scheduled, planned maintenance in accordance with the schedule set forth below. Customer will 
be advised/reminded in advance of release times not specified below (noting that maintenance is typically scheduled 
to occur during less-active times of the day). 
 

Product Name Release Day Frequency Release Time 
Optum Enterprise CAC 
and Optum CAC 
Professional 

Second Sunday Monthly 
5:00 AM  12:00 PM 
Eastern Time 

Optum NLP Engine  Thursdays Quarterly  
9:00 PM  1:.00 AM 
Eastern Time 

 
Optum will provide Customer with notice as soon as possible of any non-regularly scheduled maintenance such as 
emergency system maintenance, hot fixes and patches, and security and regulatory changes, and Optum will use 
commercially reasonable efforts to ensure that such non-regularly scheduled maintenance is only conducted outside 
the following hours: Monday through Friday, 7:00am to 8:00pm Eastern Time. 
 
In the event that a critical Optum Enterprise CAC patch is required, Optum shall certify and install all patches within 
seven (7) days from the date that the patch is made available. This applies to critical patches only, including, but not 
limited to, security issues, incorrect operation of Optum Enterprise CAC that materially impacts the safe or correct 
operation of the Software, etc. 
 

Page 70 of 349 



12 
 

4. Security of Data Transmissions:  The Hosted System completes the transfer of files to the Hosted System 
via 128 bit encryption; and web reporting back to Customer via Sercure TLS with user passwords. 
 
5. Business Continuity:  
Overview may be requested from Optum. 
 
6. Backup Policy:  Optum performs daily data backups conforming to industry standard practices for backup 
and retention. 

 
7. Coding Practices:  Optum will exercise commercially reasonable efforts to ensure that the coded output of 
the Hosted System is in accordance with applicable rules, regulations, manual instructions and guidelines, including 
those issued by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), the American Medical Association (AMA), 
the American Hospital Association (AHA), and the American Health Information Management Association 
(AHIMA), and will regularly monitor the accuracy and quality of the coded output of the Hosted System.  In doing 
so, Optum is authorized to rely on its reasonable understanding of existing coding rules, guidelines and conventions, 
including but not limited to CMS risk adjustment guidelines, in effect and accepted in the industry as the generally 
accepted rules, guidelines and conventions.  In no event shall Optum be liable or responsible for a difference of coding 
opinion or interpretation between it and any other party, nor for any change of interpretation or opinion not known to 
Optum. 

 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Customer acknowledges and agrees that the coded output of the Hosted System is 
based on the medical record and other written information or material submitted by Customer for processing through 

defined under the Agreement), and Customer is responsible for the ultimate 
selection and submission of any codes to third party payors.  Optum shall not be liable or responsible for any errors, 
omissions, illegible text or false or misleading statements contained in any Usable Data processed through the Hosted 
System.  Customer further acknowledges and agrees that (i) many coding decisions are judgment calls,  (ii) Customer 
has the responsibility to (x) stay informed of Federal, State and private payor regulatory requirements, and any changes 
thereto (including, but not limited to, all Medicare carrier bulletins, directives, guidelines and interpretive memoranda) 

 changes where 

be the sole responsibility of Customer. 
  
Optum will make commercially reasonable efforts to make any applicable national regulatory updates to the Hosted 
System in compliance with effective dates, after receipt of final and complete rules and guidelines. Any information 
released after previously issued final changes will be applied as soon as commercially reasonable to all supported 
environments.  
 
NLP Engine update policies require review and revision of the NLP knowledge base and algorithms to comply with 
published updates of authoritative coding guidelines.  The NLP update schedule is set in advance to comply to coding 
published effective dates.  Quality Assurance testing is required on all NLP releases to verify performance of revisions 
prior to production release. 
 

ed 
by Optum subject matter experts.  Discrepancies found to be valid, based upon documentation available to the NLP 
Engine, are documented within an enterprise-level tracking system and assigned an individual issue number. Each 
issue is prioritized based upon the severity and frequency of the issue. Critical issues are scheduled for update no later 

 
 

 
8. Data Security:  The following data security measures apply for the Hosted System:  (a) access by Optum 
personnel to the application Hosted System will be limited to those personnel providing hosting Services or support 
Services, or administrative Services such as auditing or security; (b) access to operating systems, network applications 
and/or Customer Data by Optum and its authorized subcontractors shall be through Optum-assigned individual user 
IDs, and individual user IDs issued to Optum personnel shall not be shared; (c) Optum shall install security patches 
for the application Hosted System, operating system, database, supporting utility code and all other Hosted System 

Page 71 of 349 



13 
 

promptly after the release of such patches.  Antivirus protection will be maintained at up to date levels at all times on 
all Microsoft Windows-based servers used in the data center to deliver hosting services. 

 
(a) Server Security. 

 Optum shall ensure that system and database administrator accounts are restricted to authorized 
personnel, and that servers are on a private domain utilized exclusively by Optum. 

 Optum shall enforce a firewall, and shall keep required ports open as deemed necessary. 
 Optum shall ensure that anti-virus software on all servers and update signature files on a regular basis. 
 Optum shall limit database server Customer access through the application or must document all other 

access methods to the database. 
 Optum shall make commercially reasonable efforts to utilize a network-based intrusion detection system. 

 
(b) Network Security.  The Hosted System has a robust network security infrastructure, which includes intrusion 
detection systems employed at the network perimeter. Host to host intercommunications are controlled by Access 
Control Lists (ACLs) to ensure the identity of the host. All data communications between the Hosted System and 
Customer are encrypted during transport and at rest. Access to the Hosted System is limited to web-based 
customers accessing via Transport Layer Security (TLS) transport from trusted IPs provided by the customer. 
 
(c) Authentication.  Access to the Hosted System user interface requires that the user enter valid credentials 
which are verified by the application.  Once authenticated, user permissions within the application are determined 
by the role assigned to the user.  The user interface includes automatic suspend and logout functions to secure the 
display of sensitive patient data during periods of inactivity.  These settings are configurable by facility and may 
not be modified by users. 
 
(d) Password/Login Functionality.  Access to the Hosted System user interface requires that the user enter valid 
credentials, which are verified by the application. The Hosted System supports role-based access and allows users 
to access only the necessary operations to perform his/her job. Once authenticated, user permissions within the 
application are determined by the role assigned to the user.  
  Password Parameters  

 Account password minimum length = eight (8) characters  
 Contain upper and lower case letters  
 Contain a number OR non-alpha-numeric character  
 Cannot contain:  

-  
- Blanks  
- One of the last 10 passwords used  

 
The user interface includes automatic suspend and logout functions to secure the display of sensitive patient data 
during periods of inactivity. These settings are configurable by facility and may not be modified by users. 
 
(e) Application Logging and Auditing.  The Hosted System supports robust logging of security relevant events. 
Below is a list of the events that are logged within the application:  

 User ID of user  
 Successful login attempts  
 Date/Time of event  
 Type of event  
 Success of event  
 Denial of access due to excessive login attempts. Three (3) failures will result in a locked account.  

 
Customers will need to request audit logs from Optum Support. 

  
(f) Encryption.  All protected health information (PHI) and health care business information (HCBI) is 
transmitted and stored securely using encryption. Hosted System cryptography is based on industry standards and 
any symmetric, asymmetric, or hashing algorithm utilized by the Hosted System application infrastructure must 

Page 72 of 349 



14 
 

utilize algorithms that have been published and evaluated by the general cryptographic community. Hosted 
System utilizes encryption that meets or exceeds the following standards:  

 Algorithms must be of sufficient strength to equate to 168-bit Triple DES.  
 Preferred hashing functions are SHA-1.  
 Connections to the Hosted System utilizing the Internet are protected using the following cryptographic 

technologies: TLS and/or HTTPS  
 

 
 

(g) Security Patches.  Optum shall develop and follow a documented policy for applying security patches and 
major system upgrades and enhancements to database, web, and application servers .  

 
(h) Development Security Practices. Optum adheres to a Software Development Life Cycle (SDLC) 
methodology, following commonly used best practices for designing, developing and deploying with secure 
features.  The most important practice is ensuring the protection of sensitive information.  During design and 

 
 
9. Post Implementation Support Services -- On-Site and Remote Activities: 

 Assignment of a Customer Account Manager by Optum.  Optum will make commercially reasonable 
efforts to have this Customer Account Manager assigned within thirty (30) days after the Effective Date of 
the Schedule. 
 Quarterly (or more frequently) Production and Support reports reviewed collaboratively by Optum and 

Customer. 
 A minimum of quarterly Performance Management Program reviews with users and other Customer 

stakeholders to review product value metrics and coordinate action steps and other improvement areas 
based on metrics. The Performance Management Program review includes, but is not limited to 
benchmark comparisons, workflow management, HIM/CDI (as applicable) operations review and key 
performance indicators.  

 Coordination of additional support and training as needed.  
 Participation in any Optum Enterprise CAC Customer user groups (as they become available). 

 
10. Anti Virus Software:  The Hosted System employs a multitier solution for antivirus, malware, and network 
access control protection. The following minimum requirements shall be enforced:  

 The antivirus product shall be operated in real time on all servers and client computers. The product shall 
be configured for real time protection.  

 The antivirus library definitions shall be updated at least twice per day.  
 Antivirus scans shall be done a minimum of once per week.  

 
11. Data Center Certification:  The Optum datacenter is hosted by a third-party vendor which annually 
performs a variety of audits and assessment controls.  Upon request, Optum agrees to provide to Customer for review 
via WebEx presentation.  Optum will facilitate periodic status updates between the Data Center and Customer if the 
report contain findings or issues that Customer reasonably believes require remediation. 

 
12. Vulnerability Assessment and Scanning Program Description:  Optum Web Service security scanning 
adheres to the OWASP Testing Guidelines.  The scanning addresses the following types of areas: 

 Injection 
 Cross-Site Scripting (XSS) 
 Broken Authentication and Session Management 
 Insecure Direct Object References 
 Cross-Site Request Forgery (CSRF) 
 Security Misconfiguration 
 Insecure Cryptographic Storage 
 Failure to Restrict URL Access 
 Insufficient Transport Layer Protection 
 Un-validated Redirects and Forwards 

Page 73 of 349 



15 
 

 
Perimeter vulnerability assessment scanning involves a comprehensive analysis of publicly available information 
about the target, a network enumeration phase where target hosts are identified and analyzed, and the behavior of 
security devices such as screening routers and firewalls are analyzed.  Vulnerabilities within the target hosts will be 
identified, and the implications assessed through IRM activities.  Activities will include: 

 Network Enumeration, Port Scanning and Service Enumeration 
 Identifying networks, architectures, servers, and operating systems 
 Cataloging all externally available ports and services 
 System and Services Identification 
 Identifying extranet aware applications 
 Vulnerability research and remediation  
 Identifying potential weakness within services found during network and service enumeration 

 
13. Customer Support: 
 

business matters, (ii) workflow questions and concerns, (iii) coding issues, (iv) error messages; (v) account processing 
concerns, (vi) configuration changes; (vii) product functionality questions, or (viii) requests for system administrator 
accounts for customer user provisioning.  Questions and issues can be reported to Optum Support via the web portal 
at https://support.optum360.com 
Friday 10:00 p.m. ET.  For critical issues outside  standard support hours, or on  holidays, Customer can call to reach 
our answering serivce who will contact an after hours Customer Support team member  
 
Product Incidents.  Customer agrees to notify Optum Customer Support promptly through the web portal or by phone 

hall mean a failure of the Hosted 
System to perform in accordance with the Documentation provided by Optum for that particular Hosted System 
release.  When Customer reports a potential Issue to Optum, such potential Issue shall be assigned priority using 
Information Technology Library (ITIL) which is a globally recognized framework that is used system wide to 
standardize support. There are three priority classification which include Priotiry 1  Critical, Priority 2  High and 
Priority 3  Low, or as not an Issue.  At the request of Optum, Customer agrees to submit a listing of output and any 
other data that Optum may require in order to reproduce the Issue and/or the operating conditions under which the 
Issue occurred or was discovered.  Optum shall endeavor to meet the following timelines for responding to reported 
Issues and commencing efforts to remedy them: 
 
(a) Priority One (Critical).  A Priority One Issue is a critical production Issue affecting all users of the Hosted 
System where no adequate workaround is available.  Criteria for Severity One Issues include: enterprise-wide impact; 
Hosted System is completely down or unavailable, resulting in a critical business impact and/or total disruption of 
work; a critical documented feature/function of the Hosted System is unavailable, resulting in a critical business impact 
to patient care or integrity of data security.  Optum shall respond to calls for a Priority One Issue promptly, but not 
later than two (2) hours after receiving the notification.  Optum will provide appropriate personnel resources to work 
on a resolution until resolved. 
 
(b) Priority Two (High).  A Priority Two Issue is an Issue that impacts major functionality or results in serious 
performance degradation for many users of the Hosted System where no adequate workaround is available.  Criteria 
for Severity Two Issues include:   Customer is highly impacted and cannot perform daily duties using the Hosted 
System; the Hosted System is operational but performance is highly degraded; important features of the Hosted System 
are unavailable with no adequate workaround (but operability of the Hosted System can continue in a restricted 
fashion).  Optum shall respond to calls for a Priority Two Issue promptly, but not later than four (4) business hours 
after receiving the notification.  Optum will provide appropriate personnel resources to work on a resolution until 
resolved. 
 
(c)  Priority Three (Low).  A Priority Three Issue is an Issue that impacts non-core Hosted System functionality 
or causes performance issues affecting only a small portion of users of the Hosted System.  Criteria for Priority Three 
Issues include: moderate impact 
partially degraded for some or all users; the Issue impacts non-core functionality of the Hosted System (main 

Page 74 of 349 



16 
 

functionality of the Hosted System is still available).  Optum shall respond to calls for a Priority Three Issue promptly, 
but not later than sixteen (16) business hours after receiving the notification.  
 

Page 75 of 349 



   17 

EXHIBIT B 
 

IMPLEMENTATION SCOPE OF SERVICES  
 

Delivery Assurance Process Completion: 10/3/2024 
 
1. Description of the Services:  Optum will perform the following services for Customer, which will be deemed 

 
 
2. Optum Provides:  Optum shall provide a Technical Deployment Lead, Implementation Strategic Solutions 
Advisor, Analytical Strategic Solutions Advisor, System Analyst, Filter Developer and a Project Manager to 
perform the Implementation Services specified below by project phase, as well as CDI and Audit & Compliance 
resources as described. Customer agrees that the scope of services is for deployment of the Hosted System and 
related professional Services and does not include validation of results, except where applicable, to ensure that the 
Software has been installed properly.  Optum is not responsible for any customization services or for any services 
related to calling program drivers or interface.  The parties will work together to develop the project scope 

Project Plan, Customer acknowledges and agrees that it shall use best efforts to meet the timeframes contained in the 
Project Plan.  Should such timeframes not be met by Customer and First Productive Use (FPU) has not occurred by 
the FPU Backend Date, Optum will invoice Customer for, and Customer shall pay Optum the Annual Fees and non-
refundable implementation fees for the applicable Software. 
 

2.1 Initiation Phase, consisting of: 
 Deliver project kickoff materials 
 Develop project scope statement 
 Draft project management plan 
 Draft project schedule 
 Project Kickoff 
 Setup remote access to client network as appropriate 

   
2.2 Solution Design Phase, consisting of: 

 Onsite design and technical meeting with Optum implementation team 
 Document future state workflow 
 Document interface specifications 
 Collect examples of interface messages 
 Complete requests and requirements document 
 Finalize project schedule 

 
2.3 Solution Build Phase, consisting of: 

 Standup hardware as follows. 
 Preview Environment: 

 One (1) VPN Tunnel to Optum Azure Cloud environment 
 One (1) Server for the OCR Service 
 One (1) Server for the Image Service 
 Any necessary Citrix Server/VMware enhancements to meet Optum 

Specifications 
 Production Environment:  

 One (1) VPN Tunnel to Optum Azure Cloud environment 
 One (1) Server for the OCR Service 
 One (1) Server for the Image Service 
 Any necessary Citrix/VMware Server enhancements to meet Optum 

Specifications 
 Standup software 
 Standup interfaces and provide integration services as described 

Page 76 of 349 



   18 

 VPN Tunnel setup and feed configuration 
 Setup VM instances for production, and test environments 
 Active Directory Integration 
 Setup security and access protocols and test 
 Configure and test user authentication protocols 
 Verify encoder integration 
 Configure NLP triggers and document events 
 Test bulk OCR processing 
 Populate crosswalk and lookup data 
 Manage updates to message mapping 
 Test end-to-end data flow  
 Analyze initial NLP results 
 Submit NLP message for coding review 
 Update data filters 
 Document code coverage 
 Configure Optum Coding and Reimbursement Module 

 Coding Knowledge  
 References Knowledge 
 Edits Knowledge 
 Compliance Knowledge 
 Medicare Inpatient Prospective Payment System with the current and two prior versions 

of the MS-DRG Grouper 
 Medicare Outpatient Prospective Payment System with the current and two prior versions 

of the APC Grouper 
 APR-DRG Prospective Payment System with the current and two prior versions of the 

APR-DRG Grouper 
 Tricare Champus Prospective Payment System with the current and two prior versions of 

the Tricare Champus Grouper 
 LCD Editor: 

 State: NV 
 Rule Set A: 01301 Palmetto GBA  

 Configure Optum CAC Workflow Module 
 Structural validation of interfaces 
 Validate the content that will drive automation of suggested code assignment for each patient 

encounter 
 Build individual work queues 
 Configure  
 Design Validation Signoff Visit 

 
2.4 Solution Validation Phase, consisting of: 

 Optum QA of Test and Production environments 
 Complete training materials 
 System Training and Testing Visit 
 Train super users 
 Begin user acceptance training 
 Begin end user training 

 
2.5  Solution Deployment Phase, consisting of: 

 Go Live Training Visit 
 Complete cutover plan  
 Cutover interfaces to production data 
 Optum implementation team on-site go-live support  

Page 77 of 349 



   19 

 Report training (the Optum trainer will cover content and intended use of each report and how 
workflow of the Hosted System drives the reporting) 

 Week 1  5 Optum product specialist support 
 Week 5 turnover to Optum Support team 
 

2.6  Integration Services.  Optum shall provide integration support services for its side of the interfaces 
necessary to integrate with the third-party vendor systems listed below.  If additional interfaces are identified, 
then additional fees may apply, as set forth in Section 2.7 below.  Customer is responsible for all interface 
costs associated with other vendor systems and any third-party interface costs.   

 
 Customer future state architecture with Optum Enterprise CAC (Diagram 1): 

 
 Health Information System (HIS): Epic (Epic Hosted) 

 Customer is responsible for an operational Patient Registration (HL7 ADT) feed 
from Epic to Optum. 

 Customer has opted for the EPIC FEWS (Front End Coding via Web Services) 
Integration configuration used for EPIC worklist to Optum automation. 

 Electronic Medical Record (EMR):  Epic (Epic Hosted) 
 Customer is responsible for operational Clinical Documentation (HL7 ORU 

and/or HL7 MDM) feed from Epic to Optum. 
 Customer is responsible for operational Discreet Data (HL7 ORU^R01) feed for 

Labs from Epic to Optum. (Optional Interface) 
 Patient Accounting:  Epic (Epic Hosted) 

 Customer is responsible for an operational Billing Acknowledgement with Final 
Billed Codes (HL7 BAR^P01) from Epic to Optum. 

 Customer is responsible for an operational Unbilled (FEWS integration) feed 
from Epic to Optum. Client must populate PV1-
data.  

 Customer is responsible for an operational Outpatient Charge feed (FEWS 
integration) from Epic to Optum (Please see ECI specification). 

 Physician Master:  Epic (Epic Hosted) 
 Customer is responsible for an operational Master Physicians list (either a cold 

Optum. 
 Document Management:  Hyland OnBase (Hyland Hosted) 

 Customer is responsible for operational Reference Pointer (HL7 MDM) feed 
from Hyland OnBase to Optum. 

 Customer agrees that 3rd party vendor solution integration will require a 
collaborative effort between the 3rd party, Optum and Customer, and is prepared 
to support these efforts until a complete and production ready solution has been 
made available. This will include Customer support with the design, testing and 
commitment of 3rd Party vendor collaboration. 

 
 General Positioning 

 Implementation fees are based on customer having a single data center with 
consolidated system architecture as depicted in diagram 1. Should this scope 
change during the engagement Optum will assess changes and additional 
services fees may apply.  Optum requires a firm understanding of its customers 
current business processes, system architecture and future goals to provide 
physician query integration and response options. 

 HL7 Message formats. Customer agrees that all inbound and outbound HL7 
message formats will meet Optum HL7 standard format. If the customer is not 
able to provide the required standard formats, then additional service fees may 

Page 78 of 349 



   20 

apply to accommodate the additional programming necessary to perform the 
required transforms on the Optum side of the integration. 

 Hardware Sizing was based on provided estimated transaction volumes which 
were communicated to be image page volume being less than 10,000.  Should 
the process of actual use warrant a larger hardware sizing due to increased 
image page transaction volume, Customer will be responsible for the additional 
hardware necessary to support the actual transaction volume.  

 System Scope.  Customer understands that architectural system changes to the 
scope of services, in any capacity, will affect the CAC activation timeline.  
Customer agrees that a proper duration of time assessment and full 
understanding of the impact on Optum dependent tasks is necessary for purposes 
of modifying the project schedule to accurately reflect the new length of effort 
and activation date. 

 3rd Party Hosting Fees.  Customer is responsible for all 3rd Party hosting fees 
associated with systems that have been identified as necessary for operation of 
or integration  

 Environments.  Customer understands that separate Preview and Production 
environments are required.  Customer also understands that the Enterprise CAC 
environment is separate from other CAC environments and requires separate 
integration. 

 

Diagram 1

 

 
2.7 Additional Interfaces:  For any additional interfaces not outlined above, customer will pay Optum 
the fees set forth below.  The rates are for interface services and do not include any additional third party 
fees: 

 Interface for HL7 enabled system: $8,500 
 Interface for delimited file cold feeds: $7,500 

 

Page 79 of 349 



   21 

Optum and Customer will mutually agree in writing to a Scope of Services setting forth the 
requirements, total fees and payment terms for any new interfaces.   
 
 

2.8 Customer Tenanting/Sites in Scope 

 UMC Las Vegas 
 

Diagram 2

 

 
3. Implementation of the  CDI 3D Application: 
 

3.1 Initiation Phase, consisting of: 
 Deliver project kickoff materials 
 Develop project scope statement 
 Draft project management plan 
 Draft project schedule 
 meeting 
 Setup remote access to client network 
  
 Complete technical assessment 
 Complete pre-assessment configuration packet 
 Complete pre-assessment workflow rules packet 
 Complete system configuration settings based on Customer requirements 
 Define Optum workflow integration points 
  
 Review discrete data interface specs/configuration 
 Begin data sensitization and marker analysis 
 Provide hardware recommendations based on technical assessment 
 Execute hardware order 
 Sign off on phase by implementation, consulting, technical, Customer 

 
 
 

Page 80 of 349 



   22 

3.2 Solution Design & Build Phase, consisting of:  
 Onsite design and technical meeting with Optum implementation team 
 Document interface specificaitons 
 Collect examples of interface messages 
 Finalize project schedule 
 Test bulk OCR processing 
 Review results of sensitization and marker analysis 
 Define user roles 
 Define query rules 
 Review base rules defined on currently available markers 
 Define workflow rules based on available markers 
 Map use case examples 
 Host design review signoff meeting 
 Initialize  in Customer's Preview environment 
 Setup financial classes 
 Setup insurance plans 
 Setup locations 
 Setup users 
  
 Setup workflow integration 
 Install VPN services to handle any additional inbound/outbound HL7 
 Setup dashboard 
 Configure Optum Coding and Reimbursement Module (for use within and required for 

 
 Coding Knowledge 
 References Knowledge 
 Edits Knowledge 
 Medicare Inpatient Prospective Payment System with the current and two prior versions of 

the MS-DRG Grouper 
 APR-DRG Prospective Payment System with the current and two prior versions of the 

APR-DRG Grouper 
 

  
 Sign off on phase by implementation, consulting, technical, Customer 

 
3.3 Solution Validation Phase, consisting of:  

 Complete cutover plan 
 Cutover interfaces to production data 
 Promote Preview configuration to Production 
 Optum implementation team on-site go-live support  
 Validate application configuration in Production 
 Initiate marker generation 
 Initiate workflow 
 Setup post go live analytics 
 Sign off on phase by implementation, consulting, technical, Customer 

 
3.4 Integration Services.  Optum shall provide integration support services for its side of the interfaces 
necessary to integrate with the third-
.  Integration services to third-party information system not currently interfaced to Optum Enterprise CAC 
or not identified above in Section 2.7 are not in scope.  If it is determined that additional interfaces are needed 

in section 2.7 will apply. 
 

Page 81 of 349 



   23 

 
 

4. General Terms: 
 
 4.1 Project Manager.  Upon execution of the Schedule by both parties, Optum will assign a project 
manager who will schedule a kick-off date for the Services referenced in this ISOS based on current in-house 
availability.  

  
4.2 Customer Provides.  Customer shall provide one (1) technical point of contact, (1) medical coding 

specialist and one (1) business point of contact during all phases of the deployment efforts.  Customer shall ensure 
that all required resources are available for all scheduled engagements.  Customer shall also ensure that all necessary 
hardware is available, installed and operational, and that all necessary pre-requisite operating system software and 
services are installed prior to any engagement.  Optum is not responsible for delays in deployment due to Customer 
resource constraints, or the unavailability of necessary environments.  For all remote engagements, Customer shall 
supply Optum with VPN access to all necessary system resources.   

 
4.3   Delays.  Customer understands that delays caused in scheduling meetings, changes in the objectives 

or scope of the project, schedule or timeline, and/or new information acquired during the course of the project, may 
within the fees set forth in the Schedule.  If either Customer or Optum 

becomes aware of circumstances that are likely to cause the fees to be exceeded, the change order process will be 
promptly initiated and the parties will negotiate a mutually acceptable change order modifying the description of the 
Services and/or the fees. 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 82 of 349 



   

 

24 

EXHIBIT C 
 

 
Delivery Assurance Process Completion: 10/03/2024 

 
1. Description of the Services:  Optum will perform the following services for Customer, which will be deemed to 

 
 
2. Optum Provides:  Optum shall provide a Technical Deployment Lead, Implementation Strategic Solutions 

Advisor, Analytical Strategic Solutions Advisor, System Analyst, and a Project Manager  to perform the 
Implementation Services specified below by project phase. Customer agrees that the scope of services is for 
deployment of Optum Professional Computer Assisted Coding Platform softwa
not include validation of results, except where applicable, to ensure that the Software has been installed 
properly.  Optum is not responsible for any customization services or for any services related to calling program 
drivers or interface. Upon completion of the Project Plan, Customer acknowledges and agrees that it shall use 
best efforts to meet the timeframes contained in the Project Plan.  Should such timeframes not be met by 
Customer and First Productive Use (FPU) has not occurred by the FPU Backend Date, Optum will invoice 
Customer for, and Customer shall pay Optum the Annual Fees and non-refundable implementation fees for the 
applicable Software. 

 
3. Implementatin Process and Milestones 
 

3.1. Project Initiation Phase 
3.1.1. Deliver project kickoff materials 
3.1.2. Develop project scope statement 
3.1.3. Draft project management plan 
3.1.4. Draft project schedule  
3.1.5. Conduct Kickoff Call 
3.1.6. Start preparing written Implementation Work Plan  
3.1.7. Deliver and Complete Billing Rule Survey 
3.1.8. Delvier and Complete Physician List 
3.1.9. Collect samples of Demographic and Transcription Files 
3.1.10. Request Billing Export Specifications from Customer 
3.1.11. Update Implementation Workplan  

3.2. Solution Design Phase 
3.2.1. Finalize Filter Specifications 
3.2.2. Finalize Billing Rule Script Specificaitons 
3.2.3. Onsite design and technical meeting with Optum implementation team 
3.2.4. Document future state workflow 
3.2.5. Document interface specifications 
3.2.6. Collect examples of interface messages 
3.2.7. Complete requests and requirements document 
3.2.8. Finalize Implementation Workplan 

3.3. Solution Build Phase 
3.3.1. Complete Filter Build 
3.3.2. Complete Billing Rule Scripts 
3.3.3. Install Workstation Software 
3.3.4. Configure and test user authentication protocols 
3.3.5. Populate crosswalk and lookup data 
3.3.6. Standup interfaces and provide integration services as described 

 Standup hardware as follows. 
 Preview Environment: 

 1 VPN Tunnel to Optum Azure Cloud environment 
 Any necessary Citrix Server enhancements to meet Optum Specifications 

 Production Environment:  

Page 83 of 349 



   

 

25 

 1 VPN Tunnel to Optum Azure Cloud environment 
 Any necessary Citrix Server enhancements to meet Optum Specifications 

3.4.7 Design Validation Sign Off Visit  
3.4. Solution Validation Phase 

3.4.1. Optum QA of customer setup and configurations, billing rules and export file. 
3.4.2. Customer review of  NLP results, billing rules and export file formats in Preview environment.  
3.4.3. Submission and trackin of issues for resolution 
3.4.4. System Training and Testing Visit 
3.4.5. Begin user acceptance training 
3.4.6. Begin end user training 

3.5. Solution Deployment Phase 
3.5.1. Complete End user training and system review 
3.5.2. Complete cutover plan  
3.5.3. Cutover interfaces to production data 
3.5.4. Report training 
3.5.5. Go Live Training and Activation Visit 
3.5.6. Week 1  4 post go live Optum project management and product specialist support 
3.5.7. Week 5 turnover to Optum Support team 

 
4. Integration Services . Optum shall provide integration support services for its side of the interfaces necessary to 

integrate with the third-party vendor systems and supplied documentation. If aditional interfaces are identified, 
then additional fees may apply. Customer is responsible for all interface costs associated with other vendor 
systems and any third-party interface costs. 

 
 Customer future state architecture with Optum Professional CAC (Diagram 1): 

 Patient Registration:  Epic Ambulatory (Epic Hosted) 
 Customer is responsible for an operational registration transaction (HL7 ADT) 

feed from Epic to Optum. 
 Customer is responsible for an operational master file notification (HL7 MFN) 

feed from Epic to Optum. 
 

 EMR:  Epic Ambulatory  (Epic Hosted) 
 Customer is responsible for an operational documentation (HL7 MDM and/or 

ORU) feed from Epic  to Optum. 
 

 Accounting:  Epic Ambulatory (Epic Hosted) 
 Customer is responsible for an operational Financial transaction (DFT^P03) feed 

from Optum to Epic. 
 Customer is responsible for an operational Pre-Charge Financial transaction 

(DFT^P03) feed from Epic to  Optum. 
 Customer will be responsible for any CPT Code cross walk 

nsaction 
specification.  

1.  
 General Positioning: 

 Implementation fees are based on customer having a single data center with a 
consolidated system architecture and  HIM Multi-Specialty Type workflows as 
depicted in diagram 1.  Should this scope change during the course of 
engagement Optum will assess changes and additional services fees may apply. 

 System Scope.  Customer understands that architectural system changes to the 
scope of services, in any capacity, will affect the CAC activation time line.  
Customer agrees that a proper duration of time assessment and full 
understanding of the impact on Optum dependent tasks, is necessary for 

Page 84 of 349 



   

 

26 

purposes of modifying the project schedule to accurately reflect the new length 
of effort and activation date. 

 3rd Party Hosting fees.  Customer is responsible for all 3rd Party hosting fees 
associated with systems that have been identified as necessary for operation of 

 
 Environments.  Customer understands that separate Preview (Test) and 

Production environments are required. Customer also understands that the 
Professional CAC environment is separate from other CAC environments and  
requires separate integration. 

 New vs Establish. Not in Scope 
 Customer has chosen a phased roll-out. A phased approach means that the 

analysis and design activities will be done for all specialties at the same time, 
but solution build, testing, deployment and Go Live will be staggered in serial 
and possibly overlapping activities.  

 CAC Professional Bidirectional charge interface: The CAC Professional 
bidirectional charge interface is a standard HL7 DFT format and integration that 
provides coders the capability to match client provided charges to the NLP 
Identified CPT Codes using the REM Code/Unmatched code functionality in the 

then returned to the Client system via a 
standard HL7 DFT format. Customer will be responsible for any CPT Code cross 

specification.  
 No additional specialties, except those listed in the Schedule, shall have access 

to the software. 
 Activation dates are based on Optum  standard deployment durations.  Customer 

understands that activation dates are subject to change based upon influencing 
aspects clarified upon engagement, such as customers competing projects and 
resource constraints, which will be factored into the implementation planning 
phase for purposes of producing a jointly agreed upon project schedule. 

 
5. Specialty Code Coverage . Customer understands and agrees that the scope of medical code coverage per 

specialty will vary, with some specialties having more coverage than others, and that the  degree of coverage in 
any individual specialty will not impact terms of contract. 
5.1. ER 
5.2. Radiology 
5.3. IR/Cardiology 
5.4. Anesthesiology 
5.5. Oncology  
5.6. Surgical 
5.7. Neurology 
5.8. Critical Care 
5.9. Hospitalist 
5.10. Pulmonary 
5.11. Primary Care 
5.12. Quick Care 
5.13. Ortho 
5.14. Burn 
5.15. Transplant 

 

Page 85 of 349 



   

 

27 

Diagram 1

 
 
6. Additional Interfaces.  For additional interfaces not referenced above, customer will pay Optum the fees set forth 

below.  The rates are for interface services and do not include any additional third party fees: 
 Interface for HL7 enabled system: $8,500 
 Interface for delimited file cold feeds: $7,500 

 
Optum and Customer will mutually agree in writing to a Scope of Services setting forth the requirements, total 
fees and payment terms for any new interfaces. 

 
7. Project Manager.  Upon execution of the Schedule by both parties, Optum will assign a project manager who 

will schedule a kick-off date for the Services referenced in this ISOS based on current in-house availability. 
Customer is not responsible for delays in deployment due to  resource constraints, Optum will adjust 
timeline without additional costs.   

 
8. Customer Provides.  Customer shall provide one (1) technical point of contact, (1) medical coding specialist and 

one (1) business point of contact during all phases of the deployment efforts.  Customer shall ensure that all 
required resources are available for all scheduled engagements. Customer shall provide Optum with Medical 

the patient-identifiable records is in accordance with any agreement or contract that Customer may have in 
place with the provider or owner of the records and that such access by Optum is consistent with all patient 
confidentiality laws that may exist with respect to such records.  PROVIDING SUCH INFORMATION IN AN 
ELECTRONIC FORMAT, AND ASSURING THAT SUCH DATA IS LEGALLY OBTAINED, IS A PRE-
REQUISITE FOR BEGINNING THE IMPLEMENTATION PROCESS.Customer shall also ensure that all 
necessary hardware is available, installed and operational, and that all necessary pre-requisite operating system 
software and services are installed prior to any engagement.  Optum is not responsible for delays in deployment 
due to customer resource constraints, or the unavailability of necessary environments.  Customer shall supply 
Optum with VPN access to all necessary system resources. 

 
9. Fees.  The fees for the Services provided under this ISOS are set forth in the Schedule.  Additional services, 

which are outside the scope of Services detailed in this ISOS, shall be billed to Customer at the time and 
material rates set forth in Section ____ of the Schedule. 

Page 86 of 349 



   

 

28 

 
10. Delays.  Customer understands that delays caused in scheduling meetings, changes in the objectives or scope of 

the project, schedule or timeline, and/or new information acquired during the course of the project, may impact 

becomes aware of circumstances that are likely to cause the fees to be exceeded, the change order process will 
be promptly initiated and the parties will negotiate a mutually acceptable change order modifying the 
description of the Services and/or the fees. 

 
11. Customer Responsibilities During (and, as applicable, following) the Implementation Process: Upon starting the 

Implementation Process, Customer shall complete a detailed questionnaire and participate in extensive 

requirements.  Optum will then provide Customer with a detailed written Implementation Workplan.  It will be 

days from receipt, of any changes to be made.  ONCE ESTABLISHED AND AGREED TO IN WRITING BY 
CUSTOMER AND OPTUM, THE IMPLEMENTATION WORKPLAN WILL DEFINE THE PLANNED 
WORK EFFORT FOR IMPLEMENTATION.  ANY CHANGES TO THE AGREED UPON 
IMPLEMENTATION WORKPLAN MAY RESULT IN UNINTENDED DELAYS AND/OR MISDIRECTED 
WORK EFFORT.  OPTUM RESERVES THE RIGHT TO CHARGE, AND CUSTOMER AGREES TO PAY, 
ADDITIONAL FEES FOR CHANGES TO THE IMPLEMENTATION WORKPLAN. 

12. Other Actions.  Customer shall assist Optum and be responsible for such other activities and functions as are 
reasonably required to complete its obligations under the agreed Implementation Workplan.  

 
 
 
 

Page 87 of 349 



   

 

29 

  
 

3M SOFTWARE LICENSE 
ATTACHMENT 

 

through Optum to license to 

3M Software available to Customer, Customer must acknowledge the following terms and conditions with respect to 
 

 
1. Term.  
delivers the Optum Software to Customer that includes the 3M Software. This License will terminate when: (i) 

the Optum Software terminates, or (iii) Customer violates a provision of this License and fails to cure that violation 
within thirty (30) days after receiving written notice of the violation from 3M. 
 
2. Use Rights.  During the Term and any Renewal Term, 3M grants to Customer the non-exclusive, non-
transferable, limited right to access and use the 3M Software as incorporated into the Optum Software. Customer may 
use the 3M Software and the output produced by the 3M Software for any purpose that is consistent with the scope of 

er acknowledges that 3M 

the 3M Software.  Customer is specifically prohibited from making any modification to the 3M Software, and from 
creating any derivative work based upon the 3M Software. In addition, Customer shall not decompile, disassemble or 
reverse engineer the 3M Software. Customer is prohibited from providing copies of the 3M Software to third parties, 
or making copies of the 3M 
with Optum. 
 
3. Confidentiality.  The 3M Software contains and constitutes information and matter that is confidential to 
3M.  Customer must hold the 3M Software in confidence, and prevent third party access to and use of the 3M Software 

 
 
4. Fees.  
no obligation to pay any fee directly to 3M. 
 
5. Installation, Training, Documentation and Support. Optum shall be responsible for integrating the 3M 
Software into the Optum Software, and for creating and maintaining all necessary interfaces between the 3M Software 
and the Optum Software. Optum shall be responsible for installing the Optum Software at Customer, providing all 

as integrated into the Optum Software. 
 
6. Warranties.  Because the 3M Software is incorporated into the Optum Software, 3M makes no warranties 
concerning the 3M Software directly to Customer. In the event that Customer believes that the 3M Software is not 
properly performing, or is the basis of an infringement claim by a third party, Customer should report the matter to 
Optum.  Optum will work with Optum to review the matter and provide appropriate remediation.  3M AND ITS 
SUPPLIERS DISCLAIM ANY AND ALL WARRANTIES DIRECTLY TO CUSTOMER, WHETHER EXPRESS 
OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY, NONINFRINGEMENT, OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND THOSE 
ARISING FROM TRADE USAGE OR COURSE OF DEALING. 
 
7. Limitation of Liability.  3M AND ITS SUPPLIERS SHALL NOT BE LIABLE DIRECTLY TO 
CUSTOMER UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL OR 
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OR ECONOMIC LOSS, BASED UPON ANY LEGAL THEORY EVEN IF 3M 
OR ITS SUPPLIERS OR CUSTOMER HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, 

Page 88 of 349 



   

 

30 

INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, LOSS OF PROFITS, REVENUE, EQUIPMENT USE, DATA OR 
INFORMATION OF ANY KIND. 
 

Page 89 of 349 



Page 90 of 349 



REVISED 7/25/2014

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE 
DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS FORM

Purpose of the Form

The purpose of the Disclosure of Ownership/Principals Form is to gather ownership information pertaining to the business entity for use by the University Medical 
GB should exclude themselves from voting on agenda items where 

they have, or may be perceived as having a conflict of interest, and to determine compliance with Nevada Revised Statute 281A.430, contracts in which a public 
officer or employee has interest is prohibited.

General Instructions

Completion and submission of this Form is a condition of approval or renewal of a contract or lease and/or release of monetary funding between the disclosing 
entity and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada.  Failure to submit the requested information may result in a refusal by the GB to enter into an 
agreement/contract and/or release monetary funding to such disclosing entity.

Detailed Instructions

All sections of the Disclosure of Ownership form must be completed. If not applicable, write in N/A.

Business Entity Type Indicate if the entity is an Individual, Partnership, Limited Liability Company, Corporation, Trust, Non-profit Organization, or Other.  

Non-Profit Organization (NPO) - Any non-profit corporation, group, association, or corporation duly filed and registered as required by state law.

Business Designation Group Indicate if the entity is a Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), Small 
Business Enterprise (SBE), Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Veteran Owned Business (VET), Disabled Veteran Owned Business (DVET), or 
Emerging Small Business (ESB) . This is needed in order to provide utilization statistics to the Legislative Council Bureau, and will be used only for such 
purpose. 

Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 
is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native 
American ethnicity.
Women Owned Business Enterprise (WBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 
is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women.
Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful 
function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act.
Small Business Enterprise (SBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function, is not owned 
and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000.
Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (VET): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a commercially useful 
function and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more U.S. Veterans.
Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (DVET): A Nevada business at least 51 percent owned/controlled by a disabled veteran.
Emerging Small Business (ESB): Certified by the Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development effective January, 2014. Approved into 
Nevada law during the 77th Legislative session as a result of AB294.

Business Name (include d.b.a., if applicable)

Corporate/Business Address, Business Telephone, Business Fax, and Email Enter the street address, telephone and fax numbers, and email of the named 
business entity.

Nevada Local Business Address, Local Business Telephone, Local Business Fax, and Email If business entity is out-of-state, but operates the business from a 
location in Nevada, enter the Nevada street address, telephone and fax numbers, point of contact and email of the local office. Please note that the local address 
must be an address from which the business is operating from that location. Please do not include a P.O. Box number, unless required by the U.S. Postal Service, 
or a business license hanging address.

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents employed by this firm. (Do not leave blank. If none or zero, put the number 0 in the space provided.)

List of Owners/Officers Include the full name, title and percentage of ownership of each person who has ownership or financial interest in the business entity.  If 
the business is a publicly-traded corporation or non-profit organization, list all Corporate Officers and Directors only.

For All Contracts (Not required for publicly-traded corporations)
1) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity are a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s). If yes, the following paragraph applies.

In accordance with NRS 281A.430.1, a public officer or employee shall not bid on or enter into a contract between a government agency and any 
private business in which he has a significant financial interest, except as provided for in subsections 2, 3, and 4.

2) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity have a second degree of consanguinity or affinity 
relation to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) (reference form on Page 2 for 
definition).  If YES, complete the Disclosure of Relationship Form.

A professional service is defined as a business entity that offers business/financial consulting, legal, physician, architect, engineer or other professional services.

Signature and Print Name Requires signature of an authorized representative and the date signed.

Disclosure of Relationship Form If any individual members, partners, owners or principals of the business entity is presently a University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada employee, public officer or official, or has a second degree of consanguinity or affinity relationship to a University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada employee, public officer or official, this section must be completed in its entirety.  

Page 91 of 349 



DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS

1
REVISED 7/25/2014

Business Entity Type (Please select one)

Sole 
Proprietorship

Partnership
Limited Liability 

Company 
Corporation Trust

Non-Profit  
Organization

Other

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply)

MBE WBE SBE PBE VET DVET ESB

Minority Business 
Enterprise

Women-Owned 
Business 
Enterprise

Small Business 
Enterprise

Physically Challenged 
Business Enterprise

Veteran Owned 
Business

Disabled Veteran 
Owned Business

Emerging Small 
Business

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed:

Corporate/Business Entity Name:

(Include d.b.a., if applicable)

Street Address: Website:

City, State and Zip Code:
POC Name:

Email:

Telephone No: Fax No:

Nevada Local Street Address:

(If different from above)

Website:

City, State and Zip Code: Local Fax No:

Local Telephone No:
Local POC Name:

Email:

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or 
financial interest in the business entity appearing before the Board.

Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with 
ownership or financial interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s).

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations, 
close corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations.

Full Name Title % Owned
(Not required for Publicly Traded 

Corporations/Non-profit organizations)

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations. Are you a publicly-traded corporation?  Yes  No

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time
employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)?

Yes No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not 
perform any work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.)

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-
sister, grandchild, grandparent, related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)?

Yes No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.) 

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also understand that the University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exc hanges without the completed disclosure 
form.

Signature Print Name

Title Date

Optum

N/A

Optum360, LLC

1 Optum Circle

Eden Prairie, MN 55344

N/A

Optum Rocket, LLC majority Member of Optum360, LLC approx. 96.01% (direct)

OptumInsight, Inc. sole member of Optum Rocket, LLC approx. 96.01% (indirect)

OptumInsight Holdings, LLC sole stockholder of OptumInsight, Inc. approx. 96.01% (indirect)

Please see attached page.

February 12, 2025OI Provider SVP

Michael Landen

Page 92 of 349 



All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the 
names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or financial interest in 
the business entity appearing before the Board. Continued.

Full Name  Title % Owned 

Optum, Inc. sole member of OptumInsight 
Holdings, LLC 

approx. 96.01% 
(indirect) 

United HealthCare Services, 
Inc. 

sole stockholder of Optum, Inc. approx. 96.01% 
(indirect) 

UnitedHealth Group 
Incorporated

sole stockholder of United 
HealthCare Services, Inc. 

approx. 96.01% 
(indirect) 

Page 93 of 349 



DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP

2
REVISED 7/25/2014

List any disclosures below:
(Mark N/A, if not applicable.)

NAME OF BUSINESS 
OWNER/PRINCIPAL

NAME OF UMC*
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL

AND JOB TITLE

RELATIONSHIP TO
UMC*

EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL

UMC*

DEPARTMENT

* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

a relationship by marriage.

follows:

Spouse Registered Domestic Partners Children Parents In-laws (first degree)

Brothers/Sisters Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters Grandchildren Grandparents In-laws (second degree)

For UMC Use Only:

If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:    

Yes No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item?

Yes   No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract?

Notes/Comments:

____________________________________
Signature 

____________________________________
Print Name 
Authorized Department Representative

N/A

Page 94 of 349 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 26, 2025 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

7 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Deferred Equipment Agreement with Masimo Americas, Inc.  

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 
Deferred Equipment Agreement with Masimo Americas, Inc. for the purchase of pulse 
oximetry sensors and accessories; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute future 
amendments within his delegation of authority; or take action as deemed appropriate. 
(For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number:  5420.000     Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center:  3000837000     Funded Pgm/Grant:  N/A 
Description:  Pulse Oximetry Equipment, Sensors, Software and Training  
Bid/RFP/CBE:  NRS 450.525 & NRS 450.530 – GPO 
Term:  60 months from the Effective Date 
Amount:  Estimated $12,927,035.40 total for 60 months 
Out Clause: Budget Act and Fiscal Fund Out 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (UMC) has had previous agreements with Masimo Americas, 
Inc. (Masimo) under which Masimo provided the use of pulse oximetry equipment at no upfront cost to UMC 
in exchange for a commitment of pulse oximetry sensor purchases. UMC requests to enter into a new Deferred 
Equipment Agreement ("Agreement") with Masimo, in which Masimo will supply pulse oximetry equipment, 
software, and training at no upfront cost. However, this will be subject to an annual minimum sensor 
commitment of $2,585,407.08 over the term of the Agreement, which will commence sixty (60) months from 
the Effective Date. UMC has historically exceeded this commitment level and accepts the terms outlined for 
entering into this Agreement. 
 
This Agreement is being entered into pursuant to HPG contract # 1331.  HealthTrust Purchasing Group (HPG) 
is a Group Purchasing Organization of which UMC is a member.  This request is in compliance with NRS 
450.525 and NRS 450.530; attached is the bid summary sheet and a sworn statement from an HPG executive 
verifying that the pricing was obtained through a competitive bid process. 
 
UMC’s Director of Clinical Support Services has reviewed and recommends approval of this Agreement. This 
Agreement has been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 

Page 95 of 349 



Page Number 
2 

 
This Agreement was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their February 19, 
2025 meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 

Page 96 of 349 



Confidential Page 1 of 24 2/10/2025 3:55 PM 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

Deferred Equipment Agreement  

between 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada and Masimo Americas, Inc. 

This agreement including its Schedules (collectively, this “Deferred Equipment Agreement”) is entered on the 

last date of execution (the “Effective Date”) by and between Masimo Americas, Inc., a Delaware corporation, 

with its principal place of business at 52 Discovery, Irvine, California 92618 (“Masimo”) and University Medical 

Center of Southern Nevada, a publicly owned and operated hospital created by virtue of Chapter 450 of the Nevada 

Revised Statutes, with its principal place of business at 1800 West Charleston Boulevard, Las Vegas, Nevada 89102 

(“Customer”) and shall incorporate all of the terms and conditions of the Purchasing Agreement (1331) between 

Masimo and HealthTrust Purchasing Group, L.P. (“HealthTrust”) dated February 1, 2023 (“Purchasing Agreement”). 

The provisions of the Purchasing Agreement are incorporated into this Agreement and shall control in the event of a 

conflict between this Deferred Equipment Agreement and the Purchasing Agreement; provided, that nothing in the 

Purchasing Agreement shall be construed as (i) limiting or superseding the Annual Minimum Sensor Commitment for 

the Term of this Deferred Equipment Agreement or any pricing associated therewith, or (ii) permitting Customer to 

terminate this Deferred Equipment Agreement without Cause. For purposes of clarification, “Customer” under this 

Deferred Equipment Agreement is referred to as a “Purchaser” under the Purchasing Agreement, and “Masimo” 

under this Deferred Equipment Agreement is referred to as “Vendor” under the Purchasing Agreement.  

 
Whereas, this Deferred Equipment Agreement represents a consolidation of a pre-existing agreement and its 

obligations (“Contract #21US1761”) between Masimo and Customer.  As such, the terms of this Deferred 

Equipment Agreement supersede the terms of Contract #21US1761. Conditioned upon Customer’s fulfillment of 

its financial obligations under this Agreement, Contract #21US1761 is hereby terminated and Customer and its 

Facilities are released from their financial obligation under Contract #21US1761;  

Whereas, Customer and Masimo desire to enter into this Deferred Equipment Agreement where Customer will be 

provided the use of Equipment and if applicable software parameters (“Software Parameters”) at no upfront cost 

but be subject to a commitment (as set forth in Schedule A) to purchase a minimum amount of sensors (“Sensors”) 

over the term of the Deferred Equipment Agreement; and 

Whereas, Masimo shall license to Customer and Customer shall obtain from Masimo, under the terms and conditions 

of this Deferred Equipment Agreement, Customer’s committed tier requirements of pulse oximetry Equipment, 

Sensors, and accessories (“Products”) during the Term, as stated in the Annual Minimum Sensor Commitment for 

the Term set forth in Schedule A1.3 of this Deferred Equipment Agreement. 

Now, therefore, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is acknowledged, the parties agree as 

follows: 

1 Deferred Equipment Plan. 

1.1 Description.  Masimo offers this acquisition to permit the conversion to Masimo technology and 

sensor standardization. Masimo will provide the specified Equipment and if applicable Software Parameters at no 

upfront cost in return for a commitment to obtain Sensors based upon the quantity and mix of Equipment as listed 

in Schedule A. Payments over the annual period are referred to as the Annual Minimum Sensor Commitment. 

Masimo shall license to Customer and Customer shall obtain from Masimo, under the terms and conditions of this 

Deferred Equipment Agreement, all of Customer’s committed tier requirements of pulse oximetry Products during 

the Term, as stated in the Purchasing Agreement and the Annual Minimum Sensor Commitment for the Term as set 

forth in Schedule A1.3 of this Deferred Equipment Agreement. Additionally, in support of best environmental 

practices, Masimo shall: (i) provide Customer with Sensor collection containers for all adhesive Sensors which were 

obtained and used pursuant to this Deferred Equipment Agreement and (ii) train Customer’s personnel the 

procedures for handling and collection of the Sensors so that Customer can return them to Masimo. In consideration 

of the preceding (i) and (ii), Customer shall return all Masimo used adhesive and Rainbow optical Sensors to Masimo. 

 

 

Page 97 of 349 



Confidential Page 2 of 24 2/10/2025 3:55 PM 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

1.2 Safe Harbor.   The Parties acknowledge that it is their intent to establish a business relationship in 

which payments by Vendor to HealthTrust and Customers comply with the exceptions to the Medicare and 

Medicaid Anti-Kickback statute set forth at 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b(b)(3) (A) and (C), the “Safe Harbor” regulations 

regarding discounts set forth in 42 C.F.R. § 1001.952(h), and the “Safe Harbor” regulations regarding payments to 

group purchasing organizations set forth in 42 C.F.R. § 1001.952(j), all as may be amended, modified, or replaced 

from time to time; and the Parties believe that the relationship contemplated by this Deferred Equipment 

Agreement is in compliance with those requirements. 

2 Term. 

2.1 Term. The term of this Deferred Equipment Agreement shall be sixty (60) months inclusive of the 

period of time for installation (“Term”), starting from the Effective Date 

2.2 Annual Periods. The Term shall be divided into five (5) Annual Periods from the Effective Date, and 

each subsequent Annual Period consists of twelve (12) months. 

3 Service, Installation and Training. 

3.1 Initial Installation and Training. Since the breakthrough technology afforded by Masimo delivers an 

unparalleled solution as compared to conventional pulse oximetry, Masimo provides training with initial 

installation. 

3.2 Schedule. Customer and Masimo shall use commercially reasonable efforts to develop a schedule that 

allows Masimo to install the Equipment and train Customer’s personnel within the Installation Period. In the event 

Customer requests that installation and training occurs beyond the Installation Period, Customer’s Annual 

Minimum Sensor Commitment shall remain in effect pursuant to the Deferred Equipment Agreement Term.  In the 

event that installation and training occurs beyond the Installation Period as a result of a Masimo breach of this 

Deferred Equipment Agreement or where Masimo is the cause of any delay, then the Annual Minimum Sensor 

Commitment shall not apply for the amount of time of such delay. 

3.3 Delays. The Term of this Deferred Equipment Agreement shall not be extended for Customer 

delays. Customer shall be obligated to obtain their first year’s Annual Minimum Sensor Commitment within the 

first Annual Period. 

3.4 Post-Installation Support. If Customer experiences difficulty using the Equipment or Sensors, 

Customer should call Masimo’s telephone support number, which is located on Masimo’s website at 

http://www.masimo.com. Telephone support is provided to Customer twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days 

per week.  

4 Purchase Orders. 

4.1 Initial Order. Customer shall issue a no charge Purchase Order for the Equipment and in Schedule 

A, Section A1.2 and a Purchase Order for Sensors and Device Services in Schedule A, Sections A1.3 and A1.4 within 

five (5) business days after the Effective Date. 

4.2 Subsequent Orders. Customer shall order Products by submitting a Purchase Order to Masimo 

referencing this Deferred Equipment Agreement. Subsequent Sensor and Device Services requirements shall be 

ordered by Customer issuing Purchase Orders to Masimo. 

4.3 Itemization. Each Purchase Order shall set forth the model numbers and description of the 

Products, quantity, shipping instructions, unit and total price, Purchase Order number, delivery date, and 

shipping location. 

4.4 Errors in Purchase Order.  If an error is made in a Purchase Order, then Customer shall correct same 

at the request of Vendor.   

4.5 No Supplemental Terms. No terms in any Purchase Order shall amend or supplement the terms 

of this Deferred Equipment Agreement. 

Page 98 of 349 

http://www.masimo.com/


Confidential Page 3 of 24 2/10/2025 3:55 PM 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

5 Shipment and Risk of Loss. 

5.1 Shipping. Shipment and Risk of Loss of the Products under this Deferred Equipment Agreement is 

FOB Origin, freight prepaid and add, in accordance with the most recent version of INCOTERMS ®. 

6 Payment. 

6.1 Timing. Payment terms are net thirty (30) calendar days from receipt date based on Customer 

meeting Masimo credit requirements. The parties agree, repeated late payments (i.e., 2 or more consecutive 

payments beyond N30 days) by Customer shall be considered a material breach of this Deferred Equipment 

Agreement. In consequence, Masimo shall have the right to (i) demand payment in advance, (ii) suspend full or partial 

performance, or (iii) seek any other remedies available at law. 

6.2 Payments. All payments required by this Deferred Equipment Agreement are stated and shall be 

made in United States dollars. Payments shall be sent to Masimo at the return address printed on Masimo’s invoice, 

and shall be deemed made only upon receipt by Masimo at that address. 

6.3 Credits. Amounts owed to Customer due to rejections or delays of Products, or discrepancies on 

paid invoices shall be fully credited against future invoices payable by Customer. In the event Customer does 

not have any Products on order, upon Customer request Masimo shall refund Customer any amounts overcharged 

by Masimo. 

6.4 Taxes. Customer shall pay all sales, use, property, excise, or similar taxes, except on Masimo's 

income, levied upon the sale, use, or ownership of the Products. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Customer has 

provided Masimo with a valid tax certificate (“Tax Exemption Certificate”) attesting to its tax exempt status. Masimo 

agrees to honor the valid Tax Exemption Certificate provided by Customer and shall not charge Customer, nor shall 

Customer be liable for taxes for which Customer is exempt pursuant to its Tax Exemption Certificate.  

7 Nondisclosure. 

7.1 Confidentiality. Neither party shall, without the other party’s prior written approval, disclose any 

terms of this Deferred Equipment Agreement, including pricing, except (i) as required by law or as part of an 

authorized press release upon prior written approval of Customer and Masimo, and (ii) that Masimo may list 

Customer as a customer upon the prior written approval of Customer. 

7.2 Press Release. Either party may issue a press release announcing the existence and general content 

of this Deferred Equipment Agreement and the reasons the Customer has chosen Masimo, provided that the 

issuing party receives written approval from the other party in advance of its publication. Written approval for such 

press release will not be unreasonably withheld. 

8 Termination. 

8.1 Termination. There is no termination for convenience permitted under this Deferred Equipment 

Agreement for its Term by either party. In the event Customer is no longer a member of HealthTrust, this Deferred 

Equipment Agreement shall not be renewed upon the completion of all its obligations by Customer including the 

Annual Minimum Sensor Commitment for the Term. 

8.2 Budget Act and Fiscal Fund Out. In accordance with the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS 354.626), the 

financial obligations under the Deferred Equipment Agreement between the parties shall not exceed those monies 

appropriated and approved by Customer for the then current fiscal year under the Local Government Budget 

Act.  This Deferred Equipment Agreement shall terminate and Customer's obligations under it shall be extinguished 

at the end of any of Customer's fiscal years in which Customer’s governing body fails to appropriate monies for the 

ensuing fiscal year sufficient for the payment of all amounts which could then become due under the Deferred 

Equipment Agreement.  Customer agrees that this Section shall not be utilized as a subterfuge or in a discriminatory 

fashion as it relates to the Deferred Equipment Agreement.   In the event this Section is invoked, the Deferred 

Equipment Agreement will expire on the 30th day of June of the then current fiscal year.  Termination under this 

Section shall not relieve Customer of its obligations incurred through the 30th day of June of the fiscal year for which 

monies were appropriated. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Customer agrees to make best efforts to obtain funding 

to fulfill its obligations under this Deferred Equipment Agreement and to submit funding requests each year for fiscal 

Page 99 of 349 



Confidential Page 4 of 24 2/10/2025 3:55 PM 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

years two through Deferred Equipment Agreement termination for the allocation of funds sufficient to meet its 

requirements under this Deferred Equipment Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision herein, if and to the 

extent the obligations of this Deferred Equipment Agreement, either in its initial term or in any subsequently 

renewed term, should continue into the Customer's subsequent fiscal years following that fiscal year when this 

Deferred Equipment Agreement was executed and funds are not appropriated or budgeted for completion of this 

Deferred Equipment Agreement,  Customer upon: i) thirty days written notice to Masimo, ii) the provision to 

Masimo of evidence of such non-appropriation, iii) the return to Masimo of any Masimo Equipment provided under 

this Deferred Equipment Agreement, at Customer’s cost, and iv) payment for Sensor purchase commitments, fees 

and charges incurred up to the termination date, may terminate this Deferred Equipment Agreement without penalty 

and shall have no further obligation or liabilities hereunder. 

8.3 Material Breach. In the event of a breach of a material obligation of this Deferred Equipment 

Agreement by either party, the other party will provide written notice including all supporting documentation of 

the breach. If the breach is not cured within thirty (30) days of receipt of such notice, the notifying party shall be 

entitled, in addition to all other remedies available to such party, to terminate this Deferred Equipment Agreement 

for cause and without penalty by providing written notice in accordance with this Deferred Equipment Agreement. 

8.4 Effect. Termination of this Deferred Equipment Agreement for material breach shall be without 

prejudice to all accrued rights and remedies the parties may have, and shall not affect any continuing rights and 

obligations the parties may have under this Deferred Equipment Agreement. All payments made before the 

date of termination for Products shipped or Services performed are non-refundable. Customer shall pay any 

outstanding balances due Masimo for services performed or products delivered prior to termination, except for those, 

if any that are related to Masimo’s breach.  

 

9 General. 

9.1 Written Notice. All notices, requests, demands, instructions, documents and other communications 

to be given hereunder by either party to the other shall be in writing, shall be sent to the address set forth in the 

opening paragraph of this Deferred Equipment Agreement and shall be deemed to be duly given upon the earliest 

of (I) hand delivery, (ii) the first business day after sending by reputable overnight delivery service for next-day 

delivery, or (iii) the date actually received by the other party. Such notice shall be sent to the attention of a party’s 

Legal Department. 

9.2 Headings. Clause or section headings are inserted for convenience of reference only and have no 

legal effect. 

9.3 Severability. Any failure by any party hereto to enforce at any time any term or condition under 

this Deferred Equipment Agreement shall not be considered a waiver of that party’s right thereafter to enforce 

each and every item and condition of this Deferred Equipment Agreement. If any provision of these Terms and 

Conditions is found to be unenforceable, it will not affect the validity of the remainder of this Deferred Equipment 

Agreement, which shall remain valid and enforceable according to the terms hereof. 

9.4 Applicable Law. This contract shall be governed and construed according to the substantive laws of the 

state in which such Customer is located, without regard to its principles of conflict of laws.  

9.5 Force Majeure.  The Parties obligations under this Deferred Equipment Agreement will be excused if 

and to the extent any delay or failure to perform such obligations is due to acts of war, terrorism or nature, including 

hurricanes, tornados, floods, and earthquakes, provided the effects of such act or event would not have been 

substantially mitigated by implementation of a business continuity and disaster recovery plan (“Force Majeure Event”).  

A Party affected by a Force Majeure Event will notify the other Party, within forty-eight (48) hours of the Force 

Majeure Event, explaining the nature and expected duration thereof and such Party shall use all efforts to remedy or 

mitigate such Force Majeure Event and the effects thereof.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Vendor is unable to 

perform any of its obligations under this Deferred Equipment Agreement for a period of more than thirty (30) calendar 

days as a result of a Force Majeure Event, then Customer may terminate this Deferred Equipment Agreement upon 

written notice to the Vendor or may change the award without modifying the contract pricing.  

Page 100 of 349 



Confidential Page 5 of 24 2/10/2025 3:55 PM 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

9.6 Assignment. Neither party may assign its rights or delegate its duties under this Deferred Equipment 

Agreement either in whole or in part without the written consent of the other party, except as part of a corporate 

reorganization, consolidation, merger or sales of substantially all assets to which this Deferred Equipment 

Agreement relates. Any attempted assignment or delegation without such consent shall be void. This Deferred 

Equipment Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of each party’s successors and permitted assigns. 

Notwithstanding anything else herein to the contrary, some or all of Masimo’s rights under this Deferred Equipment 

Agreement may be assigned to a third party for purposes of financing, an affiliate or a successor in interest resulting 

from a merger or acquisition.  

9.7 Counterparts. This Deferred Equipment Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, 

each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument 

and any such counterparts may be delivered by facsimile or other electronic means. 

9.8 Amendment.  Amendments to this Deferred Equipment Agreement or any instrument that would 

attempt to modify any provision of this Deferred Equipment Agreement may only be made via a written instrument 

signed by Masimo and by Customer and only by an executive who would have the authority to sign this Deferred 

Equipment Agreement.  

9.9 Authority. Masimo and Customer each represent to the other that each has full and complete power 

and authority to execute this Deferred Equipment Agreement and that this Deferred Equipment Agreement 

constitutes a valid and binding obligation of Masimo and Customer, respectively, enforceable in accordance with its 

terms. 

9.10 Entire Understanding. This Deferred Equipment Agreement and   the Purchasing Agreement, contain 

the entire understanding between Masimo and Customer, and supersedes all prior understandings, written or oral, 

regarding the subject of this Deferred Equipment Agreement. 

This Deferred Equipment Agreement contains its attached schedules and exhibits, specifically, the following: 

• Schedule A (“Deferred Equipment Plan”),

• Schedule B (“Standard Terms and Conditions”),

• Schedule C (“Additional Terms”), and

• Schedule D (“Masimo Systems Installation Services Addendum”).

AGREEMENT VALIDITY DATE:  THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS DEFERRED EQUIPMENT 

AGREEMENT ARE VALID IF EXECUTED BY CUSTOMER AND THIS DEFERRED EQUIPMENT AGREEMENT IS 

RECEIVED BY MASIMO ON OR BEFORE MARCH 21, 2025. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the authorized representatives of the parties represent that they have read this Deferred 

Equipment Agreement, understand it and agree to be bound by it without exception by executing it below: 

University Medical Center of Southern 

Nevada 

Masimo Americas, Inc. 

By: By: 

Print: Print: 

Title: Title: 

Date: Date: 

Matthew Anacone

President, Sales Americas

February 12, 2025

Page 101 of 349 



Confidential Page 6 of 24 2/10/2025 3:55 PM 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

Schedule A 

Deferred Equipment Plan 

A1 Customer Facilities and Equipment. 

A1.1 Customer Facilities. This plan applies to the following Customer Facilities: 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

1800 W. Charleston Blvd. 

Las Vegas, NV  89102 

 

A1.2 Equipment. Masimo agrees to provide the use of the following Equipment and accessories to Customer 

at no upfront cost during the Term of this Deferred Equipment Agreement: 

 
*Annual value of use of Equipment and services may be adjusted upon a change in quantity of Equipment placed pursuant 

to this Deferred Equipment Agreement via a mutually agreed upon amendment. 

‡ See Schedule C, Section C1.7 for details on Masimo Systems Components. 

 

 

 

 
[This space is intentionally blank.] 

 

 

Masimo   

Part #
Description  Unit Price Qty

 Extended 

Price 

9500 Radical-7 Touch Screen Handheld 1,900.00$        136 258,400.00$           

9695
Root Monitor-Docking Station with Noninvasive Blood Pressure and 

Temperature
2,500.00$        136 340,000.00$           

9921 NomoLine ISA CO2 1,200.00$        30 36,000.00$             

9095 ‡

SafetyNet System comprised of SafetyNet Components and 

Installation/Training (estimate only and subject to change pending site 

survey)

264,452.00$    1 264,452.00$           

4256 RD rainbow SET M20-05, Patient Cable, 5ft 140.00$          56 7,840.00$               

4257 RD rainbow SET M20-12, Patient Cable, 12ft 160.00$          76 12,160.00$             

4081 RD SET MD14 - 12 144.00$          100 14,400.00$             

4083 RD SET MP - 12 180.00$          253 45,540.00$             

4085 RD SET GE - 12 160.00$          91 14,560.00$             

4090 RD to M-LNC Adapter Cable 24.00$            39 936.00$                 

4050 RD SET DCI Adult Reusable Finger Sensor 115.00$          260 29,900.00$             

4051 RD SET DCIP Pediatric Reusable Finger Sensor 134.00$          85 11,390.00$             

300238 Root Roll Stand with Quick Connect 420.00$          91 38,220.00$             

19608 8" M Series Pivot Arm Kit 290.00$          45 13,050.00$             

19616 Root Mounting Plate 40.00$            98 3,920.00$               

301690 Root Wall Mount Scanner Single Holster 130.00$          98 12,740.00$             

2350 Radical-7 Color Handheld Lock 12.00$            136 1,632.00$               

2351 Radical-7 Color Handheld Lock Key 25.00$            5 125.00$                 

Total Equipment: 1,105,265.00$    

Installation and Training 300.00$          878 Included

FMV Fair Market Value of Equipment provided under Contract #21US1761 338,653.50$    1 338,653.50$           

3408 Sensor Collection Services (2 pick-ups per month) 620.00$          60 37,200.00$             

TOTAL VALUE 1,481,118.50$ 

Page 102 of 349 



Confidential Page 7 of 24 2/10/2025 3:55 PM 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

A1.3 Annual Minimum Sensor Commitment. Customer agrees to the following Annual Minimum Sensor 

Commitment in dollars during the Term of this Deferred Equipment Agreement. 

 
* See Section A3 for details on Recycled Adhesive Sensors. 

± Product not eligible for recycling. 

 

A1.4 Annual Device Service Payments.   Customer agrees to submit purchase orders to Masimo for the amounts 

listed in the following table for Annual Device Services.  Annual purchase orders for Device Services will then be 

due to Masimo on the anniversary of the Deferred Equipment Agreement Effective Date for the remaining Term of 

the Deferred Equipment Agreement. 

 

Part 

Number
Model

Baseline 

Quantity

Sensors 

Eligible for 

Credit 

(30%)

New Unit 

Price

Eligible 

Unit 

Credit *

Annual Minimum 

Sensor 

Commitment

Maximum 

Eligible 

Recycle 

Credit

Annual Minimum 

Sensor 

Commitment 

with Recycle 

Credit

4000 RD SET ADT Adult Adhesive Sensor 115,440 40,404 7.00$         (1.50)$      808,080.00$          (60,606.00)$     747,474.00$         

4001 RD SET PDT Pediatric Adhesive Sensor 1,920 672 7.00$         (1.50)$      13,440.00$            (1,008.00)$      12,432.00$           

4002 RD SET INF Infant Adhesive Sensor 7,200 2,520 9.00$         (2.00)$      64,800.00$            (5,040.00)$      59,760.00$           

4003 RD SET NEO Neonatal Adhesive Sensor 39,840 13,944 9.00$         (2.00)$      358,560.00$          (27,888.00)$     330,672.00$         

  4016 ±
RD SET TFA-1 Adt/Ped Disposable Tranflectance 

Forehead Sensor, 3ft
0 24.00$       -$                      -$                    

  4050 ± RD SET DCI Adult Reusable Finger Sensor 365 115.00$     41,975.00$            41,975.00$           

  4051 ± RD SET DCIP Pediatric Reusable Finger Sensor 95 134.00$     12,730.00$            12,730.00$           

  4053 ± RD SET TC-I Reusable Tip Clip Sensor 125 115.00$     14,375.00$            14,375.00$           

  4059 ± LNCSII rainbow DCI-8 SpHb SC-400 19 1,800.00$  34,200.00$            34,200.00$           

  4062 ± LNCSII rainbow DCIP-8 SpHb SC-400 9 1,800.00$  16,200.00$            16,200.00$           

  3817 ± NomoLine LH Adult Nasal CO2 Cannula 0 8.00$         -$                      -$                    

  3824 ±
NomoLine LH Adult Nasal/Oral CO2 Cannula with 

O2
0 9.60$         -$                      -$                    

  4248 ± RD SedLine Sensor 4,200 14.00$       58,800.00$            58,800.00$           

  3756 ± O3 Regional Oximetry Sensor, Adult 250 45.00$       11,250.00$            11,250.00$           

  4235 ± O3 Regional Oximetry Sensor, Pediatric 250 45.00$       11,250.00$            11,250.00$           

  4384 ± O3 Regional Oximetry Sensor, Infant/Neo 2,500 47.50$       118,750.00$          118,750.00$         

  4585 ± Radius PPG Neo Sensor 0 25.00$       -$                      -$                    

  4302 ± Centroid Patient Position Tracker 12,775 45.00$       574,875.00$          574,875.00$         

  4628 ±
NomoLine LH Adult Nasal/Oral CO2 Cannula with 

O2, 4m
4,108 11.60$       47,652.80$            47,652.80$           

  4968 ±
NomoLine HH Adult Nasal/Oral CO2 Cannula with 

O2, 4m
9,600 11.28$       108,288.00$          108,288.00$         

 5213± Kit, NomoLine LH-POM Adult Medium Flow 0 13.00$       -$                      -$                    

  5214 ± Kit, NomoLine LH-POM Pediatric Medium Flow 2,100 13.00$       27,300.00$            27,300.00$           

  5215 ± Kit, NomoLine LH-POM Adult High Flow Mask 10,000 13.75$       137,500.00$          137,500.00$         

  1863 ± LNCS DC-I Adult Reusable Finger Sensor 0 125.00$     -$                      -$                    

  1864 ± LNCS DC-IP Pediatric Reusable Finger Sensor 0 140.00$     -$                      -$                    

  3858 ±
LNCS TFA-1 Adult/Pediatric SpO2 disposable 

tranflectance forehead sensor, 3ft
0 24.00$       -$                      -$                    

  4046 ± RD SET Inf Replacement Tapes 2,754 0.38$         1,046.52$              1,046.52$            

  4047 ± RD SET Neo Replacement Tapes 5,202 0.38$         1,976.76$              1,976.76$            

  2307 ± Replacement Tapes for Inf Series Sensors 0 0.39$         -$                      -$                    

  2308 ± Replacement Tapes for Neo Series Sensors 0 0.39$         -$                      -$                    

Annual Total 218,752 57,540 2,463,049.08$     (94,542.00)$  2,368,507.08$   

Year Part # Description Quantity Unit Price Extended Price

First Annual Period 114-1Y Concierge+ for Root 150 800.00$            120,000.00$            

Second Annual Period 114-1Y Concierge+ for Root 150 800.00$            120,000.00$            

Third Annual Period 114-1Y Concierge+ for Root 150 800.00$            120,000.00$            

114-1Y Concierge+ for Root 355 800.00$            284,000.00$            

114-1Y Concierge+ for Rad-97 313 250.00$            78,250.00$              

114-1Y Concierge+ for Root 355 800.00$            284,000.00$            

114-1Y Concierge+ for Rad-97 313 250.00$            78,250.00$              

Agreement Total 1,084,500.00$         

Fourth Annual Period

Fifth Annual Period

Page 103 of 349 



Confidential Page 8 of 24 2/10/2025 3:55 PM 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

A2 Sites and Product. 

A2.1 Conversion. This Deferred Equipment Agreement is based on Customer’s agreement to convert 

designated pulse oximetry sites at the Facilities to utilize Masimo Sensors and designated sites at each of the 

Facilities will use Masimo Sensors pursuant to the commitment tier in the Purchasing Agreement and the Annual 

Minimum Sensor Commitment set forth in Schedule A Section A1.3 for the Term.  

A2.2 Alternates. Masimo may, ship alternate Products that meet or exceed the specifications of the 

Products identified in Section A1.2 at no additional cost to Customer. 

A2.3 Adjustments. Customer may adjust the mix of adhesive Sensors obtained subject to the following: i) the 

Recycle Credit will not exceed the amount listed in the Maximum Eligible Recycle Credit column in Section A1.3, ii) 

the total percentage of recycled Sensors for Recycle Credit calculations will not exceed thirty-five percent (35%) 

from the quantities listed in Section A1.3, and iii) the Annual Minimum Sensor Commitment dollar amount is 

achieved. 

A2.4 Rollover. So long as Customer is buying only Masimo sensors for its pulse oximetry and Pulse CO-

Oximetry use, Customer may order up to ten percent (10%) less than the Annual Minimum Sensor Commitment 

on a cumulative basis, without penalty, provided that the Sensors not ordered are added to the following years’ 

Annual Sensor Commitment count. Upon written notification from Masimo, the Term of this Deferred Equipment 

Agreement shall be extended on a monthly basis for up to an additional twelve (12) months (“Extended Term”) in 

order for Customer to complete the aggregate Annual Minimum Sensor Commitment which includes all rollover 

Sensors. The Extended Term shall automatically terminate upon Customer’s completion of the aggregate Annual 

Minimum Sensor Commitment quantity. 

 

A3 Recycled Adhesive Sensors.  

A3.1 Pricing.  Customer may recycle used adhesive Sensors with Masimo and receive a Recycle Credit in the 

amounts listed in Section A1.3 of this Schedule. 

 

A3.2 Quantity.  Customer’s annual adhesive Sensor Recycle Credit is limited to the quantity of used adhesive 

Sensors returned by Customer by part number that Masimo determines are in suitable condition to be recycled, not 

to exceed thirty-five percent (35%) of Customer’s total annual new adhesive Sensor deliveries, and the Maximum 

Eligible Recycle Credit in any Annual Period. 

 

A3.3 Quarterly Sensor Recycling Credit.  Masimo will provide Customer all new adhesive Sensors and will provide 

a quarterly Sensor Recycle Credit based on eligible used adhesive Sensors that are returned to Masimo and in suitable 

condition to be recycled.  Masimo will then provide Customer with a credit, in approximately sixty (60) days after 

the end of each quarter, which may be used toward the purchase of additional Products directly from Masimo at the 

prices listed in Schedule A, or at Customer’s best available price under the Purchasing Agreement.   The Recycling 

Credit will be issued in accordance with the pricing in Schedule A.  Customer’s annual Maximum Eligible Recycle 

Credit allotment is on an annual basis, beginning on the Effective Date and ending at the conclusion of each Annual 

Period for the Term of the Deferred Equipment Agreement.  Except in the event of a supply shortfall of Vendor, 

Credits not utilized within sixty (60) days after the end of an Annual Period shall not rollover to the following Annual 

Period. 

 

A3.4 Sensor Collection Service. Masimo will provide a Sensor collection service two (2) times per month to pick 

up containers filled by Customer with its used Masimo Sensors and return them to Masimo facilities for recycling at 

Masimo’s expense. 

 

 
 

 

  

Page 104 of 349 



Confidential Page 9 of 24 2/10/2025 3:55 PM 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

Schedule B 

Standard Terms and Conditions 

B1 Placement of Products.  

B1.1 Use. Customer acknowledges that Masimo has and retains title to the Products. Upon completion 

of Customer’s financial obligations under this Deferred Equipment Agreement, Customer shall be granted a non-

exclusive, nontransferable, perpetual, fully paid up, royalty-free license, for the life of the Equipment, to use the 

Equipment in conformance with the Documentation, including its instructions for use and labeling. 

B1.2 [Intentionally omitted.]  

B1.3 No Transfer.  Customer will not sell, assign, sublet, transfer, abandon, part with contract, create, 

incur, assume or suffer to exist any claim mortgage, pledge, lien, security interest or other charge or encumbrance 

of any kind upon or with respect to the Equipment or any part thereof without Masimo’s written consent; 

provided, that Customer may transfer such Equipment to an Affiliate, as defined in the Purchasing Agreement, and 

provide notice to Masimo within sixty (60) days after such transfer.   

B1.4 Filings. Masimo shall have the option to make, and require Customer to execute, any and all 

information and/or lien filings Masimo deems appropriate under the Uniform Commercial Code to perfect a security 

interest in the Equipment. 

B1.5 Risk of Loss. During the term of this Deferred Equipment Agreement, Customer shall bear the 

entire risk of loss and damage to the Equipment from any and every cause whatsoever, except from any loss or 

damage caused by Masimo and/or Masimo’s subcontractors.   Except for loss of use caused by Masimo, its employees’ 

or subcontractors’ material breach of contract that is not timely cured, no loss or damage to the Equipment (or 

any part thereof), or any failure of operation, shall impair any obligations of Customer (including, without 

limitation, payment obligations) under this Deferred Equipment Agreement, which shall continue in full force and 

effect. 

B2 Limited Use. 

B2.1 Restrictions on Use.  Customer agrees not to use unauthorized sensors or cables with the 

Equipment. Adhesive sensors are licensed for single patient use only. Customer shall not reprocess or reuse adhesive 

sensors with a different patient, unless specifically authorized by Masimo. After use of sensors designated for single 

patient use only, they must be discarded or returned to Masimo at Masimo’s expense.   

B2.2 Qualified Personnel. Customer will not permit the Equipment to be used by anyone other than 

Customer’s trained personnel. 

B2.3 No Modifications. Except for use of the interfaces provided by Masimo pursuant to Exhibit I to the 

Purchasing Agreement to transmit data from the Masimo monitors and systems to other equipment, modification or 

connection of other Equipment to the Masimo Equipment, including software, hardware and related instruments 

cannot be made without Masimo's prior written authorization, which authorization may be withheld at Masimo’s sole 

discretion.  

B2.4 [Intentionally omitted.] 

B3 Licensing. Masimo software licenses, including those for Vendor Software and Software Parameters, 

will be subject to the terms of Exhibit G to the Purchasing Agreement.  

 

B3.1 License Grant. The Sensors and Equipment contain Masimo proprietary technology and/or 

software, trade secrets and other proprietary information (collectively, "Masimo Intellectual Property"). Masimo grants 

to Customer a non-exclusive, non-transferable, license to use the Intellectual Property, Sensors and Equipment in 

conformance with the Documentation, including instructions for use and labeling and this Deferred Equipment 

Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Deferred Equipment Agreement, Masimo Intellectual 

Property, Sensors and Equipment are licensed; not sold. This Deferred Equipment Agreement does not constitute a 

Page 105 of 349 



Confidential Page 10 of 24 2/10/2025 3:55 PM 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

sale of the Masimo Intellectual Property, Sensors, Equipment, and trade secrets, any copy of the Software or any 

Intellectual Property. 

B3.2 Optional Software Parameters. Masimo offers optional Software Parameters with additional 

functionality at the term license fees mutually agreed upon by the parties. The optional Software Parameters 

contain Masimo Intellectual Property, and are licensed separately from the Software in B3.1 above. If Customer 

elects to obtain term license(s) for optional Software Parameters, Masimo shall grant to Customer (subject to 

Section 6 (Payment) of this Deferred Equipment Agreement), a non-exclusive, non-transferable, non-sub licensable, 

revocable limited term software license to use the optional Software Parameters in accordance with the terms 

and conditions of this Deferred Equipment Agreement for the term license period. Any license granted to Customer 

in this Section B3.2 is limited to use of the optional Software Parameter solely on a single Masimo oximeter. 

B3.3 Additional Software Parameter Licenses. Additional term licenses for the optional Software 

Parameters may be obtained at any time during the Term of this Deferred Equipment Agreement at the annual 

term Software Parameter license price. Such additional optional Software Parameter licenses shall become a part 

of this Deferred Equipment Agreement, subject to its licensing provisions. 

B3.4 No Modifications. Customer may not reverse engineer, copy, modify, loan, rent, lease, assign, 

transfer (except as set forth in Exhibit G to the Purchasing Agreement), or sub-license the Software or Intellectual 

Property without Masimo's prior written consent, which may be withheld at Masimo’s sole discretion; any attempt 

to do so will render the license null and void and use of the Software and Intellectual Property invalid. 

B4 Confidentiality. 

B4.1 Confidentiality Obligations. During the Term and surviving its expiration or termination, Receiving 

Party will regard and preserve as confidential and not disclose publicly or to any third party (other than their respective 

Affiliates) the Confidential Information (as defined in the Purchasing Agreement) of the other party.  Subject to Section 

B.4.2 (Permitted Uses of Confidential Information), Receiving Party agrees to use the Confidential Information of the 

Disclosing Party solely for purposes of performing its obligations under this Deferred Equipment Agreement. All 

Confidential Information shall remain the property of the Disclosing Party.   

B4.2 Permitted Uses of Confidential Information. Notwithstanding the definition of Confidential 

Information or any provision to the contrary contained in this Deferred Equipment Agreement: (i) Customer, 

Customer’s Affiliates shall have the right to use Masimo pricing information on Products and Services for its internal 

analyses (including its materials management and group purchasing organization function) and to disclose such 

information to third party consultants for performance of such analyses pursuant to a written confidentiality 

agreement; (ii) Customer shall have the right to disclose  terms and pricing  information and provide copies of the 

Deferred Equipment Agreement to third party e-commerce companies that process orders between Customer and 

Masimo subject to a written confidentiality agreement with such third party ecommerce companies; and (iii) any 

Receiving Party shall have the right to disclose information which such Receiving Party is requested or required to 

disclose by law, court order, subpoena or government agency request, provided that immediate notice of such 

request is given to the Disclosing Party (unless such notice is prohibited by law or court or government agency 

order) to provide the Disclosing Party with an opportunity to oppose such request for disclosure.  Any confidentiality 

agreement required by this Section B4.2 shall have terms that are at least as strict as those contained in Section B4.1 

(Confidentiality Obligations) and this Section B4.2. 

B4.3  Public Records. Masimo acknowledges that Customer is a public, county-owned hospital which is 

subject to the provisions of the Nevada Public Records Act, Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 239, as may be amended 

from time to time. As such, its contracts are public documents available for copying and inspection by the public to 

the extent required by applicable law. If Customer receives a demand for such disclosure, or inspection of any 

information related to this Deferred Equipment Agreement that Masimo has claimed to be confidential and 

proprietary, such as Masimo's Products, pricing, programs, services, business practices or procedures, Customer will 

immediately notify Masimo of such demand and Masimo shall immediately notify Customer of its intention to seek 

injunctive relief in a Nevada court for protective order. Any such action shall be brought by Masimo at its sole cost 

and expense. Customer shall have no liability to or through Masimo in the event the Customer is required by applicable 

law to make the aforesaid disclosures, either as a result of Masimo’s failure to have obtained injunctive relief or in the 

event Masimo declines to seek such relief..  

Page 106 of 349 



Confidential Page 11 of 24 2/10/2025 3:55 PM 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

B5 Warranty. 

B5.1 Warranty. In addition to the warranties set forth in the Purchasing Agreement, Masimo warrants 

that the Masimo Products provided will conform to the published Product specifications of Masimo at the time of 

shipment and be free from defects in materials and workmanship (collectively with the warranties in the Purchasing 

Agreement, the “Product Warranty”). Except as otherwise provided in the Purchasing Agreement, Masimo’s 

obligation under the Product Warranty, if any Masimo Products or other accessories are found upon examination 

by Masimo to be defective during the warranty period, shall be limited to repair or replacement. Masimo is not 

responsible and will charge Customer for repair, replacement, or maintenance caused by damage, neglect, misuse, 

improper operation, accident, fire, water, vandalism, unauthorized equipment attached to Masimo Product(s), or 

unauthorized modification of Masimo Products or Software.  Except as expressly noted herein and in the Purchasing 

Agreement, all remedies for breach of this Deferred Equipment Agreement are exclusive and in lieu of all other 

representations and warranties, oral or written, express or implied. 

B5.2 Standard Warranty Duration. For Equipment, the duration of the warranty shall be one (1) year 

from the date of installation, not to exceed fourteen (14) months after Customer’s acceptance of shipment; for 

reusable Sensors, batteries and other accessories, the duration of the warranty is six (6) months from the date of first 

use, not to exceed eight (8) months after Customer’s acceptance of shipment; and disposable Sensors are warranted 

for single-patient use prior to their expiration, within six (6) months after Customer’s acceptance of shipment.  

B5.3 Exclusions. This warranty does not apply or extend to any Product (i) damaged, neglected, 

misused or improperly operated by Customer; (ii) modified, disassembled, or reassembled by Customer; (iii) used 

with supplies or devices external to the Products or not manufactured by Masimo; (iv) used with sensors or other 

accessories other than those manufactured and distributed by Masimo; (v) put to a use or used in environments for 

which they are not intended; and (vi) where the Software has been damaged, modified by anyone other than 

Masimo or without the express written authorization of Masimo, or used contrary to Masimo’s instructions. 

Masimo’s warranty does not extend to any equipment or software not manufactured by Masimo. For equipment 

manufactured by third-parties, Masimo will pass on to Customer all terms and rights provided by the manufacturer.  

EXCEPT FOR THE ADDITIONAL WARRANTIES IN SECTION 9 OF THE PURCHASING AGREEMENT,  

THE FOREGOING WARRANTY IS IN LIEU OF AND EXCLUDES ALL OTHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED 

WARRANTIES, ARISING BY OPERATION OF LAW OR OTHERWISE, AND NO OTHER WARRANTIES 

EXIST, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR 

FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 

B6 Limitation of Liability. 

EACH OF MASIMO AND CUSTOMER SHALL NOT BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER FOR THE OTHER’S SPECIAL, 

CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE, INCIDENTAL OR INDIRECT DAMAGES, HOWEVER CAUSED, ON ANY 

THEORY OF LIABILITY, AND WHETHER OR NOT THEY HAVE BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH 

DAMAGES, EXCEPT: (I) AS MAY ARISE FROM MASIMO’S OR CUSTOMER’S GROSS NEGLIGENCE, WILLFUL 

MISCONDUCT, FRAUD OR VIOLATION OF APPLICABLE LAW; (II) AS MAY ARISE FROM  MASIMO’S OR 

CUSTOMER’S BREACH OF SECTION B4 OF THIS DEFERRED EQUIPMENT AGREEMENT AND SECTION 11 

OF THE PURCHASING AGREEMENT (CONFIDENTIALITY); OR (III) OBLIGATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 

10 OF THE PURCHASING AGREEMENT (INDEMNITY). 

  

B7 [Intentionally Omitted.]   

  

B8 Masimo Products.  Masimo Products supplied under this Deferred Equipment Agreement may, at Masimo’s 

discretion, be either new manufactured Products or refurbished Products or a mix of Products, provided that all 

Products supplied by Masimo will meet their published performance specifications. All Products are supplied with the 

Standard Warranty period described in Section B5.2. Customer will give Masimo access to the Equipment only during 

normal business hours and give Customer written notice of need to access facility   for updates or special maintenance 

of Equipment if required during the Term of this Deferred Equipment Agreement. 

 

B9 EEO Compliance. If applicable, the Equal Opportunity Clauses for government contractors set 

forth in 41 C.F.R. parts 60-1.4(a), 60-250.5(a), 60-300.5(a) and 60-741.5(a), and the employee notice found at 29 

C.F.R. Part 471, Appendix A to Subpart A are hereby incorporated by this reference.  

Page 107 of 349 



Confidential Page 12 of 24 2/10/2025 3:55 PM 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

Schedule C  

Additional Terms 

 

C1 Masimo Systems Network   

C1.1 Customer Network Requirements.  

C1.1.a. Customer’s information technology networks must meet the following minimum network 

performance requirements: 

• Network Availability   greater than 99.9% 

• Hardwired Latency   less than 30 ms 

• Wireless Latency     less than 100 ms 

• Packet Loss    less than 2% 

• Primary Access Point Signal Strength equal to or greater than -67dBm 

• Secondary Access Point Signal Strength equal to or greater than -72dBm 

• Wireless Security    minimum of WPA-PSK 

C1.1.a. Additional network requirements for the installation of Masimo Systems are set forth in the 

Masimo Systems Network Configuration Questionnaire, available upon request.    

C1.1.b.  Customer’s failure to meet the minimum network performance requirements listed above 

and included in the Masimo Systems Network Configuration Questionnaire may result in 

additional installation time.  Additional installation time is not included or funded in this 

Deferred Equipment Agreement and shall be billed to Customer at the rate of $350 per bed 

or a minimum of $5,000 with associated travel and lodging expenses.   

C1.2 VPN Connection.  A virtual private network (VPN) connection to each Masimo Systems Medical 

Appliance is required so that Masimo can provide warranty service and support.  Customer will provide 

a VPN connection for each Masimo Systems Medical Appliance.  Masimo may not access, transmit, copy 

or use any data from the Masimo Systems Medical Appliance except as is necessary to provide Product 

enhancements, warranty service, support and the development of new algorithms and products.  

Masimo may access, copy and use any de- identified data from the Masimo Systems Medical Appliance 

provided Masimo complies with applicable HIPAA requirements.  

C1.3 Host Device Requirements.  In order to use SafetyNet as a virtual machine, Customer's virtual 

infrastructure must be running VMware V5.x or V6.x and meet the following hardware requirements: 

• CPU                                                Minimum Quad-Core Intel Xeon 2.0 GHz 

• Memory                                           Minimum 8 GB RAM 

• Storage                                            Minimum 512 GB HDD storage array 

• Input/Output Connection                   One available physical USB port 

C1.4 Additional Charges.   

C1.4.a. If Customer will be utilizing a wireless network, then an additional charge of $150 per bed 

shall apply.  If Customer is providing a hardwired network, Customer is responsible for 

providing all cable routing and termination in conformance to standards, adequate number 

of switch / router ports to support all available bedsides where beside Masimo Devices may 

be connected, cabling drops and termination to all devices specified in this Deferred 

Equipment Agreement, and adequate physical space, ventilation, and emergency power for 

the Masimo Systems server.  

C1.4.b. Unless otherwise stated, the pricing provided in this Deferred Equipment Agreement is 

based on interior wall construction of sheetrock over steel studs without any special Radio 

Frequency (RF) shielding in any walls at Masimo Systems placement.  Additional installation 

time related to additional wireless components and installation services necessary to address 

unforeseen issues associated with wireless network coverage, operation, or reliability due 

to Customer’s layout or construction is not included or funded in this Deferred Equipment 

Agreement and shall be billed to Customer at the rate of $350 per bed or a minimum of 

$5,000 with associated travel and lodging expenses.    

C1.4.c.  Customer’s Information Technology department will provide to Masimo, in a timely 

manner, all necessary network configuration data and assistance required to make the 

Masimo Systems functional.  Customer agrees that it will designate an appropriate IT liaison 

and provide Masimo with the IT liaison’s name and contact information within ten (10) days 

of the Effective Date of this Deferred Equipment Agreement.  Masimo will send the 

Page 108 of 349 



Confidential Page 13 of 24 2/10/2025 3:55 PM 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

designated IT liaison the Masimo Systems Infrastructure Configuration Questionnaire to 

complete and return to Masimo within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Questionnaire.  

Customer agrees that the IT liaison will provide technical assistance and coordination 

necessary for the Masimo Systems installation.  Additional installation time required to 

address changes made to the network configuration which are not communicated in advance 

to Masimo are not included or funded in this Deferred Equipment Agreement and shall be 

billed to  Customer at the rate of $350 per bed or a minimum of $5,000 with associated 

travel and lodging expenses. 

C1.4.d. (Applicable to SafetyNet Systems) Customer may elect to deploy their own End-User 

Notification Solution in conjunction with SafetyNet.  In this configuration, an End-User 

notification solution (“Notification System”) would include a Notification Gateway and a 

Notification Device.  The term “Notification Gateway” means a user-provided 

communication interface, such as a paging transmitter, that receives SafetyNet alarms and 

alerts notification messages (collectively, “Notification(s)”) and delivers them to 

Notification Devices; and “Notification Device(s)” means a device, such as a pager, that 

delivers the Notification to the End-User clinician.  “End-User” means the hospital or other 

facilities where SafetyNet is installed. 

C1.4.e. (Applicable to SafetyNet Systems) Under these circumstances, SafetyNet is responsible for 

sending Notifications to the End-User Notification System.  ONCE A NOTIFICATION HAS 

BEEN APPROPRIATELY SENT BY SAFETYNET, PER MASIMO’S NETWORK 

SPECIFICATIONS, TO THE CUSTOMERS NOTIFICATION SYSTEM, THE CUSTOMER IS 

RESPONSIBLE FOR, AND MASIMO CANNOT BE HELD LIABLE FOR, ANY FAILURE OF 

CUSTOMER’S NOTIFICATION SYSTEM TO RECEIVE AND TRANSMIT THAT 

NOTIFICATION TO THE END-USER. 

C1.5 Installation.  The installation schedule for the Masimo Systems shall have no effect on Section 3 of this 

Deferred Equipment Agreement.   

C1.6 Remote Support and Hardware Replacement Warranty.  Masimo will provide remote support and 

hardware replacement warranty for twelve (12) months from date of installation, not to exceed 

fourteen (14) months from the date of Masimo Systems delivery. 

C1.7 Masimo Systems Components. The Masimo Systems provided under Schedule A of this Deferred 

Equipment Agreement are comprised of the following components: 

 
* Included with Concierge+.  Customer shall submit a separate Purchase Order for Concierge+. 

C2 Masimo Centroid Sensor Clinical Performance Determination.  After the installation of the Masimo 

Centroid patient positioning sensor (“Centroid Sensor”), the Customer may assess its clinical efficacy and 

overall impact on patient care. If Customer reasonably determines, in good-faith, based on clinical supporting 

data or professional medical judgment, that the Centroid Sensor does not provide a clinically significant 

improvement in patient care, Customer shall provide written notice to Masimo of its decision to remove the 

Masimo 

Part #
Description Unit Price Qty

Extended 

Price

15769 Cables To Go Patch Cable - 14ft (Blue) 30.00$                10 300.00$               

9937 Iris Device Management System 7,000.00$           1 Included *

27846 SafetyNet Virtual Machine (production) -$                   1 Included

28814 Digital License Manager Virtual Appliance, USB -$                   1 Included

25107
SafetyNet Management Console with Software V5000 

(Touchscreen View)
11,500.00$          10 115,000.00$         

9095-LIC Patient SafetyNet Per Bed License 800.00$              136 108,800.00$         

2447 Patient SafetyNet Notification License -$                   1 Included

28028 SafetyNet Virtual Machine (Test Environment) -$                   1 Included

25842 Patient SafetyNet Test view Station - V5000 Series 2,000.00$           1 2,000.00$            

101138 USB 1D/2D Barcode Reader 282.00$              136 38,352.00$           

2456 Masimo Systems Installation Services 350.00$              136 Included *

2457 Masimo Performance Assessment 150.00$              136 Included *

Total SafetyNet Components: 264,452.00$     

Page 109 of 349 



Confidential Page 14 of 24 2/10/2025 3:55 PM 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

Centroid Sensor in writing, and within thirty (30) days of such notice, the parties shall amend the Deferred 

Equipment Agreement in a financially proportionate manner to remove the Centroid Sensor from the 

Agreement. 

 

C3 Replacement Tapes.  Customer agrees to obtain replacement tapes directly from Masimo. 

 

C4 Annual Business Review.  The parties agree to meet on annual basis to review both parties compliance with 

this Deferred Equipment Agreement. 

 

C5 Distributors.  

C5.1 Application to Commitment.  Sensors obtained by Customer as a result of an Intermediary (a 

Distributor, IDN or GPO affiliation), that are not included in this Deferred Equipment Agreement do 

not apply towards Customer’s Annual Minimum Sensor Commitment. 

C5.2 Price Differential. Should an Intermediary elect to provide the Sensors at lower or higher prices to 

Customer than listed herein, such shall be agreed upon between the Intermediary and Customer. 

Masimo shall have no obligation to rebate Customer or the Intermediary for any price differences other 

than to the Intermediary for the price negotiated between Customer and Masimo for the Sensors listed 

herein. 

C5.3 Distributor Option. Customer shall have the option to utilize a Distributor to order and receive Masimo 

Sensors per the terms of this Deferred Equipment Agreement for distribution of Sensors ordered per 

this Deferred Equipment Agreement to Customer Facilities. Customer’s Annual Minimum Sensor 

Commitment can be fulfilled in such manner under this paragraph’s additional conditions. Should 

Customer select this option, then: 

• Section 6 (“Payment”) shall be amended as follows: Masimo agrees to provide Sensors to the 

Masimo-approved Distributor at the same prices listed herein. 

• Section 4 (“Purchase Orders”) shall be amended as follows: Ordering process, price, and terms 

determined between Customer and Distributor shall not amend or supplement the terms of the 

Purchasing Agreement or this Deferred Equipment Agreement.  

 

C6 Masimo Service. Masimo Service is required with Masimo Systems for a minimum service period of three (3) 

years.  This Service consists of Masimo Device Service, Masimo Support Service, and/or Masimo Systems Service.  

Customer agrees to submit a Purchase Order for either A La Carte or Concierge+: 

 Service offerings: 

 A La Carte Concierge+ 

Masimo Device Service 
Purchased per device using 

part number 118-XY 
Included 

Masimo Support Service 
Purchased per hour using 

part number 3097 
Included 

Masimo Systems Service   

Iris Service 
Purchased per connected  

bed using part number 102-XY 
Included 

SafetyNet Service 
Purchased per connected  

bed using part number 119-XY 
Included 

UniView Service 
Purchased per device using 

part number 120-XY 
Included 

Replica Service 
Purchased per connected  

bed using part number 112-XY 
Included 

 

C6.1 Masimo Device Service.  Masimo Device Service is applicable to point-of-care medical devices 

manufactured and sold by Masimo and listed in the Purchasing Agreement and this Deferred Equipment 

Agreement (and utilized in conjunction with a Masimo System), including Root®, Radical-7®, Radius-

7®, and Rad-97.  Masimo Device Service provides the following coverage: 

• workmanship repair, 

• battery replacement once every three years, 

Page 110 of 349 



Confidential Page 15 of 24 2/10/2025 3:55 PM 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

• accidental damage (damage considered abuse is not covered), 

• unintentional fluid intrusion, 

• performance verification once every three years, 

• stolen device replacement upon presentation of police report, 

• hardware repair or replacement, 

• and hot spare (delivered next business day or best effort). 

 

C6.2 Masimo Support Service.  Masimo provides remote and on-site support for Masimo Device and Masimo 

Systems. 

C6.2.a. Telephone assistance. Masimo will provide telephone assistance 24 hours per day, 7 days per 

week 365 days per year. Customer may contact Masimo’s Technical Services at (800-326-

4890 Opt. #2). Calls not answered immediately will normally be returned within 30 minutes 

if during normal working hours (6:00 AM to 5:00 PM US Pacific Time, Monday through 

Friday, excluding holidays observed by Masimo). Calls outside normal working hours will be 

returned within 2 hours by an on-call technician. Customer will provide the Service Contract 

ID Number assigned by Masimo, Customer’s name, facility name, and a description of the 

problem. Masimo’s Technical Services personnel shall assist Customers who have been 

trained on the Products with questions on usage, troubleshooting and diagnosing problems, 

and if necessary recovering from system failures. 

C6.2.b. Remote connectivity.  Masimo shall provide remote assistance via a remote connection to the 

Customer’s Product that is capable of remote support. With Customer’s authorization, 

Masimo’s Technical Services personnel will remotely access Customer’s Product. Customer 

is responsible for providing VPN connectivity for Masimo to provide remote assistance. 

Masimo’s Technical Services personnel may require assistance from Customer to access the 

Product in order to diagnose the problem and perform corrective action. 

C6.2.c. On-site support.  The Customer may request on-site service for: technical support, training, 

or clinical support. On-site service will be provided during normal business hours (8:00am 

to 5:00pm local time) at the Customer’s site and by mutual agreement at the time on-site 

service is requested.  

C6.3 Masimo Systems Service.  Masimo Systems Service covers Masimo Systems hardware and software. 

C6.3.a. Systems Software Support Updates.  Masimo shall release Masimo Systems software support 

Updates from time to time to provide improvements in the Masimo Systems software. 

C6.3.b. Masimo Systems Software Upgrades.  Masimo may release at no additional charge  Masimo 

Systems software Upgrades from time to time that expand the existing features of the 

Masimo Systems.  

C6.3.c. Masimo System Service Packs.  Masimo Systems may include third-party software products. 

Suppliers of such third-party software may periodically release Updates for such third-party 

software. Masimo will validate and install these Updates remotely on a periodic basis if the 

Updates are required to maintain the integrity of the Masimo Systems. 

C6.3.d. Masimo System Software Restoration.  Should the Customer’s Product require restoration of 

Masimo Systems software, Masimo will restore Masimo Systems software remotely if 

Customer’s operating environment permits. Customer is responsible for verifying that the 

hardware is operational prior to such restoration. 

C6.3.e. Hardware Repair & Replacement.  Masimo will repair or replace any hardware that fails during 

the Service Period due to workmanship at no additional charge to customer, as long as 

replacement hardware is available and subject to the exclusions set forth under this Service 

section. If Masimo determines that the Product cannot feasibly be repaired and replacement 

parts or products are not available, Masimo will configure a replacement Masimo System, 

and ship the replacement Product to the Customer. Each party, under this   section, shall 

bear its own shipping costs. On-site installation of the repaired or replaced hardware is only 

included as part of this Service. Customers are entitled to Masimo Systems replacement with 

newly released Masimo Systems hardware if current hardware does not support either 

Updates or Upgrades. 

Page 111 of 349 



Confidential Page 16 of 24 2/10/2025 3:55 PM 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

Schedule D 

Masimo Systems Installation Services Addendum  

 

The following Exhibits are attached and incorporated into this Masimo Systems Installation Services Addendum: 

 

• Exhibit A – Project Implementation Scope 

• Exhibit B – Installation Services Pricing 

• Exhibit C – Customer Locations and Contacts 

• Exhibit D – Masimo Contacts 

• Exhibit E - Definitions, in which capitalized terms used in this Addendum are defined 

 

 

D1 Services.  

D1.1 Masimo shall provide the Masimo Systems Installation Services (“Services”) in accordance with this 

Addendum and any applicable Exhibits.  Services will be performed during Business Hours except to 

the extent that Customer and Masimo mutually agree otherwise.  Customer shall pay for the Services 

and expenses pursuant to Section D6 of this Addendum and as specified in the applicable Services 

Exhibit. 

 

D2 Services Change Orders.  

D2.1 Customer may at any time notify Masimo in writing that it desires to modify an Exhibit.  If Masimo is 

willing in its sole discretion to accept such modifications, it shall promptly prepare and submit to 

Customer a Change Order to the applicable Service Exhibit proposing the terms and price under which 

such changes will be made.  If Customer accepts such Change Order, Customer shall issue a Purchase 

Order to Masimo within five (5) Business Days after the date of the Change Order.  The terms of this 

Addendum and or applicable Exhibit shall be deemed amended and shall become a part of this 

Addendum.  If Customer does not accept the Change Order in writing within five (5) Business Days, 

then the Change Order shall be of no force or effect. 

 

D3 Purchase Orders. 

D3.1 Customer may acquire Services by submitting a Purchase Order to Masimo referencing this Addendum.  

Each Purchase Order shall be issued pursuant to the applicable Exhibit(s) which details the work to be 

performed and the prices.  No Purchase Order shall be binding unless acknowledged and accepted in 

writing by Masimo. 

D3.2 No terms in any Purchase Order shall amend or supplement the terms of this Addendum. 

 

D4 Estimated Schedule. 

D4.1 Masimo shall make commercially reasonable efforts to complete the Services in accordance with the 

project schedule developed during the project kick-off meeting.  Customer acknowledges that the 

project schedule is an estimate only and that Masimo shall have no liability hereunder and shall not be 

deemed to be in breach hereof for any failure to complete the Services in accordance with the project 

schedule.  Customer further acknowledges that the schedule depends upon and assumes that Customer 

will perform all of its obligations under project schedule. 

 

D5 Work Product.  

D5.1 Masimo shall own all Work Product developed in performing the Services.  Without limiting the 

generality of the foregoing, any software or documentation included in the Work Product, including 

without limitation any Software or Documentation that are modified, enhanced or customized under 

this Addendum or any Exhibit (collectively, “Developed Software” and “New Documentation,” 

respectively) shall be deemed to be part of the Masimo Software or Documentation, as the case may 

be except that: (i) Developed Software is provided AS IS, without any warranties whatsoever, and (ii) 

Customer may not be entitled to receive any Services with respect to the Developed Software and 

shall have no rights with respect thereto under any Masimo Service Agreement 

 

 

 

Page 112 of 349 



Confidential Page 17 of 24 2/10/2025 3:55 PM 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

D6 Payment for Additional Charges Not Included in Schedule C, Section C1.7.  

D6.1 Masimo shall invoice Customer (i) upon completion of a Network Performance Summary Report 

(Masimo Systems Network Pre Installation and Installation Fee) and (ii) upon installation of the 

Products, if any additional charges are incurred.  Payment terms are net thirty (30) calendar days from 

invoice date based on Customer meeting Masimo credit requirements.  Service charges of 1½% per 

month or the maximum rate permitted by law, if lower, may be charged on past due amounts. 

D6.2 Payments.  All payments required by this Addendum are stated and shall be made in United States 

dollars.  Payment may be made only by check or by electronic funds transfer (EFT) via automated 

clearing house (ACH), or by wire transfer. Each party will provide any required banking information to 

effect payment, and bear its own bank service charges. If Payment is made by check, it shall be sent to 

Masimo at the return address printed on Masimo’s invoice, and shall be deemed made only upon receipt 

by Masimo at that address. 

 

D7 Installation Limited Warranty. ALL SERVICES ARE PROVIDED AS IS.  MASIMO MAKES NO 

WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES 

OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE WITH REGARD TO THE SERVICES 

PERFORMED HEREUNDER. 
 

 

 

Page 113 of 349 



Confidential Page 18 of 24 2/10/2025 3:55 PM 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

Exhibit A 

Project Implementation – Scope of Work 

1) Site Survey – Masimo Systems Network Pre Installation and Installation Fee (Planning and 

System Configuration Architecture). 

 

2) Project Implementation – Scope. 

a) The scope of work (“SOW”) of this engagement provides Installation Services (“Services”) by Masimo to 

implement a Masimo Systems (“Masimo Systems”) at the Customer site.  Activities associated with this 

implementation project will be conducted both at Customer’s data center and remotely via VPN (or 

equivalent).   

 

3) Project Kickoff. 

a) During the Project Kickoff Phase: 

i) Masimo and Customer are responsible for assigning project managers, or equivalent, to oversee the 

project.  The objectives of the project kick-off meeting are the following: 

(1) Define project scope 

(2) Detail project deliverables 

(3) Identify and assign key resources to complete project deliverables 

(4) Identify and assign key resources to develop a continuous patient monitoring protocol 

(5) Establish timeframes to complete project deliverables 

(6) Generate overall project plan  

(7) Agree on the Change Management Process 

 

4) Planning and System Configuration Architecture (Pre Installation). 

a) During the Planning and Architecture phase,  

i) Masimo will: 

(1) In the case where wireless networks are being used, conduct a wireless site survey. 

(2) Perform network performance testing.  This testing, to be summarized in the Network 

Performance Summary Report, involves the following: 

(a) 24 hour Ping Test that tests the network availability, network latency and packet loss 

(b) 24 hour Clinical Impact Analysis that quantifies the overall impact of network performance on 

the Masimo Systems performance. 

(c) Signal strength Heat Map 

(d) Signal-to-Noise Heat Map 

(e) Interference Heat Map 

(f) Client disconnect summary 

ii) Customer will provide Masimo: 

(1) Access to the applicable areas to be tested  

(2) Network settings for test equipment 

(3) With a scaled architectural floor plan, in a digital format (.bmp, .dib, .dwg, .dxf, .emf, .gif, .vsd, .jpg 

or .wmf), for all areas intended to provide wireless coverage for the Masimo Systems Application. 

 

b) System Configuration and Architecture Requirements 

i) The objectives of the System Configuration Requirements are for the Customer to provide the details 

for Masimo personnel to configure and test the purchased Masimo Systems components.  The Masimo 

project manager will provide a questionnaire to the Customer project manager, or equivalent, for 

completion.  It is the responsibility of the Customer to complete the applicable sections of the 

questionnaire.  Completion of this document is required for Masimo to configure and test the applicable 

system components prior to shipping. 

ii) Information technology networks provided by Customer must meet the following minimum network 

performance requirements: 

(1) Wireless Networks 

(a) Network Availability: greater than or equal to 99.9% 

(b) Packet Loss: less than 2% 

(c) Wireless Latency: less than 100ms (stationary use) 

Page 114 of 349 



Confidential Page 19 of 24 2/10/2025 3:55 PM 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

(d) IEEE 802.11a Access Point Overlap; or 

(i) Greater than 20% Access Point overlap 

(ii) Greater than -67 db signal strength at Access Point Peripheral 

(iii) Greater than 20 db Signal-to-Noise ratio 

(iv) Recommended 20 db channel separation to minimize co-channel interference 

(v) Security: minimum WPA-PSK 

(e) IEEE 802.11b/g Access Point Overlap:  

(i) Greater than 15% Access Point overlap 

(ii) Greater than -67 db signal strength at Access Point Peripheral 

(iii) Greater than 20 db Signal-to-Noise ratio 

(iv) Recommended 20 db channel separation to minimize co-channel interference 

(v) Security: minimum WPA-PSK 

(2) Hardwired Networks 

(a) Hardwired Latency: less than 30 ms 

(i) Network Availability: greater than or equal to 99.9% 

(ii) Packet Loss: less than 2% 

 

5) Customer’s Responsibilities. 

a) General. 

i) Customer shall make available in a timely manner at no charge to Masimo all technical data, computer 

facilities, programs, files, documentation, test data, sample output and suitable office accommodations 

required by Masimo for the performance of the Services.  Customer will be responsible for and assumes 

the risk of any problems resulting from the content, accuracy, completeness and consistency of all such 

data, materials and information supplied by Customer.  Customer shall be responsible for the use of the 

Product and for assuring that the Masimo Systems Medical Appliance and Software are appropriate to 

achieve Customer's intended results. 

ii) Provide access to facilities, systems, personnel and respond to all requests for information required to 

complete installation 

iii) Configuring a VPN account(s) for Masimo to minimally access the applicable Masimo Systems which 

may include the Medical Appliance, Masimo Systems Views, Masimo Notification System, and Masimo 

wired and wireless bridge clients, and to push and pull files.  Masimo is responsible for testing the VPN 

access to ensure functionality. 

iv) Provide a virtual private network (VPN) connection to each Masimo Systems Medical Appliance is 

required.  Customer will provide a VPN connection for each Masimo Systems Medical Appliance.  

Masimo may not access, transmit, copy or use any data from the Masimo Systems Medical Appliance 

except as is necessary to provide Product enhancements, warranty service, support and the 

development of new algorithms and products.  Masimo may access, copy and use any de- identified data 

from the Masimo Systems Medical Appliance provided Masimo complies with applicable HIPAA 

requirements. 

b) Network. 

i) Available network outlets by each bedside for bedside instruments  

ii) Power outlets at the bedside for Masimo equipment 

iii) Applicable hospital network configuration 

iv) 2-U of rack space, network access and back-up power for each Masimo Systems Medical Appliance in 

the IT Data Center 

v) Back-up power for the Masimo Systems Medical Appliance(s) 

vi) Space in the clinical area for the SafetyNet View(s), if applicable. 

vii) Network access and back-up power for the SafetyNet View, if applicable. 

viii) Space to mount the Masimo Notification System, if applicable. 

ix) Network access and back-up power for the Masimo Notification System, if applicable. 

 

c) Facility. 

i) Installation of cabling and network jacks 

ii) Mounting of bedside instrument wall mounts 

iii) Installation of the Masimo Systems Medical Appliance in the IT Data Center 

iv) Mounting of the SafetyNet Paging Transmitter, if applicable. 

Page 115 of 349 



Confidential Page 20 of 24 2/10/2025 3:55 PM 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

v) Installation of additional power outlets 

vi) Providing bedside instrument clinical settings 

 

d) Remediation Activities. 

i) Any and all remediation activities or any work beyond this SOW required to meet Masimo Systems 

minimal performance requirements are the sole responsibility of the Customer, including all costs 

incurred to complete such remediation 

(1) Masimo shall document and notify Customer of any and all deficiencies identified during this SOW. 

(2) If mutually agreed upon, Masimo will issue Customer a Change Order specifying any additional 

work required to be conducted by Masimo to assist Customer in remediation process or 

Customer has the option to use its own 3rd party contractor or consultant to implement 

remediation. 

(3) Customer shall notify Masimo when remediation is completed. 

ii) Customer will issue Masimo a Purchase Order for the remediation, if performed by Masimo, and to 

retest network to validate remediation has corrected the identified deficiency 

(a) Masimo will conduct, at its sole discretion, all or some of the Network Performance 

dependent upon the extent of remediation. 

 

e) Development of Continuous Patient Monitoring Protocol. 

i) Customer to identify and assign key resources to develop continuous patient monitoring protocol for 

those care areas for which Masimo Systems will be installed. 

ii) Customer to educate all necessary personnel on the continuous patient monitoring protocol prior to 

go-live activities. 

iii) Customer to implement the continuous patient monitoring protocol as part of go-live activities. 

iv) Go-live activities will occur only after the creation of a continuous patient monitoring protocol, and 

personnel education and protocol implementation as detailed in items ii and iii 

 

6) Installation and Acceptance. 

a) Installation shall begin upon mutual agreement:  

i) The Customer’s facility and network meet Masimo Systems Install specifications; and  

ii) Installation pricing if changes were required as a result of findings discovered in Section 3; and 

iii) Scheduling 

b) During the Installation Phase, Masimo will: 

i) Perform Masimo Systems Installation which includes: 

(1) Perform tuning and remediation as necessary 

(2) Upon completion of the Installation Services as described herein, Customer shall sign the Masimo 

Systems Installation Checklist as an acknowledgment that such services have been completed 

 

7) Out Of Scope. 

a) The following work is defined as out of scope for this project: 

i) Any and all Customer Network remediation activities 

ii) Tuning network performance 

iii) Unpacking and Racking Hardware 

 

8) Assumptions. 

a) TBD 

 
9) Additional Provisions. 

a) Change Procedure: Any changes and/or modification to this SOW must be done in writing and approved 

by both Masimo and Customer.  Changes may result in a change to the service fees associated with this 

SOW.  Should the changes result in additional time or material, Masimo will provide to Customer in writing 

an estimate cost for approval before such costs are incurred.  Change requests are to be communicated via 

the assigned project managers, or equivalent, on the Masimo and Customer side. 

Page 116 of 349 



Confidential Page 21 of 24 2/10/2025 3:55 PM 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

Exhibit B 

Installation Services Pricing 

1) Masimo Systems Network Pre Installation and Installation Fee (Planning and System 

Configuration Architecture). 

a) Pre Installation Site Survey Fee 

b) Prior to installation and final Masimo Systems pricing, Customer shall pay amounts exceeding the values in 

Schedule C, Section C1.7 for Site Surveys, when required. 

c) The Site Survey fee, when required, includes travel and expenses for a single trip and up to five (5) days of 

on-site evaluation and validation of Customers network.  For multiple floors the aforementioned is 

multiplied by the number of floors. 

d) Upon mutual agreement of Masimo’s network evaluation, Masimo Systems Price and Installation Fees shall 

be revised to reflect the correct configuration, number of days for the Masimo Systems Installation, and 

Customer’s additional costs, if any 

 

2) Installation Fee. 

a) Schedule C, Section C1.7 includes installation of the Masimo Systems at $350 per bed, or a minimum of 

$5,000, per Masimo Systems Medical Appliance (or as otherwise revised per Schedule C, Section C1.7 of 

the Deferred Equipment Agreement).  The $350 per bed, or a minimum of $5,000 fee includes travel and 

expenses and up to five days of on-site installation services.  For multiple care areas, the aforementioned is 

multiplied by the number of Masimo Systems Medical Appliances. Should Customer opt to use a wireless 

connectivity that is not captured in Schedule C, Section C1.7, a fee of $150 per bed shall apply. 

 

3) Pre Installation Site Survey and Installation Start Dates. 

a) Pre Installation Site Survey 

i) Masimo shall perform the Pre Installation Site Survey within ten (10) days after execution of this 

Deferred Equipment Agreement. 

ii) In the event that there are corrective actions required by the Customer as a result of Masimo’s 

completion of the Site Survey, Customer shall remedy said corrective actions as defined by Masimo 

with in thirty (30) days of the Site Survey completion. 

iii) Delays in remedying the corrective actions that are not mutually agreed upon may result in additional 

fees. 

 

4) Installation Services. 

a) Masimo shall perform the Installation Services according to the dates agreed upon in the Project Plan or at 

an updated date following Customer’s remedy of the corrective actions. 

 

5) Purchase Price and Payment Schedule. 

a) Additional services beyond this project can be contracted by Customer at a rate of $350 per hour plus 

travel and expenses unless otherwise agreed to by Customer. 

 

 

Page 117 of 349 



Confidential Page 22 of 24 2/10/2025 3:55 PM 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

Exhibit C 

Customer Locations and Contacts 

Primary Data Center Location: 

Customer  

Address  

City, State, Zip  

 

 

Target Data Center Location 

Customer  

Address  

City, State, Zip  

 

 

Customer Contact Information 

Project Manager 
Name  

Office Number  

Cell Number  

E-mail address  

 

 Administrator 

Name  

Office Number  

Cell Number  

E-mail address  

 

Page 118 of 349 



Confidential Page 23 of 24 2/10/2025 3:55 PM 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

Exhibit D 

Masimo Contacts 

Project Manager 

Name  

Office Number  

Cell Number  

E-mail address  

 

Installation Services Engineer 

Name  

Office Number  

Cell Number  

E-mail address  

 

Software Support Services 

Name Help Desk  

E-mail address Email: 

 

District Sales Manager 

Name  

Office Number  

Cell Number  

E-mail address  

 

Technical Sales Engineer 

Name  

Office Number  

Cell Number  

E-mail address  

 

Page 119 of 349 



Confidential Page 24 of 24 2/10/2025 3:55 PM 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

Exhibit E 

Definitions 

Term Definition 

Business Day Monday through Friday, excluding Masimo recognized holidays. 

Business Hours 9:00 am to 6:00 pm, local time (at Customer’s facility), Monday through Friday, excluding 

holidays recognized by Masimo. 

Change Order A document that describes a modification to current Service Exhibit and as applicable any 

changes to the terms, schedule and price. 

Documentation The Software and related documentation. 

Parties Masimo and Customer. 

Party Masimo or Customer. 

Premium Time Any time in excess of ten (10) hours spent by any Masimo personnel providing Services 

hereunder on any calendar day and any time worked by any Masimo personnel in providing 

Services hereunder on Saturday, Sunday or any holiday recognized by Masimo. 

Purchase Order Customer’s ordering document that commits Customer to purchase and pay for Services in 

accordance with this Addendum. 

Services The services to be performed as identified in the applicable Services Exhibit. 

Services Exhibit Any implementation plan, Services addendum, statement of work or other exhibit attached as 

of the date of this Addendum or as to which the parties shall mutually agree in writing from 

time to time during the term specified in this Addendum, which describes Services to be 

provided by Masimo to Customer. 

Standard Overtime Any time spent by Masimo personnel providing Services hereunder outside of Business Hours 

and Premium Time. 

Work Product Collectively, all inventions, discoveries, improvements and other patentable subject matter, 

writings, works and other copyrightable subject matter, trade secrets, trademarks and/or other 

data, information or matter (such as test data, test results, benchmark data and studies, know 

how and/or show how) that is created by or for Masimo or for which Masimo is otherwise 

responsible hereunder, constituting deliverables hereunder or otherwise developed by Masimo 

for Customer in the course of performing the Services or under funding of this Addendum, 

whether produced solely or jointly with others. 

 

 

Page 120 of 349 



1100 Dr. Martin Luther King Blvd    I Nashville, TN 37203    I healthtrustpg.com 

 

 

H E A LT H T R U S T ------------------ 
 
 
 
 
 

February 13, 2025 

Cole Price 
Contract Specialist 
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada  
1800 W. Charleston Blvd. 
Las Vegas, NV 89102 

 

Re: Request for competitive bidding information regarding pulse oximetry and capnography equipment 

and supplies. 

 

Dear Mr. Price: 
 

This letter is provided in response to the University Medical Center of Southern Nevada's ("UMC") request 

for information about HealthTrust Purchasing Group, L.P.'s ("HealthTrust") competitive bidding process for 

pulse oximetry and capnography equipment and supplies. We are pleased to provide this information to 

UMC in your capacity as a Participant of HealthTrust, as defined in and subject to the Participation 

Agreement between HealthTrust and UMC, effective August 3, 2016. 

 
HealthTrust's bid and award process is described in its Contracting Process Policy [HT.008] available on its 

public website {http://healthtrustpg.com/about-healthtrust/healthcare-code-of-ethics/).  As described in the 

policy, HealthTrust operates a member-driven contracting process. Advisory Boards are engaged to 

determine the clinical, technical, operational, conversion, business and other criteria important for each 

specific bid category. The boards are comprised of representatives from HealthTrust's membership who 

have appropriate experience, credentials/licensures, and decision-making authority within their respective 

health systems for the board on which they serve. 

 
HealthTrust's requirements for specific products and services are published on its Contract Schedule on its 

public website.  HealthTrust's requirements for vendors are outlined in its Supplier Criteria Policy [HT.010]. 

A listing of the minimum Supplier Criteria is also published on HealthTrust's public website, as well as an on-

line form for prospective vendor submission. 

 
The Contracting Process Policy includes criteria for the selection of contract products and services and 

documents and the procedures followed by HealthTrust's contracting team to select vendors for 

consideration. HealthTrust's Advisory Boards may provide additional requirements or other criteria that 

would be incorporated into the RFP (request for proposals) process, where appropriate. Vendor proposals 

submitted in response to RFPs are analyzed using an extensive clinical/technical review as described above, 

as well as a financial/operational review. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 121 of 349 



1100 Dr. Martin Luther King Blvd    I Nashville, TN 37203    I healthtrustpg.com 

 

 

 

 

 

H E A LT H T R U ST 
  

 
The above-described process was followed with respect to the pulse oximetry and capnography equipment and 

supplies category.  HealthTrust issued RFPs and received proposals from identified suppliers in the pulse 

oximetry and capnography equipment and supplies category. A contract was executed with Masimo and 

Covidien  in February of 2023.  I hope this satisfies your request.  Please contact me with any additional questions. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Craig Dabbs 

Account Director, Member Services 

    

Page 122 of 349 



DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS 

1 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

Business Entity Type (Please select one) 

 Sole 
Proprietorship Partnership  Limited Liability 

Company   Corporation  Trust  Non-Profit   
Organization   Other 

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply) 

 MBE  WBE  SBE  PBE  VET DVET  ESB 

Minority Business 
Enterprise 

Women-Owned 
Business 
Enterprise 

Small Business 
Enterprise 

Physically Challenged 
Business Enterprise 

Veteran Owned 
Business 

Disabled Veteran 
Owned Business 

Emerging Small 
Business 

 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed: 10  
Corporate/Business Entity Name:  Masimo Americas, Inc. 

(Include d.b.a., if applicable)  

Street Address: 52 Discovery Website: www.masimo.com 

City, State and Zip Code: 
Irvine, CA 92618 POC Name: Thomas Mitchell 

Email: tmitchell@masimo.com 

Telephone No: (949) 297-7000 Fax No: 

Nevada Local Street Address:  Website: 

City, State and Zip Code:  Local Fax No: 

Local Telephone No: 
 Local POC Name: 

Email: 

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or 
financial interest in the business entity appearing before the Board. 
 
Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with 
ownership or financial interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s). 

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations, 
close corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations. 

 

  Full Name  Title  % Owned 
(Not required for Publicly Traded 

Corporations/Non-profit organizations) 

 

      

      

      

      

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations.  Are you a publicly-traded corporation?             Yes       No 

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time 
employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not 
perform any work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.) 

 

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-
sister, grandchild, grandparent, related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.)  

 

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also understand that the University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exchanges without the completed disclosure 
form. 

 

   
 
Matthew Anacone 

 

Signature 
 

 Print Name  

 
President, Sales Americas 

   

Title  Date  
November 03, 2023

Page 123 of 349 

mailto:tmitchell@masimo.com


DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP 

2 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

 
List any disclosures below: 
(Mark N/A, if not applicable.) 
 

NAME OF BUSINESS 
OWNER/PRINCIPAL 

NAME OF UMC* 
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

AND JOB TITLE 

RELATIONSHIP TO 
 UMC* 

EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

UMC* 
EMPLOYEE’S/OFFICIAL’S 

DEPARTMENT 
 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 
* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 
“Consanguinity” is a relationship by blood.  “Affinity” is a relationship by marriage. 
 
“To the second degree of consanguinity” applies to the candidate’s first and second degree of blood relatives as 
follows: 
 

• Spouse – Registered Domestic Partners – Children – Parents – In-laws (first degree) 
 

• Brothers/Sisters – Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters – Grandchildren – Grandparents – In-laws (second degree) 
 
 

 
For UMC Use Only: 

 
If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:     
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item? 
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract? 
 
Notes/Comments: 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Signature  
 
____________________________________ 
Print Name  
Authorized Department Representative 

 
 

 

Page 124 of 349 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 26, 2025 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

8 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Funding for Agreement for Contingent Permanent Placement with 

Optimum Healthcare Solutions, LLC 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board approve and authorize the increase of funding for the 
Agreement for Contingent Permanent Placement with Optimum Healthcare Solutions, 
LLC; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number: 5420.000      Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center: 3000714200                           Funded Pgm/Grant: N/A 
Description: Permanent Placement Services for Radiologists        
Bid/RFP/CBE: NRS 332.115(1)(b) – Professional Services  
Term: 2/28/24 – 2/27/26 
Amount: The total Contract was NTE $550,000.  The additional funding increase of $1,050,000 will bring the 
total Contract amount to $1,600,000    
Out Clause: Upon notice w/o cause 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 

On February 28, 2024, the Governing Board approved the Agreement with Optimum Healthcare Solutions, 
LLC, in the amount of $550,000 for permanent placement staffing services. Optimum’s placement fee is 16% 
of a candidate’s first-year salary for every candidate referred who becomes employed. The Agreement 
includes a guarantee of 90 days of employment, or UMC receives a refund of the placement fee or credit 
towards a replacement candidate. 
 
This approval will provide for a funding increase of $1,050,000 due to the hiring of additional radiology 
permanent placement physicians.    
 
UMC’s Executive Director of Support Services has reviewed and recommended approval of this funding 
increase. UMC’s Office of General Counsel also reviewed this request as to form. 
 
The Audit and Finance Committee reviewed this request at their February 19, 2025, meeting and 
recommended its approval. 
 
 
 

Page 125 of 349 



Page 126 of 349 



Page 127 of 349 



Page 128 of 349 



Page 129 of 349 



Page 130 of 349 



Page 131 of 349 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 26, 2025 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

9 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Da Vinci Xi 4 Service Agreement with Intuitive Surgical, Inc. 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 
Da Vinci Xi 4 Service Agreement with Intuitive Surgical, Inc; authorize the Chief 
Executive Officer to execute future amendments within his delegation of authority; or 
take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number: 5420.000      Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center: 3000702100                           Funded Pgm/Grant: N/A 
Description: Da Vinci Xi 4 Service        
Bid/RFP/CBE: NRS 332.115(1)(C) – Additions to and repairs and maintenance of equipment which may be 
more efficiently added to, repaired or maintained by a certain person. 
Term: Three Year Term      
Amount: $1,134,000.00        
Out Clause: Budget Act and Fiscal Fund Out 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 

This request is to enter into a three-year Service Agreement for the Da Vinci Xi 4 with Intuitive Surgical, Inc. 
(“Intuitive”).  This agreement allows Intuitive Surgical to provide services for the da Vinci Xi 4 Arm Dual, 
Ion ARM-HD Single, and da Vinci XI 4 Arm Dual robots. UMC will compensate Intuitive Surgical 
$1,134,000.00 for services related to the da Vinci Xi 4. Additionally, staff requests authorization for the 
Hospital CEO to execute extension options and amendments that fall within his annual delegation of authority 
if they are deemed beneficial to UMC. 
 
UMC’s Clinical Director Specialty Services has reviewed and recommends approval of this Agreement.  This 
Agreement has been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
This Agreement was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their February 19, 
2025 meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 
 

Page 132 of 349 



(rev16FEB2018)  

 

 

Service Agreement 
 
UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF S. NEVADA – NV (the “Customer”) 

1800 WEST CHARLESTON BLVD 

LAS VEGAS NV 89102 

United States 
 
 
 

System Model: As set forth for each Purchaser in Attachment 1 (the “System(s)”) 
System Serial Number: As set forth for each Purchaser in Attachment 1 
Payment Terms: NT30 
Payment Frequency: As set forth for each Purchaser in Attachment 1 

 
 
 

Package Type: Service Plan: dVComplete Care 
Service Term: As set forth for each Purchaser in Attachment 1 (the “Service Term”) 

 
Advanced Exchange Preferred Pricing 
Technical Support (Phone support available 24/7) 
Standard Labor (8am-5pm Mon-Fri excluding Intuitive Holidays) 
Standard Travel (8am-5pm Mon-Fri excluding Intuitive Holidays) 
OnSite® Access 
OnSite® Remote Monitoring (Provided system is connected to OnSite) 
Parts Exchange 
System Inspections (PM) 
Software Reliability Updates 
Clinical Uptime Guarantee (98%) (Provided the System is connected through Onsite at all times and Service payments are 
current) 
Guaranteed Response Time (24 Hours) (via phone, email or in-person) 
Access to Instruments and Accessories (I&A) Support Upon Request 

 
Package Type: Service Plan: ION Service Plan 
Service Term : As set forth for each Purchaser in Attachment 1 (the “Service Term”) 

 
Plan Benefits: 
 Adjust parts on the System from time to time; 
 Replace defective or malfunctioning System parts (excludes Instruments and Accessories); 
 Repair System operational malfunctions; 
 Replace and install Software, Hardware, and mechanical equipment for safety and reliability; 
 Provide  telephone support by qualified service personnel Monday through Friday 7am - 5pm customer’s local time 
 Provide and install Software upgrades for feature enhancements. Software upgrades and Service with respect to 

additional equipment may be subject to separate terms to be agreed upon by the parties; 
 Respond to Customer’s request for Services by phone, e-mail, or an on premise visit, during normal business hours 

(excluding Intuitive holidays) promptly as is reasonable after Intuitive's receipt of Customer's request, but not later than 
twenty-four (24) hours after the longer of Intuitive's receipt or end of Intuitive holiday. Normal business hours are 
Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m.- 5:00 p.m. Customer’s local time. 

 Perform System preventative maintenance inspections as necessary to maintain factory specifications. 
 Access to Instrument and Accessories (I&A) Support upon request 
 Provide access to the da Vinci Surgery Customer Portal. 

 

The “Annual Service Fee” (excludes applicable taxes): As set forth for each Purchaser in Attachment 1 

Centralized Billing: (if applicable) 
 

1800 West Charleston Blvd 
Las Vegas NV 89102 

 
Page 1 of 4 

Page 133 of 349 



(rev16FEB2018)  

Service Agreement 
 
UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF S. NEVADA – NV (the “Customer”) 

1800 WEST CHARLESTON BLVD 

LAS VEGAS NV 89102 

United States 
 
 

 
Both parties having read, understood and agreed to be bound by the terms and conditions of this Service Agreement. 

 
 

ACCEPTED BY: 
INTUITIVE SURGICAL, INC. 

 
Signature: 

Matt Keller (Oct 25, 2024 15:26 PDT) 

ACCEPTED BY: 
CUSTOMER: 

 
By:    

Email: 

Title: 

Company: 

Matt.Keller@intusurg.com 

Sr Manager Service Contracts 

Intuitive Surgical, Inc. 

Date:    

Name:  Mason Van Houweling    

Title:  Chief Executive Officer   

Please e-mail the signed Agreement to servicecontracts@intusurg.com 
 

* In the event the executed agreement is received 45 days after lapsing on to Time and Material coverage, Intuitive reserves the 
right to: 

 
-Require a mandatory Preventive Maintenance billed at the current Time and Material rate prior to reinstating Service 
Contract coverage. 
-Renew at the then current pricing for the respective Service plan. 

 
At any point the system lapses to Time and Materials coverage, Intuitive will require a purchase order for any service issues 
identified during the T&M period which shall be resolved by Intuitive at the then current Time and Material rates. 

 
All Service Agreement discounts are contingent upon customer conducting support interactions with Intuitive in the matter 
prescribed below: 

 
1. All purchase orders for new Instruments, Accessories and Endoscopes will be sent to Intuitive via GHX (EDI). 
2. A customer staff member will sign up to be an Intuitive customer portal administrator, and appropriate hospital 
employee access will be actively reviewed and managed. 
A. Training for sign-up, managing users, accessing the portal and using the portal is available upon 
request to Customer Service. 
3. All of the following transactions will be done via the Intuitive customer portal. 

A. Defective Instrument and Accessory RMA's (Return Material Authorization) 
B. Defective AEX (Advance Exchange) for Endoscopes 

4. All pending da Vinci software updates that can be performed by the user will be executed by an employee of 
Customer within 30 days of notification. 
A. Notification will be performed through email and the system itself. For additional details, refer to the 
instructions in the system user manual. 

 
Multi-year contracts are subject to a price adjustment to the prevailing list price upon annual payment for not adhering to the 
Service Fee discount obligations. 
Service contract pricing is subject to annual price increases on subsequent renewals based on the Consumer Price Index for Medical 
Services; U.S. City Average; All items, not seasonally adjusted, 1982-1984=100 reference base. A decrease in the Consumer Price 
Index does not mean a decrease in service contract price. Multi-year contract pricing may be adjusted if material and/or labor costs  
increase 10% or more, subject to price increase upon each anniversary of contract execution date, voided if contract is paid in full 
upon execution. 

 
 
 
 

 
Page 2 of 4 

Page 134 of 349 



Page 3 of 4 
(rev16FEB2018) 

 

 

 

Service Agreement 
 

Standard Terms & Conditions of Service 
 

 

1. Services: If Customer is current in payment to Intuitive of the Annual Service Fee, Intuitive, directly or through one of its 
designated service providers, will provide support and maintenance of the System to Customer as outlined in this Service 
Agreement ("Services"). Intuitive will use parts sourced by Intuitive, which may, at Intuitive's discretion, include 
reconditioned parts, ("Equivalent to New" or "ETN"). ETN parts are components, assemblies, or partial products which have 
had prior usage, but have been inspected, reworked, and tested as required so that their function, performance, and appearance 
will be essentially equivalent to that of new parts. Regardless of whether parts are new or ETN, Intuitive's appropriate 
warranties apply. 
2. Limitations on Service: 
General. Intuitive does not have an obligation to provide Services (1) on any System where installation, repair, or adjustments 
have been made by an individual other than an Intuitive technician or an individual approved by Intuitive or (2) which are 
either necessary or desired as a direct or indirect result, in whole or in part, of unauthorized repair, modification, disassembly, 
alteration, addition to, subtraction from, reconfiguration, or misuse of the System, or negligence or recklessness on the part of 
Customer. 
Cleaning. Regular daily cleaning of the System as described in the related manuals, labeling, instructions for use, notifications 
or other documentation ("Documentation") is not included in the Services. 
Additional Equipment. Intuitive's Services obligations do not include the provision to Customer of any hardware developed 
by Intuitive that is not contained in the initial System obtained by Customer, and which Intuitive offers as a separate product or 
for an additional fee. 
Time and Materials. If the System needs repair or maintenance services due to any of the circumstances described above, 
Intuitive may, at its sole election, provide repair services at Customer's expense and at Intuitive's then current time and material 
rates. Intuitive is not obligated to provide Services on any System for which any applicable warranty has been voided,             
or for which the performance of Services is otherwise excused by the terms of this Service Agreement or the associated sales 
agreement for the System. 
Unauthorized Instruments and Accessories. The System is designed for use only with the instruments and accessories made 
or approved by Intuitive for use with the System ("Instruments and Accessories"). If Customer uses the System with any 
surgical instrument or accessory not made or approved by Intuitive, Intuitive may discontinue Services, and any warranties 
applicable to any Services provided prior to any discontinuance will be void. 
3. Payment Terms: The issuance of a purchase order by Customer is solely for the convenience of the Customer; therefore, 
whether or not Customer issues a purchase order does not affect Customer's commitment to pay for Services under this 
Service Agreement. In the event Customer requires a purchase order to be referenced on a Service invoice to facilitate 
payment, Customer will provide Intuitive with a purchase order number. After the Service Term, and subject to mutual written 
agreement, annual Services may be renewed at Intuitive's then current list price. 
4. Budget Act and Fiscal Fund Out: In accordance with the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS 354.626), the financial 
obligations under this Agreement between the parties shall not exceed those monies appropriated and approved by Customer 
for the then-current fiscal year under the Local Government Budget Act. This Agreement shall terminate and Customer's 
obligations under it shall be extinguished at the end of any of Customer's fiscal years in which Customer's governing body 
fails to appropriate monies for the ensuing fiscal year sufficient for the payment of all amounts which could then become due 
under this Agreement, provided that Customer gives Intuitive at least one hundred and twenty (120) days' prior written 
notice termination. Customer agrees that this section shall not be utilized as a subterfuge or in a discriminatory fashion as it 
relates to this Agreement. In the event this section is invoked, this Agreement will expire on the 30th day of June of the then-
current fiscal year. Termination under this section shall not relieve Customer of its obligations incurred through the 30th day 
of June of the fiscal year for which monies were appropriated or for Products delivered to Customer. 
5. Services Warranty: Intuitive warrants that the Services will be performed consistent with generally accepted industry 
standards. If Intuitive breaches this warranty, Customer's sole and exclusive remedy will be to require Intuitive to re-perform 
the Services. FRU Parts: Replacement parts carry a ninety (90) day warranty against manufacturing defects and sold on an 
exchange basis only. INTUITIVE MAKES NO OTHER WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, IN CONNECTION 
WITH THE SERVICES PROVIDED HEREUNDER AND THIS TRANSACTION, INCLUDING BUT NOT 
LIMITED TO THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, 
MERCHANTABILITY, AND NON-INFRINGEMENT. SOME JURISDICTIONS DO NOT ALLOW THE 
LIMITATION OR EXCLUSION OF IMPLIED WARRANTIES; THEREFORE, THE ABOVE LIMITATION WILL 
APPLY ONLY TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW. 
6. Notice, Access and Cooperation: Customer will notify Intuitive or Intuitive's designated service provider of any requests 
for Services. Customer will fully cooperate with and assist Intuitive in the provision of Services. 

Page 135 of 349 



Page 4 of 4 
(rev16FEB2018) 

 

Attachment 1 to the Service Agreement 
 
 
 

Purchaser System 
Model 

Serial 
Number 

Service Renewal 
Term 

Annual Service 
Fee 

Payment 
Frequency 

University Medical 
Center of S. 
Nevada 

da Vinci Xi 4 
Arm Dual 

SK0206 01/16/2025 – 
01/15/2028 

$159,000.00 Annual 

University Medical 
Center of S. 
Nevada 

Ion ARM-HD 
Single 

EN0092 01/16/2025 – 
01/15/2028 

$60,000.00 Annual 

University Medical 
Center of S. 
Nevada 

da Vinci Xi 4 
Arm Dual 

SK3381 01/16/2025 – 
01/15/2028 

$159,000.00 Annual 

 

Page 136 of 349 



REVISED 7/25/2014

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE 
DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS FORM

Purpose of the Form

The purpose of the Disclosure of Ownership/Principals Form is to gather ownership information pertaining to the business entity for use by the University Medical 
GB should exclude themselves from voting on agenda items where 

they have, or may be perceived as having a conflict of interest, and to determine compliance with Nevada Revised Statute 281A.430, contracts in which a public 
officer or employee has interest is prohibited.

General Instructions

Completion and submission of this Form is a condition of approval or renewal of a contract or lease and/or release of monetary funding between the disclosing 
entity and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada.  Failure to submit the requested information may result in a refusal by the GB to enter into an 
agreement/contract and/or release monetary funding to such disclosing entity.

Detailed Instructions

All sections of the Disclosure of Ownership form must be completed. If not applicable, write in N/A.

Business Entity Type Indicate if the entity is an Individual, Partnership, Limited Liability Company, Corporation, Trust, Non-profit Organization, or Other.  

Non-Profit Organization (NPO) - Any non-profit corporation, group, association, or corporation duly filed and registered as required by state law.

Business Designation Group Indicate if the entity is a Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), Small 
Business Enterprise (SBE), Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Veteran Owned Business (VET), Disabled Veteran Owned Business (DVET), or 
Emerging Small Business (ESB) . This is needed in order to provide utilization statistics to the Legislative Council Bureau, and will be used only for such 
purpose. 

Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 
is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native 
American ethnicity.
Women Owned Business Enterprise (WBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 
is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women.
Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful 
function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act.
Small Business Enterprise (SBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function, is not owned 
and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000.
Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (VET): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a commercially useful 
function and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more U.S. Veterans.
Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (DVET): A Nevada business at least 51 percent owned/controlled by a disabled veteran.
Emerging Small Business (ESB): Certified by the Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development effective January, 2014. Approved into 
Nevada law during the 77th Legislative session as a result of AB294.

Business Name (include d.b.a., if applicable)

Corporate/Business Address, Business Telephone, Business Fax, and Email Enter the street address, telephone and fax numbers, and email of the named 
business entity.

Nevada Local Business Address, Local Business Telephone, Local Business Fax, and Email If business entity is out-of-state, but operates the business from a 
location in Nevada, enter the Nevada street address, telephone and fax numbers, point of contact and email of the local office. Please note that the local address 
must be an address from which the business is operating from that location. Please do not include a P.O. Box number, unless required by the U.S. Postal Service, 
or a business license hanging address.

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents employed by this firm. (Do not leave blank. If none or zero, put the number 0 in the space provided.)

List of Owners/Officers Include the full name, title and percentage of ownership of each person who has ownership or financial interest in the business entity.  If 
the business is a publicly-traded corporation or non-profit organization, list all Corporate Officers and Directors only.

For All Contracts (Not required for publicly-traded corporations)
1) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity are a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s).  If yes, the following paragraph applies.

In accordance with NRS 281A.430.1, a public officer or employee shall not bid on or enter into a contract between a government agency and any 
private business in which he has a significant financial interest, except as provided for in subsections 2, 3, and 4.

2) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity have a second degree of consanguinity or affinity 
relation to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) (reference form on Page 2 for 
definition).  If YES, complete the Disclosure of Relationship Form.

A professional service is defined as a business entity that offers business/financial consulting, legal, physician, architect, engineer or other professional services.

Signature and Print Name Requires signature of an authorized representative and the date signed.

Disclosure of Relationship Form If any individual members, partners, owners or principals of the business entity is presently a University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada employee, public officer or official, or has a second degree of consanguinity or affinity relationship to a University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada employee, public officer or official, this section must be completed in its entirety.  

Page 137 of 349 



DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS

1
REVISED 7/25/2014

Business Entity Type (Please select one)

Sole 
Proprietorship

Partnership
Limited Liability 

Company 
Corporation Trust

Non-Profit  
Organization

Other

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply)

MBE WBE SBE PBE VET DVET ESB

Minority Business 
Enterprise

Women-Owned 
Business 
Enterprise

Small Business 
Enterprise

Physically Challenged 
Business Enterprise

Veteran Owned 
Business

Disabled Veteran 
Owned Business

Emerging Small 
Business

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed:

Corporate/Business Entity Name:

(Include d.b.a., if applicable)

Street Address: Website:

City, State and Zip Code:
POC Name:

Email:

Telephone No: Fax No:

Nevada Local Street Address:

(If different from above)

Website:

City, State and Zip Code: Local Fax No:

Local Telephone No:
Local POC Name:

Email:

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or 
financial interest in the business entity appearing before the Board.

Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with 
ownership or financial interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s).

https://www.intuitive.com/en-us/about-us/company/leadership

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations, 
close corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations.

Full Name Title % Owned
(Not required for Publicly Traded 

Corporations/Non-profit organizations)

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations. Are you a publicly-traded corporation?  Yes  No

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time
employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)?

Yes No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not 
perform any work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.)

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-
sister, grandchild, grandparent, related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)?

Yes No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.) 

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also understand that the University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exchanges without the completed disclosure 
form.

Signature Print Name

Title Date

Page 138 of 349 



DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP

2
REVISED 7/25/2014

List any disclosures below:
(Mark N/A, if not applicable.)

NAME OF BUSINESS 
OWNER/PRINCIPAL

NAME OF UMC*
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL

AND JOB TITLE

RELATIONSHIP TO
UMC*

EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL

UMC*

DEPARTMENT

* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

follows:

Spouse Registered Domestic Partners Children Parents In-laws (first degree)

Brothers/Sisters Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters Grandchildren Grandparents In-laws (second degree)

For UMC Use Only:

If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:

Yes No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item?

Yes No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract?

Notes/Comments:

____________________________________
Signature 

____________________________________
Print Name 
Authorized Department Representative

Page 139 of 349 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 26, 2025 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

10 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue:  Specialist Physician Services Agreement with Renal Payer Solutions, Inc. 

dba Champion Health Plan of Nevada 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 
Specialist Physician Services Agreement with Renal Payer Solutions, Inc. dba Champion 
Health Plan of Nevada for managed care services; or take action as deemed appropriate. 
(For possible action)  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number:  5420.000     Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center:  3000850000     Funded Pgm/Grant:  N/A 
Description:  Managed Care Services 
Bid/RFP/CBE:  NRS 332.115(1)(f) – Insurance 
Term:  February 1, 2025 - January 31, 2026 
Amount:  Revenue based on volume 
Out Clause:  90 days w/o cause 
      

BACKGROUND: 
Renal Payer Solutions, Inc. dba Champion Health Plan of Nevada (“Champion”) is a Medicare Advantage 
Prescription Drug HMO Chronic – Special Needs Plan (CSNP) for Medicare Beneficiaries with end-stage 
renal disease (ESRD). Champion began operations in seven (7) California counties and four (4) Nevada 
counties on January 1, 2024.  
 
This Specialist Physician Services Agreement establishes that Champion shall compensate UMC for Covered 
Services, including Specialist Physician Services, through a reimbursement percentage and Medicare 
Allowable rate. The agreement's term is February 1, 2025, through January 31, 2026, and upon mutual 
agreement, it shall renew for two one-year successive terms. This Agreement can be terminated by either party 
without cause given prior written 90-day notice to the other party. 
 
UMC’s Director of Managed Care has reviewed and recommended approval of this Agreement, which has 
also been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
A Clark County business license is not required as UMC provides hospital services to this insurance fund. 
 
This Agreement was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their February 19, 
2025 meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 

Page 140 of 349 



Page Number 
2  

 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 141 of 349 



RPS Spec FFS Agreement V.03062023 1

RENAL PAYER SOLUTIONS, INC.
SPECIALIST PHYSICIAN SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Provider Services Agreement is made and entered by and between University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada a licensed Clark County-owned and operated acute care hospital established pursuant to 
Chapter 450 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (“Provider”) and Renal Payer Solutions, Inc. dba Champion 
Health Plan of Nevada (“Plan”). The Provider and Plan each are referred to as a “Party” and collectively 
as the “Parties”. The Effective Date of the Agreement is February 1, 2025. 

RECITALS

WHEREAS, 

A. Plan is a licensed health care services plan that has entered into or will enter into 
contracts with various government and private Payors (as defined below) under which the Plan has agreed 
to provide or arrange health care services and benefits to Plan Members under the various Plan 
Arrangements identified in Exhibit A hereto.  The totality of Plan Arrangements with Payors is the “Plan 
Program” and the Plan shall be able to freely change participation in the Plan Program by the Payors vis 
a vis the Provider at any time by adding, eliminating, or modifying Plan Arrangements.

B. Whereas, Provider is a licensed Clark County owned and operated acute care hospital 
established pursuant to Chapter 450 of the Nevada Revised Statutes and accredited by The Joint 
Commission and certified for participation under Medicare and Medicaid, Title XVIII and XIX of the 
Social Security Act that desires to provide hospital services to Participants under the terms of this 
Agreement. 

C. The Parties intend by entering into this Agreement they will provide health care and 
related Covered Services, including Specialist Physician Services, Acute Services, and Transplant 
Services, to Members.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises contained herein and for other good and valuable 
consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as 
follows:

TERMS OF AGREEMENT

ARTICLE I.
DEFINITIONS

Whenever used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the definitions contained in this Article 
I.  Terms used in this Agreement which are defined by Applicable Law shall be interpreted consistent 
with such Applicable Laws.  

1.1. Accreditation Organization.  Accreditation Organization means any organization engaged in 
accrediting or certifying Plan or Providers.

1.2. Applicable Law.  Applicable Law means, as context requires, (i) the law jurisdiction in which 
Provider is providing services, (ii) federal law in the case of the Medicare or MedicAid programs, 
(iii) the law of the jurisdiction in which the patient is located for encounters involving 
telemedicine, or (iv) the law as otherwise specified in this Agreement.

Page 142 of 349 



RPS Spec FFS Agreement V.03062023 2

1.3. CMS.  CMS is the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, the agency of the United States 
government responsible for administering the Medicare program.

1.4. CMS Agreement.  CMS Agreement is the Medicare contract between Plan and CMS.

1.5. Commencement Date.  Commencement Date is the date this Agreement becomes effective, as 
specified in the first sentence to this Agreement.

1.6. Complete Claim. Complete Claim shall have the meaning set forth in Chapter 686A of the 
Nevada Administrative Code, Section 686A.282.

1.7. Copayment.  Copayment means an amount (whether expressed as either a percentage of cost or as 
a specific dollar amount) that a Member is obligated to pay directly to a provider for a specific 
service in accordance with the Plan Arrangement under which he or she is covered and in 
accordance with any applicable Membership Materials.  For purposes of this Agreement, 
Copayments shall include, but not be limited to, those payments commonly referred to as 
“coinsurance,” “copayments,” and/or “deductibles.”

1.8. Covered Services.  Covered Services are those Medically Necessary health care services, supplies 
and benefits which are required by a Member pursuant to the coverage provisions of a Plan 
Arrangement, as further specified in the applicable Services Agreements and Membership 
Materials.

1.9. Covering Physicians.  Covering Physicians are Specialist Physicians who have entered into 
contracts with Provider to provide Specialist Physician Services under the terms of this 
Agreement when Provider is not available and who are Participating Providers or have been 
approved by the Plan.

1.10. DHHS.  DHHS is the State of Nevada Department of Health and Human Services, the agency 
responsible for administering the MedicAid program in Nevada.

1.11. DOI.  DOI is the Nevada Division of Insurance, an administrative agency of the Nevada 
Government responsible for the licensing and regulation of health care service plans.

1.12. Emergency Services.  Emergency Services are health care services furnished by a qualified 
provider and needed to evaluate or stabilize a medical condition, including a psychiatric 
emergency medical, which is manifested by acute symptoms of sufficient severity, including 
severe pain, such that a prudent layperson who possesses an average knowledge of health and 
medicine could reasonably expect the absence of immediate medical attention to result in (i)
placing the health of Member (or in the case of a pregnant Member, the health of the Member or 
her unborn child) in serious jeopardy, (ii) serious impairment to bodily functions, or (iii) serious 
dysfunction of any bodily organ or part. 

1.13. Fiscal Year.  Fiscal Year of Plan shall mean each twelve (12) month period beginning January 1st 
and ending December 31st.

1.14. Hospital Services.  Hospital Services are Covered Services that are provided to Members by 
hospitals on an inpatient or outpatient basis. 

Page 143 of 349 



RPS Spec FFS Agreement V.03062023 3

1.15. Medically Necessary.  Medically Necessary shall have the meaning set forth in the applicable 
Services Agreement or Member Agreement or by Applicable Law for the Program under which 
the Member is enrolled.  

1.16. Member.  Member is an individual who is enrolled in a Plan Arrangement and who is determined 
to be eligible for membership in the applicable Plan Arrangement as of the date of service.

1.17. Membership Materials.  Membership Materials refers to the evidences of coverage or member 
handbooks, as amended from time to time, that the Plan or Payor issues to Members and that 
include complete descriptions of the terms, conditions and benefits available to Members under 
applicable Programs.

1.18. Payor.  Payor means a health care service plan, employer, federal, state, local or municipal 
government agency or any other entity which has entered into a contract with Plan on a prepaid 
basis and has authorized Plan to deliver Covered Services to Members under a Program(s).

1.19. Participating Provider(s).  Participating Provider(s) are physicians, medical groups, IPAs, health 
care professionals, hospitals, facilities and other providers of health care services or supplies that 
have entered into written contracts directly or indirectly with Plan to provide Covered Services to 
Members pursuant to a Plan Arrangement.

1.20. Plan Arrangement. Plan Arrangement means any health care plan for the provision of Covered 
Services as more fully described in the Exhibits hereto, the Provider Manual, and any applicable 
Services Agreements and Membership Materials(s), as each may be amended from time to time.  
The specific Plan Arrangements under which Provider renders Covered Services are set forth on 
the Schedule of Plan Arrangements attached as Exhibit A hereto, as may be amended from time 
to time.

1.21. Plan Service Area. Plan Service Area is the geographic area in which Plan is licensed by the DOI
and other required regulators to provide Covered Services to Members for the applicable Plan 
Arrangement.

1.22. Program.  Program means the totality of Plan Arrangements entered into by the Plan and for 
which Provider is a Participating Provider.  Plan reserves the right to add, delete, or modify the 
Plan Arrangements that constitute the Program in which Provider provides Covered Services at 
any time without the consent of the Provider.

1.23. Program Requirements.  Program Requirements are those requirements as established under Law 
and through any Services Agreements and Membership Materials applicable to specific Programs 
as summarized in Exhibits B through D hereto.

1.24. Provider Manual.  Provider Manual means that document or series of documents created, 
maintained, updated and distributed from time to time by Plan that describes the Plan’s policies 
and procedures and other requirements for Provider for each Plan Arrangement.  The Provider 
Manual is incorporated into this Agreement and made a part hereof.

1.25. Provider Professional(s).  Provider Professional(s) are Participating Providers who are physicians 
and other professionals who are shareholders or partners of, employed by or contract with 
Provider to deliver Covered Services hereunder.  Provider Professionals must meet Plan’s criteria 
for participation as a Participating Provider.  References to Provider hereunder shall include 
Provider and its Provider Professionals.

Page 144 of 349 



RPS Spec FFS Agreement V.03062023 4

1.26. Quality Management and Improvement (“QI”) Program.  Quality Management and Improvement 
(“QI”) Program are those standards, protocols, policies and procedures adopted by Plan to 
monitor and improve the quality of clinical care and quality of services provided to Members.  A 
summary of the QI Program is included in the Provider Manual, which may be updated from time 
to time by Plan.

1.27. Referral Services.  Referral Services shall mean any Covered Services provided by Participating 
Providers upon referral from the Plan or a Specialist Physician or other physician in accordance 
with the UM Program.

1.28. Services Agreement(s).  Services Agreement(s) are synonymous with Plan Arrangements and 
refers to the contracts between the Plan and Payors under which the Plan has agreed to provide or 
arrange Covered Services to Members enrolled under the particular Plan Arrangement.

1.29. Specialist Physician.  Specialist Physician is a Participating Provider who provides Specialist 
Physician Services to Members.  Specialist Physician must meet Plan’s criteria for participation 
as a Specialist Physician.  Specialist Physician (s) must be physicians practicing in the fields of 
specialty approved by Plan, in accordance with Services Agreements and Applicable Law. 

1.30. Specialist Physician Services.  Specialist Physician Services are those Covered Services provided 
by Provider to Members as further described in this Agreement and in the Provider Manual.

1.31. Urgently Needed Services.  Urgently Needed Services are Covered Services which are required 
while a Member is anywhere outside the Plan Service Area in order to prevent serious 
deterioration of a Member’s health resulting from an unforeseen illness or injury for which 
treatment cannot be delayed until the Member returns to the Plan Service Area.

1.32. Utilization Management (“UM”) Program.  Utilization Management (“UM”) Program means 
those standards, protocols, policies and procedures adopted by Plan regarding the management, 
review and approval of the provision of Covered Services to Members.  The UM Program is 
included in the Provider Manual, which may be updated from time to time by Plan.

ARTICLE II.
DUTIES OF PROVIDER

2.1. Provide Specialist Physician Services.  Provider shall provide Specialist Physician Services to 
Members in coordination with the Plan and Plan’s Participating Providers, and in accordance with 
the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. Provider shall render all medically necessary 
Covered Services required by the Agreement to each Member for the period for which a premium 
has been paid to Payor. Provider agrees that it will furnish covered services to all Members 
without regard to the participation of the Member in the Plan as a private purchaser of the plan or 
as a participate in a publicly financed program of health care services. Nev. Admin. Code [NAC] 
695C.190(5); Nev. Rev. Stat. [NRS] 687B.780.

2.2. Referral Services.  Provider shall arrange any necessary Specialist Physician Services not 
provided by Provider to specialists or other providers in accordance with Plan’s UM Program by 
directing Members to Plan’s selection of Participating Providers.   Provider shall not refer 
Members to providers other than those on Plan’s list of providers of Referral Services without 
Plan’s prior approval. 

Page 145 of 349 



RPS Spec FFS Agreement V.03062023 5

2.3. Professional Standards.  The primary concern of Provider shall be the quality of Covered Services 
provided to Members.  All Covered Services shall be provided by duly licensed, certified or 
otherwise authorized professional personnel in accordance with (i) the generally accepted medical
and surgical practices and standards prevailing in the applicable professional community at the 
time of treatment, (ii) Plan’s QI and UM Programs, (iii) applicable rules and regulations of 
applicable state medical boards, (iv) Applicable Law, and (v) the standards of Accreditation 
Organizations. Provider shall cooperate with all QI activities being conducted by the Plan.

2.3.1. Licensure of Provider.  Provider shall maintain in good standing at all times and ensure 
that any and all professionals that provide or assist Provider in the provision of Covered 
Services hereunder maintain in good standing at all times, any and all licenses, 
certificates, and/or approvals required under Applicable Law and by the Plan.

2.3.2. Hospital Privileges.  Provider shall maintain in good standing at all times medical staff 
membership and clinical privileges, or have executed a formal agreement with another 
physician to admit and follow patients, at one or more of the Plan’s contracted network 
hospital(s) as necessary to provide Covered Services to Members.

2.3.3. No Conflicts.  Provider is not subject to any agreements or obligations that would 
interfere with Provider’s ability to enter into or perform its obligations under this 
Agreement in accordance with its terms.

2.3.4. Credentialing.  Provider and its Provider Professionals shall meet Plan’s credentialing 
standards as specified in the Provider Manual and must be approved by the Plan before 
providing Covered Services to Members.  Provider shall respond to requests from Plan 
for credentialing information.  Failure to timely respond to such requests shall be grounds 
for termination pursuant to Section 5.2 hereto.

2.3.5. Right to Withdraw.  Plan reserves the right to immediately withdraw from Provider any 
or all Members in the event that the health or safety of Members is endangered by the 
actions of Provider or if Provider ceases to maintain required licenses, hospital privileges, 
or ceases to meet Plan’s credentialing criteria. Plan also reserves the right to add Plan 
Arrangements in which Provider participates, modify such Plan Arrangements, or 
withdraw Provider from any Plan Arrangement, at any time upon notice. 

2.3.6. Change in Status or Information.  Provider shall immediately notify Plan in writing of 
any change in licensure or hospital privilege status, any change in information provided 
to Plan through the credentialing process, and any change in address or practice status.

2.4. Access and Availability.  Provider shall comply with the access and availability requirements and 
conditions for each applicable Plan Arrangement as required by Applicable Law and as further 
delineated in the Provider Manual, including but not limited to prompt scheduling of 
appointments and availability of Specialist Physician Services.  

2.5. Covering Physicians.  If Provider and its Provider Professionals are unable to provide Covered 
Services from time to time, Provider shall secure the services of qualified Covering Physicians 
who are Participating Providers or who otherwise meet the Plan’s credentialing criteria and who 
are approved by the Plan to provide Specialist Physician Services to Members.  Provider shall 
enter into written agreements with Provider Professionals and Covering Physicians consistent 
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the requirements of Applicable Law.  
Provider shall provide the Plan with a complete list of its Provider Professionals and Covering 

Page 146 of 349 



RPS Spec FFS Agreement V.03062023 6

Physicians, together with the information required by the Plan for credentialing and plan 
administration, which this Agreement is signed and thereafter whenever requested by the Plan.  
Upon request, Provider shall make such written agreements available to Plan or any applicable 
government agency, for review and approval.  

2.6. Acceptance and Transfer of Members.  Provider may not impose any limitations on the 
acceptance of Members for care or treatment that are not imposed on other patients.  Provider 
shall not request or demand the transfer, discharge, or removal of any Member for reasons of the 
Member’s need for, or utilization of, Specialist Physician Services, except in accordance with the 
procedures established by Plan for such action.  Provider shall not request or demand the transfer, 
discharge or removal of any Member while the Member is hospitalized or is in the middle of a 
course of treatment and a determination has been made that interruption of care would be 
detrimental to the health of the Member.  Provider shall not refuse or fail to provide Specialist 
Physician Services to any Member.  

2.7. Medical Records.  Provider shall maintain all patient medical records relating to Covered 
Services provided to Members, in such form and containing such information as required by the 
Provider Manual, QI and UM Programs, Accreditation Organizations and Applicable Law.  
Medical records shall be maintained in a manner that is current, detailed, organized and permits 
effective patient care and quality review by Provider and Plan pursuant to the QI Program.  
Medical records shall be maintained in a form and physical location which is accessible to
Provider, Plan, government agencies, and Accreditation Organizations.  Upon thirty day (30) 
written request, Provider shall provide to Plan, at Provider’s expense, copies of Member medical 
records for purposes of conducting quality assurance, case management and utilization review, 
credentialing and peer review, claims processing, verification and payment, resolving Member 
grievances and appeals and other activities reasonably necessary for the proper administration of 
the applicable Plan Arrangement consistent with Applicable Law.  Provider also agrees to make 
available health records to appropriate state and federal authorities involved in assessing the 
quality of care or investigating the grievances or complaints of Members. Provider also agrees to 
comply with applicable state and federal laws related to the confidentiality of medical and health 
records and the Member’s right to see, obtain copies of or amend their medical and health 
records. NRS 687B.760 The provisions of this Section shall survive termination of this 
Agreement for the period of time required by Applicable Law.

2.8. Insurance. Provider is owned and operated by Clark County pursuant to the provisions of 
Chapter 450 of the Nevada Revised Statues. Clark County is a political subdivision of the State of 
Nevada. As such, Clark County and Provider are protected by the limited waiver of sovereign 
immunity contained in Chapter 41 of the Nevada Revised Statutes. Provider is self-insured as 
allowed by Chapter 41 of the Nevada Revised Statues. Upon request, Provider will provide Plan
with a Certificate of Coverage prepared by its Risk Management Department certifying such self-
coverage.

2.9. Notice of Charges.  Provider shall notify Plan immediately of the issuance of any formal charges 
against Provider or any professional delivering Covered Services on behalf of Provider by any 
governmental authority or licensing or Accreditation Organization which would, if sustained, 
impact the Provider’s ability to comply with its duties and obligations pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Provider shall further notify the Plan immediately of the initiation of any complaint, 
formal inquiry, investigation, or review with or by any licensing or regulatory authority, peer 
review organization, hospital committee, or other committee, organization or body which reviews 
quality of medical care which complaint, inquiry, investigation, or review directly or indirectly, 

Page 147 of 349 



RPS Spec FFS Agreement V.03062023 7

evaluates or focuses on the quality of care provided by Provider either in any specific instance or 
in general.

2.10. Administrative Requirements.  Provider agrees to perform its duties under this Agreement in 
accordance with Plan’s administrative guidelines, policies and procedures as set forth in this 
Agreement, the Provider Manual and Applicable Law.  In the event of a conflict between this 
Agreement and the Provider Manual, the terms of this Agreement shall govern.  

2.11. Data Requirements.  Provider shall maintain and provide access to Plan, upon written request, all 
books, records, papers, and information required by Plan, Applicable Law, government agencies 
or Accreditation Organizations for usual and customary charges.  Provider shall submit such 
information and data to Plan available during normal business hours.  Provider shall allow Plan 
personnel reasonable on-site access to Provider records in connection with Plan’s QI Program, 
UM Program or for other valid purposes.  Provider shall accurately and completely maintain all 
information and data required by this Agreement, including medical records, necessary to 
characterize the scope and purpose of Covered Services provided to Members for the time period 
required by Applicable Law.  Without limiting the foregoing, Provider shall maintain such 
records and provide such information to the Plan or to the DMHC as may be necessary for 
compliance with the Knox-Keene Act and shall retain such records for at least two years.  

2.12. Pharmaceuticals.  If Provider is licensed to prescribe drugs and medications, Provider shall 
prescribe drugs and medications in accordance with Applicable Law and the Plan’s drug 
formulary.    

2.13. HIPAA Compliance.  Provider represents and warrants that it is presently and shall remain at all 
relevant times compliant with the requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996, as amended (“HIPAA”). Provider represents and warrants with 
respect to all Protected Health Information (“PHI”), (as defined under 45 C.F.R. § 164.501), that 
it is a Covered Entity under 45 C.F.R. Section 164.501 (and not a business associate of Plan), and 
that it shall use all appropriate safeguards to prevent the use or disclosure of PHI other than as 
allowed by Applicable Law.

2.14. Training.  Provider and its practitioners and staff will participate in applicable training programs 
available through the Plan as required by any applicable Services Agreement or as required by the 
Plan to address any Plan policies and procedures.  The Plan will notify Provider of any training 
program that must be completed pursuant to a Services Agreement and the timeframe for 
completing such required training.  

2.15. Continuation of Care. In the event of the insolvency of Payor, Plan or any applicable 
intermediary, or in the event of any other cessation of operations of Payor, Plan, or intermediary, 
Provider must continue to deliver health care services covered by the Plan to a Member without 
billing the Member for any amount other than coinsurance, deductibles or copayments, as 
specifically provided in the evidence of coverage, until the earlier of: (a) The date of the 
cancellation of the Member’s coverage under the network plan pursuant to NRS 687B.310, 
including, without limitation, any extension of coverage provided pursuant to: (i) the terms of the 
contract between the Member and Plan; (ii) NRS 689A.04036, 689B.0303, 695B.1901, 
695C.1691 and 695G.164, as applicable; or (iii) any applicable federal law for Members who are 
in an active course of treatment or totally disabled; or (b) the date on which the contract between 
Plan and Provider would have terminated if Payor, Plan, or intermediary, as applicable, had 
remained in operation, including, without limitation, any extension of coverage provided pursuant 
to: (i) the terms of the contract between the Member and Plan; (ii) NRS 689A.04036, 689B.0303, 

Page 148 of 349 



RPS Spec FFS Agreement V.03062023 8

695B.1901, 695C.1691 and 695G.164, as applicable; or (iii) any applicable federal law for 
Members who are in an active course of treatment or totally disabled. NRS 687B.700

ARTICLE III.
DUTIES OF PLAN

3.1. Administration. Plan shall perform all administrative, accounting, enrollment, eligibility 
verification, and other functions necessary or appropriate for the operation, administration, and 
marketing of the Plan and consistent with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  Plan shall 
provide Provider with management information and data reasonably necessary to carry out the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement and for the operation of the Program.

3.1.1. Plan shall also notify Provider of its obligations, if any, to collect applicable coinsurance, 
copayments, or deductibles from a Member pursuant to the evidence of coverage, or of the 
obligations, if any, of the Provider to notify a Member of the personal financial obligations of 
the Member for health care services that are not covered. NRS 687B.790

3.2. Plan Communications.  Plan shall establish a system of Member identification, communicate the 
requirements of the Provider Manual to Participating Providers, and identify Participating 
Providers to Members.  Plan shall be responsible for providing applicable notification to 
Members upon notification of termination of Provider. Plan shall notify Provider on an ongoing 
basis the specific health care services which are Covered Services and for which Provider will be 
responsible, including, without limitation, any restrictions or conditions on the health care 
services. NRS 687B.680; NRS 687B.730; 687B.790; 687B.820

3.3. Records.  Plan shall maintain and furnish such records and documents as may be required by 
Applicable Law, and shall create, maintain, and transmit such records and documents in 
accordance with generally accepted industry standards and the requirements of Applicable Laws.
Plan acknowledges that Provider is a public county-owned hospital which is subject to the 
provisions of the Nevada Public Records Act, Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 239, as may be 
amended from time to time, and as such its records are public documents available to copying and 
inspection by the public.  If Provider receives a demand for the disclosure of any information 
related to the Agreement which Plan has claimed to be confidential and proprietary, Provider will 
immediately notify Plan of such demand and Plan shall immediately notify Provider of its 
intention to seek injunctive relief in a Nevada court for protective order.  Plan shall indemnify, 
defend and hold harmless Provider from any claims or actions, including all associated costs and 
attorney’s fees, regarding or related to any demand for the disclosure of Plan documents in 
Provider’s custody and control in which Health Plan claims to be confidential and proprietary.

3.4. Licensure.  Plan shall maintain such licenses as are necessary for the performance of its 
obligations hereunder.

3.5. Quality Improvement Program. Plan shall maintain a Quality Improvement Program for the 
purpose of evaluating, monitoring and improving the quality of care and services provided to 
Members in compliance with Applicable Law and the standards of applicable Accreditation 
Organizations. Plan will make available to Provider in the Provider Manual information regarding 
the functioning and operation of the quality improvement program that applies to the Agreement. 
NRS 695G.180; NAC 695C.400

Page 149 of 349 



RPS Spec FFS Agreement V.03062023 9

3.6. Utilization Management Program.  Plan, in consultation with Provider and other Participating 
Providers, shall be responsible for conducting utilization review and management, consistent with 
Applicable Law and the standards of applicable Accreditation Organizations by (i) providing 
prior authorization for Referral Services and hospital admissions when services are Medically 
Necessary; (ii) providing concurrent utilization review for Hospital Services; and (iii) providing 
retrospective utilization review for Emergency Services and Urgently Needed Services.

3.7. Credentialing.  Plan or its designee shall conduct credentialing of physicians and other licensed 
health care professionals according to the standards of Accreditation Organizations and 
Applicable Law for the purpose of developing and maintaining a quality provider network.

3.8. Limitations.  Plan makes no representations or guarantees concerning the number of Members it 
can or will assign to Provider under this Agreement.  Plan shall not be obligated to include 
Provider in all Participating Provider directories or in all Programs or to utilize or market 
Provider for all services available from Provider.

3.9. Continuation of Care.  In the event this Agreement is terminated due to Plan’s insolvency, Plan 
shall provide for continuation of Covered Services to Members for the duration of the period for 
which payment has been made by DHHS to Plan, as well as for inpatient admissions until 
discharge.  Plan shall comply with its obligations under Applicable Law to ensure continuity of 
care for its Members. Plan shall provide written notice to Provider as soon as practicable in the 
event: (a) that a court determined Payor, Plan, or any applicable intermediary to be insolvent; or 
(b) of any other cessation of operations of Payor, Plan, or any applicable intermediary. NRS 
687B.720

3.10. Non-Discrimination. Plan shall not discriminate against any person on the basis of age, color, 
disability, gender, handicapping condition (including AIDS or AIDS related conditions), national 
origin, race, religion, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression or any other class protected 
by law or regulation.

3.11. Publicity. Plan shall not cause to be published or disseminated any advertising materials, either 
printed or electronically transmitted which identify the other Party or its facilities with respect to 
the Agreement without the prior written consent of Provider.

ARTICLE IV.
COMPENSATION

4.1. Payment for Covered Services.  Plan shall reimburse Provider at the rates set forth in Exhibit E
for Covered Services provided to Members.

4.2. Fee-Schedule. Upon request at execution of the Agreement, and thereafter within seven (7) days 
after receipt of Provider’s request, Plan shall provide the schedule of payments applicable to 
Provider under the Agreement, including any changes to the fee schedule applicable to Provider’s 
practice. NRS 689B.015(4), 695C.125(3), 695G.430(3)

4.3. Claims Submission and Payment.

4.3.1. Submission of Claims.  Provider shall submit all claims for reimbursement under this 
Agreement to Plan no later than one hundred eighty (180) days from the date services are 
provided to the Member, or, if the Plan is not the primary payor, no later than three 

Page 150 of 349 



RPS Spec FFS Agreement V.03062023 10

hundred sixty five (365) days from the date of payment, contest, denial or notice from the 
primary payor.  In the event Provider does not submit a claim for services provided to 
Member within three hundred sixty-five (365) days, unless the Provider submits a 
provider dispute pursuant to Section 6.5.1 of this Agreement demonstrating good cause 
for the delay, it is agreed that Plan will no longer be responsible for payment of such 
claim and such claim will be considered satisfied in full.  

4.3.2. Payment of Claims. Plan shall pay all uncontested claims submitted by Provider no later 
than thirty (30) days after receipt of Complete Claims from Provider or such earlier time 
as required by Law.  Plan will notify Provider of incomplete or denied claims within 
thirty (30) days of submission of the claim, or as otherwise required by Applicable Law, 
and will identify the portion of the claim that is contested, state the specific reasons the 
claim is contested, specify any additional information required for Plan to process and 
pay the claim and such other information as is required by Applicable Law.  NRS 
695C.185; 695C.187

4.3.3. Denied or Disputed Claims.  In the event of the denial of a claim for payment for Covered 
Services timely submitted by Provider or any dispute arising between the parties 
concerning a claim submitted for payment, Provider may challenge the denial or dispute 
the claim or payment by submitting a written appeal to Plan within no later than three 
hundred sixty five (365) days from the date of notification of the denied claim or the date 
of acceptance of payment of the claim, as appropriate.  Any such appeal of a denied claim 
or dispute of a claim or payment shall be reviewed and resolved in accordance with the 
procedure and within the time period established therefore under Plan’s Provider Dispute 
Resolution Procedure as provided in Section 6.5.1 of this Agreement.  Provider 
acknowledges and agrees that Provider’s failure to submit a written appeal of a denied 
claim or disputed claim or payment to Plan within such three hundred sixty five (365) 
daytime period specified above shall bar such challenge or appeal and Provider shall be 
deemed to have accepted Plan’s denial of payment of the claim or to have accepted Plan’s 
payment of the claim as payment in full for Covered Services, as applicable.  

4.3.4. Interest.  Plan shall pay interest in accordance with Applicable Law.  

4.4. Copayments.  Provider shall collect applicable Copayments from Members upon providing 
Covered Services to Members for those services which require a Copayment as specified in the 
Services Agreement.  

4.5. No Billing of Members.  With the exception of Copayments and charges for non-Covered 
Services delivered on a fee-for-service basis to Members, Provider agrees that in no event, 
including, but not limited to, non-payment by Plan, insolvency of Plan or breach of this 
Agreement, shall Provider bill, charge, collect a deposit from, seek payment, surcharges, 
compensation or reimbursement from, or have any recourse against, any Member for Covered 
Services provided pursuant to this Agreement.  Provider shall not maintain any action at law or in 
equity against a Member to collect sums owed by Plan to Provider.  Upon notice of any such 
surcharge, Plan may terminate this Agreement as provided in Section 5.2.2 of this Agreement and 
take all other appropriate action consistent with the terms of this Agreement to eliminate such 
charges, including, but not limited to, requiring Provider to return all sums collected by Provider 
as surcharges from Members or their representatives.  Provider’s obligations under this Section 
4.4 shall survive the termination of this Agreement with respect to Covered Services provided 
during the term of this Agreement regardless of the cause giving rise to termination and shall be 
construed to be for the benefit of the Member. NAC 695C.190(2); NRS 687B.690

Page 151 of 349 



RPS Spec FFS Agreement V.03062023 11

4.6. Hold DHHS Harmless. Provider shall hold harmless the State of Nevada and DHHS in the event 
that Plan cannot or will not pay for Provider Services provided by Provider to Members of the 
MedicAid Program pursuant to this Agreement. 

4.7. Coordination of Benefits.  Provider shall cooperate with and support, as mutually agreed upon by 
the parties, Plan’s coordination of benefits rights.

4.7.1. Plan is Primary.  If a Member possesses health benefits coverage through another policy 
which is secondary to Plan under applicable coordination of benefits rules, including the 
Medicare secondary payor program, Provider shall accept payment from Plan for 
Covered Services as provided herein as full payment for such Covered Services, except 
for applicable Copayments.  Members shall have no obligation for any other fees, 
regardless of whether secondary insurance is available.

4.7.2. Plan is Secondary.  If a Member possesses health benefits coverage through another 
policy which is primary to Plan under applicable coordination of benefits rules, including 
the Medicare secondary payor program, or if Member is entitled to payment under a 
workers’ compensation policy or automobile insurance policy, Provider may pursue 
payment from the primary payor or workers’ compensation carrier consistent with 
Applicable Law and regulation and Provider’s contract, if any, with the primary payor.  
In such event, Plan shall pay the lesser of (i) the amount of out-of-pocket expenses (i.e., 
Copayments, coinsurance, and deductibles) that Member would incur in the absence of 
Plan’s secondary coverage, or (ii) the rates set forth in this Agreement.

4.8. Recoupment Rights. Except as may otherwise be specifically provided in this Agreement, Plan 
shall have the right to request in writing amounts owed by Provider to Plan against amounts owed 
by Plan to Provider within 365 days from date of payment. Provider shall have 45 days to notify 
Plan that it disputes amounts owed by Provider to Plan. Any amounts determined to be due and 
owning and not disputed within such 45 days period shall be paid. This right to recoup shall 
include, without limitation, Plan’s right to recoup the following amounts owed to Plan by 
Provider:  (i) amounts owed by Provider due to overpayments or payments made in error by Plan; 
(ii) amounts owed by Provider due to receipt of payments made by Members to Provider for 
Covered Services, excluding Copayments, co-insurance and deductibles; (iii) amounts owed by 
Provider as a result of the outcome of the Plan Member Grievance and Appeals Procedure and 
(iv) amounts owed by Provider in connection with any other prior or existing agreement between 
Provider and Plan.  As a material condition to Plan's obligations under this Agreement, Provider 
agrees that all recoupment and any offset rights pursuant to this Agreement shall be deemed to be 
and to constitute rights of recoupment authorized under Applicable Law or in equity to the 
maximum extent possible under law or in equity and that such rights shall not be subject to any 
requirement of prior or other approval from any court or other governmental authority that may 
now or hereafter have jurisdiction over Provider.

4.9. Adjustments to Payments.  Only those charges for Covered Services billed in accordance with the 
Plan’s claims coding standards will be payable.  If Plan determines that services rendered are 
inappropriate or not Medically Necessary, coding practices do not comply with Plan standards, 
payment is not in accordance with the terms of this Agreement or services were provided to a 
patient who was not an eligible Member as of the date of service, except as may be limited by
Applicable Law, including, but not limited to Section 1367.045 of the Health & Safety Code,
Plan may deny, reduce, or otherwise adjust payment to Provider within 365 days.  The Plan may 
also adjust payment rates as specified in Exhibit E for the following reasons:

Page 152 of 349 



RPS Spec FFS Agreement V.03062023 12

4.9.1. Adjustments to Fee Schedules.  In the event a government program (including, without 
limitation, the Medi-Cal Program, as defined in Exhibit B) revises a payment rate or a 
procedure or revenue code under a Plan Arrangement fee schedule pursuant to which 
payments are determined under this Agreement, Plan shall, in order to ensure payment 
according to the current fee schedule, adopt such adjustments in the same manner and on 
the same effective date as adopted by the government program.

4.9.2. Audit and Recovery.  Plan, or the Plan’s third party designee, shall have the right to 
conduct periodic audits of all records maintained by the Provider with respect to all 
payments received by Provider from Plan for Covered Services rendered to Members 
during the term of this Agreement.  If an audit shows that the Plan has overpaid any claim 
or if Plan identifies an overpayment through any other process, Plan will send a written 
request for the reimbursement of the overpayment within one year (365 days) of the date 
of the claim overpayment as required by Applicable Law, unless the overpayment was 
caused in whole or in part by Provider’s fraud or misrepresentation, in which case Plan 
shall not be limited to 365 days.  If Provider does not contest the Plan’s request for 
reimbursement of the overpayment within thirty (30) days in writing or reimburse the 
Plan, the Plan may offset or recoup the amounts overpaid against amounts due and owing 
from Plan to Provider.  If Provider contests a request for reimbursement, then Provider 
shall send a written notice to Plan stating the basis for which the claim was not overpaid 
and the matter shall be resolved in accordance with the Plan’s provider dispute resolution 
process in Section 6.5 of this Agreement and the Provider Manual.  This provision shall 
survive the termination of this Agreement.

4.10. No Charge for Non-Covered Services.  Provider shall not charge a Member for a service which is 
not a Covered Service unless, in advance of the provision of such service, the Member has been 
notified by Provider that the particular service will not be covered and Provider obtains a written 
statement from the and signed by the Member or the person responsible for paying for services 
rendered that he or she shall be responsible for payment of charges for such service.

4.11. Payments Following Termination of this Agreement.  Following termination of this Agreement 
and during the continuing care period described in Section 5.10 hereto, Plan shall compensate 
Provider at the applicable payment rates for Covered Services provided to Members until such 
Members are assigned to other Plan Participating Providers.  

4.12. No Inducement to Deny Covered Services.  Provider acknowledges and agrees that this 
Agreement does not contain any financial incentive or make any payment that acts directly or 
indirectly as an inducement to limit Medically Necessary health care services. Nothing in this 
section prohibits an arrangement for payment that uses capitation or other financial incentives, if 
the arrangement is designed to provide an incentive to Provider to use health care services 
effectively and consistently in the best interest of the health care of the Member. NRS 695G.420

ARTICLE V.
TERM AND TERMINATION

5.1. Term. This Agreement shall be for a term of one (1) year commencing on the Effective Date and
ending on January 31, 2026. Thereafter the term of this Agreement shall renew upon mutual 
written agreement for two (2) additional terms of one (1) year, unless terminated in accordance 
with ARTICLE V or unless non-renewed as of the anniversary date of the Effective Date by 
either party with at least ninety days (90) days prior written notice to the other Party. NAC
695C.190(3)

Page 153 of 349 



RPS Spec FFS Agreement V.03062023 13

5.2. Termination with Notice. Either Party may initiate the termination of this Agreement by 
providing 90 days written notice to the other Party.

5.3. With Cause Termination of Agreement.  Either Plan or Provider may terminate this Agreement 
for cause as set forth below, subject to the notice requirement and cure period set forth below.

5.3.1. Cause for Termination of Agreement by Provider.  The following shall constitute cause 
for termination of this Agreement by Provider:

5.3.1.1. Non-Payment.  Material failure by Plan to make any payments due Provider 
hereunder within forty-five (45) days of any such payment’s due date and Plan’s 
failure to cure such failure to make such payments due to Provider within the 
cure period provided at Section 5.3.2, below.

5.3.1.2. Breach of Material Term and Failure to Cure.  Plan’s material breach of any 
material term, covenant, or condition and subsequent failure to cure such breach 
as provided in Section 5.3.2, below.

5.3.2. Cause for Termination of Agreement by Plan.  The following shall constitute cause for 
termination of this Agreement by Plan:

5.3.2.1. Breach of Material Term and Failure to Cure.  Provider’s material breach of any 
material term, covenant, or condition and subsequent failure to cure such breach 
as provided in Section 5.3..3, below.

5.3.2.2. Insolvency.  Provider becomes insolvent, as reasonably determined by Plan.

5.3.2.3. Failure to Comply with Standards.  Provider fails to provide Covered Services in 
accordance with the standards set forth in this Agreement and Plan’s QI Program 
and UM Program.  Plan reserves the right to cease referrals of any or all 
Members in the event the health or safety of Members is endangered by the 
actions of Provider, or as a result of continuation of this Agreement.

5.3.3. Notice of Termination, Cure Period and Effective Date of Termination.  The Party
asserting cause for termination of this Agreement (the “Terminating Party”) shall provide 
written notice of termination to the other party specifying the breach or deficiency with 
sufficient information to allow the receiving party to identify the actions necessary to 
cure such breach. The party receiving the written notice of termination shall have thirty 
(30) days from the receipt of such notice to cure the breach or deficiency to the 
satisfaction of the terminating party (the “Cure Period”).  If such party fails to cure the 
breach or deficiency to the reasonable satisfaction of the Terminating Party within the 
Cure Period or if the breach or deficiency is not curable, the Terminating Party shall have 
the right to provide written notice of failure to cure the breach or deficiency to the other 
Party following expiration of the Cure Period.  The Agreement shall terminate thirty (30) 
days following receipt of the written notice of failure to cure or at such later date as may 
be specified in such notice.  During the Cure Period and the period following the Cure 
Period, Plan may begin transferring Members to other Participating Providers.  
Notwithstanding the above, in the event Plan provides notice of termination as the result 
of a breach by Provider and the Plan reasonably determines the health and safety of 
Members is endangered by the actions of Provider, Plan shall have the right to terminate 
the Agreement immediately. NAC § 689B.160

Page 154 of 349 



RPS Spec FFS Agreement V.03062023 14

5.4. Automatic Termination Upon Revocation of License or Certificate.  This Agreement shall 
automatically terminate upon the revocation, suspension or restriction of any license, certificate 
or other authority required to be maintained by Provider or Plan in order to perform the services 
required under this Agreement or upon the Provider’s or Plan’s failure to obtain such license, 
certificate or authority.  In addition, this Agreement shall automatically be terminated if:  (i) 
Provider is excluded from participation in the Medicare program or is subjected to sanctions 
imposed by the Medicare program or the Medicaid program; (ii) Provider’s professional liability 
insurance or any other Provider insurance required under this Agreement is cancelled, non-
renewed, or is no longer in effect and no replacement insurance coverage is immediately put into 
place; (iii) Provider fails to comply with Section 2.3 of this Agreement; or (iv) Provider dies or 
becomes incapacitated (as reasonably determined by Plan).

5.5. Termination of Services Agreement.  If any Services Agreement terminates, this Agreement shall 
automatically terminate with respect to Members covered under the Services Agreement on the 
date the Services Agreement and any continuing care obligations under the Services Agreement 
terminate.

5.6. Termination Without Cause.  Either Party may terminate this Agreement without cause at any 
time by giving the other Party at least one hundred twenty (120) days prior written notice.

5.7. Termination if No Agreement on Provider Manual Modifications or Material Changes to 
Agreement.  This Agreement may be terminated pursuant to the terms specified in Sections 6.9.2
and 6.9.3.

5.8. Transfer of Medical Records.  Following termination of this Agreement, at Plan’s request, 
Provider shall copy all requested Member medical records in the possession of Provider and 
forward such copies to another provider of Covered Services designated by Plan, provided such 
copying and forwarding is not otherwise objected to by such Members.  The cost of copying the 
Members’ medical records shall be borne by Provider.  Provider shall maintain the confidentiality 
of such Member medical records at all times.

5.9. Repayment Upon Termination.  Within one hundred eighty (180) calendar days of the effective 
date of termination of this Agreement, an accounting shall be made by Plan of the monies due and 
owing either Party and payment shall be forthcoming by the appropriate Party to settle such 
balance within thirty (30) days of such accounting.

5.10. Termination Not an Exclusive Remedy.  Any termination by either Party pursuant to this Article 
V is not meant as an exclusive remedy and such Terminating Party may seek whatever action in 
law or equity as may be necessary to enforce its rights under this Agreement.  Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, the parties agree to waive any and all rights they may have to assert claims for or 
recover exemplary or punitive damages against the other Party.

5.11. Continuing Care Obligations of Provider.  If this Agreement is terminated for any reason, 
Provider shall continue to provide Covered Services, including Specialist Physician Services, to 
Members, including any Members who become eligible during the termination notice period, in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement beginning on the effective date of termination and 
continuing until the first to occur of (i) a period of one hundred and twenty (120) days following 
termination of this Agreement or such longer period required for any Member as required by 
Applicable Law, or (ii) the date Plan provides written notice to Provider that it has made 
arrangements for all Members to receive services from another Participating Provider of 
Specialist Physician Services.  In addition, Provider will continue to provide Covered Services, 

Page 155 of 349 



RPS Spec FFS Agreement V.03062023 15

including Specialist Physician Services, to any Members who cannot be transferred within the 
time period specified above for Members who are hospitalized upon the expiration of the 
continuing care period, for Members who are entitled to continuing care as the result of their 
condition pursuant to Applicable Law, and otherwise in accordance with Plan’s legal and 
contractual obligations to ensure continuity of care for its Members. Plan shall remain liable for 
Covered Services provided by Provider to Members under this Section.  NRS §§ 689B.0303, 
695C.1691, 695G.164

5.12. Fair Hearing.  Notwithstanding the time periods for termination set forth in Sections 5.2 through 
5.5 of this Agreement, in all cases in which Plan terminates this Agreement and Provider is 
entitled to a fair hearing under Plan’s applicable notification and hearing procedures set forth in 
the Provider Manual, the termination will be final thirty (30) days from notice of the right to 
request a hearing, unless Provider requests a hearing within such thirty (30) day period.  If such a 
hearing is requested, this Agreement will continue in effect until a decision is rendered; provided, 
however, upon the request of Plan, Provider shall not thereafter provide Covered Services to 
Members until a decision is rendered..

ARTICLE VI.
GENERAL PROVISIONS

6.1. Independent Contractor Relationship.  The relationship between Plan and Provider is an 
independent contractor relationship.  Neither Provider nor its employees or agents are employees 
or agents of Plan.  Neither Plan nor its employees or agents are partners, employees or agents of 
Provider.

6.2 Indemnification. Plan agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Provider from and against 
all claims, liabilities, and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs arising out of 
the Agreement which may result from acts, omissions, or breach of the Agreement by Plan, its 
employees, contractors or agents. Each Party agrees to give the other Party prompt written notice 
of any claim made against the Party. This section will survive the termination of this Agreement 
as it relates to those claims that arose prior to the date of the date of termination. 

6.3. Member Grievances.  Plan shall be responsible for resolving Member claims for benefits under 
the Programs and all other claims against Plan.  Provider will immediately refer Members to 
contact Plan or deliver any written complaint to Plan for handling pursuant to Plan’s Member 
Grievance Procedures.  Provider shall comply with all final determinations made by Plan through 
the Member Grievance Procedures.  NAC 695C.230

6.4. Disputes Between Provider and Member.  Any controversies or claims between Provider and a 
Member arising out of the performance of this Agreement by Provider, other than claims for 
benefits under the Program, are not governed by this Agreement.  Provider and the Member may 
seek any appropriate legal action to resolve such controversy or claim deemed necessary.  
Provider will provide written notice to Plan of any dispute between Provider and Member.

6.5. Dispute Resolution Between Plan and Provider.

6.5.1. Provider Dispute Resolution Procedure. Plan has established a Provider Dispute 
Resolution Procedure, set forth in the Provider Manual, to provide a mechanism by which 
Plan’s Participating Providers, including Provider, may submit to Plan certain disputes, 
complaints or appeals arising out of the performance of this Agreement or relating to 
decisions made by Plan under this Agreement for resolution on an informal basis.  
Provider may submit a dispute, complaint or appeal for resolution under the Dispute 

Page 156 of 349 



RPS Spec FFS Agreement V.03062023 16

Resolution Procedure, as set forth in the Provider Manual, by calling Plan’s Provider 
Services Department at (424) 777-2191or writing a letter addressed to: Plan, Provider 
Services Department, Complaint and Appeals Unit, 19700 Fairchild Rd., Suite 230 
Irvine, California 92612.  Plan will inform Provider of changes to the Provider Dispute 
Resolution Procedure set forth herein.  Any provider dispute which is not resolved 
informally through Plan’s Provider Dispute Resolution Procedure may be submitted for 
arbitration as provided in Section 6.5.2 below.  NRS 687B.370

6.5.2. Arbitration.  Any controversy, dispute or claim of whatever nature and irrespective of the 
facts or circumstances or the legal theories advanced, in which the amount in controversy 
exceeds the jurisdiction of Small Claims Court and which was not resolved in the Dispute 
Resolution procedure set forth in Paragraph 6.5.1, shall be resolved by binding arbitration 
at the request of either Party.  The arbitration shall be administered by JAMS and in 
accordance with the JAMS Comprehensive Arbitration Rules and Procedures.  Such 
arbitration shall occur in Clark County, Nevada. The arbitrator shall apply Nevada
substantive law and federal substantive law where state law is preempted.  The arbitrator 
shall prepare in writing and provide to the parties an award including factual findings and 
the legal reasons on which the award is based.  Nothing herein shall prohibit a Party from 
seeking equitable relief in a court of law to while an arbitration is pending hereunder.

6.5.2.1. Costs and Fees.  The parties shall divide equally the cost of the arbitration, 
including but not limited to the arbitrator’s fee and any related administrative 
fees and charges.  The prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover reasonable 
attorneys’ fees and other costs incurred in bringing such action or proceeding.

6.5.2.2. Waiver. Each Party knowingly acknowledges and agrees that the foregoing 
constitutes a waiver of their constitutional right to a jury trial.

6.5.2.3. Confidentiality.  The arbitration and any information obtained in connection with 
this Agreement or through discovery shall be confidential, and neither the Parties 
nor the arbitrator may disclose such information to third parties without the 
written consent of the Parties, except that the Parties may disclose such 
information as necessary to seek confirmation of the arbitration award, to enforce 
any judgment entered on account of the award or as otherwise is required by law; 
however, the Parties may make such disclosure as is necessary to their respective 
auditors, accountants, attorneys and insurers.

6.5.2.4. Discovery.  Civil discovery may be taken in such arbitration as provided by 
JAMS Rules. The arbitrator selected shall have the power to control the timing, 
scope and manner of the taking of discovery and shall further have the same 
powers to enforce the parties’ respective duties concerning discovery as would a 
Superior Court of Nevada including, but not limited to, the imposition of 
sanctions.

6.6. Notice.  All notices required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in writing and may be 
delivered in person or may be sent by registered or certified mail or U.S. Postal Service Express 
Mail, or by Federal Express or other overnight courier that guarantees next day delivery.  The 
addresses specified on the signature page shall be the addresses for delivery or mailing of notice.  
The parties may change the names and addresses, noted above through written notice in 
compliance with this Section.  Notices shall be effective upon receipt. The parties may further 

Page 157 of 349 



RPS Spec FFS Agreement V.03062023 17

agree to provide notice through email with an appropriate acknowledgement by each. Plan shall 
send a copy to Providers Legal Department – Attn. Contracts

6.7. Assignment.  Neither this Agreement nor any portion of this Agreement shall be assigned, 
transferred or pledged in any way by either Party and shall not be subject to execution, 
attachment or similar process without the prior written consent of other Party.  A change of 
ownership through the sale of either Parties stock or assets shall be deemed an assignment by said 
Party requiring written consent pursuant to this Section.

6.8. Third Parties. Intentionally omitted.

6.9. Amendments.  Except as provided herein, no amendments or modifications to this Agreement 
shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by both Provider and Plan, and unless any 
required regulatory approvals are obtained.  

6.9.1. Legally Required Modifications.  The Plan may amend this Agreement at any time in 
order to comply with Applicable Law or any requirements of a private sector 
Accreditation Organization, as reasonably interpreted by the Plan. Plan shall notify 
Provider of such legally required modification.  Such amendment shall be effective upon 
written notice to Provider and shall not require the written consent of Provider.

6.9.2. Provider Manual Modifications.  If Plan materially amends a manual, policy or procedure 
document referenced in the Agreement (“Provider Manual Modification”), Plan will 
provide at least forty five (45) days’ notice to Provider, and Provider will have the right 
to negotiate and agree to the change.  If the parties cannot agree to the Provider Manual 
Modification, Provider will have the right to terminate the Agreement prior to the 
implementation of the Provider Manual Modification.  NRS 689B.015(3), 695C.125(2), 
695G.430(2)

6.9.3. Material Changes to Agreement.  For Providers compensated on a fee-for-service basis, 
Plan may amend a material term to the Agreement by providing a minimum of ninety 
(90) days’ notice of its intent to change a material term of the Agreement (“Material 
Change Notice”).  Provider shall have the right to negotiate and agree to the change 
within thirty (30) days of Provider’s receipt of the Material Change Notice (“Right to 
Negotiate”) by providing written notice of such intent within the thirty (30) day period.  
Provider shall have the right to terminate the Agreement effective ninety (90) days 
following the receipt of the Material Change Notice if Provider does not exercise 
Provider’s Right to Negotiate or no agreement is reached during the ninety (90) day 
period and if Provider provides notice of its intent to terminate prior to the expiration of 
the ninety (90) day period.  The material change shall become effective ninety (90) days 
following the Material Change Notice if Provider does not exercise its Right to Negotiate 
or does not provide timely notice of its intent to terminate as described above.  The 
parties may agree to the material change at any time during the ninety (90) business day 
period by mutual written agreement.  NRS 687B.830(3)(4)

6.9.4. Non-Material Amendments to Agreement.  The Plan may notify Provider of amendments 
to non-material terms of this Agreement.  Such amendments shall be effective upon 
written notice to Provider and shall not require the written consent of Provider.

6.9.5. Program Benefit Changes.  Program benefit changes shall be effective upon 
implementation, following receipt of any required regulatory approvals.

Page 158 of 349 



RPS Spec FFS Agreement V.03062023 18

6.10. Confidential and Proprietary Information.

6.10.1. Information Confidential and Proprietary to Plan.  Provider shall maintain confidential all 
information designated in this Section.  The information which Provider shall maintain 
confidential (the “Confidential Information”) consists of:  (i) any information containing 
the names, addresses and telephone numbers of Members which has been compiled by 
Plan; (ii) the financial arrangements between Plan and any of Plan’s Participating 
Providers, including Provider; and (iii) any other information compiled or created by Plan 
which is proprietary to Plan and which Plan identifies in writing to Provider.

6.10.2. Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information.  Provider shall not disclose or use the 
Confidential Information for its own benefit or gain either during the term of this 
Agreement or after the date of termination of this Agreement.  Provider may use the 
Confidential Information to the extent necessary to perform its duties under this 
Agreement or upon express prior written permission of Plan.  Upon the effective date of 
termination of this Agreement, Provider shall provide and return to Plan the Confidential 
Information in their possession in the manner specified by Plan. NRS 687B.694(5)

6.10.3. Plan Names, Logos and Service Marks.  Provider shall obtain the written consent of Plan 
prior to using Plan’s name, product names, logos and service marks in any of Provider’s 
promotional, marketing or advertising materials or for any other reason.

6.11. Solicitation of Plan Members.  Provider shall not engage in solicitation of Members without 
Plan’s prior written consent.  Solicitation shall mean conduct by an officer, agent, employee or 
contractor of Provider or their respective assignees or successors during the term of this 
Agreement, and during the twelve (12) months immediately following the effective date of 
termination of this Agreement which may be reasonably interpreted as designed to persuade 
Members to disenroll from the Program or discontinue their relationship with Plan.  Provider 
agrees that Plan shall, in addition to any other remedies provided for under this Agreement, have 
the right to seek a judicial temporary restraining order, preliminary injunction, or other equitable 
relief against Provider to enforce its rights under this Section in a manner consistent with and to 
the extent permitted by Applicable law. Nothing herein shall interfere with a physician’s right to 
communicate with a patient under Applicable Law.

6.12. No Restrictions on Discussing a Member’s Health Care.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be 
interpreted to discourage or prohibit Provider or its Provider Professionals from discussing a 
Member’s health care including, without limitation or regardless of benefit coverage limitations,
communications regarding treatment options, alternative health plans or other coverage 
arrangements, unless such communications are for the primary purpose of securing financial gain.
NRS 695G.400. 6

6.13. No Retaliation. Neither Payor nor Plan shall terminate the Agreement, demote, refuse to contract 
with, or refuse to compensate Provider solely because Provider, in good faith: (a) advocates in 
private or in public on behalf of a Member; (b) assists a Member in seeking reconsideration of a 
decision to deny coverage for a health care service; or (c) reports a violation of law to an 
appropriate authority. NRS 695G.410

6.14. Invalidity of Sections of Agreement.  The unenforceability or invalidity of any paragraph or 
subparagraph of any section or subsection of this Agreement shall not affect the enforceability 
and validity of the balance of this Agreement.

Page 159 of 349 



RPS Spec FFS Agreement V.03062023 19

6.15. Survival.  The following provisions of this Agreement shall survive the termination of this 
Agreement:  Sections 2.7, 2.8, 2.11, 2.13, 3.10, Article IV, Sections 5.7, 5.8, 5.10, 6.2, 6.5, 6.10,
6.11, 6.12 and any other section where survival of termination is required by Law.

6.16. Waiver of Breach.  The waiver by either Party to this Agreement of a breach or violation of any 
provision of this Agreement shall not operate as or be construed to be a waiver of any subsequent 
breach or violation thereof.

6.17. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including all exhibits, attachments, addenda, and 
amendments hereto and the Provider Manual contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by 
the parties regarding the subject matter of this Agreement.  Any prior agreements, promises, 
negotiations or representations of or between the parties, either oral or written, relating to the 
subject matter of this Agreement, which are not expressly set forth in this Agreement are null and 
void and of no further force or effect.

6.18. Incorporation of Exhibits and Attachments.  The schedules, exhibits, addenda, and attachments to 
this Agreement and the Provider Manual are integral parts of this Agreement and are incorporated 
in full herein by this reference.

6.19. Authority to Bind.  Each signatory of this Agreement represents and warrants individually on 
behalf of himself or herself, and the Party on whose behalf he or she executes this Agreement, 
that he or she is duly authorized to execute this Agreement.

ARTICLE VII.
GOVERNING LAW AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

7.3. Governing Law.  This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties hereunder shall be 
construed, interpreted, and enforced in accordance with, and governed by, the laws of the State of 
Nevada, County of Clark, except where preempted by federal law.

7.4. Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Provider’s facilities shall comply with the requirements 
of Title III of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, and shall ensure access for the 
disabled which includes, but is not limited to ramps, elevators, restrooms, designated parking 
spaces, and drinking water provision.

7.5. Civil Rights Act of 1964.  Provider will comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and 
any implementing regulations that prohibits recipients of federal financial assistance from 
discriminating against persons based on race, color, religion, or national origin. 

7.6. Language Assistance.  Provider agrees to comply with the Plan’s Language Assistance Program 
as detailed in the Provider Manual for Programs in which the Language Assistance Program is 
required by Applicable Law.  

7.7. Certification.  As required by Title 31 U.S.C. Section 1352, if payments under this Agreement are 
$100,000 or more, Provider certifies to the best of Provider’s knowledge and belief that no 
Federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of Provider, to any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency of the 
United States Government, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a member of Congress in connection with the making, awarding or entering into of 
this Agreement, and the extension, continuations, renewal, amendment, or modification of this 
Agreement.  If payments under this Agreement are $100,000 or more, Provider shall submit to 

Page 160 of 349 



RPS Spec FFS Agreement V.03062023 20

Plan the “Certification Regarding Lobbying” set forth in the Provider Manual.  If any funds other 
than Federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency of the United States Government, a 
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with this Agreement, Provider shall complete and submit to Plan standard 
form LLL, “Disclosure of Lobbying Activities”, in accordance with its instructions.  Provider 
shall file such disclosure form at the end of each calendar quarter in which there occurs any event 
that requires disclosure or that materially affects the accuracy of the information contained in any 
disclosure form previously filed by Provider.  Provider shall require that the language of this 
certification be included in all subcontracts at all tiers which exceed $100,000 and that all 
subcontractors shall certify and disclose accordingly.  All such disclosure forms of subcontractors 
shall be forwarded to Plan.  

7.8. Antifraud Plan.  Provider agrees to comply with Plan’s antifraud plan, as detailed in the Provider 
Manual.  Provider will immediately notify Plan of (i) investigations of Provider or Provider’s 
employees in which there are allegations relating to fraud, waste or abuse, and (ii) suspected 
cases where there is reason to believe that an incident of fraud, waste or abuse has occurred.  

7.9. No Inducement for Referrals.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that: (1) they intend to comply 
with the safe harbor requirements set forth in 42 C.F.R. §1001.952(t); (2) in establishing the 
terms of the Agreement, including the exhibits, addenda and attachments hereto, neither Party
gave or received remuneration in return for or to induce the provision or acceptance of business 
(other than business covered by the Agreement) for which payment may be made in whole or in 
part by a federal health care program on a fee-for-service or cost basis; and (3) neither Party will 
shift the financial burden of the Agreement to the extent that increased payments are claimed 
from a federal health care program.  Plan represents and agrees that it is an eligible managed care 
organization, as defined in 42 C.F.R. §1001.952(t).  Provider represents and agrees that (a)
Provider is a first tier contractor under the Agreement, defined as an individual or entity that has a 
direct contract with Plan, as the managed care organization, to provide or arrange for items or 
services; and (b) Provider cannot and will not claim payment in any form, directly or indirectly, 
from a federal health care program for items or services covered under the Agreement for 
Members enrolled in the Plan, except as provided in 42 C.F.R. §1001.952(t).

7.10. Compliance with Law. Provider and any subcontractor to Provider shall comply with the 
Program Requirements set forth in the exhibits hereto.  Any provisions required to be included in 
the Agreement by Applicable Law, as applicable, including, but not limited to the Nevada 
Revised Statutes Chapter 687B and the Nevada Administrative Code Chapter 695C, and the 
regulations promulgated thereunder, shall be binding upon and enforceable against the parties to 
the Agreement and shall be deemed incorporated herein whether or not expressly set forth in the 
Agreement, including the exhibits hereto.

Signature Page Follows

Page 161 of 349 



RPS Spec FFS Agreement V.03062023 21

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties agree to the foregoing terms of agreement through the execution 
below by their respective, duly-authorized representatives as of the Commencement Date.

PLAN

Champion Health Plan of Nevada, Inc.

By: ____________________________

Name: Jay B. Davis

Title: Executive Vice President and COO

Date: ___________________________

Provider Address and Facsimile Number for Notices:

19700 Fairchild Rd., Suite 230 

Irvine, California 92612

Fax: (424) 389-7659

PROVIDER

University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada

By: ____________________________

Name: Mason Van Houweling

Title: Chief Executive Officer

Date: ___________________________

Provider Address and Facsimile Number for 
Notices:

Street: 1800 W. Charleston Boulevard

City, State ZIP: Las Vegas, NV 89102

Facsimile Number: _____________________

2/6/2025

Page 162 of 349 



EXHIBIT A 

SCHEDULE OF PLAN ARRANGEMENTS 

[The information in this attachment is confidential and proprietary in nature.] 

  

Page 163 of 349 



EXHIBIT B 

MEDICAID PROGRAM 

 

[The information in this attachment is confidential and proprietary in nature.] 

  

Page 164 of 349 



EXHIBIT C 

MEDICARE PROGRAM 

 

[The information in this attachment is confidential and proprietary in nature.] 

 

  

Page 165 of 349 



EXHIBIT D 

COMMERCIAL HMO PROGRAM 

 

[The information in this attachment is confidential and proprietary in nature.] 

 

  

Page 166 of 349 



EXHIBIT E 

FEE-FOR-SERVICE COMPENSATION 

 

[The information in this attachment is confidential and proprietary in nature.] 

 

  

Page 167 of 349 



EXHIBIT F 

MEDICARE ADVANTAGE CONTRACT AMENDMENT 

 

[The information in this attachment is confidential and proprietary in nature.] 

 

  

Page 168 of 349 



REVISED 7/25/2014 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE  

DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS FORM 

Purpose of the Form 

 

The purpose of the Disclosure of Ownership/Principals Form is to gather ownership information pertaining to the business entity for use by the University Medical 

Center of Southern Nevada Governing Board (“GB”) in determining whether members of the GB should exclude themselves from voting on agenda items where 

they have, or may be perceived as having a conflict of interest, and to determine compliance with Nevada Revised Statute 281A.430, contracts in which a public 
officer or employee has interest is prohibited. 
 

General Instructions 
 

Completion and submission of this Form is a condition of approval or renewal of a contract or lease and/or release of monetary funding between the disclosing 
entity and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada.  Failure to submit the requested information may result in a refusal by the GB to enter into an 

agreement/contract and/or release monetary funding to such disclosing entity. 
 

Detailed Instructions 
 

All sections of the Disclosure of Ownership form must be completed.  If not applicable, write in N/A. 
 

Business Entity Type – Indicate if the entity is an Individual, Partnership, Limited Liability Company, Corporation, Trust, Non-profit Organization, or Other.  

When selecting ‘Other’, provide a description of the legal entity. 
 

Non-Profit Organization (NPO) - Any non-profit corporation, group, association, or corporation duly filed and registered as required by state law. 
 

Business Designation Group – Indicate if the entity is a Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), Small 

Business Enterprise (SBE), Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Veteran Owned Business (VET), Disabled Veteran Owned Business (DVET), or 

Emerging Small Business (ESB) . This is needed in order to provide utilization statistics to the Legislative Council Bureau, and will be used only for such 
purpose.   
 

 Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 

is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native 

American ethnicity. 

 Women Owned Business Enterprise (WBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 

is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women. 

 Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful 

function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 Small Business Enterprise (SBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function, is not owned 

and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000. 

 Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (VET): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a commercially useful 

function and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more U.S. Veterans. 

 Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (DVET):  A Nevada business at least 51 percent owned/controlled by a disabled veteran. 

 Emerging Small Business (ESB): Certified by the Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development effective January, 2014. Approved into 

Nevada law during the 77th Legislative session as a result of AB294. 
 

Business Name (include d.b.a., if applicable) – Enter the legal name of the business entity and enter the “Doing Business As” (d.b.a.) name, if applicable.   
 

Corporate/Business Address, Business Telephone, Business Fax, and Email – Enter the street address, telephone and fax numbers, and email of the named 

business entity.   
 

Nevada Local Business Address, Local Business Telephone, Local Business Fax, and Email – If business entity is out-of-state, but operates the business from a 
location in Nevada, enter the Nevada street address, telephone and fax numbers, point of contact and email of the local office. Please note that the local address 

must be an address from which the business is operating from that location. Please do not include a P.O. Box number, unless required by the U.S. Postal Service, 

or a business license hanging address. 
 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents employed by this firm. (Do not leave blank. If none or zero, put the number 0 in the space provided.) 
 

List of Owners/Officers – Include the full name, title and percentage of ownership of each person who has ownership or financial interest in the business entity.  If 

the business is a publicly-traded corporation or non-profit organization, list all Corporate Officers and Directors only.   
 

For All Contracts – (Not required for publicly-traded corporations) 
1) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity are a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s).  If yes, the following paragraph applies. 

 

In accordance with NRS 281A.430.1, a public officer or employee shall not bid on or enter into a contract between a government agency and any 

private business in which he has a significant financial interest, except as provided for in subsections 2, 3, and 4. 
 

2) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity have a second degree of consanguinity or affinity 

relation to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) (reference form on Page 2 for 

definition).  If YES, complete the Disclosure of Relationship Form.  
 

A professional service is defined as a business entity that offers business/financial consulting, legal, physician, architect, engineer or other professional services. 
 

Signature and Print Name – Requires signature of an authorized representative and the date signed. 
 

Disclosure of Relationship Form – If any individual members, partners, owners or principals of the business entity is presently a University Medical Center of 

Southern Nevada employee, public officer or official, or has a second degree of consanguinity or affinity relationship to a University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada employee, public officer or official, this section must be completed in its entirety.   

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 2606D8EE-C1E0-4E41-8CFA-0B595475EB9D

Page 169 of 349 



DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS 

1 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

Business Entity Type (Please select one) 

 Sole 
Proprietorship 

Partnership 
 Limited Liability 

Company  
 Corporation  Trust 

 Non-Profit   
Organization 

  Other 

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply) 

 MBE  WBE  SBE  PBE  VET DVET  ESB 

Minority Business 
Enterprise 

Women-Owned 
Business 
Enterprise 

Small Business 
Enterprise 

Physically Challenged 
Business Enterprise 

Veteran Owned 
Business 

Disabled Veteran 
Owned Business 

Emerging Small 
Business 

 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed:   Zero (all employed in Calfornia) 

  

Corporate/Business Entity Name:  Champion Health Plan of Nevada, Inc. 

(Include d.b.a., if applicable) Champion Health Plan  

Street Address: 5000 Airport Plaza Drive, Suite 100 Website:  www.championhealthplans-usa.com 

City, State and Zip Code: 
Long Beach, CA 90815 POC Name: Fred Ford 

Email: fford@championpayer.com 

Telephone No: (209) 815-8575 Fax No: 

Nevada Local Street Address: 

(If different from above) 

N/A  Website: N/A (use website above) 

 City, State and Zip Code: N/A  Local Fax No: 

Local Telephone No: 
Same as above  Local POC Name: 

Email: 

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or 
financial interest in the business entity appearing before the Board. 
 
Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with 

ownership or financial interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s). 

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations, 
close corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations. 

 

  Full Name  Title  % Owned 
(Not required for Publicly Traded 

Corporations/Non-profit organizations) 

 

Jerome Tannenbaum, MD   Chairman, Champion Health Plan   24%  

Jeff and Jay Davis  CEO and COO, Champion Health Plan   24%  

Mike Wong, MD  Chief Strategy Officer  9%  

      

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations.  Are you a publicly-traded corporation?             Yes       No 

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time 
employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not 
perform any work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.) 

 

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-
sister, grandchild, grandparent, related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.)  

 

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also understand that the University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exchanges without the completed disclosure 
form. 

 

  Jeff Davis   

Signature 
 

 Print Name  

Chief Executive Officer   02/10/2025  

Title  Date  

Docusign Envelope ID: 2606D8EE-C1E0-4E41-8CFA-0B595475EB9D

Page 170 of 349 



DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP 

2 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

 
List any disclosures below: 
(Mark N/A, if not applicable.) 

 

NAME OF BUSINESS 
OWNER/PRINCIPAL 

NAME OF UMC* 
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

AND JOB TITLE 

RELATIONSHIP TO 
 UMC* 

EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

UMC* 
EMPLOYEE’S/OFFICIAL’S 

DEPARTMENT 

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 N/A 

  

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 
* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 
“Consanguinity” is a relationship by blood.  “Affinity” is a relationship by marriage. 
 
“To the second degree of consanguinity” applies to the candidate’s first and second degree of blood relatives as 
follows: 
 

 Spouse – Registered Domestic Partners – Children – Parents – In-laws (first degree) 
 

 Brothers/Sisters – Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters – Grandchildren – Grandparents – In-laws (second degree) 
 
 

 
For UMC Use Only: 

 
If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:     
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item? 
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract? 
 
Notes/Comments: 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Signature  
 
____________________________________ 
Print Name  
Authorized Department Representative 

 
 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 2606D8EE-C1E0-4E41-8CFA-0B595475EB9D

Page 171 of 349 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 26, 2025 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

11 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Award RFP No. 2024-15, Bad Debt Collections, to Aargon Agency, Inc. 
  

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board award the RFP No. 2024-15 for Bad Debt Collections to 
Aargon Agency, Inc.; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Service Agreement 
and execute any extension options and future amendments within the not-to-exceed 
amount of this Agreement; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number:  5420.000     Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center:  3000853000     Funded Pgm/Grant:  N/A 
Description:  Bad Debt Collections 
Bid/RFP/CBE:  RFP 2024-15 
Term: Five years 
Amount: Not-to-Exceed: $750,000 annually or $3,750,000 in aggregate 
Out Clause: Termination for convenience with 15 days’ prior notice. 
 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 

On December 18, 2024, a request for proposals, RFP 2024-15 for Bad Debt Collections, was published in the 
Las Vegas Review-Journal and posted on the Nevada Government eMarketplace (NGEM) Portal, soliciting 
bid proposals from the public for bad debt collection services which include, in part, the following: providing 
outgoing dialing campaigns, email and text messaging when appropriate, establishing and managing payment 
arrangements, answering questions related to statements, fielding calls for account audits and charge disputes, 
and generally providing collection agency intervention in an effort to collect past due medical bills previously 
determined to be uncollectible by UMC (collectively, the “Scope”).  
 
Responses were received prior to the January 9, 2025 deadline from the following vendors: 
 

Aargon Agency, Inc. 
BC Services, Inc. 
Bull City Financial Solutions, Inc. 
Firstsource Solutions USA, LLC 
Frost-Arnett Company 
Optimum Outcomes, Inc. 

Page 172 of 349 



Page Number 
2 

Ray Klein, Inc. d/b/a Professional Credit Services 
Collection Service of Nevada d/b/a Sierra Outsourcing Solutions 

 
An ad hoc committee (consisting of UMC’s Director of Patient Accounting, Assistant Director of Patient 
Accounting, and Patient Account Manager) reviewed and scored the eight proposals received from the 
aforementioned vendors, independently and anonymously, and recommended the selection of, and contract 
approval with, Aargon Agency, Inc. (hereafter, “Aargon”). 
 
For the total not-to-exceed RFP award of $750,000 per year, $3,750,000 in aggregate, for the five-year term, 
Aargon will provide the services defined above as the Scope. The term of the Agreement as negotiated is to 
begin on April 1, 2025 and continue through the conclusion of the date that is five years thereafter. UMC 
retains the right to terminate for convenience with 15 days’ prior notice.  
 
UMC staff have reviewed the terms and found them both equitable and a cost savings to UMC compared with 
past compensation for similar work as that set forth in the Agreement. A previous Agreement, as subsequently 
amended, for similar services allowed 11% compensation to the respective vendor, while the Agreement 
contemplated herein allows for only 10% compensation to Aargon, a more than 9% reduction in the cost for 
such work to UMC. 
 
Aargon is a Nevada corporation and currently holds a Clark County business license. 
 
UMC’s Director of Patient Accounting has reviewed and recommends award of this Agreement. This 
Agreement has been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
This agreement was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their February 19, 
2025 meeting and recommended for award by the Governing Board. 
 

Page 173 of 349 



 
 
 

 

AARGON AGENCY, INC. 

NAME OF FIRM 

Duane Christy, CEO 

DESIGNATED CONTACT, NAME AND TITLE 
(Please type or print) 

8668 Spring Mountain Road, #110 
Las Vegas, NV 89117 

ADDRESS OF FIRM 
INCLUDING CITY, STATE AND ZIP CODE 

(800) 326-7118 

(AREA CODE) AND TELEPHONE NUMBER 

duane@aargon.com 

E-MAIL ADDRESS 

 
 

 
UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER 

OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 

RFP NO. 2024-15 BAD DEBT 
COLLECTIONS SERVICE AGREEMENT 

Page 174 of 349 

mailto:duane@aargon.com


Page | 1  

RFP NO. 2024-15 BAD DEBT COLLECTIONS SERVICE AGREEMENT 
 
 

This Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of April 1, 2025 (the “Effective Date”), by and between 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA, a publicly owned and operated hospital created by virtue of Chapter 450 

of the Nevada Revised Statutes (hereinafter referred to as “HOSPITAL”), and AARGON AGENCY, INC., (hereinafter referred to as 

“COMPANY”), for bad debt collections services (hereinafter referred to as “PROJECT”). 

 
W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, COMPANY has the personnel and resources necessary to accomplish the PROJECT within the required schedule 

and with a budget allowance, as further described herein; and 

WHEREAS, COMPANY has the required licenses and/or authorizations pursuant to all federal, State of Nevada and local laws 

in order to conduct business relative to this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, HOSPITAL and COMPANY agree as follows: 
 

SECTION I: TERM OF AGREEMENT 
HOSPITAL agrees to retain COMPANY for the period from the Effective Date through the date that is five (5) years thereafter (“Term”). 

During this period, COMPANY agrees to provide services as required by HOSPITAL within the scope of this Agreement. HOSPITAL 

reserves the right to extend the Agreement for up to an additional three (3) months for its convenience. 

SECTION II: COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 
A. Terms of Payments 

1. HOSPITAL agrees to pay COMPANY for the performance of services described in the Scope of Work (Exhibit A) per 

the percentage rate set forth in the Fee Schedule (Exhibit B). The sum of the fees shall not exceed $750,000 annually. 

It is expressly understood that the entire Scope of Work defined in Exhibit A must be completed by COMPANY, and it 

shall be COMPANY's responsibility to ensure that hours and tasks are properly budgeted so the entire PROJECT is 

completed for the said fee. 

2. Payment of invoices will be made within forty-five (45) calendar days after receipt of an accurate invoice that has been 

reviewed and approved by HOSPITAL. 

3. HOSPITAL, at its discretion, may not approve or issue payment on invoices if COMPANY fails to provide the following 

information required on each invoice: 

a. The title of the PROJECT as stated in Exhibit A, Scope of Work, itemized description of products delivered 

or services rendered and amount due, Purchase Order Number, Invoice Date, Invoice Period, Invoice Number, 

and the Payment Remittance Address. 

b. Expenses not defined in Exhibit A, Scope of Work will not be paid without prior written authorization by 

HOSPITAL. 

c. HOSPITAL’s representative shall notify COMPANY in writing within fourteen (14) calendar days of any 

disputed amount included on the invoice. COMPANY must submit a new invoice for the undisputed amount 

which will be paid in accordance with this paragraph A.2 above. Upon mutual resolution of the disputed 

amount, COMPANY will submit a new invoice for the agreed amount and payment will be made in accordance 

with this paragraph A.2 above. 

4. No penalty will be imposed on HOSPITAL if HOSPITAL fails to pay COMPANY within ninety (90) calendar days after 

receipt of a properly documented invoice, and HOSPITAL will receive no discount for payment within that period. 

5. HOSPITAL shall subtract from any payment made to COMPANY all damages, costs and expenses caused by 

COMPANY's negligence, resulting from or arising out of errors or omissions in COMPANY's work products, which have 

not been previously paid to COMPANY. 

Page 175 of 349 



Page | 2  

6. HOSPITAL shall not provide payment on any invoice COMPANY submits after six (6) months from the date COMPANY 

performs services, provides deliverables, and/or meets milestones, as agreed upon in Exhibit A, Scope of Work. 

7. Invoices shall be submitted to: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, Attn: Accounts Payable, 1800 W. 

Charleston Blvd., Las Vegas, NV 89102. 

B. HOSPITAL’s Fiscal Limitations 

1. The content of this section shall apply to the entire Agreement and shall take precedence over any conflicting terms 

and conditions, and shall limit HOSPITAL’s financial responsibility as indicated in Sections 2 and 3 below. 

2. In accordance with the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS 354.626), the financial obligations under this Agreement 

between the parties shall not exceed those monies appropriated and approved by HOSPITAL for the then-current fiscal 

year under the Local Government Budget Act. This Agreement shall terminate and HOSPITAL's obligations under it 

shall be extinguished at the end of any of HOSPITAL's fiscal years in which HOSPITAL’s governing body fails to 

appropriate monies for the ensuing fiscal year sufficient for the payment of all amounts which could then become due 

under this Agreement. HOSPITAL agrees that this section shall not be utilized as a subterfuge or in a discriminatory 

fashion as it relates to this Agreement. In the event this section is invoked, this Agreement will expire on the 30th day 

of June of the then-current fiscal year. Termination under this section shall not relieve HOSPITAL of its obligations 

incurred through the 30th day of June of the fiscal year for which monies were appropriated. 

3. HOSPITAL’s total liability for all charges for services which may become due under this Agreement is limited to the 

total maximum expenditure(s) authorized in HOSPITAL’s purchase order(s) to COMPANY. 

SECTION III: SCOPE OF WORK 
Services to be performed by COMPANY for the PROJECT shall consist of the work described in the Scope of Work as set forth in 

Exhibit A of this Agreement, attached hereto. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Agreement and the terms in the Scope 

of Work, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail. 

SECTION IV: CHANGES TO SCOPE OF WORK 
A. HOSPITAL may at any time, by written order, make changes within the general scope of this Agreement and in the services or work 

to be performed. If such changes cause an increase or decrease in COMPANY's cost or time required for performance of any 

services under this Agreement, an equitable adjustment limited to an amount within current unencumbered budgeted appropriations 

for the PROJECT shall be made and this Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly. Any claim of COMPANY for the 

adjustment under this clause must be submitted in writing within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of receipt by COMPANY of 

notification of change unless HOSPITAL grants a further period of time before the date of final payment under this Agreement. 

B. No services for which an additional compensation will be charged by COMPANY shall be furnished without the written authorization 

of HOSPITAL. 

SECTION V: RESPONSIBILITY OF COMPANY 
A. It is understood that in the performance of the services herein provided for, COMPANY shall be, and is, an independent contractor, 

and is not an agent, representative or employee of HOSPITAL and shall furnish such services in its own manner and method except 

as required by this Agreement. Further, COMPANY has and shall retain the right to exercise full control over the employment, 

direction, compensation and discharge of all persons employed by COMPANY in the performance of the services hereunder. 

COMPANY shall be solely responsible for, and shall indemnify, defend and hold HOSPITAL harmless from all matters relating to the 

payment of its employees, including compliance with social security, withholding and all other wages, salaries, benefits, taxes, 

demands, and regulations of any nature whatsoever. 

B. COMPANY shall appoint a Manager, upon written acceptance by HOSPITAL, who will manage the performance of services. All of 

the services specified by this Agreement shall be performed by the Manager, or by COMPANY's associates and employees under 

the personal supervision of the Manager. Should the Manager, or any employee of COMPANY be unable to complete his or her 

responsibility for any reason, COMPANY must obtain written approval by HOSPITAL prior to replacing him or her with another equally 

Page 176 of 349 



Page | 3  

qualified person. If COMPANY fails to make a required replacement within fifteen (15) days, HOSPITAL may terminate this 

Agreement for default. 

C. COMPANY has, or will, retain such employees as it may need to perform the services required by this Agreement. Such employees 

shall not be employed by the HOSPITAL. 

D. COMPANY agrees that its officers and employees will cooperate with HOSPITAL in the performance of services under this 

Agreement and will be available for consultation with HOSPITAL at such reasonable times with advance notice as to not conflict with 

their other responsibilities. 

E. COMPANY will follow HOSPITAL's relevant compliance policies as followed by HOSPITAL's staff including its corporate compliance 

program, HOSPITAL’s Contracted/ Non-Employee Requirements policy and HOSPITAL’s Vaccine Policy, as may be amended from 

time to time. HOSPITAL will provide copies of said policies upon COMPANY request. COMPANY may be required to (i) register 

through HOSITAL’s vendor management/credentialing system prior to arriving onsite at any of HOSPITAL’s facilities; and (ii) 

complete background checks of employees, agents and/or subcontractors who provide services to HOSPITAL, the records of which 

shall be maintained and kept by COMPANY. Upon COMPANY request, HOSPITAL may perform the background check and bill 

COMPANY the actual and incurred cost of same. Should the Project involve a continuous presence by COMPANY’s employees or 

agents onsite at HOSPITAL’s facilities, COMPANY may be required to complete HOSPITAL’s onboarding process and abide by 

onboarding requirements of HOSPITAL’s Human Resources Department. COMPANY’s employees, agents, subcontractors and/or 

designees who do not abide by HOSPITAL’s policies may be barred from physical access to HOSPITAL’s premises. 

F. COMPANY shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, timely completion, and coordination of all services 

furnished by COMPANY, its subcontractors and its and their principals, officers, employees and agents under this Agreement. In 

performing the specified services, COMPANY shall follow practices consistent with generally accepted professional and technical 

standards. COMPANY further agree that for a period of one year following completion of its work, or such longer period as may be 

indicated in the specification, COMPANY will replace or repair any product it provides or installs because of defects in workmanship 

or materials, except to the extent the failure results from negligence of HOSPITAL. COMPANY expressly disclaims all other 

warranties, whether implied or statutory, including but not limited to, any warranty of merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose. 

G. It shall be the duty of COMPANY to assure that all products of its effort are technically sound and in conformance with all pertinent 

Federal, State and Local statutes, codes, ordinances, resolutions and other regulations. If applicable, COMPANY will not produce a 

work product which violates or infringes on any copyright or patent rights. COMPANY shall, without additional compensation, correct 

or revise any errors or omissions in its work products: 

1. Permitted or required approval by HOSPITAL of any products or services furnished by COMPANY shall not in any way 

relieve COMPANY of responsibility for the professional and technical accuracy and adequacy of its work. 

2. HOSPITAL’s review, approval, acceptance, or payment for any of COMPANY's services herein shall not be construed to 

operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action arising out of the performance of this 

Agreement, and COMPANY shall be and remain liable in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and applicable law 

for all damages to HOSPITAL caused by COMPANY's performance or failures to perform under this Agreement. 

H. All materials, information, and documents, whether finished, unfinished, drafted, developed, prepared, completed, or acquired by 

COMPANY for HOSPITAL relating to the services to be performed hereunder and not otherwise used or useful in connection with 

services previously rendered, or services to be rendered, by COMPANY to parties other than HOSPITAL shall become the property 

of HOSPITAL and shall be delivered to HOSPITAL's representative upon completion or termination of this Agreement, whichever 

comes first. COMPANY shall not be liable for damages, claims, and losses arising out of any reuse of any work products on any 

other project conducted by HOSPITAL. HOSPITAL shall have the right to reproduce all documentation supplied pursuant to this 

Agreement. 

I. Drawings and specifications remain the property of COMPANY. Copies of the drawings and specifications retained by HOSPITAL 

may be utilized only for its use and for occupying the PROJECT for which they were prepared, and not for the construction of any 

other project. A copy of all materials, information and documents, whether finished, unfinished, or draft, developed, prepared, 

Page 177 of 349 



Page | 4  

completed, or acquired by COMPANY during the performance of services for which it has been compensated under this Agreement, 

shall be delivered to HOSPITAL’s representative upon completion or termination of this Agreement, whichever occurs first. 

HOSPITAL shall have the right to reproduce all documentation supplied pursuant to this Agreement. COMPANY shall furnish 

Hospital’s representative copies of all correspondence to regulatory agencies for review prior to mailing such correspondence. 

J. The rights and remedies of HOSPITAL provided for under this section are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by 

law or under other sections of this Agreement. 

SECTION VI: SUBCONTRACTS 
A. Services specified by this Agreement shall not be subcontracted by COMPANY, without prior written approval of HOSPITAL. 

B. Approval by HOSPITAL of COMPANY's request to subcontract, or acceptance of, or payment for, subcontracted work by HOSPITAL 

shall not in any way relieve COMPANY of responsibility for the professional and technical accuracy and adequacy of the work. 

COMPANY shall be and remain liable for all damages to HOSPITAL caused by negligent performance or non-performance of work 

under this Agreement by COMPANY's subcontractor or its sub-subcontractor. 

C. The compensation due under Section II shall not be affected by HOSPITAL's approval of COMPANY's request to subcontract. 
 

SECTION VII: RESPONSIBILITY OF HOSPITAL 
A. HOSPITAL agrees that its officers and employees will cooperate with COMPANY in the performance of services under this 

Agreement and will be available for consultation with COMPANY at such reasonable times with advance notice as to not conflict with 

their other responsibilities. 

B. The services performed by COMPANY under this Agreement shall be subject to review for compliance with the terms of this 

Agreement by HOSPITAL's representative, Kim Hart, telephone number (702) 383-3762 or her designee. HOSPITAL's 

representative may delegate any or all of her responsibilities under this Agreement to appropriate staff members, and shall so inform 

COMPANY by written notice before the effective date of each such delegation. 

C. The review comments of HOSPITAL's representative may be reported in writing as needed to COMPANY. It is understood that 

HOSPITAL's representative’s review comments do not relieve COMPANY from the responsibility for the professional and technical 

accuracy of all work delivered under this Agreement. 

D. HOSPITAL shall assist COMPANY in obtaining data on documents from public officers or agencies, and from private citizens and/or 

business firms, whenever such material is necessary for the completion of the services specified by this Agreement. 

E. COMPANY will not be responsible for accuracy of information or data supplied by HOSPITAL or other sources to the extent such 

information or data would be relied upon by a reasonably prudent COMPANY. 

SECTION VIII: TIME SCHEDULE 
A. Time is of the essence of this Agreement. 

B. If COMPANY’s performance of services is delayed or if COMPANY’s sequence of tasks is changed, COMPANY shall notify 

HOSPITAL’s representative in writing of the reasons for the delay and prepare a revised schedule for performance of services. The 

revised schedule is subject to HOSPITAL’s written approval. 

SECTION IX: SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION 
A. Suspension 

HOSPITAL may suspend performance by COMPANY under this Agreement for such period of time as HOSPITAL, at its sole 

discretion, may prescribe by providing written notice to COMPANY at least five (5) working days prior to the date on which HOSPITAL 

wishes to suspend. Upon such suspension, HOSPITAL shall pay COMPANY its compensation, based on the percentage of the 

PROJECT completed and earned until the effective date of suspension, less all previous payments. COMPANY shall not perform 

further work under this Agreement after the effective date of suspension until receipt of written notice from HOSPITAL to resume 

performance. In the event HOSPITAL suspends performance by COMPANY for any cause other than the error or omission of the 

COMPANY, for an aggregate period in excess of thirty (30) days, COMPANY shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment of the 

compensation payable to COMPANY under this Agreement to reimburse COMPANY for additional costs occasioned as a result of 

Page 178 of 349 



Page | 5  

such suspension of performance by HOSPITAL based on appropriated funds and approval by HOSPITAL. 

B. Termination 

1. Termination for Cause 

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by either party in the event of substantial failure or default of the other 

party to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement through no fault of the terminating party; but only after the other party is 

given: 

a. not less than ten (10) calendar days written notice of intent to terminate; and 

b. an opportunity for consultation with the terminating party prior to termination. 

2. Termination for Convenience 

a. This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by HOSPITAL for its convenience; but only after COMPANY is 

given not less than fifteen (15) calendar days written notice of intent to terminate; and 

b. If termination is for HOSPITAL’s convenience, HOSPITAL shall pay COMPANY that portion of the compensation which 

has been earned as of the effective date of termination but no amount shall be allowed for anticipated profit on 

performed or unperformed services or other work. 

3. Effect of Termination 

a. If termination for substantial failure or default is effected by HOSPITAL, HOSPITAL will pay COMPANY that portion of 

the compensation which has been earned as of the effective date of termination but: 

i. No amount shall be allowed for anticipated profit on performed or unperformed services or other work; and 

ii. Any payment due to COMPANY at the time of termination may be adjusted to the extent of any additional costs 

occasioned to HOSPITAL by reason of COMPANY's default. 

b. Upon receipt or delivery by COMPANY of a termination notice, COMPANY shall promptly discontinue all services 

affected (unless the notice directs otherwise) and deliver or otherwise make available to HOSPITAL’s representative, 

copies of all deliverables as provided in Section V, paragraph H. Each Party shall return or destroy all originals and 

copies, except for those copies it may retain for archival purposes, of any confidential information of the other Party 

regarding the Project, including but not limited to protected health information (“PHI”), and shall certify in writing to the 

other Party, no later than thirty (30) days after termination, that is has done so. 

c. If after termination for failure of COMPANY to fulfill contractual obligations it is determined that COMPANY has not so 

failed, the termination shall be deemed to have been effected for the convenience of HOSPITAL. 

d. Upon termination, HOSPITAL may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion by agreement with another 

party or otherwise. In the event COMPANY shall cease conducting business, HOSPITAL shall have the right to make 

an unsolicited offer of employment to any employees of COMPANY assigned to the performance of this Agreement. 

4. The rights and remedies of HOSPITAL and COMPANY provided in this section are in addition to any other rights and 

remedies provided by law or under this Agreement. 

5. Neither party shall be considered in default in the performance of its obligations hereunder, nor any of them, to the extent 

that performance of such obligations, nor any of them, is prevented or delayed by any cause, existing or future, which is 

beyond the reasonable control of such party. Delays arising from the actions or inactions of one or more of COMPANY's 

principals, officers, employees, agents, subcontractors, vendors or suppliers are expressly recognized to be within 

COMPANY's control. 

SECTION X: INSURANCE 
COMPANY shall obtain and maintain the insurance coverage required in Exhibit F incorporated herein by this reference. COMPANY 

shall comply with the terms and conditions set forth in Exhibit F and shall include the cost of the insurance coverage in their prices. 

SECTION XI: NOTICES 

Page 179 of 349 



Page | 6  

Any notice required to be given hereunder shall be deemed to have been given when received by the party to whom it is directed by 

personal service, hand delivery, certified U.S. mail, return receipt requested or facsimile, at the following addresses, or such other address 

that a party may designate in writing: 

 
TO HOSPITAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

Attn: Legal Department 
1800 W. Charleston Blvd. 
Las Vegas, NV 89102 

 
 

TO COMPANY: Aargon Agency, Inc. 
8668 Spring Mountain Road, #110 
Las Vegas, NV 89117 

 
SECTION XII: MISCELLANEOUS 
A. ADA Requirements 

All work performed or services rendered by COMPANY shall comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act standards adopted by 

Clark County. All facilities built prior to January 26, 1992 must comply with the Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards; and all 

facilities completed after January 26, 1992 must comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines. 

B. Amendments 

No modifications or amendments to this Agreement shall be valid or enforceable unless mutually agreed to in writing by the parties. 

C. Assignment 

Any attempt by COMPANY to assign or otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of 

HOSPITAL shall be void. 

D. Audits 

The performance of this Agreement by COMPANY is subject to review by HOSPITAL to ensure Agreement compliance. COMPANY 

agrees to provide HOSPITAL any and all information requested that relates to the performance of this Agreement. All requests for 

information will be in writing to COMPANY. Time is of the essence during the audit process. Failure to provide the information 

requested within the timeline provided in the written information request may be considered a material breach of Agreement and be 

cause for suspension and/or termination of the Agreement. The parties hereto further agree that except as otherwise required by 

law, any audit and inspection rights include only the rights to verify amounts invoiced by COMPANY and to verify the nature of the 

services being invoiced, but does not include the right to review personal information of COMPANY’s employees, or proprietary 

information of COMPANY, including but not limited to COMPANY’s underlying cost, markup or overhead rates. 

E. Clark County Business License / Registration 

COMPANY warrants that it is has a valid Clark County Business License and will maintain such licensure through the duration of this 

Agreement. 

F. Complete Agreement 

This Agreement, together with all exhibits, appendices or other attachments, which are incorporated herein by reference, is the sole 

and entire agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement supersedes all prior understandings, 

representations, agreements and documentation relating to such subject matter. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of 

the main body of the Agreement and any attached exhibits, appendices or other materials, the Agreement shall take precedence. 

G. Confidential Treatment of Information 

COMPANY shall preserve in strict confidence any information obtained, assembled or prepared in connection with the performance 

of this Agreement and COMPANY represents and warrants that it shall not resell HOSPITAL confidential information. Confidential 

information does not include information that, under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) as may be 

amended from time to time, is protected health information (PHI), in which case the parties agree to handle such health information in 

accordance with the terms of the Business Associate Agreement (BAA) which is attached to and incorporated into this Agreement as 

Page 180 of 349 



Page | 7  

Exhibit D. 

H. Counterparts 

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts. Each counterpart will be an original, and all such counterparts will 

constitute a single instrument. 

I. Covenant 

COMPANY covenants that it presently has no interest and that it will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict 

in any manner or degree with the performance of services required to be performed under this Agreement. COMPANY further 

covenants, to its knowledge and ability, that in the performance of said services no person having any such interest shall be 

employed. 

J. Covenant Against Contingent Fees 

COMPANY warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this Agreement upon an 

agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bona fide permanent employees. 

For breach or violation of this warranty, HOSPITAL shall have the right to annul this Agreement without liability or in its discretion to 

deduct from the Agreement price or consideration or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, 

or contingent fee. 

K. Exclusion 

COMPANY represents and warrants that neither it, nor any of its employees or other contracted staff (collectively referred to in this 

paragraph as “employees”) has been or is about to be excluded from participation in any Federal Health Care Program (as defined 

herein). COMPANY agrees to notify HOSPITAL within five (5) business days of COMPANY’s receipt of notice of intent to exclude or 

actual notice of exclusion from any such program. The listing of COMPANY or any of its employees on the Office of Inspector 

General’s exclusion list (OIG website), the General Services Administration’s Lists of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement 

and Non-procurement Programs (GSA website) for excluded individuals or entities, any state Medicaid exclusion list, or the Office of 

Foreign Assets Control’s (OFAC’s) blocked list shall constitute “exclusion” for purposes of this paragraph. In the event that COMPANY 

or any of its employees is excluded from any Federal Health Care Program or placed on the OFAC’s blocked list, it shall be a material 

breach and this Agreement shall immediately terminate without penalty to HOSPITAL. For the purpose of this paragraph, the term 

“Federal Health Care Program” means the Medicare program, the Medicaid program, TRICARE, any health care program of the 

Department of Veterans Affairs, the Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant program, any state social services block grant 

program, any state children’s health insurance program, or any similar program. 

L. Governing Law / Venue 

Nevada law shall govern the interpretation of this Agreement. Venue shall be any court of competent jurisdiction in Las Vegas, 

Nevada. 

M. Gratuities 

1. HOSPITAL may, by written notice to COMPANY, terminate this Agreement if it is found after notice and hearing by 

HOSPITAL that gratuities (in the form of entertainment, gifts, or otherwise) were offered or given by COMPANY or any 

agent or representative of COMPANY to any officer or employee of HOSPITAL with a view toward securing a contract or 

securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending or making of any determinations with respect to the 

performance of this Agreement. 

2. In the event this Agreement is terminated as provided in paragraph 1 hereof, HOSPITAL shall be entitled: 

a. to pursue the same remedies against COMPANY as it could pursue in the event of a breach of this Agreement by 

COMPANY; and 

b. as a penalty in addition to any other damages to which it may be entitled by law, to exemplary damages in an amount 

(as determined by HOSPITAL) which shall be not less than three (3) nor more than ten (10) times the costs incurred 

by COMPANY in providing any such gratuities to any such officer or employee. 

3. The rights and remedies of HOSPITAL provided in this clause shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights 

Page 181 of 349 



Page | 8  

and remedies provided by law or under this Agreement. 

N. Immigration Reform and Control Act 

In accordance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, COMPANY agrees that it will not employ unauthorized aliens in 

the performance of this Agreement. 

O. Indemnity 

COMPANY does hereby agree to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless HOSPITAL and the employees, officers and agents of 

HOSPITAL from any liabilities, damages, losses, claims, actions or proceedings, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ 

fees, that are caused by the negligence, errors, omissions, recklessness or intentional misconduct of COMPANY or the employees 

or agents of COMPANY in the performance of this Agreement. 

P. Independent Contractor 

COMPANY acknowledges that it, COMPANY, and any subcontractors, agents or employees employed by it shall not, under any 

circumstances, be considered employees of the HOSPITAL, and that they shall not be entitled to any of the benefits or rights afforded 

employees of HOSPITAL, including, but not limited to, sick leave, vacation leave, holiday pay, Public Employees Retirement System 

benefits, or health, life, dental, long-term disability or workers' compensation insurance benefits. HOSPITAL will not provide or pay 

for any liability or medical insurance, retirement contributions or any other benefits for or on behalf of COMPANY or any of its officers, 

employees or other agents. 

Q. Prohibition Against Israel Boycott: 

In accordance with Nevada Revised Statute 332.065, COMPANY certifies that it is not refused to deal or to conduct business with, 

abstained from dealing or conducting business with, terminating business or business activities with or performing any other action 

that is intended to limit commercial relations with Israel or a person or entity doing business in Israel or in territories controlled by 

Israel. 

R. Public Funds / Non-Discrimination 

COMPANY acknowledges that the HOSPITAL has an obligation to ensure that public funds are not used to subsidize private 

discrimination. COMPANY recognizes that if they or their subcontractors are found guilty by an appropriate authority of refusing to 

hire or do business with an individual or company due to reasons of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or 

gender expression, age, disability, handicapping condition (including AIDS or AIDS related conditions), national origin, or any other 

class protected by law or regulation, HOSPITAL may declare COMPANY in breach of the Agreement, terminate the Agreement, and 

designate COMPANY as non-responsible. 

S. Public Records 

COMPANY acknowledges that HOSPITAL is a public, county-owned hospital which is subject to the provisions of the Nevada Public 

Records Act, Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 239, as may be amended from time to time. As such, its records are public 

documents available for copying and inspection by the public. If HOSPITAL receives a demand for the disclosure of any information 

related to this Agreement that COMPANY has claimed to be confidential and proprietary, HOSPITAL will immediately notify 

COMPANY of such demand and COMPANY shall immediately notify HOSPITAL of its intention to seek injunctive relief in a Nevada 

court for protective order. COMPANY shall indemnify and defend HOSPITAL from any claims or actions, including all associated 

costs and attorney’s fees, demanding the disclosure of COMPANY document in HOSPITAL’s custody and control in which 

COMPANY claims to be confidential and proprietary. 

T. Publicity 

Neither HOSPITAL nor COMPANY shall cause to be published or disseminated any advertising materials, either printed or 

electronically transmitted which identify the other party or its facilities with respect to this Agreement without the prior written consent 

of the other party. 

U. Subcontractor Information 

COMPANY shall provide a list of the Minority-Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), 

Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Small Business Enterprise (SBE), and Nevada Business Enterprise (NBE) 

Page 182 of 349 



Page | 9  

subcontractors for this Agreement utilizing the attached format Exhibit C. The information provided in Exhibit C by COMPANY is 

for the HOSPITAL’s information only. 

V. Survival of Terms. 

Unless otherwise stated, all of HOSPITAL and COMPANY’s respective obligations, representations and warranties under this 

Agreement which are not, by the expressed terms of this Agreement, fully to be performed while this Agreement is in effect shall 

survive the termination of this Agreement. 

W. Travel Policy. 

COMPANY will be reimbursed for pre-approved actual travel expenses including airfare, car rental, ground transportation, parking, 

meals and lodging. All expenses must be reasonable and supported by written receipts. COMPANY agrees to comply with 

HOSPITAL’s Travel Policy as set forth in detail in Exhibit E of this Agreement. 

X. Waiver; Severability 

No term or provision of this Agreement shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent is in writing 

and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, void or unenforceable 

under any applicable statute or rule of law, it shall to that extent be deemed omitted, and the balance of this Agreement shall be 

enforceable in accordance with its remaining terms. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the Parties has caused this Agreement to be executed and effective as of the Effective Date. 

 
HOSPITAL: 

 
UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 

 
 
 

By:      

MASON VAN HOUWELING   DATE 
Chief Executive Officer 

 
 
 

COMPANY: 

 
AARGON AGENCY, INC. 

 
 
 

By: Duane Christy   01/23/2025  

DUANE CHRISTY   DATE 

Chief Executive Officer 

Page 183 of 349 



 

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF WORK 

 
1. Scope of Work 

To provide billing and collection activities related to: 
 

a. Bad debt collection services for self-pay balances. All unresolved accounts are to be assigned to COMPANY 
at day 121. Bad debt collection services includes: providing outgoing dialing campaigns, email and text 
messaging when appropriate, establishing and managing payment arrangements, answering questions 
related to statements and fielding calls for account audits and charge disputes. 

 
b. Provide for collection agency intervention in an effort to collect medical bills determined to be uncollectible 

by HOSPITAL and its affiliated physician group(s). HOSPITAL currently or recently averaged monthly 
assignments to collections of 383 accounts and $3 million per month on the inpatient side and 4,306 
accounts and $5 million per month on the outpatient side. Nothing herein should be interpreted as a promise 
of future performance. 

 
c. HOSPITAL will award this Project to COMPANY to perform bad debt collections. The timeline would be as 

follows: 
 

i. Accounts will be placed with COMPANY at 121 days from the first statement if payment arrangements 
have not been established or after two consecutive payments are missed. COMPANY will have 1095 
days to collect or set up a payment plan. 
If no payment arrangement has been established at that time then such account(s) will be returned to 
HOSPITAL and will be labeled as “uncollectible bad debt.” 

 
2. General Service Level Expectations 

a. Licensing and Membership requirements. 

1. COMPANY must be licensed as a Collection Agency in Nevada. 
2. Maintain membership in good standing either with the Nevada Collectors Association or with the ACA 

International (at national level). 
 

b. Assignments of Accounts. 

1. Assignments of accounts will be made daily 
2. Placements of all applicable self-pay bad debt balances including balances after insurance. 

ii.1 International accounts will not be included. 
ii.2 HOSPITAL reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to withhold certain self-pay accounts. 
iii.3 Placements will be transmitted and received via secure SFTP processes. 

3. COMPANY will have a maximum of 1095 days to work on an account placed at the onset of the 
partnership and based on the timeline set forth above (refer to Section 1.c(i)). 
iii.1 COMPANY will send daily cancel files to HOSPITAL for all unresolved accounts at day 1095 from 

the date of placement. 
iii.2 If appropriate HOSPITAL payment arrangements are established, the account will remain with 

COMPANY for the term of the arrangements. 
iii.2.1 HOSPITAL will provide a copy of current self-pay discount and payment arrangement 

guidelines. 
iii.2.2 All exceptions to the approved discounts and payment arrangement guidelines must be 

requested in writing and approved by HOSPITAL. 
iii.3 COMPANY agrees to follow HOSPITAL’s guidelines for acceptable payment schedules. 

4. Upon identification of third-party insurance, the accounts will be properly updated in HOSPITAL’s 
system to initiate the claims filing process. 

5. Remote access will be granted to HOSPITAL account management systems as determined appropriate 
by HOSPITAL. 
v.1 COMPANY representative(s) will be required to complete HOSPITAL’s Information Security 

Agreement prior to being provided remote access. 

Page 184 of 349 



 

v.2 COMPANY will be responsible for arranging an appropriate number of staff to attend HOSPITAL 
application training onsite or via WebEx. COMPANY will include specific number of staff that will 
be working HOSPITAL accounts based on given volumes. 

v.3 HOSPITAL reserves the right to revoke access. 
v.4 All payments will be processed using HOSPITAL’s payment proposer Relay Account. 

v.4.1 Access will be granted to COMPANY representatives. 
v.4.2 Payment Card Industry compliance is required for all payment transactions. 

c. Assigned accounts will not be co-mingled with other clients. 

i. Accounts forwarded for legal action on behalf of HOSPITAL will be processed separately from other 
client accounts. 

ii. Assigned accounts will not be outsourced to a foreign country. 
 

d. Compliance. 
 

1. To ensure HIPAA compliance, HOSPITAL assignments must be maintained separately. 
2. Use of demographics for any purpose other than to collect a HOSPITAL account is prohibited. 
3. Should any new legislation take effect during the term of this Agreement, which necessitates changes 

to current HOSPITAL collection activities, HOSPITAL will be notified of the changes in writing. 
4. COMPANY must be able to demonstrate that appropriate encryption is used to maintain system 

security. 
5. COMPANY must be able to demonstrate that all personnel are trained on HIPAA compliance and PHI 

security. 

e. Interest and Fees. 
 

i. The charging of interest on assigned accounts without a court order is expressly prohibited. Court ordered 
interest will be remitted to HOSPITAL. 

ii. Assessing fees, with the exception of legal fees as limited in paragraph g herein, is prohibited. This includes, 
but is not limited to, collection fees, copy fees, attorney fees or any other fees or costs associated with the 
collection of assigned accounts. 

iii. Patients will not be charged interest or payment processing fees at any time while the account is in 
the bad debt COMPANY’s inventory. 

 
f. Legal Action. 

 
i. The use of a Confession of Judgment (COJ) as an acknowledgement of a debt and a commitment to 

pay is authorized. It will be limited to the principal amount only. 
ii. The filing of a COJ in lieu of obtaining a court ordered judgment is prohibited. 
iii. Authorization to file for legal (Assignment of Account) must be obtained after the account status changes 

to “Legal Review”. COMPANY must provide information regarding tangible assets prior to HOSPITAL 
authorizing action. 

g. Assessed legal fees to patient (e.g., court costs – filing fees, etc.) will not exceed $250.00. This fee will be 
kept by COMPANY. 

h. Demographic and Collection Information Limitations. 
 

i. Adhere to EPIC’s standard data specs 
ii. Copies of Conditions of Admission and Financial Statements (COA/FS) will be provided upon receipt of 

a copy of the dispute letter from the patient/guarantor requesting proof of service. No other copies from 
a patient’s medical or billing records will be provided without receipt of a valid authorization signed by 
the patient or a legal representative of the patient or a court order. A judge must sign all court ordered 
requests. 

iii. Data transfer will be via a secure FTP VPN connector. 
iv. Data transfer will be via a secure FTP site. 
v. Collection status changes (e.g., active, inactive, cancelled and returned, referred to legal, etc.) will be 

Page 185 of 349 



 

updated daily for the FTP site. 
vi. COMPANY must be able to send and receive emails via TLS encryption to insure strict adherence to 

patient privacy. 
 

i. COMPANY Representation/Training. 
 

i. Throughout the term of this Agreement, COMPANY will be responsible for the initial and quarterly 
training of all representatives associated with the collection of HOSPITAL accounts. Mandatory training 
must include all applicable laws, policies and regulations governing collection practices inclusive of 
special conditions associated with medical collections. 

ii. COMPANY must provide HOSPITAL with a detailed plan of representative training activities associated 
with collection of HOSPITAL’s accounts. 

iii. Designated representatives must be assigned to HOSPITAL accounts. 
 

j. Call System Requirements. 

i. COMPANY’s call center system must be able to handle high volume calls (greater than 5,000 
HOSPITAL calls per month). 

ii. Call center must be staffed at a minimum of Monday – Friday, 7:30 a.m. – 6:00 p.m. Pacific Standard 
Time. 

iii. Dialing campaigns must comply with all applicable laws and regulations. 
iv. All telephone messages must be returned within 24 business hours. 
v. HOSPITAL calls may not be co-mingled with other client calls. 
vi. HOSPITAL is to be notified as soon as possible of any phone outages, system outages or 

other unforeseen circumstances that affect HOSPITAL calls. 
vii. All calls must be recorded for future reference should a complaint or dispute be filed. 

k. Concerns and Disputes Registered by Guarantor. 
 

i. COMPANY will be responsible for resolving patient concerns/disputes presented to them in written form 
within one business day or 24 hours from date of concern/dispute. Resolution means either a payment 
arrangement has been established, payment in full is made, or the account has been referred back to 
HOSPITAL due to patient complaint or concern surrounding the billed charges. 

ii. COMPANY must be able to provide HOSPITAL with the record telephone conversation upon request. 
iii. A copy of all correspondence from COMPANY to the patient will be provided to HOSPITAL. 
iv. COMPANY’s failure to respond to written concerns/disputes in the prescribed time could place 

HOSPITAL at risk. Should this transpire, the offending COMPANY will be considered non-responsive 
which will void this Agreement. 

l. Medicaid and County Eligibility. 

i. Accounts identified as Medicaid or County eligible must be closed and returned to HOSPITAL along 
with a billing request form or adjustment, as applicable. Proof of eligibility must accompany the request. 

 
m. Credit Bureau Reporting. 

 
i. All undisputed balances will be reported to TransUnion and at least one other major credit bureau within 

90 days from placement unless paid in full or in an acceptable payment arrangement secured with a 
promissory note or COJ (see paragraph f herein on COJ limitations). 

n. Remittance of Collections. 
 

i. All collections along with the supporting remittance advice(s) will be remitted to HOSPITAL weekly as 
follows: 
i.1 Monies collected the previous week will be remitted the following week on Tuesday. Company to 

adhere to HOSPITAL’s weekly remittance process 
 

ii. A proper remittance includes the electronic update of cash received, a detailed invoice and a remittance 
check. 

Page 186 of 349 



 

ii.1 The invoice and remittance check will be delivered to HOSPITAL’s Patient Accounting 
Department by 4:00 p.m. PST by the due date as described in paragraph i.1 herein. 

ii.2 Late remittances for reasons beyond COMPANY’s control must be justified and acknowledged 
by HOSPITAL. If COMPANY is demonstrating a pattern of late remittances, it will be considered 
as non-responsive. 

ii.3 HOSPITAL would consider two consecutive, unjustified, late remittances in any given time period 
or three late remittances in a 12 month period as a pattern. 

iii. The invoices and remittance checks will be delivered to HOSPITAL’s Patient Accounting Department 
by 4:00 p.m. PST by the due date as described in paragraph i.1 herein. 

iv. COMPANY must be able to provide an itemized statement of payments, discount adjustments, 
contingency amounts and account balances to HOSPITAL’s Accounts Payable Department on a 
monthly basis. 

 
 

o. Workflow. 

i. COMPANY will provide a detailed diagram describing the workflow used throughout the entire life cycle 
of the account from placement to cancellation/return. 

ii. COMPANY shall make changes to its workflow as directed by HOSPITAL. 
 

p. Statements. 
 

i. COMPANY will be responsible for sending all past-due notices to debtors. The cost associated with 
such notices will be included in the rate proposed by COMPANY. 
i.1 Contact information on past-due notices will direct the patient to COMPANY’s call center. 
i.2 COMPANY will have all past-due notices and other debtor correspondence approved by 

HOSPITAL before incorporated into COMPANY’s workflow. 
 

q. Reporting Requirements: HOSPITAL’s Patient Accounting System is EPIC. All inbound and outbound file 
transfers will utilize EPIC’s standard file specifications. 

i. HOSPITAL will provide file layouts to COMPANY outlining the files that COMPANY will be required to 
accept for placements, transactions, cancels, etc. 

ii. Daily placement files will be sent via FTP from HOSPITAL to COMPANY. 
iii. Daily transaction files that include payments, adjustments, notes, and other miscellaneous transactions 

will be sent via FTP from HOSPITAL to COMPANY. 
iv. Daily deletion files will be sent via FTP from HOSPITAL to COMPANY. 

iv.1 Bankruptcy Discharges 
iv.2 Legal Cases 
iv.3 Approved for Retroactive Medicaid 

v. Daily acknowledgement of assignments by COMPANY. 
vi. Inventory Report (Weekly). 
vii. Performance Report (Monthly). 
viii. Semi-Monthly Remittance Report (Due the 5th and 20th of each month). 
ix. 12 Month Summary of Account Status (Monthly). 
x. Close Report. 
xi. Cancellation Report (Approved categories): 

xi.1 Disputed (dispute validated by HOSPITAL) 
xi.2 Deceased (No assets/No estate) 
xi.3 Documentation (Charges cannot be validated) 
xi.4 Wrong Party (Admitting error) 
xi.5 Guarantor is Minor (Admitting error) 
xi.6 Suit dismissed (Lost Court Case) 
xi.7 Client Request (Cancelled by HOSPITAL) 
xi.8 Bankruptcy (Discharged) 
xi.9 Welfare Eligible (Clark County/Medicaid) 

xii. Daily notes files will be required from COMPANY. 
 

r. Performance Expectations. 

Page 187 of 349 



 

i. Call abandonment rate of less than three percent (3%). 
ii. Wait times should not exceed two minutes without being offered the option to leave a message. 
iii. Account notes are required for every action taken on HOSPITAL accounts including automated dialing 

campaign logs. 
iii.1 COMPANY must be able to provide a file of notations in an agreed upon format for upload to 

HOSPITAL’s system. 
iii.2 Note files will be transmitted daily via FTP. 

 
s. Contacts. 

i. COMPANY must be able to identify a point person for Information Services issues. 
ii. Provide a point person for FTP login. 
iii. Designate a contact for dispute resolution and information requests related to concerns or complaints. 
iv. Designate a liaison person for client service. 

 
t. Terms and Pricing. 

i. Terms and pricing will remain in effect for the duration of this Agreement including the extension options. 
 

u. Standards. 
 

i. HOSPITAL expects that COMPANY will strictly adhere to the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act and all 
applicable Federal and State laws related to billing and collections. Standards of quality customer 
service and respect for human dignity will be maintained at all times when dealing with HOSPITAL’s 
customers/patients. 

ii. The responsibility for effectively training COMPANY representatives regarding customer service 
expectations, the provisions of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act and the U.S. Bankruptcy Code 
relating to the collection of debts rests exclusively with COMPANY. 

iii. COMPANY will conduct business in a manner that supports HOSPITAL’s mission, vision and core 
values. 

iv. Compliance with all 501(r) regulations (specifically pertaining to Extraordinary Collection Actions). 
v. Customer Service Standards: 

v.1 HOSPITAL expects that COMPANY will provide quality customer service to the patients upon 
each contact. 

v.2 All patient inbound inquiries will have a 24 hour or one business day, whichever is less, turnaround 
time. 

vi. COMPANY will ensure that 100% of inbound and outbound call activity is recorded and retrievable by 
HOSPITAL within 24 business hours of the initial request. 

 
3. Ownership of Records: All documents and data made available by HOSPITAL to COMPANY hereunder shall 

remain the property of HOSPITAL. 

Page 188 of 349 



 

EXHIBIT B 
FEE SCHEDULE 

 
• Commission for collections: 10% (all‐inclusive). This rate covers all aspects of the PROJECT, including, but not 

limited to, labor, staffing, supplies, equipment, transportation, and any other associated costs associated with 
the Scope of Work (Exhibit A). 

Page 189 of 349 



 

EXHIBIT C 
SUBCONTRACTOR INFORMATION 

 
DEFINITIONS 

MINORITY OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (MBE): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit 
which performs a commercially useful function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority 
persons of Black American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native American ethnicity. 

WOMEN OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (WBE): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit 
which performs a commercially useful function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women. 

PHYSICALLY-CHALLENGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (PBE): An independent and continuing Nevada business 
for profit which performs a commercially useful function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more 
disabled individuals pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (SBE): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs 
a commercially useful function, is not owned and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or 
physically-challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000. 

NEVADA BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (NBE): Any Nevada business which has the resources necessary to sufficiently 
perform identified County projects, and is owned or controlled by individuals that are not designated as socially or 
economically disadvantaged. 

 
It is our intent to utilize the following MBE, WBE, PBE, SBE, and NBE subcontractors in association with 
this Contract: 

 
Subcontractor Name:   
Contact Person:   Telephone Number:  
Description of Work:   

 

Estimated Percentage of Total Dollars:  
Business Type:    MBE    WBE    PBE    SBE    NBE 

 

 
Subcontractor Name:   
Contact Person:   Telephone Number:  
Description of Work:   

 

Estimated Percentage of Total Dollars:     
Business Type:   MBE   WBE   PBE   SBE   NBE 

 

 

X□ No MBE, WBE, PBE, SBE, or NBE subcontractors will be used. 

Page 190 of 349 



BAA ‐ Page 1 of 5 Version 08/2016  

EXHIBIT D 
(TERMS & CONDITIONS HEREIN ARE NON-NEGOTIABLE) 

Business Associate Agreement 

This Agreement is made effective the 26th day of February, 2025, by and between University 
Medical Center of Southern Nevada (hereinafter referred to as “Covered Entity”), a county hospital duly 
organized pursuant to Chapter 450 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, with its principal place of business at 
1800 West Charleston Boulevard, Las Vegas, Nevada, 89102, and Aargon Agency, Inc., hereinafter referred 
to as “Business Associate”, (individually, a “Party” and collectively, the “Parties”) 

 
WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Sections 261 through 264 of the federal Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104‐191, known as “the Administrative Simplification provisions,” 
direct the Department of Health and Human Services to develop standards to protect the security, 
confidentiality and integrity of health information; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Administrative Simplification provisions, the Secretary of Health and 
Human Services issued regulations modifying 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 (the “HIPAA Rules”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (Pub. L. 111‐5), pursuant to 

Title XIII of Division A and Title IV of Division B, called the “Health Information Technology for Economic 
and Clinical Health” (“HITECH”) Act, as well as the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 
(“GINA,” Pub. L. 110‐233), provide for modifications to the HIPAA Rules; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Secretary, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, published 

modifications to 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 under HITECH and GINA, and other modifications on January 
25, 2013, the “Final Rule,” and 

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to enter into or have entered into an arrangement whereby Business 
Associate will provide certain services to Covered Entity, and, pursuant to such arrangement, Business 
Associate may be considered a “Business Associate” of Covered Entity as defined in the HIPAA Rules (the 
agreement evidencing such arrangement is entitled “Underlying Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, Business Associate will have access to Protected Health Information (as defined 
below) in fulfilling its responsibilities under such arrangement. 

THEREFORE, in consideration of the Parties’ continuing obligations under the Underlying 
Agreement, compliance with the HIPAA Rules, and for other good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound, the Parties 
agree to the provisions of this Agreement in order to address the requirements of the HIPAA Rules and 
to protect the interests of both Parties. 

I. DEFINITIONS 

“HIPAA Rules” means the Privacy, Security, Breach Notification, and Enforcement Rules at 45 CFR Part 
160 and Part 164. 

“Protected Health Information” means individually identifiable health information created, received, 
maintained, or transmitted in any medium, including, without limitation, all information, data, 

Page 191 of 349 



BAA ‐ Page 2 of 5 Version 08/2016  

documentation, and materials, including without limitation, demographic, medical and financial 
information, that relates to the past, present, or future physical or mental health or condition of an 
individual; the provision of health care to an individual; or the past, present, or future payment for the 
provision of health care to an individual; and that identifies the individual or with respect to which there 
is a reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to identify the individual. “Protected Health 
Information” includes without limitation “Electronic Protected Health Information” as defined below. 

“Electronic Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information which is transmitted by 
Electronic Media (as defined in the HIPAA Rules) or maintained in Electronic Media. 

The following terms used in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as defined in the HIPAA Rules: 
Administrative Safeguards, Breach, Business Associate, Business Associate Agreement, Covered Entity, 
Individually Identifiable Health Information, Minimum Necessary, Physical Safeguards, Security Incident, 
and Technical Safeguards. 

II. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

Business Associate and Covered Entity acknowledge and agree that in the event of an inconsistency 
between the provisions of this Agreement and mandatory provisions of the HIPAA Rules, the HIPAA 
Rules shall control. Where provisions of this Agreement are different than those mandated in the HIPAA 
Rules, but are nonetheless permitted by the HIPAA Rules, the provisions of this Agreement shall control. 

Business Associate acknowledges and agrees that all Protected Health Information that is disclosed or 
made available in any form (including paper, oral, audio recording or electronic media) by Covered 
Entity to Business Associate or is created or received by Business Associate on Covered Entity’s behalf 
shall be subject to this Agreement. 

Business Associate has read, acknowledges, and agrees that the Secretary, U.S. Department of Health 
and Human Services, published modifications to 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 under HITECH and GINA, and 
other modifications on January 25, 2013, the “Final Rule,” and the Final Rule significantly impacted and 
expanded Business Associates’ requirements to adhere to the HIPAA Rules. 

III. USE AND DISCLOSURE OF PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION 

(a) Business Associate agrees that all uses and disclosures of Protected Health information 
shall be subject to the limits set forth in 45 CFR 164.514 regarding Minimum Necessary 
requirements and limited data sets. 

(b) Business Associate agrees to use or disclose Protected Health Information solely: 

(i) For meeting its business obligations as set forth in any agreements between the 
Parties evidencing their business relationship; or 

(ii) as required by applicable law, rule or regulation, or by accrediting or 
credentialing organization to whom Covered Entity is required to disclose such 
information or as otherwise permitted under this Agreement or the Underlying 
Agreement (if consistent with this Agreement and the HIPAA Rules). 

(c) Where Business Associate is permitted to use Subcontractors that create, receive, 
maintain, or transmit Protected Health Information; Business Associate agrees to execute a 
“Business Associate Agreement” with Subcontractor as defined in the HIPAA Rules that includes 

Page 192 of 349 



BAA ‐ Page 3 of 5 Version 08/2016  

the same covenants for using and disclosing, safeguarding, auditing, and otherwise 
administering Protected Health Information as outlined in Sections I through VII of this 
Agreement (45 CFR 164.314). 

(d) Business Associate will acquire written authorization in the form of an update or 
amendment to this Agreement and Underlying Agreement prior to: 

(i) Directly or indirectly receiving any remuneration for the sale or exchange of any 
Protected Health Information; or 

(ii) Utilizing Protected Health Information for any activity that might be deemed 
“Marketing” under the HIPAA rules. 

IV. SAFEGUARDING PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION 

(a) Business Associate agrees: 

(i) To implement appropriate safeguards and internal controls to prevent the use 
or disclosure of Protected Health Information other than as permitted in this Agreement 
or by the HIPAA Rules. 

(ii) To implement “Administrative Safeguards,” “Physical Safeguards,” and 
“Technical Safeguards” as defined in the HIPAA Rules to protect and secure the 
confidentiality, integrity, and availability of Electronic Protected Health Information (45 
CFR 164.308, 164.310, 164.312). Business Associate shall document policies and 
procedures for safeguarding Electronic Protected Health Information in accordance with 
45 CFR 164.316. 

(iii) To notify Covered Entity of any attempted or successful unauthorized access, 
use, disclosure, modification, or destruction of information or interference with system 
operations in an information system (“Security Incident”) upon discovery of the Security 
Incident. 

(b) When an impermissible acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of Protected Health 
Information (“Breach”) occurs, Business Associate agrees: 

(i) To notify Covered Entity’s Chief Privacy Officer immediately upon discovery of 
the Breach, and 

(ii) Within 15 business days of the discovery of the Breach, provide Covered Entity 
with all required content of notification in accordance with 45 CFR 164.410 and 45 CFR 
164.404, and 

(iii) To fully cooperate with Covered Entity’s analysis and final determination on 
whether to notify affected individuals, media, or Secretary of the U.S. Department of 
Health and Human Services, and 

(iv) To pay all costs associated with the notification of affected individuals and costs 
associated with mitigating potential harmful effects to affected individuals. 

Page 193 of 349 



BAA ‐ Page 4 of 5 Version 08/2016  

V. RIGHT TO AUDIT 

(a) Business Associate agrees: 

(i) To provide Covered Entity with timely and appropriate access to records, 
electronic records, HIPAA assessment questionnaires provided by Covered Entity, 
personnel, or facilities sufficient for Covered Entity to gain reasonable assurance that 
Business Associate is in compliance with the HIPAA Rules and the provisions of this 
Agreement. 

(ii) That in accordance with the HIPAA Rules, the Secretary of the U.S. Department 
of Health and Human Services has the right to review, audit, or investigate Business 
Associate’s records, electronic records, facilities, systems, and practices related to 
safeguarding, use, and disclosure of Protected Health Information to ensure Covered 
Entity’s or Business Associate’s compliance with the HIPAA Rules. 

VI. COVERED ENTITY REQUESTS AND ACCOUNTING FOR DISCLOSURES 

(a) At the Covered Entity’s Request, Business Associate agrees: 

(i) To comply with any requests for restrictions on certain disclosures of Protected 
Health Information pursuant to Section 164.522 of the HIPAA Rules to which Covered 
Entity has agreed and of which Business Associate is notified by Covered Entity. 

(ii) To make available Protected Health Information to the extent and in the 
manner required by Section 164.524 of the HIPAA Rules. If Business Associate maintains 
Protected Health Information electronically, it agrees to make such Protected Health 
Information electronically available to the Covered Entity. 

(iii) To make Protected Health Information available for amendment and 
incorporate any amendments to Protected Health Information in accordance with the 
requirements of Section 164.526 of the HIPAA Rules. 

(iv) To account for disclosures of Protected Health Information and make an 
accounting of such disclosures available to Covered Entity as required by Section 
164.528 of the HIPAA Rules. Business Associate shall provide any accounting required 
within 15 business days of request from Covered Entity. 

VII. TERMINATION 

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Covered Entity shall have the right to 
terminate this Agreement and the Underlying Agreement immediately if Covered Entity determines that 
Business Associate has violated any material term of this Agreement. If Covered Entity reasonably 
believes that Business Associate will violate a material term of this Agreement and, where practicable, 
Covered Entity gives written notice to Business Associate of such belief within a reasonable time after 
forming such belief, and Business Associate fails to provide adequate written assurances to Covered 
Entity that it will not breach the cited term of this Agreement within a reasonable period of time given 
the specific circumstances, but in any event, before the threatened breach is to occur, then Covered 
Entity shall have the right to terminate this Agreement and the Underlying Agreement immediately. 

Page 194 of 349 



BAA ‐ Page 5 of 5 Version 08/2016  

At termination of this Agreement, the Underlying Agreement (or any similar documentation of the 
business relationship of the Parties), or upon request of Covered Entity, whichever occurs first, if 
feasible, Business Associate will return or destroy all Protected Health Information received from or 
created or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity that Business Associate still 
maintains in any form, provide a written certification to Covered Entity that such information has been 
returned or destroyed, and retain no copies of such information, or if such return or destruction is not 
feasible, Business Associate will extend the protections of this Agreement to the information and limit 
further uses and disclosures to those purposes that make the return or destruction of the information 
not feasible. 

VIII. MISCELLANEOUS 

Except as expressly stated herein or the HIPAA Rules, the Parties to this Agreement do not intend to 
create any rights in any third parties. The obligations of Business Associate under this Section shall 
survive the expiration, termination, or cancellation of this Agreement, the Underlying Agreement and/or 
the business relationship of the Parties, and shall continue to bind Business Associate, its agents, 
employees, contractors, successors, and assigns as set forth herein. 

This Agreement may be amended or modified only in a writing signed by the Parties. No Party may 
assign its respective rights and obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of 
the other Party. None of the provisions of this Agreement are intended to create, nor will they be 
deemed to create any relationship between the Parties other than that of independent parties 
contracting with each other solely for the purposes of effecting the provisions of this Agreement and 
any other agreements between the Parties evidencing their business relationship. This Agreement will 
be governed by the laws of the State of Nevada. No change, waiver or discharge of any liability or 
obligation hereunder on any one or more occasions shall be deemed a waiver of performance of any 
continuing or other obligation, or shall prohibit enforcement of any obligation, on any other occasion. 

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and 
effect. In addition, in the event a Party believes in good faith that any provision of this Agreement fails 
to comply with the HIPAA Rules, such Party shall notify the other Party in writing. For a period of up to 
thirty days, the Parties shall address in good faith such concern and amend the terms of this Agreement, 
if necessary to bring it into compliance. If, after such thirty‐day period, the Agreement fails to comply 
with the HIPAA Rules, then either Party has the right to terminate upon written notice to the other 
Party. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year written above. 

COVERED ENTITY: BUSINESS ASSOCIATE: 

 
By:  By: Aargon Agency, Inc  

 
Mason Van Houweling Name: Miguel Alvarez  

 
Title: CEO Title:  Chief Operations Officer  

Date:  Date: 12/23/2024  

Page 195 of 349 



 

EXHIBIT E 
TRAVEL POLICY 

 
A. Pursuant to Chapter 2.46 of the Clark County Code, HOSPITAL shall ensure that business travel costs incurred by COMPANY’s 

traveler(s) are kept to an absolute minimum consistent with the effective conduct of business. 

B. The following are the acceptable travel guidelines for reimbursement of travel costs: 

Reimbursement shall only be for the contract personnel/traveler. HOSPITAL assumes no obligation to reimburse travelers for 
expenses that are not pre-approved by HOSPITAL’s representative or their designee which are not in compliance with this 
Travel Policy. 

Airfare: Domestic Airline (Coach Ticket); purchased at least twenty-one (21) days in advance unless exception was granted by 

HOSPITAL for exceptional circumstances; one (1) checked bag fee. Number of trips must be approved by HOSPITAL. 

Parking: Airport parking (Economy Lot only) 

Meals: All meal charges will be paid up to and not to exceed $65 per day per traveler. This includes a 20% tip. 

Lodging: Lodging will either be booked by HOSPITAL or reimbursed for costs of a reasonable room rate plus taxes for Las 

Vegas, NV, not to exceed $150 per night excluding taxes and fees (Monday to Thursday) and not to exceed $225 per night 

excluding taxes and fees (Friday to Sunday). 

Rental Vehicles: 

- One (1) automobile rental will be authorized per four (4) travelers. Rental must be standard-size or smaller, and must 

have full insurance coverage through the rental car company (traveler’s personal insurance is not permitted). 

HOSPITAL will reimburse up to $125 per day. 

- Under no circumstances should a traveler allow others to drive a rental car which has been rented in the traveler’s 

name, for the purpose of conducting business at HOSPITAL. 

- Travelers may be allowed to rent a car to travel TO their destination when: 

• Air travel is not available 

• The distance to the destination is less than 150 miles 

• Transporting large or bulky materials is more cost effective in a rental car than other means of transportation 

- Travelers may be allowed to rent a car AT their destination when: 

• It is less expensive than other transportation modes such as taxis, airport shuttles, ride share, etc. 

• Transporting large or bulky materials 

- Rental cars should be returned: 

• To the original rental city unless approved for one-way rental 

• Intact (i.e., no dents, scratches or other damage within the traveler’s control) 

• On time, to avoid additional charges 

• With a full tank of gas 

Uber/Lyft/Taxi/Shuttle Vehicles: When available, the use of shuttle service is required. Otherwise, Uber/Lyft/Taxi or equivalent 

ride sharing option can be used. HOSPITAL will reimburse up to $125 per day. 

 
Each traveler shall submit the following documents in order to claim travel reimbursement. The documents shall be readable copies 

of the original itemized receipts with each traveler’s full name. Only actual costs (including all applicable sales tax) will be 

reimbursed. Credit card statements are not considered original receipts and will not be accepted. 

- COMPANY’s Invoice 

• With copy of executed Agreement highlighting the allowable travel 

• List of travelers 

• Number of days in travel status 

Page 196 of 349 



 

- Hotel receipt 

- Meal receipts for each meal (must provide itemized receipts) 

- Airline receipt 

- Car rental receipt (identify driver and passengers) 

- Airport parking receipt (traveler’s Airport origin) 

- Gas receipt(s) 

- Ride share receipt(s) 
 
 

The following are some of the charges that will NOT be allowed for reimbursement (not all inclusive): 

- Personal vehicle (HOSPITAL will not pay costs associated to driving a personal vehicle in lieu of air travel or if 

applicable, rental vehicle) 

- Baggage fees exceeding one (1) checked bag; overweight charges 

- Upgrades for flights (e.g., seat, Pre-Check, priority boarding), transportation, lodging, or vehicles/rentals (e.g., 

Premium/Luxury rides) 

- Alcohol 

- Room service 

- In-room movie rentals 

- In-room beverage/snacks 

- Housekeeping gratuity 

- Gas for personal vehicles 

- Transportation to and from traveler’s home and the airport 

- Rental vehicle expenses incurred over and above normal charges (i.e., unauthorized drop-off fees, rental dates not 

identified as official business dates) 

- Mileage 

- Travel time 

- Traveler’s regular days off 
 
 

C. Any other additional expenses not specified herein will not be reimbursed by HOSPITAL. 

D. The terms of this Exhibit are in accordance with HOSPITAL’s Travel/Education Authorization and Reimbursement Policy, as 

amended, a copy of which can be provided to COMPANY upon request. 

Page 197 of 349 



© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD ACORD 25 (2016/03) 

 

EXHIBIT F - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 

12/20/2024 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER  CONTACT  CIAI NAME: 
Collectors Insurance Agency, Inc.  PHONE (952) 926-6547 

(A/C, No, Ext): 
FAX 
(A/C, No): (952) 928-3837 

3200 Courthouse Lane  E-MAIL collectorsinsurance@acainternational.org 
ADDRESS: 

  INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC # 

Eagan MN 55121 INSURER A : Nationwide General Insurance Company 23760 

INSURED  INSURER B : Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company 23787 

Aargon Agency Inc  INSURER C :  

8668 Spring Mountain Rd  INSURER D :  

  INSURER E :  

Las Vegas NV 89117-4113 INSURER F :  

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 11127875 REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR 
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE 

ADDL 
INSD 

SUBR 
WVD POLICY NUMBER 

POLICY EFF 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 

POLICY EXP 
(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS 

 
 

 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY      EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000 
   

CLAIMS-MADE  OCCUR 
     DAMAGE TO RENTED 

$ 300,000      PREMISES (Ea occurrence) 
   

 

    MED EXP (Any one person) $ 5,000 

A  Y ACPBP017116093318 04/02/2024 04/02/2025 PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1,000,000 
 

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: 
    GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000 

  POLICY 
PRO-

  LOC      
PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $ 2,000,000 

 JECT     

  $  OTHER:     

 
 
 

A 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY  
 
 

Y 

  
 
 

ACPBP017116093318 

 
 
 

04/02/2024 

 
 
 

04/02/2025 

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT 
(Ea accident) $ INCLUDED IN GL 

 ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ 

 OWNED 
AUTOS ONLY 
HIRED 
AUTOS ONLY 

 SCHEDULED 
AUTOS 
NON-OWNED 
AUTOS ONLY 

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $ 
 

 
 

 PROPERTY DAMAGE 
(Per accident) $ 

   $ 

 
B 

 

 UMBRELLA LIAB 

EXCESS LIAB 

 

 OCCUR 

CLAIMS-MADE 

 
Y 

 
 

ACPCU017116093318 
 

04/02/2024 
 

04/02/2025 
EACH OCCURRENCE $ 5,000,000 

  AGGREGATE $ 5,000,000 
 DED  RETENTION $  $ 

 WORKERS COMPENSATION 
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY 

   
Y / N 

      PER 
STATUTE 

 OTH- 
ER 

 

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N / A 

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ (Mandatory in NH)  

If yes, describe under  

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $ DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below  

         

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) 

IT IS AGREED THAT UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER IS INCLUDED AS ADDITIONAL INSURED SOLELY AS THEIR INTERESTS MAY APPEAR IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE POLICY FORM. 

 
 

RFP 2024-15 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 
  

 

 
UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER 

  
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

1800 WEST CHARLESTON BLVD 

C/O Legal Department 

LAS VEGAS 

 
 
 

NV 89102 

 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
 

   

Page 198 of 349 

mailto:collectorsinsurance@acainternational.org


© 1995-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD ACORD 24 (2016/03) 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF PROPERTY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 

12/20/2024 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

PRODUCER   CONTACT CIAI NAME: 
Aon Risk Services Central, Inc.   PHONE (952) 926-6547 

(A/C, No, Ext): 
 FAX 

(A/C, No): (952) 928-3837 

5600 W 83rd St. 8200 Tower   E-MAIL collectorsinsurance@acainternational.org 
ADDRESS: 

Ste 1100   PRODUCER 00003170 
CUSTOMER ID: 

Minneapolis MN 55437-3844 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC # 

INSURED 

AARGON AGENCY, INC. 

8668 SPRING MOUNTAIN RD, #110 

 
LAS VEGAS 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NV 

 
 
 
 
 
 

89117 

INSURER A : QBE Insurance Corporation 39217 

INSURER B :  

INSURER C :  

INSURER D :  

INSURER E :  

INSURER F :  

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 11127875 REVISION NUMBER: 
LOCATION OF PREMISES / DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required) 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR 
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFFECTIVE 

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 
POLICY EXPIRATION 
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) COVERED PROPERTY LIMITS 

  PROPERTY  
 

DEDUCTIBLES 

    BUILDING 

PERSONAL PROPERTY 

BUSINESS INCOME 

EXTRA EXPENSE 

RENTAL VALUE 

BLANKET BUILDING 

BLANKET PERS PROP 

BLANKET BLDG & PP 

$ 

CAUSES OF LOSS  $ 
 BASIC BUILDING  $ 
 BROAD  $ CONTENTS 
 SPECIAL  $ 
 EARTHQUAKE   $ 
 WIND   $ 
 FLOOD   $ 
    $ 
    $ 

  INLAND MARINE TYPE OF POLICY     $ 

CAUSES OF LOSS  $ 
 NAMED PERILS POLICY NUMBER  $ 
  $ 

 
A 

 

 CRIME  
ADC01408-07 

 
05/01/2024 

 
05/01/2025 

 

 Employee Theft $ 250,000 

TYPE OF POLICY 
 $ 
 $ 

  BOILER & MACHINERY /      $ 
EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN  $ 

       $ 
 $ 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS / OTHER COVERAGES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) 
 
 

RFP 2024-15 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER 
 

C/O Legal Department 
 

1800 WEST CHARLESTON BLVD 
 
 

LAS VEGAS NV  89102 

 
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
 

 

Page 199 of 349 

mailto:collectorsinsurance@acainternational.org


© 1995-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD ACORD 25 (2016/03) 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 

12/20/2024 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER  CONTACT  CIAI NAME: 
Aon Risk Services Central, Inc.  PHONE (952) 926-6547 

(A/C, No, Ext): 
FAX 
(A/C, No): (952) 928-3837 

5600 W 83rd St. 8200 Tower  E-MAIL collectorsinsurance@acainternational.org 
ADDRESS: 

Ste 1100  INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC # 

Minneapolis MN 55437-3844 INSURER A : QBE Insurance Corporation 39217 

INSURED  INSURER B :  

AARGON AGENCY, INC.  INSURER C :  

8668 SPRING MOUNTAIN RD, #110  INSURER D :  

  INSURER E :  

LAS VEGAS NV 89117 INSURER F :  

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 11127875 REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR 
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE 

ADDL 
INSD 

SUBR 
WVD POLICY NUMBER 

POLICY EFF 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 

POLICY EXP 
(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS 

  COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY      EACH OCCURRENCE $ 
  

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR 
DAMAGE TO RENTED 
PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $ 

  
 

MED EXP (Any one person) $ 
 PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 
 

POLICY 
PRO- 

LOC JECT 

OTHER: 

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $ 
  $ 

 AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY      COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $ (Ea accident) 
 ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ 

 OWNED  SCHEDULED 
AUTOS 
NON-OWNED 
AUTOS ONLY 

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $ AUTOS ONLY 
 HIRED  PROPERTY DAMAGE $ 

AUTOS ONLY (Per accident) 
   $ 

  UMBRELLA LIAB 

EXCESS LIAB 

 
OCCUR 

CLAIMS-MADE 

     EACH OCCURRENCE $ 
  AGGREGATE $ 
 DED  RETENTION $  $ 

 WORKERS COMPENSATION 
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y / N 

      PER 
STATUTE 

 OTH- 
ER 

 

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N / A 

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ (Mandatory in NH)  

If yes, describe under  

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $ DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below  

 
A 

Errors and Omissions 
  

 
ADC01408-07 

 
05/01/2024 

 
05/01/2025 

Per Claim / Aggregate $2,000,000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) 

IT IS AGREED THAT THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER SHALL BE DEEMED AN INSURED BUT ONLY AS RESPECT TO THEIR BEING A CLIENT OR 
CUSTOMER OF THE INSURED ORGANIZATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY TERMS AND CONDITIONS. 

 
RFP 2024-15 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 
 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER 
  

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
 

C/O Legal Department 
 THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 
 1800 W CHARLESTON BLVD   

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
  

LAS VEGAS 
 

NV 89102 
   

Page 200 of 349 

mailto:collectorsinsurance@acainternational.org


ACORD 25 (2016/03) 
31-1769 11-15 

©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All Rights Reserved 
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 

 

ILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANC 

ATIVE 

 

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 
12/20/24 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY 
AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), 
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and 
conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 
PRODUCER CONTACT 

 NAME: 
HILL MACQUEL(67242EA ) PHONE FAX 
3085 S JONES BLVD #A (A/C, NO, EXT): 702-307-0345 (A/C, NO): 702-878-7470 

 E-MAIL   

LAS VEGAS NV 89146 ADDRESS: mhill@farmersagent.com  

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC # 

INSURED   INSURER A: Truck Insurance Exchange  21709 
 

AARGON AGENCY INC. 
  INSURER B: Farmers Insurance Exchange 21652 

INSURER C: Mid Century Insurance Company 21687 
8668 SPRING MOUNTAIN RD   

INSURER D: Fire Insurance Exchange  21660 

LAS VEGAS NV 89117-4132 
INSURER E:  

INSURER F:  

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER: 
 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAME ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY 
REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE 
POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR 
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE ADDTL 

INSD 
SUBR 
WVD POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF 

(MM/DD/YYYY) 
POLICY EXP 

(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS 

  COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY      EACH OCCURRENCE $ 

  
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR 

DAMAGE TO RENTED 
PREMISES (Ea Occurrence) $ 

  MED EXP (Any one person) $ 

  PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 

GEN’L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 

 POLICY PROJECT LOC 

OTHER: 

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $ 

  $ 

 
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 

     COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT 
(Ea accident) $ 

 ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ 

 OWNED AUTOS 
ONLY 

HIRED AUTOS 
ONLY 

 SCHEDULED 
AUTOS 

NON-OWNED 
AUTOS ONLY 

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $ 

  PROPERTY DAMAGE 
(Per accident) $ 

   $ 

  UMBRELLA LIAB 

EXCESS LIAB 

 OCCUR 

CLAIMS-MADE 

     EACH OCCURRENCE $ 

  AGGREGATE $ 

 DED  RETENTION $  $ 

 
 
 
 

C 

WORKERS COMPENSATION 
AND EMPLOYERS ‘ LIABILITY 

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/ Y/N 

 
 

 
N/A 

 
 
 

Y 

 
 
 
B15094626 

 
 
 

05/21/2024 

 
 
 

05/21/2025 

 

 PER 
STATUTE 

 
OTHER $ 

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 1,000,000 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER/MEMBER 
EXCLUDED? (Mandatory in NH) N E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 1,000,000 
If yes, describe under DESCRIPTION OF 
OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $ 1,000,000 

         

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) 
Certificate holder is listed as Additional insured on the named Insured's general liability policy. 
Waiver of Subrogation applies in favor of the certificate holder on the workers compensation policy. 

RFP 2024-15 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada C/O Legal Department 
1800 W Charleston Blvd Las Vegas, NV 89102 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION 
DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENT TIVE 

 

Page 201 of 349 

mailto:mhill@farmersagent.com


Page 202 of 349 



Page 203 of 349 



Page 204 of 349 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 26, 2025 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

12 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Master Agreement for Equipment Lease with Abbott Laboratories Inc. 
  

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
That the Governing Board approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 
Agreement with Abbott Laboratories Inc. for the lease of equipment and purchase of related 
disposables; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number:  5420.000     Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center:  3000707000     Funded Pgm/Grant:  N/A 
Description:  Lease of two Abbott Alinity M instruments on the UMC campus and purchase of related 
disposables 
Bid/RFP/CBE:  NRS 332.115(4) (goods commonly used by a hospital) & 450.530 (GPO-HPG) 
Term: Five years 
Amount:  Not-to-Exceed $932,038.83 annually or $4,660,194.15 in aggregate 
Out Clause:  UMC has the right to terminate the Agreement with 90 days’ prior written notice, subject to the 
payment of a reimbursement fee, with said fee decreasing the further into the term the termination occurs. 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 

This request is for UMC to enter into the Agreement with Abbott Laboratories Inc. (“Abbott”) where, as a part 
of the Agreement, Abbott will provide two Alinity M fully integrated and automated molecular diagnostics 
analyzers. The Alinity M systems, which will be located and operated on the UMC Main Campus, allow for 
rapid turnaround times for assays and will be replacements for existing LDT instrumentation. As a part of the 
Agreement, UMC will purchase related disposables.  
 
The term of the Agreement is five years from the effective date. The Agreement may be terminated by UMC, 
provided UMC gives 90 days’ prior written notice and pays a reimbursement fee, with said fee decreasing the 
further into the term the termination occurs. 
 
This request is in compliance with NRS 450.525 and NRS 450.530. Attached is a statement from an HPG 
executive verifying that the pricing was obtained through a competitive bid process. 
 
UMC’s Director of Laboratory Services has reviewed and recommends approval of this Agreement. This 
Agreement has been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
This agreement was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their February 19, 
2025 meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 

Page 205 of 349 



Page 206 of 349 



Page 207 of 349 



Page 208 of 349 



Page 209 of 349 



Page 210 of 349 



Page 211 of 349 



Page 212 of 349 



Page 213 of 349 



Page 214 of 349 



Page 215 of 349 



1100 Dr. Martin Luther King Blvd    I Nashville, TN 37203    I healthtrustpg.com 

 

 

H E A LT H T R U S T ------------------ 
 
 
 
 
 

February 11th, 2025 

Fred Parandi 
Management Analyst - Contracts 
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

1800 W. Charleston Blvd. 

Las Vegas, NV 89102 
 

Re: Request for competitive bidding information regarding Molecular Diagnostic Testing. 

 
Dear Mr. Parandi: 

 
This letter is provided in response to the University Medical Center of Southern Nevada's ("UMC") request 

for information about HealthTrust Purchasing Group, L.P.'s ("HealthTrust") competitive bidding process for 

Molecular Diagnostic Testing.  We are pleased to provide this information to UMC in your capacity as a 

Participant of HealthTrust, as defined in and subject to the Participation Agreement between HealthTrust 

and UMC, effective August 3, 2016. 

 
HealthTrust's bid and award process is described in its Contracting Process Policy [HT.008] available on its 

public website {http://healthtrustpg.com/about-healthtrust/healthcare-code-of-ethics/).  As described in the 

policy, HealthTrust operates a member-driven contracting process. Advisory Boards are engaged to 

determine the clinical, technical, operational, conversion, business and other criteria important for each 

specific bid category. The boards are comprised of representatives from HealthTrust's membership who 

have appropriate experience, credentials/licensures, and decision-making authority within their respective 

health systems for the board on which they serve. 

 
HealthTrust's requirements for specific products and services are published on its Contract Schedule on its 

public website.  HealthTrust's requirements for vendors are outlined in its Supplier Criteria Policy [HT.010]. 

A listing of the minimum Supplier Criteria is also published on HealthTrust's public website, as well as an on-

line form for prospective vendor submission. 

 
The Contracting Process Policy includes criteria for the selection of contract products and services and 

documents and the procedures followed by HealthTrust's contracting team to select vendors for 

consideration. HealthTrust's Advisory Boards may provide additional requirements or other criteria that 

would be incorporated into the RFP (request for proposals) process, where appropriate. Vendor proposals 

submitted in response to RFPs are analyzed using an extensive clinical/technical review as described above, 

as well as a financial/operational review. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 216 of 349 



1100 Dr. Martin Luther King Blvd    I Nashville, TN 37203    I healthtrustpg.com 

 

 

 

 

H E A LT H T R U ST 
  

 
The above-described process was followed with respect to Molecular Diagnostic Testing.  HealthTrust issued 

RFPs and received proposals from identified suppliers in the category.  Agreements were awarded to Abbott, 

Cepheid, Meridian Bioscience, Roche Diagnostics, Luminex and BD Diagnostics in December of 2020.  I 

hope this satisfies your request.  Please contact me with any additional questions. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Craig Dabbs 

Account Director, Member Services 

    

Page 217 of 349 



REVISED 7/25/2014 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE  
DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS FORM 

Purpose of the Form 
 

The purpose of the Disclosure of Ownership/Principals Form is to gather ownership information pertaining to the business enti ty for use by the University Medical  
Center of Southern Nevada Governing Board (“GB”) in determining whether members of the GB should exclude themselves from voting on agenda items where 

they have, or may be perceived as having a conflict of interest, and to determine compliance with Nevada R evised Statute 281A.430, contracts in which a public 
officer or employee has interest is prohibited. 
 

General Instructions 
 

Completion and submission of this Form is a condition of approval or renewal of a contract or lease and/or release of monetary funding between the disclosing 
entity and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada.  Failure to submit the requested information may result in a refusal by the GB to enter into an 

agreement/contract and/or release monetary funding to such disclosing entity.  
 

Detailed Instructions 
 

All sections of the Disclosure of Ownership form must be completed.   If not applicable, write in N/A. 
 

Business Entity Type – Indicate if the entity is an Individual, Partnership, Limited Liability Company, Corporation, Trust, Non-profit Organization, or Other.  

When selecting ‘Other’, provide a description of the legal entity.  
 

Non-Profit Organization (NPO) - Any non-profit corporation, group, association, or corporation duly filed and registered as required by state law.  
 

Business Designation Group – Indicate if the entity is a Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), Small 
Business Enterprise (SBE), Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Veteran Owned Business (VET),  Disabled Veteran Owned Business (DVET), or 

Emerging Small Business (ESB) . This is needed in order to provide utilization statistics to the Legislative Council Bureau, and will be used only for such 
purpose.   
 

• Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 

is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native 
American ethnicity. 

• Women Owned Business Enterprise (WBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 
is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women.  

• Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful 

function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

• Small Business Enterprise (SBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function, is not owned 
and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000.  

• Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (VET): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a commercially useful 
function and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more U.S. Veterans.  

• Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (DVET):  A Nevada business at least 51 percent owned/controlled by a disabled veteran.  

• Emerging Small Business (ESB): Certified by the Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development effective January, 2014. Approved into 
Nevada law during the 77th Legislative session as a result of AB294. 
 

Business Name (include d.b.a., if applicable) – Enter the legal name of the business entity and enter the “Doing Business As” (d.b.a.) name, if applicable.   
 

Corporate/Business Address, Business Telephone, Business Fax, and Email – Enter the street address, telephone and fax numbers, and email of the named 

business entity.   
 

Nevada Local Business Address, Local Business Telephone, Local Business Fax, and Email  – If business entity is out-of-state, but operates the business from a 
location in Nevada, enter the Nevada street address, telephone and fax numbers, point of contact and email of the local office. Please note that the local address 

must be an address from which the business is operating from that location. Please do not include a P.O. Box number, unless required by the U.S. Postal S ervi ce,  
or a business license hanging address. 
 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents employed by this firm. (Do not leave blank. If none or zero, put the number 0 in the space provided.) 
 

List of Owners/Officers – Include the full name, title and percentage of ownership of each person who has ownership or financial interest in the business entity.  If 
the business is a publicly-traded corporation or non-profit organization, list all Corporate Officers and Directors only.   
 

For All Contracts – (Not required for publicly-traded corporations) 

1) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity are a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s).  If yes, the following paragraph applies. 

 
In accordance with NRS 281A.430.1, a public officer or employee shall not bid on or enter into a contract between a government agency and any 

private business in which he has a significant financial interest, except as provided for in subsections 2, 3, and 4.  
 

2) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity have a second degree of consanguinity or affinity 
relation to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) (reference form on Page 2 for 

definition).  If YES, complete the Disclosure of Relationship Form.  
 

A professional service is defined as a business entity that offers business/financial consulting, legal, physician, architect, engineer or other professional services.  
 

Signature and Print Name – Requires signature of an authorized representative and the date signed.  
 

Disclosure of Relationship Form – If any individual members, partners, owners or principals of the business entity is presently a University Medical Center of 

Southern Nevada employee, public officer or official, or has a second degree of consanguinity or affinity relationship to a University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada employee, public officer or official, this section must be completed in its entirety.   

 

Page 218 of 349 



DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS 

1 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

Business Entity Type (Please select one) 

 Sole 

Proprietorship 
Partnership 

 Limited Liability 

Company  
 Corporation  Trust 

 Non-Profit   

Organization 
  Other 

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply) 

 MBE  WBE  SBE  PBE  VET DVET  ESB 

Minority Business 

Enterprise 

Women-Owned 

Business 

Enterprise 

Small Business 

Enterprise 

Physically Challenged 

Business Enterprise 

Veteran Owned 

Business 

Disabled Veteran 

Owned Business 

Emerging Small 

Business 

 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed: 

  

Corporate/Business Entity Name:  Abbott Rapid Dx North America, LLC 

(Include d.b.a., if applicable)  

Street Address: 30 South Keller Website: 

City, State and Zip Code: 
Orlando, FL 32810 POC Name: 

Email: 

Telephone No:  Fax No: 

Nevada Local Street Address: 

(If different from above) 

 Website: 

 City, State and Zip Code:  Local Fax No: 

Local Telephone No: 
 Local POC Name: 

Email: 

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or  
financial interest in the business entity appearing before the Board.  
 
Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of dis clos ing t he names  of ind iv iduals  wi t h  
ownership or financial interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s). 

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations, 
close corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations. 
 

 

  Full Name  Title  % Owned 
(Not required for Publicly Traded 

Corporations/Non-profit organizations) 

 

      

      

      

      

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations.  Are you a publicly-traded corporation?             Yes       No 

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time 
employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not  
perform any work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.) 

 

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/hal f-
sister, grandchild, grandparent,  related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.)  

 

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also understand that the University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exchanges without the completed disclosure 
form. 

 

    

Signature 
 

 Print Name  

    

Title  Date  

10/9/2020

Caroline Matos

Contract Administrator

Page 219 of 349 



DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP 

2 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

 
List any disclosures below: 
(Mark N/A, if not applicable.) 

 

NAME OF BUSINESS 
OWNER/PRINCIPAL 

NAME OF UMC* 
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

AND JOB TITLE 

RELATIONSHIP TO 
 UMC* 

EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

UMC* 
EMPLOYEE’S/OFFICIAL’S 

DEPARTMENT 
 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 
* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 
“Consanguinity” is a relationship by blood.  “Affinity” is a relationship by marriage. 
 
“To the second degree of consanguinity” applies to the candidate’s first and second degree of  b lood relat ives as 
follows: 
 

• Spouse – Registered Domestic Partners – Children – Parents – In-laws (f irst degree) 
 

• Brothers/Sisters – Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters – Grandchildren – Grandparents – In-laws (second degree) 
 
 

 
For UMC Use Only: 

 

If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:      
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item?  
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract? 
 

Notes/Comments: 
 

 
 

 
____________________________________ 

Signature  
 

____________________________________ 
Print Name  

Authorized Department Representative 
 

 
 

Page 220 of 349 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 26, 2025 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

13 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Award RFP No. 2024-11, Managed Print Services to Advanced Imaging 

Services  

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board award the RFP No. 2024-11 for Managed Print Services to 
Advanced Imaging Services; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Agreement 
and execute any extension options/amendments within the not-to-exceed amount of this 
Agreement; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number: 5420.000      Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center: 300083100                           Funded Pgm/Grant: N/A 
Description: Master Service Agreement for copiers/printers and non-fleet management services.  
  
Bid/RFP/CBE: RFP 2024-11 Managed Print Management  
Term: 5 years, 4/01/2025-03/31/2030 
Amount: NTE $4,789,369.00.   
Out Clause: Upon 15 days’ notice w/o cause 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 

On October 9, 2024, RFP 2024-11 for Managed Print Services was published in the Las Vegas Review-
Journal and posted on the Nevada Government eMarketplace (NGEM) Portal, soliciting bid proposals from 
vendors for print services that include, among other things, lease of equipment, maintenance and support for 
print devices, and provision of consumables. Responses were received prior to the December 3, 2024 deadline 
from the following vendors: 
 

360DTii 
Advanced Imaging Solutions 
Konica Minolta Business Solutions U.S.A., Inc. 
Ray Morgan Company, Inc. 
Ricoh USA 
Sun Print Management 
Toshiba Business Solutions, Inc. 
Xerox 

 

Page 221 of 349 



Page Number 
2 

An ad hoc committee reviewed and scored the proposals independently and anonymously, and recommended 
the selection of, and contract approval with Advanced Imaging Solutions (“AIS”). 
 
AIS will offer UMC fleet management of approximately 427 new multi-functional devices.  The units will 
have full copy/print/fax/scan capability and includes full maintenance support and supplies (excluding paper) 
for the main hospital and offsite clinics.   
 
The Agreement term is from April 1, 2025 through April 1, 2030, with the option to extend for three months.  
UMC may terminate for convenience upon fifteen (15) days’ notice. 
 
 UMC’s Director of Information Technology has reviewed and recommends approval of the Agreement.  The 
Agreement was reviewed as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
This agreement was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their February 19, 
2025 meeting and recommended for award by the Governing Board. 
 
 

Page 222 of 349 



 
 

 

 

 

 

Advanced Imaging Solutions 

NAME OF FIRM 

Dave Clark – VP of Strategic Accounts 

DESIGNATED CONTACT, NAME AND TITLE 
(Please type or print) 

3865 W. Cheyenne Ave, Ste #505 

 

North Las Vegas, NV 89032 

ADDRESS OF FIRM 
INCLUDING CITY, STATE AND ZIP CODE 

(702) 214-5161 – Michael Limon 

(AREA CODE) AND TELEPHONE NUMBER 

Michael Limon  
 mlimon@ais-now.com 

 
Dave Clark  

  dclark@ais-now.com 
E-MAIL ADDRESS 

 

 

 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER 
OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 

 
AGREEMENT FOR 

RFP 2024-11 
Managed Print Services 

Docusign Envelope ID: 005E07D8-0761-495B-B081-6F10070ECCAC

Page 223 of 349 

mailto:mlimon@ais-now.com
mailto:dclark@ais-now.com


AGREEMENT FOR MANAGED PRINT SERVICES 
 
 

This Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into as April 1, 2025 by and between UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER 

OF SOUTHERN NEVADA, a publicly owned and operated hospital created by virtue of Chapter 450 of the Nevada Revised Statutes 

(hereinafter referred to as “HOSPITAL”), and Advanced Imaging Solutions (hereinafter referred to as “COMPANY”), for Managed Print 

Services(hereinafter referred to as “PROJECT”). 

 
W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, COMPANY has the personnel and resources necessary to accomplish the PROJECT within the required schedule 

and with a budget allowance not to exceed $4,789,369.00 as further described herein; and 

WHEREAS, COMPANY has the required licenses and/or authorizations pursuant to all federal, State of Nevada and local laws 

in order to conduct business relative to this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, HOSPITAL and COMPANY agree as follows: 

 
SECTION I: TERM OF AGREEMENT 

HOSPITAL agrees to retain COMPANY for the period from Effective Date through A p r i l  1 ,  2 0 3 0   (“Term”). During 

this period, COMPANY agrees to provide services as required by HOSPITAL within the scope of this Agreement. HOSPITAL reserves 

the right to extend the Agreement for up to an additional three (3) months for its convenience. 

SECTION II: COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 

A. Terms of Payments 

1. HOSPITAL agrees to pay COMPANY for the performance of services described in the Scope of Work (Exhibit A) for 

the fixed not-to-exceed fee of $4,035,689.00 . It is expressly understood that the entire Scope of Work defined 

in Exhibit A must be completed by COMPANY and it shall be COMPANY's responsibility to ensure that hours and 

tasks are properly budgeted so the entire PROJECT is completed for the said fee. 

2. Payment of invoices will be made within forty-five (45) calendar days after receipt of an accurate invoice that has been 

reviewed and approved by HOSPITAL. 

3. HOSPITAL, at its discretion, may not approve or issue payment on invoices if COMPANY fails to provide the following 

information required on each invoice: 

a. The title of the PROJECT as stated in Exhibit A, Scope of Work, itemized description of products delivered 

or services rendered and amount due, Purchase Order Number, Invoice Date, Invoice Period, Invoice Number, 

and the Payment Remittance Address. 

b. Expenses not defined in Exhibit A, Scope of Work will not be paid without prior written authorization by 

HOSPITAL. 

c. HOSPITAL’s representative shall notify COMPANY in writing within fourteen (14) calendar days of any 

disputed amount included on the invoice. COMPANY must submit a new invoice for the undisputed amount 

which will be paid in accordance with this paragraph A.2 above. Upon mutual resolution of the disputed 

amount, COMPANY will submit a new invoice for the agreed amount and payment will be made in accordance 

with this paragraph A.2 above. 

4. No penalty will be imposed on HOSPITAL if HOSPITAL fails to pay COMPANY within ninety (90) days after receipt of 

a properly documented invoice, and HOSPITAL will receive no discount for payment within that period. 

5. HOSPITAL shall subtract from any payment made to COMPANY all damages, costs and expenses caused by 

COMPANY's negligence, resulting from or arising out of errors or omissions in COMPANY's work products, which have 

not been previously paid to COMPANY. 

6. HOSPITAL shall not provide payment on any invoice COMPANY submits after six (6) months from the date COMPANY 

Page | 1 

Docusign Envelope ID: 005E07D8-0761-495B-B081-6F10070ECCAC

Page 224 of 349 



performs services, provides deliverables, and/or meets milestones, as agreed upon in Exhibit A, Scope of Work. 

7. Invoices shall be submitted to: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, Attn: Accounts Payable, 1800 W. 

Charleston Blvd., Las Vegas, NV 89102. 

B. HOSPITAL’s Fiscal Limitations 

1. The content of this section shall apply to the entire Agreement and shall take precedence over any conflicting terms 

and conditions, and shall limit HOSPITAL’s financial responsibility as indicated in Sections 2 and 3 below. 

2. In accordance with the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS 354.626), the financial obligations under this Agreement 

between the parties shall not exceed those monies appropriated and approved by HOSPITAL for the then-current fiscal 

year under the Local Government Budget Act. This Agreement shall terminate and HOSPITAL's obligations under it 

shall be extinguished at the end of any of HOSPITAL's fiscal years in which HOSPITAL’s governing body fails to 

appropriate monies for the ensuing fiscal year sufficient for the payment of all amounts which could then become due 

under this Agreement. HOSPITAL agrees that this section shall not be utilized as a subterfuge or in a discriminatory 

fashion as it relates to this Agreement. In the event this section is invoked, this Agreement will expire on the 30th day 

of June of the then-current fiscal year. Termination under this section shall not relieve HOSPITAL of its obligations 

incurred through the 30th day of June of the fiscal year for which monies were appropriated. 

3. HOSPITAL’s total liability for all charges for services which may become due under this Agreement is limited to the 

total maximum expenditure(s) authorized in HOSPITAL’s purchase order(s) to COMPANY. 

SECTION III: SCOPE OF WORK 

Services to be performed by COMPANY for the PROJECT shall consist of the work described in the Scope of Work as set forth in Exhibit 

A of this Agreement, attached hereto. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Agreement and the terms in the Scope of Work, 

the terms of this Agreement shall prevail. 

SECTION IV: CHANGES TO SCOPE OF WORK 

A. HOSPITAL may at any time, by written order, make changes within the general scope of this Agreement and in the services or work 

to be performed. If such changes cause an increase or decrease in COMPANY's cost or time required for performance of any 

services under this Agreement, an equitable adjustment limited to an amount within current unencumbered budgeted appropriations 

for the PROJECT shall be made and this Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly. Any claim of COMPANY for the 

adjustment under this clause must be submitted in writing within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of receipt by COMPANY of 

notification of change unless HOSPITAL grants a further period of time before the date of final payment under this Agreement. 

B. No services for which an additional compensation will be charged by COMPANY shall be furnished without the written authorization 

of HOSPITAL. 

SECTION V: RESPONSIBILITY OF COMPANY 

A. It is understood that in the performance of the services herein provided for, COMPANY shall be, and is, an independent contractor, 

and is not an agent, representative or employee of HOSPITAL and shall furnish such services in its own manner and method except 

as required by this Agreement. Further, COMPANY has and shall retain the right to exercise full control over the employment, 

direction, compensation and discharge of all persons employed by COMPANY in the performance of the services hereunder. 

COMPANY shall be solely responsible for, and shall indemnify, defend and hold HOSPITAL harmless from all matters relating to the 

payment of its employees, including compliance with social security, withholding and all other wages, salaries, benefits, taxes, 

demands, and regulations of any nature whatsoever. 

B. COMPANY shall appoint a Manager, upon written acceptance by HOSPITAL, who will manage the performance of services. All of 

the services specified by this Agreement shall be performed by the Manager, or by COMPANY's associates and employees under 

the personal supervision of the Manager. Should the Manager, or any employee of COMPANY be unable to complete his or her 

responsibility for any reason, COMPANY must obtain written approval by HOSPITAL prior to replacing him or her with another equally 

qualified person. If COMPANY fails to make a required replacement within fifteen (15) days, HOSPITAL may terminate this 

Page | 2 

Docusign Envelope ID: 005E07D8-0761-495B-B081-6F10070ECCAC

Page 225 of 349 



Agreement for default. 

C. COMPANY has, or will, retain such employees as it may need to perform the services required by this Agreement. Such employees 

shall not be employed by the HOSPITAL. 

D. COMPANY agrees that its officers and employees will cooperate with HOSPITAL in the performance of services under this 

Agreement and will be available for consultation with HOSPITAL at such reasonable times with advance notice as to not conflict with 

their other responsibilities. 

E. COMPANY will follow HOSPITAL's relevant compliance policies as followed by HOSPITAL's staff including its corporate compliance 

program, HOSPITAL’s Contracted/ Non-Employee Requirements policy and HOSPITAL’s Vaccine Policy, as may be amended from 

time to time. HOSPITAL will provide copies of said policies upon COMPANY request. COMPANY may be required to (i) register 

through HOSITAL’s vendor management/credentialing system prior to arriving onsite at any of HOSPITAL’s facilities; and (ii) 

complete background checks of employees, agents and/or subcontractors who provide services to HOSPITAL, the records of which 

shall be maintained and kept by COMPANY. Upon COMPANY request, HOSPITAL may perform the background check and bill 

COMPANY the actual and incurred cost of same. Should the Project involve a continuous presence by COMPANY’s employees or 

agents onsite at HOSPITAL’s facilities, COMPANY may be required to complete HOSPITAL’s onboarding process and abide by 

onboarding requirements of HOSPITAL’s Human Resources Department. COMPANY’s employees, agents, subcontractors and/or 

designees who do not abide by HOSPITAL’s policies may be barred from physical access to HOSPITAL’s premises. 

F. COMPANY shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, timely completion, and coordination of all services 

furnished by COMPANY, its subcontractors and its and their principals, officers, employees and agents under this Agreement. In 

performing the specified services, COMPANY shall follow practices consistent with generally accepted professional and technical 

standards. COMPANY further agree that for a period of one year following completion of its work, or such longer period as may be 

indicated in the specification, COMPANY will replace or repair any product it provides or installs because of defects in workmanship 

or materials, except to the extent the failure results from negligence of HOSPITAL. COMPANY expressly disclaims all other 

warranties, whether implied or statutory, including but not limited to, any warranty of merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose. 

G. It shall be the duty of COMPANY to assure that all products of its effort are technically sound and in conformance with all pertinent 

Federal, State and Local statutes, codes, ordinances, resolutions and other regulations. If applicable, COMPANY will not produce a 

work product which violates or infringes on any copyright or patent rights. COMPANY shall, without additional compensation, correct 

or revise any errors or omissions in its work products: 

1. Permitted or required approval by HOSPITAL of any products or services furnished by COMPANY shall not in any way 

relieve COMPANY of responsibility for the professional and technical accuracy and adequacy of its work. 

2. HOSPITAL’s review, approval, acceptance, or payment for any of COMPANY's services herein shall not be construed to 

operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action arising out of the performance of this 

Agreement, and COMPANY shall be and remain liable in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and applicable law 

for all damages to HOSPITAL caused by COMPANY's performance or failures to perform under this Agreement. 

H. All materials, information, and documents, whether finished, unfinished, drafted, developed, prepared, completed, or acquired by 

COMPANY for HOSPITAL relating to the services to be performed hereunder and not otherwise used or useful in connection with 

services previously rendered, or services to be rendered, by COMPANY to parties other than HOSPITAL shall become the property 

of HOSPITAL and shall be delivered to HOSPITAL's representative upon completion or termination of this Agreement, whichever 

comes first. COMPANY shall not be liable for damages, claims, and losses arising out of any reuse of any work products on any 

other project conducted by HOSPITAL. HOSPITAL shall have the right to reproduce all documentation supplied pursuant to this 

Agreement. 

I. Drawings and specifications remain the property of COMPANY. Copies of the drawings and specifications retained by HOSPITAL 

may be utilized only for its use and for occupying the PROJECT for which they were prepared, and not for the construction of any 

other project. A copy of all materials, information and documents, whether finished, unfinished, or draft, developed, prepared, 

completed, or acquired by COMPANY during the performance of services for which it has been compensated under this Agreement, 

 
Page | 3 

Docusign Envelope ID: 005E07D8-0761-495B-B081-6F10070ECCAC

Page 226 of 349 



shall be delivered to HOSPITAL’s representative upon completion or termination of this Agreement, whichever occurs first. 

HOSPITAL shall have the right to reproduce all documentation supplied pursuant to this Agreement. COMPANY shall furnish 

Hospital’s representative copies of all correspondence to regulatory agencies for review prior to mailing such correspondence. 

J. The rights and remedies of HOSPITAL provided for under this section are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by 

law or under other sections of this Agreement. 

SECTION VI: SUBCONTRACTS 

A. Services specified by this Agreement shall not be subcontracted by COMPANY, without prior written approval of HOSPITAL. 

B. Approval by HOSPITAL of COMPANY's request to subcontract, or acceptance of, or payment for, subcontracted work by HOSPITAL 

shall not in any way relieve COMPANY of responsibility for the professional and technical accuracy and adequacy of the work. 

COMPANY shall be and remain liable for all damages to HOSPITAL caused by negligent performance or non-performance of work 

under this Agreement by COMPANY's subcontractor or its sub-subcontractor. 

C. The compensation due under Section II shall not be affected by HOSPITAL's approval of COMPANY's request to subcontract. 

 
SECTION VII: RESPONSIBILITY OF HOSPITAL 

A. HOSPITAL agrees that its officers and employees will cooperate with COMPANY in the performance of services under this 

Agreement and will be available for consultation with COMPANY at such reasonable times with advance notice as to not conflict with 

their other responsibilities. 

B. The services performed by COMPANY under this Agreement shall be subject to review for compliance with the terms of this 

Agreement by HOSPITAL's representative, Don Barnwell , telephone number (702) 38-7840 or his/her designee. HOSPITAL's 

representative may delegate any or all of his/her responsibilities under this Agreement to appropriate staff members, and shall so 

inform COMPANY by written notice before the effective date of each such delegation. 

C. The review comments of HOSPITAL's representative may be reported in writing as needed to COMPANY. It is understood that 

HOSPITAL's representative’s review comments do not relieve COMPANY from the responsibility for the professional and technical 

accuracy of all work delivered under this Agreement. 

D. HOSPITAL shall assist COMPANY in obtaining data on documents from public officers or agencies, and from private citizens and/or 

business firms, whenever such material is necessary for the completion of the services specified by this Agreement. 

E. COMPANY will not be responsible for accuracy of information or data supplied by HOSPITAL or other sources to the extent such 

information or data would be relied upon by a reasonably prudent COMPANY. 

SECTION VIII: TIME SCHEDULE 

A. Time is of the essence of this Agreement. 

B. If COMPANY’s performance of services is delayed or if COMPANY’s sequence of tasks is changed, COMPANY shall notify 

HOSPITAL’s representative in writing of the reasons for the delay and prepare a revised schedule for performance of services. The 

revised schedule is subject to HOSPITAL’s written approval. 

C. In the event that COMPANY fails to complete the PROJECT within the time specified in the Agreement, or with such additional 

time(s) as may be granted in writing by HOSPITAL or fails to prosecute the work, or any separable part thereof, with such diligence 

as will insure its completion within the time specified in the Agreement or any extensions thereof, COMPANY shall pay to HOSPITAL 

as liquidated damages the sum of $100.00 for each calendar day of delay until such reasonable time as may be required for final 

completion of the work, together with any increased costs incurred by HOSPITAL in completing the work. 

SECTION IX: SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION 

A. Suspension 

HOSPITAL may suspend performance by COMPANY under this Agreement for such period of time as HOSPITAL, at its sole 

discretion, may prescribe by providing written notice to COMPANY at least five (5) working days prior to the date on which HOSPITAL 

wishes to suspend. Upon such suspension, HOSPITAL shall pay COMPANY its compensation, based on the percentage of the 

PROJECT completed and earned until the effective date of suspension, less all previous payments. COMPANY shall not perform 

Page | 4 

Docusign Envelope ID: 005E07D8-0761-495B-B081-6F10070ECCAC

Page 227 of 349 



further work under this Agreement after the effective date of suspension until receipt of written notice from HOSPITAL to resume 

performance. In the event HOSPITAL suspends performance by COMPANY for any cause other than the error or omission of the 

COMPANY, for an aggregate period in excess of thirty (30) days, COMPANY shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment of the 

compensation payable to COMPANY under this Agreement to reimburse COMPANY for additional costs occasioned as a result of 

such suspension of performance by HOSPITAL based on appropriated funds and approval by HOSPITAL. 

B. Termination 

1. Termination for Cause 

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by either party in the event of substantial failure or default of the other 

party to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement through no fault of the terminating party; but only after the other party is 

given: 

a. not less than ten (10) calendar days written notice of intent to terminate; and 

b. an opportunity for consultation with the terminating party prior to termination. 

2. Termination for Convenience 

a. This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by HOSPITAL for its convenience; but only after COMPANY is 

given not less than fifteen (15) calendar days written notice of intent to terminate; and 

b. If termination is for HOSPITAL’s convenience, HOSPITAL shall pay COMPANY that portion of the compensation which 

has been earned as of the effective date of termination but no amount shall be allowed for anticipated profit on 

performed or unperformed services or other work. 

3. Effect of Termination 

a. If termination for substantial failure or default is effected by HOSPITAL, HOSPITAL will pay COMPANY that portion of 

the compensation which has been earned as of the effective date of termination but: 

i. No amount shall be allowed for anticipated profit on performed or unperformed services or other work; and 

ii. Any payment due to COMPANY at the time of termination may be adjusted to the extent of any additional costs 

occasioned to HOSPITAL by reason of COMPANY's default. 

b. Upon receipt or delivery by COMPANY of a termination notice, COMPANY shall promptly discontinue all services 

affected (unless the notice directs otherwise) and deliver or otherwise make available to HOSPITAL’s representative, 

copies of all deliverables as provided in Section V, paragraph H. Each Party shall return or destroy all originals and 

copies, except for those copies it may retain for archival purposes, of any confidential information of the other Party 

regarding the Project, including but not limited to protected health information (“PHI”), and shall certify in writing to the 

other Party, no later than thirty (30) days after termination, that is has done so. 

c. If after termination for failure of COMPANY to fulfill contractual obligations it is determined that COMPANY has not so 

failed, the termination shall be deemed to have been effected for the convenience of HOSPITAL. 

d. Upon termination, HOSPITAL may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion by agreement with another 

party or otherwise. In the event COMPANY shall cease conducting business, HOSPITAL shall have the right to make 

an unsolicited offer of employment to any employees of COMPANY assigned to the performance of this Agreement. 

4. The rights and remedies of HOSPITAL and COMPANY provided in this section are in addition to any other rights and 

remedies provided by law or under this Agreement. 

5. Neither party shall be considered in default in the performance of its obligations hereunder, nor any of them, to the extent 

that performance of such obligations, nor any of them, is prevented or delayed by any cause, existing or future, which is 

beyond the reasonable control of such party. Delays arising from the actions or inactions of one or more of COMPANY's 

principals, officers, employees, agents, subcontractors, vendors or suppliers are expressly recognized to be within 

COMPANY's control. 

SECTION X: INSURANCE 

COMPANY shall obtain and maintain the insurance coverage required in Exhibit C incorporated herein by this reference. COMPANY 
 

Page | 5 

Docusign Envelope ID: 005E07D8-0761-495B-B081-6F10070ECCAC

Page 228 of 349 



shall comply with the terms and conditions set forth in Exhibit C and shall include the cost of the insurance coverage in their prices. 

 
SECTION XI: NOTICES 

Any notice required to be given hereunder shall be deemed to have been given when received by the party to whom it is directed by 

personal service, hand delivery, certified U.S. mail, return receipt requested or facsimile, at the following addresses, or such other address 

that a party may designate in writing: 

 
TO HOSPITAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

Attn: Legal Department 
1800 W. Charleston Blvd. 
Las Vegas, NV 89102 

 
 

TO COMPANY: Advanced Imaging Solutions 
Attn: CFO 
3865 W. Cheyenne Ave.; 
Ste. 505 
N.Las Vegas, NV 89032 

 

 
SECTION XII: MISCELLANEOUS 

A. ADA Requirements 

All work performed or services rendered by COMPANY shall comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act standards adopted by 

Clark County. All facilities built prior to January 26, 1992 must comply with the Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards; and all 

facilities completed after January 26, 1992 must comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines. 

B. Amendments 

No modifications or amendments to this Agreement shall be valid or enforceable unless mutually agreed to in writing by the parties. 

C. Assignment 

Any attempt by COMPANY to assign or otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of 

HOSPITAL shall be void. 

D. Audits 

The performance of this Agreement by COMPANY is subject to review by HOSPITAL to ensure Agreement compliance. COMPANY 

agrees to provide HOSPITAL any and all information requested that relates to the performance of this Agreement. All requests for 

information will be in writing to COMPANY. Time is of the essence during the audit process. Failure to provide the information 

requested within the timeline provided in the written information request may be considered a material breach of Agreement and be 

cause for suspension and/or termination of the Agreement. The parties hereto further agree that except as otherwise required by 

law, any audit and inspection rights include only the rights to verify amounts invoiced by COMPANY and to verify the nature of the 

services being invoiced, but does not include the right to review personal information of COMPANY’s employees, or proprietary 

information of COMPANY, including but not limited to COMPANY’s underlying cost, markup or overhead rates. 

E. Clark County Business License / Registration 

COMPANY warrants that it is has a valid Clark County Business License and will maintain such licensure through the duration of this 

Agreement. 

F. Complete Agreement 

This Agreement, together with all exhibits, appendices or other attachments, which are incorporated herein by reference, is the sole 

and entire agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement supersedes all prior understandings, 

representations, agreements and documentation relating to such subject matter. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of 

the main body of the Agreement and any attached exhibits, appendices or other materials, the Agreement shall take precedence. 

 

 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 005E07D8-0761-495B-B081-6F10070ECCAC

Page 229 of 349 



G. Confidential Treatment of Information 

COMPANY shall preserve in strict confidence any information obtained, assembled or prepared in connection with the performance 

of this Agreement and COMPANY represents and warrants that it shall not resell HOSPITAL confidential information. Confidential 

information does not include information that, under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) as may be 

amended from time to time, is protected health information (PHI), in which case the parties agree to handle such health information in 

accordance with the terms of the Business Associate Agreement (BAA) which is attached to and incorporated into this Agreement as 

Exhibit D. 

H. Counterparts 

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts. Each counterpart will be an original, and all such counterparts will 

constitute a single instrument. 

I. Covenant 

COMPANY covenants that it presently has no interest and that it will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict 

in any manner or degree with the performance of services required to be performed under this Agreement. COMPANY further 

covenants, to its knowledge and ability, that in the performance of said services no person having any such interest shall be employed. 

J. Covenant Against Contingent Fees 

COMPANY warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this Agreement upon an 

agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bona fide permanent employees. 

For breach or violation of this warranty, HOSPITAL shall have the right to annul this Agreement without liability or in its discretion to 

deduct from the Agreement price or consideration or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, 

or contingent fee. 

K. Exclusion 

COMPANY represents and warrants that neither it, nor any of its employees or other contracted staff (collectively referred to in this 

paragraph as “employees”) has been or is about to be excluded from participation in any Federal Health Care Program (as defined 

herein). COMPANY agrees to notify HOSPITAL within five (5) business days of COMPANY’s receipt of notice of intent to exclude or 

actual notice of exclusion from any such program. The listing of COMPANY or any of its employees on the Office of Inspector 

General’s exclusion list (OIG website), the General Services Administration’s Lists of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement 

and Non-procurement Programs (GSA website) for excluded individuals or entities, any state Medicaid exclusion list, or the Office of 

Foreign Assets Control’s (OFAC’s) blocked list shall constitute “exclusion” for purposes of this paragraph. In the event that COMPANY 

or any of its employees is excluded from any Federal Health Care Program or placed on the OFAC’s blocked list, it shall be a material 

breach and this Agreement shall immediately terminate without penalty to HOSPITAL. For the purpose of this paragraph, the term 

“Federal Health Care Program” means the Medicare program, the Medicaid program, TRICARE, any health care program of the 

Department of Veterans Affairs, the Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant program, any state social services block g rant 

program, any state children’s health insurance program, or any similar program. 

L. Governing Law / Venue 

Nevada law shall govern the interpretation of this Agreement. Venue shall be any court of competent jurisdiction in Las Vegas, 

Nevada. 

M. Gratuities 

1. HOSPITAL may, by written notice to COMPANY, terminate this Agreement if it is found after notice and hearing by 

HOSPITAL that gratuities (in the form of entertainment, gifts, or otherwise) were offered or given by COMPANY or any 

agent or representative of COMPANY to any officer or employee of HOSPITAL with a view toward securing a contract or 

securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending or making of any determinations with respect to the 

performance of this Agreement. 

2. In the event this Agreement is terminated as provided in paragraph 1 hereof, HOSPITAL shall be entitled: 

a. to pursue the same remedies against COMPANY as it could pursue in the event of a breach of this Agreement by 

COMPANY; and 

b. as a penalty in addition to any other damages to which it may be entitled by law, to exemplary damages in an amount 

Docusign Envelope ID: 005E07D8-0761-495B-B081-6F10070ECCAC

Page 230 of 349 



(as determined by HOSPITAL) which shall be not less than three (3) nor more than ten (10) times the costs incurred 

by COMPANY in providing any such gratuities to any such officer or employee. 

3. The rights and remedies of HOSPITAL provided in this clause shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights 

and remedies provided by law or under this Agreement. 

N. Immigration Reform and Control Act 

In accordance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, COMPANY agrees that it will not employ unauthorized aliens in 

the performance of this Agreement. 

O. Indemnity 

COMPANY does hereby agree to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless HOSPITAL and the employees, officers and agents of 

HOSPITAL from any liabilities, damages, losses, claims, actions or proceedings, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ 

fees, that are caused by the negligence, errors, omissions, recklessness or intentional misconduct of COMPANY or the employees 

or agents of COMPANY in the performance of this Agreement. 

P. Independent Contractor 

COMPANY acknowledges that it, COMPANY, and any subcontractors, agents or employees employed by it shall not, under any 

circumstances, be considered employees of the HOSPITAL, and that they shall not be entitled to any of the benefits or rights afforded 

employees of HOSPITAL, including, but not limited to, sick leave, vacation leave, holiday pay, Public Employees Retirement System 

benefits, or health, life, dental, long-term disability or workers' compensation insurance benefits. HOSPITAL will not provide or pay 

for any liability or medical insurance, retirement contributions or any other benefits for or on behalf of COMPANY or any of its officers, 

employees or other agents. 

Q. Prohibition Against Israel Boycott: 

In accordance with Nevada Revised Statute 332.065, COMPANY certifies that it is not refused to deal or to conduct business with, 

abstained from dealing or conducting business with, terminating business or business activities with or performing any other action 

that is intended to limit commercial relations with Israel or a person or entity doing business in Israel or in territories controlled by 

Israel. 

R. Public Funds / Non-Discrimination 

COMPANY acknowledges that the HOSPITAL has an obligation to ensure that public funds are not used to subsidize private 

discrimination. COMPANY recognizes that if they or their subcontractors are found guilty by an appropriate authority of refusing to 

hire or do business with an individual or company due to reasons of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or 

gender expression, age, disability, handicapping condition (including AIDS or AIDS related conditions), national origin, or any other 

class protected by law or regulation, HOSPITAL may declare COMPANY in breach of the Agreement, terminate the Agreement, and 

designate COMPANY as non-responsible. 

S. Public Records 

COMPANY acknowledges that HOSPITAL is a public, county-owned hospital which is subject to the provisions of the Nevada Public 

Records Act, Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 239, as may be amended from time to time. As such, its records are public documents 

available for copying and inspection by the public. If HOSPITAL receives a demand for the disclosure of any information related to 

this Agreement that COMPANY has claimed to be confidential and proprietary, HOSPITAL will immediately notify COMPANY of such 

demand and COMPANY shall immediately notify HOSPITAL of its intention to seek injunctive relief in a Nevada court for protective 

order. COMPANY shall indemnify and defend HOSPITAL from any claims or actions, including all associated costs and attorney’s 

fees, demanding the disclosure of COMPANY document in HOSPITAL’s custody and control in which COMPANY claims to be 

confidential and proprietary. 

T. Publicity 

Neither HOSPITAL nor COMPANY shall cause to be published or disseminated any advertising materials, either printed or 

electronically transmitted which identify the other party or its facilities with respect to this Agreement without the prior written consent 

of the other party. 

U. Subcontractor Information 

 
Page | 8 

Docusign Envelope ID: 005E07D8-0761-495B-B081-6F10070ECCAC

Page 231 of 349 



COMPANY shall provide a list of the Minority-Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), 

Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Small Business Enterprise (SBE), and Nevada Business Enterprise (NBE) 

subcontractors for this Agreement utilizing the attached format Exhibit C. The information provided in Exhibit C by COMPANY is 

for the HOSPITAL’s information only. 

V. Survival of Terms. 

Unless otherwise stated, all of HOSPITAL and COMPANY’s respective obligations, representations and warranties under this 

Agreement which are not, by the expressed terms of this Agreement, fully to be performed while this Agreement is in effect shall 

survive the termination of this Agreement. 

W. Travel Policy 

The following are the acceptable travel guidelines for reimbursement of travel costs: 

Reimbursement shall only be for the contract personnel/traveler. HOSPITAL assumes no obligation to reimburse travelers for 

expenses that are not pre-approved by HOSPITAL’s representative or their designee which are not in compliance with this 

Travel Policy. 

Transportation: 

- Domestic Airlines (Coach Ticket); one (1) checked bag fee. Number of trips must be approved by HOSPITAL. 

- Personal Vehicle: HOSPITAL will not pay costs associated to driving a personal vehicle in lieu of air travel. 

Meals: All meal charges will be paid up to and not to exceed $65 per day. This includes a 20% tip. 

Lodging: Lodging will either be booked by HOSPITAL or reimbursed for costs of a reasonable room rate plus taxes for Las 

Vegas, NV, not to exceed $150 per night excluding taxes and fees (Monday to Thursday) and not to exceed $225 per night 

excluding taxes and fees (Friday to Sunday). 

Rental Vehicles: One (1) automobile rental will be authorized per four (4) travelers. Rental must be mid-size or smaller, and must 

have full insurance coverage through the rental car company (traveler’s personal insurance is not permitted). HOSPITAL will 

reimburse up to $125 per day. Return re-fuel cap of $50 per vehicle. 

Uber/Lyft/Taxi Vehicles: When available, the use of shuttle service is required. Otherwise, Uber/Lyft/Taxi or equivalent ride 

sharing option can be used. HOSPITAL will reimburse up to $125 per day. 

Each traveler shall submit the following documents in order to claim travel reimbursement. The documents shall be readable copies 

of the original itemized receipts with each traveler’s full name. Only actual costs (including all applicable sales tax) will be 

reimbursed. 

- COMPANY’s Invoice 

o With copy of executed Agreement highlighting the allowable travel 

o List of travelers 

o Number of days in travel status 

- Hotel receipt 

- Meal receipts for each meal (must provide itemized receipts) 

- Airline receipt 

- Car rental receipt (identify driver and passengers) 

- Airport parking receipt (traveler’s Airport origin) 

- Gas re-fuel upon return of rental vehicle capped at $50 per vehicle 

- Airport long term parking (only for economy rate) 

The following are some of the charges that will NOT be allowable for reimbursement (not all inclusive): 

- Personal vehicle (HOSPITAL will not pay costs associated to driving a personal vehicle in lieu of air travel) 

- Baggage fees exceeding one (1) checked bag; overweight charges 

- Upgrades for flights (e.g., seat, Pre-Check, priority boarding), transportation, lodging, or vehicles/rentals (e.g., 

Premium/Luxury rides) 

 
Page | 9 

Docusign Envelope ID: 005E07D8-0761-495B-B081-6F10070ECCAC

Page 232 of 349 



- Alcohol 

- Room service 

- In-room movie rentals 

- In-room beverage/snacks 

- Gas for personal vehicles 

- Transportation to and from traveler’s home and the airport 

- Rental vehicle expenses incurred over and above normal charges (e.g., unauthorized drop-off fees, rental dates not 

identified as official business dates) 

- Mileage 

- Travel time 

Travel expenses shall not exceed $_1,500.00  without prior written approval from HOSPITAL. 

X. Waiver; Severability 

No term or provision of this Agreement shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent is in writing 

and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, void or unenforceable 

under any applicable statute or rule of law, it shall to that extent be deemed omitted, and the balance of this Agreement shall be 

enforceable in accordance with its remaining terms. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the Parties has caused this Agreement to be executed and effective as of the Effective Date. 

 
HOSPITAL: 

 
UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 

 
 

 

By:      

MASON VAN HOUWELING   DATE 

Chief Executive Officer 

COMPANY: 

COMPANY NAME 
 
 

 

By:      

NAME: Gary Harouff   DATE 

TITLE: President 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Page | 10 

Docusign Envelope ID: 005E07D8-0761-495B-B081-6F10070ECCAC

2/12/2025

Page 233 of 349 



EXHIBIT A 
MANAGED PRINT SERVICES 

SCOPE OF WORK 
(WILL BE INSERTED FROM NEGOTIATED AND ACCEPTED PROPOSER SUBMISSION) 

See Attachment Submitted Package B Proposal and Package C - Pricing 
 
I. Scope of Services: 
 

The following are the services or result of services requested to be performed by the Successful Proposer.  
The final Scope of Work will be a coordination of effort between the UMCSN and Company, based 
on the successful Proposer’s proposal and final negotiations of the parties: 

A. .  Objectives  

The UMCSN is seeking a Managed Print Services solution. The overall goals of the service include the following 
in no particular order: 

 

 Decreasing the total cost of service and consumables 

 Consolidating current number of printers to an industry standard  

 Increasing and optimizing the efficiency of device use 

 Providing a secure platform for printing sensitive documents 

 Ability to downgrade or upgrade and requirements change 

 Increasing green initiatives and providing an eco-friendly print environment 

 Phase out and disposition of existing desktop printers 

 High speed scanning capabilities 

 Fleet compatibility with current operating systems (Windows 10 and Windows 11) 

 Refresh technology as it advances 

 Have on-site and remote technical support 

 A coterminous contract where all equipment has the same expiration date regardless  
     of when the equipment was delivered 

 
 B.    Lease 
          Vendor shall provide leased devices that will successfully perform the necessary functions for daily 

business use. Leased devices that have repeated maintenance incidents due to continuous 
failures, defects and other non-user related issues are expected to be replaced with a model of 
exact technical specifications, without additional costs to UMCSN. All equipment, regardless of 
date of installation, shall have the same expiration date. This is for budget purposes and for ease 
of future transition of providers.  

 
 E. Maintenance 
  
  The Solution will include maintenance of all devices. Maintenance will include but may  

not be limited to consumables (excluding paper), parts, and labor as listed below. 
 
  1. Consumables 

a. Toner (Must meet specifications and quality standards of printer. Quality of print    
     must meet or exceed the quality produced by OEM toners) 

   b. Staples 
   c. Drums 
   d. Maintenance Kits 
   e. Other consumable parts, excluding paper 
 
  2. Parts 
   a. Fuser units 
   b. Transfer kits 
   c. Waste toner bottles 
   d. Rollers 

Docusign Envelope ID: 005E07D8-0761-495B-B081-6F10070ECCAC

Page 234 of 349 



   e. Paper guides 
   f. Paper tray & expanded paper trays 

g. Other miscellaneous parts 
   
 
  3. Labor 
   a. Delivery of consumables and parts 
   b. Installation of consumables and parts 
   c. Disposal of consumables and parts 
   d. Disposition and/or support of existing printer fleet 
   e. Maintain adequate consumable inventory levels 
 
 
 F. Support 
 

The Solution will include support of all devices, which shall include, but may not be limited to the 
following: 

 
  1. Project Management and Quality Assurance 
   a. Vendor to provide a single point of contact for managing the entire MPS    
   b. Vendor will have a qualified, quality assurance personnel monitor and assess  

    each technician's performance to ensure effectiveness of troubleshooting,  
    resolution time, communication, process adherence and documentation and  
    quality of customer experience.  
c. Quality assurance personnel and/or Project Manager will meet with UMCSN,   

                upon request. 
 
  2. Repair Services and Response Times 

a. Vendor will dispatch certified technicians same day if possible but no later than      
     one (1) business day after receipt of call for service during regular business   
     hours of Monday-Friday 8:00 am- 5:00  pm PST.  
b. All requests for service that are sent to the vendor by 12:00 pm shall be responded to 

the same day unless authorized otherwise by UMCSN. Device must be returned to 
service within 12 hours unless UMCSN authorizes extended time.  

c. Any request for service that is critical, as designated by UMCSN at the time of   
request for service, must be responded to within 2 hours and may be after regular 
business hours. Device must be returned to service within 4 hours unless UMCSN 
authorizes extended time. 

d. Printer Movement up-to one time a month at no-charge 
e.  24x7x365 emergency support for up to 75 named devices upon award located at main 

campus 
 
  3. Phone and Email Support 

a. Vendor will provide unlimited phone and email support during regular business    
     hours of Monday- Friday 8:00 am-5:00 pm PST 
b. 24x7x365 emergency support for up to 75 named devices. Technician to be  
   dispatched on-demand when contacted for emergency support. 
 

  4. Client Facing Web Based Portal, including: 
   a. Number of audited devices by month, week and day 
   b. Managed and non-managed devices on the network 
   c. Color vs Mono devices 
   d. Manufacture 
   e. Model 
   f. Serial number 
   g. IP Address 
   h. MAC Address 

Docusign Envelope ID: 005E07D8-0761-495B-B081-6F10070ECCAC

Page 235 of 349 



   i. Location of device 
              j. Department liaison for device (provided by UMCSN)  
              k. Identification of any restricted devices 
              
  5. Training 

a. In- depth training tailored to user roles, preferably provided virtually and on-  
    demand, as needed.  

   b. End-user training will be ongoing and can include any feature offered 
    
  6. Reporting Capabilities 
   a. Provide reports automatically every month, and at any time upon request, to   
                                       UMCSN within 5 days of closure of each month via email to UMCSN  
                                       designated representative that will monitor the success of the MPS.  
   b. Reporting capabilities to include: 

 Detailed billing/consumption by Bureau/Unit 

 Sort by color vs black and white prints by individual/unit/bureau 

 Number of calls per device 

 Consumable usage 

 Response times for resolutions  

 Part replacement and repair documentation 

 Itemized incidents with creation date, acknowledgement, response and 
resolution times 

   c. Printer Fleet Assessment provided in Excel Format, upon request.  

 

  7. Security Requirements 
   a. All scanned or photocopied images must be wiped (written over) after the job is  

    complete. The wipe must be recorded in a log for verification and audit  
    purposes. 

   b. When a device is retired, replaced or otherwise removed from UMC locations,  
     the hard drive must be wiped, a three pass over write is recommended  
    (DOD- Level Data Wipe).  

   c. Secure platform to print sensitive/confidential documents. 
 

8. Performance Metrics 
 a. Devices must have an uptime of 99% (excepting external damage). 
            b. Monthly reporting of exceptions, extra costs, and trends in print services. 

 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: 005E07D8-0761-495B-B081-6F10070ECCAC

Page 236 of 349 



EXHIBIT C 
2024-11 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH THE AGREEMENT DOCUMENT, COMPANY SHOULD FORWARD THE FOLLOWING 
INSURANCE CLAUSE AND SAMPLE INSURANCE FORM TO THEIR INSURANCE AGENT PRIOR TO PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL. 

 
B. Format/Time: COMPANY shall provide HOSPITAL with Certificates of Insurance, per the sample format (page B-3), for 

coverage as listed below, and endorsements affecting coverage required by this Agreement within ten (10) business days after 

the award by HOSPITAL. All policy certificates and endorsements shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer and 
who is licensed by the State of Nevada in accordance with NRS 680A.300. All required aggregate limits shall be disclosed and 
amounts entered on the Certificate of Insurance, and shall be maintained for the duration of the Agreement and any renewal 
periods. 

C. Best Key Rating: HOSPITAL requires insurance carriers to maintain during the Agreement term, a Best Key Rating of A.VII or 

higher, which shall be fully disclosed and entered on the Certificate of Insurance. 

D. HOSPITAL Coverage: HOSPITAL, its officers and employees must be expressly covered as additional insured’s except on 

Workers' Compensation. COMPANY's insurance shall be primary as respects HOSPITAL, its officers and employees. 

E. Endorsement/Cancellation: COMPANY's general liability and automobile liability insurance policy shall be endorsed to 

recognize specifically COMPANY’s contractual obligation of additional insured to HOSPITAL and must note that HOSPITAL will 
be given thirty (30) calendar days advance notice by certified mail “return receipt requested” of any policy changes, cancellations, 
or any erosion of insurance limits. Either a copy of the additional insured endorsement, or a copy of the policy language that 
gives HOSPITAL automatic additional insured status must be attached to any certificate of insurance. 

F. Deductibles: All deductibles and self-insured retentions shall be fully disclosed in the Certificates of Insurance and may not 

exceed $25,000. 

G. Aggregate Limits: If aggregate limits are imposed on bodily injury and property damage, then the amount of such limits must 

not be less than $2,000,000. 

H. Commercial General Liability: Subject to Paragraph 6 of this Exhibit, COMPANY shall maintain limits of no less than 

$1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury (including death), personal injury and property damages. 
Commercial general liability coverage shall be on a “per occurrence” basis only, not “claims made,” and be provided either on a 
Commercial General Liability or a Broad Form Comprehensive General Liability (including a Broad Form CGL endorsement) 
insurance form. Policies must contain a primary and non-contributory clause and must contain a waiver of subrogation 
endorsement. 

I. Automobile Liability: Subject to Paragraph 6 of this Exhibit, COMPANY shall maintain limits of no less than $1,000,000 

combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage to include, but not be limited to, coverage against all 
insurance claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from services rendered by COMPANY and any 
auto used for the performance of services under this Agreement. 

J. Professional Liability: COMPANY shall maintain limits of no less than $1,000,000 aggregate. If the professional liability 

insurance provided is on a Claims Made Form, then the insurance coverage required must continue for a period of two (2) years 
beyond the completion or termination of this Agreement. Any retroactive date must coincide with or predate the beginning of 
this and may not be advanced without the consent of HOSPITAL. 

K. Workers' Compensation: COMPANY shall obtain and maintain for the duration of this Agreement, a work certificate and/or a 

certificate issued by an insurer qualified to underwrite workers’ compensation insurance in the State of Nevada, in accordance 
with Nevada Revised Statutes Chapters 616A-616D, inclusive, provided, however, a COMPANY that is a Sole Proprietor shall 
be required to submit an affidavit (Attachment 1) indicating that COMPANY has elected not to be included in the terms, conditions 
and provisions of Chapters 616A-616D, inclusive, and is otherwise in compliance with those terms, conditions and provisions. 

L. Failure To Maintain Coverage: If COMPANY fails to maintain any of the insurance coverage required herein, HOSPITAL may 

withhold payment, order COMPANY to stop the work, declare COMPANY in breach, suspend or terminate the Agreement, 
assess liquidated damages as defined herein, or may purchase replacement insurance or pay premiums due on existing policies. 
HOSPITAL may collect any replacement insurance costs or premium payments made from COMPANY or deduct the amount 
paid from any sums due COMPANY under this Agreement. 

M. Additional Insurance: COMPANY is encouraged to purchase any such additional insurance as it deems necessary. 

N. Damages: COMPANY is required to remedy all injuries to persons and damage or loss to any property of HOSPITAL, caused 

in whole or in part by COMPANY, its subcontractors or anyone employed, directed or supervised by COMPANY. 

O. Cost: COMPANY shall pay all associated costs for the specified insurance. The cost shall be included in the price(s). 

P. Insurance Submittal Address: All Insurance Certificates requested shall be sent to University Medical Center, Attention: 

Contracts Management. See the Notice Clause in the Agreement for the appropriate mailing address. 

Q. Insurance Form Instructions: The following information must be filled in by COMPANY’s Insurance Company representative: 

Docusign Envelope ID: 005E07D8-0761-495B-B081-6F10070ECCAC

Page 237 of 349 



1. Insurance Broker’s name, complete address, phone and fax numbers. 

2. COMPANY’s name, complete address, phone and fax numbers. 

3. Insurance Company’s Best Key Rating 

4. Commercial General Liability (Per Occurrence) 
(A) Policy Number 
(B) Policy Effective Date 
(C) Policy Expiration Date 
(D) Each Occurrence ($1,000,000) 

(E) Damage to Rented Premises ($50,000) 
(F) Medical Expenses ($5,000) 
(G) Personal & Advertising Injury ($1,000,000) 
(H) General Aggregate ($2,000,000) 

(I) Products - Completed Operations Aggregate ($2,000,000) 

5. Automobile Liability (Any Auto) 
(J) Policy Number 
(K) Policy Effective Date 

(L) Policy Expiration Date 
(M) Combined Single Limit ($1,000,000) 

6. Worker’s Compensation: The COMPANY shall obtain and maintain for the duration of this Agreement, a work certificate 
and/or a certificate issued by an insurer qualified to underwrite workers’ compensation insurance in the State of Nevada, 
in accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes Chapters 616A-616D 

7. Professional Liability 
(N) Policy Number 
(O) Policy Effective Date 
(P) Policy Expiration Date 
(Q) Aggregate ($1,000,000) 

8. Description: Project (must be identified on the initial insurance form and each renewal form). 

9. Certificate Holder: 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
c/o Contracts Management 
1800 W. Charleston Blvd. 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102 

10. Appointed Agent Signature to include license number and issuing state. 

 
11. Notwithstanding any other provision to the contrary herein, the parties hereto agree that (1) all coverage provided by 

COMPANY hereunder shall be on a per policy basis; (2) COMPANY shall provide evidence of all such coverages upon 
request; (3) COMPANY agrees to provide HOSPITAL with a written notice of cancellation in accordance with 
COMPANY’S insurance policies; (4) all references herein to any ISO, Acord or other insurance form shall be read as 
to include “or equivalent, at the discretion of COMPANY”; and (5) COMPANY reserves the right to meet 
Excess/Umbrella Liability coverage requirements by increasing its Commercial General Liability, Business Automobile 
Liability and Employer’s Liability Insurance limits. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 005E07D8-0761-495B-B081-6F10070ECCAC

Page 238 of 349 



 

 

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 
THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE 
POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), 
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject 
to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the 
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER 

1. INSURANCE BROKER’S NAME 
ADDRESS 

CONTACT 
NAME: 

PHONE 

(A/C No. Ext): BROKER’S PHONE NUMBER 
FAX 

(A/C No.) BROKER’S FAX NUMBER 

E-MAIL 

ADDRESS: BROKER’S EMAIL ADDRESS 

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC # 

INSURED 

2. //TYPE//’S NAME 
ADDRESS 
PHONE & FAX NUMBERS 

INSURER A: 3. 

INSURER B:  

INSURER C:  

INSURER D:  

INSURER E:  

INSURER F:  

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER: 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY 
PERIOD INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT 
TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT 
TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

 
INSR 
LTR 

 

 
TYPE OF INSURANCE 

 
ADD’L 
INSR 

 
SUBR 
WVD 

 

 
POLICY NUMBER 

 
POLICY EFF 
(MM/DD/YY) 

POLICY 
EXP 

(MM/DD/YY) 

 

 
LIMITS 

4. GENERAL LIABILITY  
 

 

X 

 (A) (B) (C) EACH OCCURRENCE $(D) 1,000,000 

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
DAMAGE TO RENTED 
PREMISES (Ea occurrence) 

$(E) 50,000 

  CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR. MED EXP (Any one person) $(F) 5,000 

  PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $(G) 1,000,000 

  
GENERAL AGGREGATE $(H) 2,000,000 

GEN’L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS – COMP/OP AGG $(I) 2,000,000 

 
POLICY X PROJECT 

 
LOC DEDUCTIBLE MAXIMUM $ 25,000 

5. AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 
 
 

 

X 

 (J) (K) (L) COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT 
(Ea accident) 

$(M) 1,000,000 

X ANY AUTO 
     

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ 

 ALL OWNED AUTOS     BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $ 

 
SCHEDULED AUTOS 

   PROPERTY DAMAGE (Per 
accident) 

$ 

 HIRED AUTOS       $ 

 NON-OWNED AUTOS    DEDUCTIBLE MAXIMUM $ 25,000 

6. WORKER'S COMPENSATION 

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y/N 

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 
(Mandatory in NH) 

describe under 
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below 

 

X 

     WC STATU- 
TORY LIMITS 

 
OTHER $ 

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 

E.L. DISEASE – E.A. EMPLOYEE $ 

E.L. DISEASE – POLICY LIMIT $ 

7. PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY 
  (N) (O) (P) AGGREGATE $(Q) 1,000,000 

8. 
   (R) (S) (T) LIMIT (PER OCCURRENCE) $(U) 300,000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required) 

Project 

9. CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
C/O CONTRACTS MANAGEMENT 
1800 W. CHARLESTON BLVD. 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89102 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELED 
BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE 
DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

10. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

Docusign Envelope ID: 005E07D8-0761-495B-B081-6F10070ECCAC

Page 239 of 349 



@ 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2010/05) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 

 

POLICY NUMBER:   COMMERCIAL GENERAL AND AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 
 
 

 
CBE NUMBER AND CONTRACT NAME: Project 

 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGED THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY 

ADDITIONAL INSURED – DESIGNATED PERSON OR ORGANIZATION 
 
 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 
 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY AND AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART. 
 

SCHEDULE 

Name of Person or Organization: 

 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
C/O CONTRACTS MANAGEMENT 
1800 W. CHARLESTON BLVD. 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89102 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(If no entry appears above, information required to complete this endorsement will be shown in the Declarations as 
applicable to this endorsement.) 

 
WHO IS AN INSURED (Section II) is amended to include as an insured the person or organization shown in the Schedule 
as an insured but only with respect to liability arising out of your operations or premises owned by or rented to you. 

 
 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA, ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES AND VOLUNTEERS ARE 
INSUREDS WITH RESPECT TO LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF THE ACTIVITIES BY OR ON BEHALF OF THE NAMED 
INSURED IN CONNECTION WITH THIS PROJECT. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 005E07D8-0761-495B-B081-6F10070ECCAC

Page 240 of 349 



ATTACHMENT 1 (OPTIONAL) 

AFFIDAVIT 
 

(ONLY REQUIRED FOR A SOLE PROPRIETOR) 

 

I,  , on behalf of my company,  , being duly sworn, 

(Name of Sole Proprietor) (Legal Name of Company) 

 

depose and declare: 
 

1. I am a Sole Proprietor; 
 

2. I will not use the services of any employees in the performance of this Agreement, identified as 
Comprehensive Print Management- RFP 2024-11; 

 
3. I have elected to not be included in the terms, conditions, and provisions of NRS Chapters 616A- 

616D, inclusive; and 

4. I am otherwise in compliance with the terms, conditions, and provisions of NRS Chapters 616A- 
616D, inclusive. 

 
I release University Medical Center of Southern Nevada from all liability associated with claims made against me 
and my Company, in the performance of this Agreement, that relate to compliance with NRS Chapters 616A- 
616D, inclusive. 

Signed this  day of  ,     . 
 
 
 
Signature 

 
 
 
State of Nevada ) 

)ss. 
County of Clark ) 

 
Signed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on this day of  , 20 , 

 
by  (name of person making statement). 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Notary Signature 

 
STAMP AND SEAL 

Docusign Envelope ID: 005E07D8-0761-495B-B081-6F10070ECCAC

Page 241 of 349 



 

 
DEFINITIONS: 

EXHIBIT C 
SUBCONTRACTOR INFORMATION 

 

MINORITY OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (MBE): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which 

performs a commercially useful function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black 
American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native American ethnicity. 

WOMEN OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (WBE): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs 

a commercially useful function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women. 

PHYSICALLY-CHALLENGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (PBE): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit 

which performs a commercially useful function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals 
pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (SBE): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a 
commercially useful function, is not owned and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically- 

challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000. 

NEVADA BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (NBE): Any Nevada business which has the resources necessary to sufficiently perform 
identified County projects, and is owned or controlled by individuals that are not designated as socially or economically 
disadvantaged. 

 
VETERAN OWNED ENTERPRISE (VET): A Nevada business at least 51% owned/controlled by a veteran. 

DISABLED VETERAN OWNED ENTERPRISE (DVET): A Nevada business at least 51% owned/controlled by a disabled 
veteran. 

It is our intent to utilize the following MBE, WBE, PBE, SBE, and NBE subcontractors in association with this Agreement: 

1. Subcontractor Name:N/A  

Contact Person: Telephone Number: 
  

Description of Work:  

 

Estimated Percentage of Total Dollars:  

Business Type:  MBE  WBE  PBE  SBE  NBE 

 
2. Subcontractor Name:  

Contact Person: Telephone Number: 
  

Description of Work:  

 

Estimated Percentage of Total Dollars:  

Business Type:  MBE  WBE  PBE  SBE  NBE 

 
3. Subcontractor Name:  

Contact Person: Telephone Number: 
  

Description of Work:  

 

Estimated Percentage of Total Dollars:  

Business Type:  MBE  WBE  PBE  SBE  NBE 

 
4. Subcontractor Name:  

Contact Person: Telephone Number: 
  

Description of Work:  

 

Estimated Percentage of Total Dollars:  

Business Type:  MBE  WBE  PBE  SBE  NBE 

 

□ No MBE, WBE, PBE, SBE, or NBE subcontractors will be used 

Docusign Envelope ID: 005E07D8-0761-495B-B081-6F10070ECCAC

Page 242 of 349 



EXHIBIT D 
2024-11 Managed Print Services 

Business Associate Agreement 

This Agreement is made effective the    of  , 2025, by and between University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada (hereinafter referred to as “Covered Entity”), a county hospital duly organized pursuant to Chapter 450 of the Nevada Revised 

Statutes, with its principal place of business at 1800 West Charleston Boulevard, Las Vegas, Nevada, 89102, and 
Advanced Imaging Solutions , hereinafter referred to as “Business Associate”, (individually, a “Party” and collectively, the “Parties”). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Sections 261 through 264 of the federal Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 
104-191, known as “the Administrative Simplification provisions,” direct the Department of Health and Human Services to develop 
standards to protect the security, confidentiality and integrity of health information; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Administrative Simplification provisions, the Secretary of Health and Human Services issued 
regulations modifying 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 (the “HIPAA Rules”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (Pub. L. 111-5), pursuant to Title XIII of Division A and Title 

IV of Division B, called the “Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health” (“HITECH”) Act, as well as the Genetic 
Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 (“GINA,” Pub. L. 110-233), provide for modifications to the HIPAA Rules; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Secretary, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, published modifications to 45 CFR Parts 160 and 

164 under HITECH and GINA, and other modifications on January 25, 2013, the “Final Rule,” and 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to enter into or have entered into an arrangement whereby Business Associate will provide certain 
services to Covered Entity, and, pursuant to such arrangement, Business Associate may be considered a “Business Associate” of 
Covered Entity as defined in the HIPAA Rules (the agreement evidencing such arrangement is entitled “Underlying Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, Business Associate will have access to Protected Health Information (as defined below) in fulfilling its 
responsibilities under such arrangement; 

 
THEREFORE, in consideration of the Parties’ continuing obligations under the Underlying Agreement, compliance with the 

HIPAA Rules, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and intending 
to be legally bound, the Parties agree to the provisions of this Agreement in order to address the requirements of the HIPAA Rules and 
to protect the interests of both Parties. 

 
I. DEFINITIONS 

“HIPAA Rules” means the Privacy, Security, Breach Notification, and Enforcement Rules at 45 CFR Part 160 and Part 164. 
 

“Protected Health Information” means individually identifiable health information created, received, maintained, or transmitted in any 
medium, including, without limitation, all information, data, documentation, and materials, including without limitation, demographic, 
medical and financial information, that relates to the past, present, or future physical or mental health or condition of an individual; the 
provision of health care to an individual; or the past, present, or future payment for the provision of health care to an individual; and that 
identifies the individual or with respect to which there is a reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to identify the individual. 

“Protected Health Information” includes without limitation “Electronic Protected Health Information” as defined below. 
 

“Electronic Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information which is transmitted by Electronic Media (as defined in the 
HIPAA Rules) or maintained in Electronic Media. 

The following terms used in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as defined in the HIPAA Rules: Administrative Safegua rds, 
Breach, Business Associate, Business Associate Agreement, Covered Entity, Individually Identifiable Health Information, Minimum 
Necessary, Physical Safeguards, Security Incident, and Technical Safeguards. 

 
II. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

 
Business Associate and Covered Entity acknowledge and agree that in the event of an inconsistency between the provisions of this 
Agreement and mandatory provisions of the HIPAA Rules, the HIPAA Rules shall control. Where provisions of this Agreement are 
different than those mandated in the HIPAA Rules, but are nonetheless permitted by the HIPAA Rules, the provisions of this Agreement 
shall control. 

 
Business Associate acknowledges and agrees that all Protected Health Information that is disclosed or made available in any form 
(including paper, oral, audio recording or electronic media) by Covered Entity to Business Associate or is created or received by Business 

Docusign Envelope ID: 005E07D8-0761-495B-B081-6F10070ECCAC

Page 243 of 349 



Associate on Covered Entity’s behalf shall be subject to this Agreement. 
Business Associate has read, acknowledges, and agrees that the Secretary, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, published 
modifications to 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 under HITECH and GINA, and other modifications on January 25, 2013, the “Final Rule,” and 
the Final Rule significantly impacted and expanded Business Associates’ requirements to adhere to the HIPAA Rules. 

 
III. USE AND DISCLOSURE OF PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION 

 
(a) Business Associate agrees that all uses and disclosures of Protected Health information shall be subject to the limits 
set forth in 45 CFR 164.514 regarding Minimum Necessary requirements and limited data sets. 

(b) Business Associate agrees to use or disclose Protected Health Information solely: 
(i) For meeting its business obligations as set forth in any agreements between the Parties evidencing their 
business relationship; or 
(ii) as required by applicable law, rule or regulation, or by accrediting or credentialing organization to whom 
Covered Entity is required to disclose such information or as otherwise permitted under this Agreement or the 
Underlying Agreement (if consistent with this Agreement and the HIPAA Rules). 

(c) Where Business Associate is permitted to use Subcontractors that create, receive, maintain, or transmit Protected 
Health Information; Business Associate agrees to execute a “Business Associate Agreement” with Subcontractor as defined in 
the HIPAA Rules that includes the same covenants for using and disclosing, safeguarding, auditing, and otherwise administering 
Protected Health Information as outlined in Sections I through VII of this Agreement (45 CFR 164.314). 

 
(d) Business Associate will acquire written authorization in the form of an update or amendment to this Agreement and 
Underlying Agreement prior to: 

(i) Directly or indirectly receiving any remuneration for the sale or exchange of any Protected Health Information; 
or 
(ii) Utilizing Protected Health Information for any activity that might be deemed “Marketing” under the HIPAA 
rules. 

IV. SAFEGUARDING PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION 
 

(a) Business Associate agrees: 

(i) To implement appropriate safeguards and internal controls to prevent the use or disclosure of Protected Health 
Information other than as permitted in this Agreement or by the HIPAA Rules. 
(ii) To implement “Administrative Safeguards,” “Physical Safeguards,” and “Technical Safeguards” as defined in 
the HIPAA Rules to protect and secure the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of Electronic Protected Health 
Information (45 CFR 164.308, 164.310, 164.312). Business Associate shall document policies and procedures for 
safeguarding Electronic Protected Health Information in accordance with 45 CFR 164.316. 
(iii) To notify Covered Entity of any attempted or successful unauthorized access, use, disclosure, modification, 
or destruction of information or interference with system operations in an information system (“Security Incident”) upon 
discovery of the Security Incident. 

(b) When an impermissible acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of Protected Health Information (“Breach”) occurs, 
Business Associate agrees: 

 
(i) To notify Covered Entity’s Chief Privacy Officer immediately upon discovery of the Breach, and 
(ii) Within 15 business days of the discovery of the Breach, provide Covered Entity with all required content of 
notification in accordance with 45 CFR 164.410 and 45 CFR 164.404, and 
(iii) To fully cooperate with Covered Entity’s analysis and final determination on whether to notify affected 
individuals, media, or Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, and 
(iv) To pay all costs associated with the notification of affected individuals and costs associated with mitigating 
potential harmful effects to affected individuals. 

 
V. RIGHT TO AUDIT 

 
(a) Business Associate agrees: 

(i) To provide Covered Entity with timely and appropriate access to records, electronic records, HIPAA 
assessment questionnaires provided by Covered Entity, personnel, or facilities sufficient for Covered Entity to gain 
reasonable assurance that Business Associate is in compliance with the HIPAA Rules and the provisions of this 
Agreement. 
(ii) That in accordance with the HIPAA Rules, the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 
has the right to review, audit, or investigate Business Associate’s records, electronic records, facilities, systems, and 
practices related to safeguarding, use, and disclosure of Protected Health Information to ensure Covered Entity’s or 
Business Associate’s compliance with the HIPAA Rules. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 005E07D8-0761-495B-B081-6F10070ECCAC

Page 244 of 349 



VI. COVERED ENTITY REQUESTS AND ACCOUNTING FOR DISCLOSURES 
 

(a) At the Covered Entity’s Request, Business Associate agrees: 

(i) To comply with any requests for restrictions on certain disclosures of Protected Health Information pursuant 
to Section 164.522 of the HIPAA Rules to which Covered Entity has agreed and of which Business Associate is notified 
by Covered Entity. 
(ii) To make available Protected Health Information to the extent and in the manner required by Section 164.524 
of the HIPAA Rules. If Business Associate maintains Protected Health Information electronically, it agrees to make 
such Protected Health Information electronically available to the Covered Entity. 
(iii) To make Protected Health Information available for amendment and incorporate any amendments to 
Protected Health Information in accordance with the requirements of Section 164.526 of the HIPAA Rules. 
(iv) To account for disclosures of Protected Health Information and make an accounting of such disclosures 
available to Covered Entity as required by Section 164.528 of the HIPAA Rules. Business Associate shall provide any 
accounting required within 15 business days of request from Covered Entity. 

VII. TERMINATION 
 

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Covered Entity shall have the right to terminate this Agreement and the 
Underlying Agreement immediately if Covered Entity determines that Business Associate has violated any material term of this 
Agreement. If Covered Entity reasonably believes that Business Associate will violate a material term of this Agreement and, where 
practicable, Covered Entity gives written notice to Business Associate of such belief within a reasonable time after forming such belief, 
and Business Associate fails to provide adequate written assurances to Covered Entity that it will not breach the cited term of this 
Agreement within a reasonable period of time given the specific circumstances, but in any event, before the threatened breach is to occur, 
then Covered Entity shall have the right to terminate this Agreement and the Underlying Agreement immediately. 

 
At termination of this Agreement, the Underlying Agreement (or any similar documentation of the business relationship of the Parties), or 
upon request of Covered Entity, whichever occurs first, Business Associate will destroy all Protected Health Information received from or 
created or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity that Business Associate still maintains in any form and provide 
Covered Entity with written certification of same, or if such destruction is not feasible, Business Associate will provide written certification 
to Covered Entity of same and extend the protections of this Agreement to the information and limit further uses and disclosures to those 
purposes that make the return or destruction of the information not feasible. 

VIII. MISCELLANEOUS 
 

Except as expressly stated herein or the HIPAA Rules, the Parties to this Agreement do not intend to create any rights in any third parties. 
The obligations of Business Associate under this Section shall survive the expiration, termination, or cancellation of this Agreement, the 
Underlying Agreement and/or the business relationship of the Parties, and shall continue to bind Business Associate, its agents, 
employees, contractors, successors, and assigns as set forth herein. 

 
This Agreement may be amended or modified only in a writing signed by the Parties. No Party may assign its respective rights and 
obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other Party. None of the provisions of this Agreeme nt are 
intended to create, nor will they be deemed to create any relationship between the Parties other than that of independent parties 
contracting with each other solely for the purposes of effecting the provisions of this Agreement and any other agreements be tween the 
Parties evidencing their business relationship. This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Nevada. No change, waiver 
or discharge of any liability or obligation hereunder on any one or more occasions shall be deemed a waiver of performance of any 
continuing or other obligation, or shall prohibit enforcement of any obligation, on any other occasion. 

 
In the event that any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder 
of the provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect. In addition, in the event a Party believes in good faith that any 
provision of this Agreement fails to comply with the HIPAA Rules, such Party shall notify the other Party in writing. For a period of up to 
thirty days, the Parties shall address in good faith such concern and amend the terms of this Agreement, if necessary to bring it into 
compliance. If, after such thirty-day period, the Agreement fails to comply with the HIPAA Rules, then either Party has the right to 
terminate upon written notice to the other Party. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year written below. 

COVERED ENTITY: BUSINESS ASSOCIATE: 

 
By:   By:  

Mason VanHouweling 
Title: CEO Title:  

Docusign Envelope ID: 005E07D8-0761-495B-B081-6F10070ECCAC

President

Page 245 of 349 



Date:  Date:  

Docusign Envelope ID: 005E07D8-0761-495B-B081-6F10070ECCAC

2/12/2025

Page 246 of 349 



Page 247 of 349 



Page 248 of 349 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 26, 2025 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

14 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner Agreement with Rose Heart, Inc. 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 
Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner Agreement with Rose Heart, Inc.; authorize the Chief 
Executive Officer to execute amendments or renewal options; or take action as deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number:  5420.000     Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center:  3000723000     Funded Pgm/Grant:  N/A 
Description:  SANE services 
Bid/RFP/CBE:  NRS 332.115.1(b) – Professional Services 
Term:  2/1/2025 to 2/1/2027; one-year renewal option 
Amount:  $85,000 monthly 
Out Clause:  90 days w/o cause 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 

Since 1995, UMC has contracted with Rose Heart, Inc. (“Rose Heart”) for sexual assault nurse examiner 
services.  Rose Heart is an organization composed of highly trained and skilled registered nurses who have 
completed training as sexual assault nurse examiners through a course that has been endorsed by the Sexual 
Assault Response Team (SART) Committee.  Available 24 hours a day, the nurses examine patients and 
gather evidence in cases where victims have been sexually assaulted and/or abused. The work is performed in 
accordance with the protocols established by the Nevada Office of Criminal Justice Planning, and the Rose 
Heart Nurse Examiners are available to testify in court as needed. 
 
In previous agreements, UMC’s emergency room physician provider would compensate Rose Heart; however, 
UMC will now compensate Rose Heart directly and invoice Clark County for the services provided.  The 
proposed agreement is for a two (2) year term and may be terminated by either party without cause upon 
ninety (90) days’ notice.  The total monthly amount billed will not exceed $85,000.  Staff also request 
approval for the Chief Executive Officer to execute amendments or the renewal option if it is beneficial to 
UMC. 
 
UMC’s Chief Nursing Officer has reviewed and recommended approval of this Agreement, which has also 
been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 

Page 249 of 349 



Page Number 
2 

 
This agreement was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their February 19, 
2025 meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 
 

Page 250 of 349 



Page 1 of 16 
 

SEXUAL ASSAULT NURSE EXAMINER AGREEMENT 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of the date last signed by the parties below, by and between 
UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA (hereinafter referred to as “UMC”) 
and ROSE HEART, INC. (hereinafter referred to as “ROSE HEART”).  UMC and ROSE HEART may 
individually be referred to herein as a “Party” and collectively, as the “Parties.” 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, UMC is a Clark County, Nevada owned acute care hospital organized and existing 

by virtue of Chapter 450 of the Nevada Revised Statutes; 
 

WHEREAS, ROSE HEART is certified and legally authorized to examine patients and gather 
evidence in cases where the victim has been sexually assaulted and/or abused and is twelve (12) years 
or older, or, if under twelve (12) years of age, has begun menstruating; 
 

WHEREAS, the State of Nevada and the County of Clark have a responsibility to assure that 
sexual assault evidence is gathered according to established medical legal standards; 
 

WHEREAS, ROSE HEART has highly trained and skilled personnel available to perform 
required sexual assault examinations; and 
 

WHEREAS, ROSE HEART is willing to provide its on-call evidence collection services to 
UMC as a participating medical facility for the convenience and benefit of UMC and responsible law 
enforcement agencies. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
I. DEFINITIONS 
 

1.1 SART.  As used in this Agreement, the term “SART” refers to the Sexual Assault 
Response Team. 

 
1.2 SANE.   As used in this Agreement, the term “SANE” refers to a Sexual Assault Nurse 

Examiner. 
 
1.3 Nurse Examiner.  As used in this Agreement, the term “Nurse Examiner” shall mean 

those individuals: (1) who are licensed in the State of Nevada as Registered Nurses; (2) 
who have successfully completed training as SANE nurses through a course of study 
which has been endorsed by the SART Committee or who have equivalent training 
experience; and (3) who are certified to collect evidence from a sexual assault victim. 

 
II. ROSE HEART’S OBLIGATIONS 
 

2.1 ROSE HEART will provide Forensic Strangulation Evaluations with timely submission of 
the 1500 Health Insurance Claim Form.  Fees will be billed pursuant to the Fee Schedule 
attached as Exhibit 1.  The total monthly amount billed will not exceed $85,000. 

 
2.2 An invoice will be provided with the claim forms to UMC Accounts Payable, 1800 W. 

Charleston Blvd., Las Vegas, NV  89102.  The Invoice will include the following 
information:  Date of Service, Last, First name, HAR, MRN, level of examination 

Page 251 of 349 



Page 2 of 16 
 

conducted, and a copy of the dictation. 
 

2.3 ROSE HEART will contract with Nurse Examiners.  All Nurse Examiners used by 
ROSE HEART for on-call evidence collection services must be legally authorized by 
the State of Nevada to perform said service.  The Nurse Examiners will provide sexual 
assault examinations, suspect examinations, and forensic strangulation examination, 
which will meet or exceed the protocols established by the Nevada Office of Criminal 
Justice Planning. 
 

2.4 ROSE HEART shall make available to UMC, sufficient information to enable UMC 
to contact the on-call Nurse Examiner including, but not limited to, name(s) of Nurse 
Examiner(s), twenty-four (24) hour on-call telephone number(s), alternate or back-up 
telephone number(s), if any, and address(es). 

 
2.5 Nurse Examiners shall attend monthly case reviews at the request of UMC. 
 
2.6 The Medical Director of ROSE HEART must be credentialed and have practice 

privileges at UMC.  UMC agrees these privileges will not be unreasonably withheld 
and will be granted prior to the commencement of this Agreement. 

 
2.7 ROSE HEART and its Medical Director will provide supervision of the activities of 

the Nurse Examiners.   Specific terms of this shared supervision will be outlined in 
a memorandum of understanding between Rose Heart and its Medical Director. 

 
2.8 All Nurse Examiners must have on file, in the office of Human Resources, copies 

of all licenses and certificates required by the State of Nevada and evidence of annual 
competency evaluations. 

 
2.9 ROSE HEART shall supply equipment as specified on Exhibit 2. 
 
2.10 ROSE HEART and UMC agree to the provisions of the protocols and standards of 

performance as listed in Exhibit 3 attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference.  These protocol provisions may be changed from time to time upon mutual 
written agreement of the parties. 

 
2.11 ROSE HEART shall perform and adhere to all applicable requirements set forth in 

UMC’s Policy #I-66, available from UMC upon request. 
 
2.12 Insurance. 

 
a. General Provisions.   ROSE HEART shall provide UMC with Certificates of 

Insurance for coverage as listed below, and endorsements affecting coverage 
required by this Agreement within ten (10) calendar days after this Agreement 
has been fully executed by the Parties. 

 
1. Professional Liability.  ROSE HEART shall carry professional liability 

insurance of no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 
occurrence and Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000) in the aggregate.  
Said insurance shall be provided prior to the full execution of this 

Page 252 of 349 



Page 3 of 16 
 

Agreement by the Parties.  Such insurance shall annually be certified 
to the Hospital Administrator or his/her designee as necessary. 

2. General Liability.  General Liability coverage shall be on a “per 
occurrence” basis only and not “claims made.”  The coverage must be 
provided either on an ISO Commercial General Liability form or an 
ISO Broad Form Comprehensive General Liability form. Any 
exceptions to coverage must be fully disclosed on the required 
certificate.  If other than these forms are submitted as evidence of 
compliance, complete copies of each policy form must be submitted to 
UMC.  Policies must include, but need not be limited to, coverage for 
personal injury (including death) and property damage.  ROSE HEART 
shall maintain limits of no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) 
combined single limit per occurrence for personal injury (including 
death) and property damage. 

 
3. Auto Liability.  Automobile Liability must provide coverage for claims 

for damage because of personal injury (including death) or property 
damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use of any motor 
vehicle whether owned, hired or non-owned.  ROSE HEART shall 
maintain limits of no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) 
combined single limit “per accident” for personal injury (including 
death) and property damage. 

 
2.11 ROSE HEART agrees to make available on an on-call basis Nurse Examiners to testify 

in court, if needed, according to the requirements and terms of its agreements with the 
responsible law enforcement agency. 

 
III. UMC’S OBLIGATIONS 
 

3.1 ROSE HEART shall bill UMC directly each month for services rendered for forensic 
strangulation evaluations, as outlined in this Agreement. UMC will validate that 
information and pay ROSE HEART directly. UMC will look to reimbursement from Clark 
County for serviced billed by ROSE HEART. 

 
3.2 UMC shall subtract from any payment made to ROSE HEART all damages, costs and 

expenses caused by ROSE HEART’s negligence, resulting from or arising out of errors or 
omissions in ROSE HEART’s work products, which have not been previously paid to 
ROSE HEART. 

 
3.3 UMC shall not provide payment on any invoice ROSE HEART submits after six (6) 

months from the date ROSE HEART performs services, provides deliverables, and/or 
meets milestones, as agreed in this Agreement. UMC shall pay ROSE HEART invoices 
within sixty (60) days from receipt. 

 
3.4 Invoices shall be submitted to:  University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, Attn:  

Accounts Payable, 1800 W. Charleston Blvd., Las Vegas, NV 89102.   UMC will provide 
ROSE HEART with a contact name and telephone number and email for communication 
with a specific employee who will be knowledgeable about the payment process. 

 
3.5 UMC agrees, as the participating medical facility, to provide all medical facilities. 
 

Page 253 of 349 



Page 4 of 16 
 

3.6 UMC will provide parking for ROSE HEART personnel as necessary in the ambulance 
entrance area. 

 
IV. TERM 
 

4.1 Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall become effective as of February 1, 2025, and, 
subject to paragraphs 5.5 and 5.14, shall remain in effect through 31st day of January, 
2027, with the option by either Party to renew for one (1) additional annual renewal 
period subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, provided that written notice 
to exercise the option to renew is provided to the other Party. 

 
4.2 Termination Without Cause: Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to 

the contrary, this Agreement may be te1minated by either party without cause upon ninety 
(90) days written notice to the other party. 

 
V. MISCELLANEOUS 
 

5.1 Access to Records.  Upon written request of the Secretary of Health and Human Services 
or the Comptroller General or any of their duly authorized representatives, ROSE HEART 
shall, for a period of four (4) years after the furnishing of any service pursuant to this 
Agreement, make available to them those contracts, books, documents, and records 
necessary to verify the nature and extent of the costs of providing its services.  If ROSE 
HEART carries out any of the duties of this Agreement through a subcontract with a value 
or cost of $10,000 or more over a twelve-month period with a related contractor, such 
subcontract shall include this same requirement. This section is included pursuant to and 
is governed by the requirements of the Social Security Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1395x (v)(I), and 
the regulations promulgated thereunder. 

 
5.2 Amendments. No modifications or amendments to this Agreement shall be valid or 

enforceable unless mutually agreed to in writing by the parties. 
 
5.3 Assignment/Binding on Successors.  No assignment of rights, duties or obligations of 

this Agreement shall be made by either party without the express written approval of a 
duly authorized representative of the other party.  Subject to the restrictions against 
transfer or assignment as herein contained, the provisions of this Agreement shall inure 
to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the assigns or successors-in-interest of each 
of the parties hereto and all persons claiming by, through or under them. 

 
5.4 Authority to Execute.  The individuals signing this Agreement on behalf of the parties 

have been duly authorized and empowered to execute this Agreement and by their 
signatures shall bind the parties to perform all the obligations set forth in this Agreement. 

 
5.5 Budget Act.  In accordance with NRS 354.626, the financial obligations under this 

Agreement between the parties shall not exceed those monies appropriated and approved 
by UMC for the then current fiscal year under the Local Government Budget Act.  UMC 
agrees that this section shall not be utilized as a subterfuge or in a discriminatory fashion 
as it relates to this Agreement. 

 
5.6 Captions/Gender/Number/Tense.   The articles, captions, and headings herein are for 

convenience and reference only and should not be used in interpreting any provision of 
this Agreement.  Whenever the context herein requires, the gender of all words shall 

Page 254 of 349 



Page 5 of 16 
 

include the masculine, feminine and neuter and the number of all words shall include the 
singular and plural.  All verbs should be construed in the appropriate tense required by 
the context of the Agreement. 

 
5.7 Confidential Records.  All UMC medical records, histories, charts and other information 

regarding patients and all UMC statistical, financial, confidential, and/or personnel 
records and any data or data bases derived therefrom shall be the property of UMC 
regardless of the manner, media or system in which such information is retained.   All 
ROSE HEART documentation, pictures, reports and other information regarding victims 
and all ROSE HEART statistical, financial, confidential, and/or personnel records and 
any data or data bases derived therefrom shall be the property of ROSE HEART 
regardless of the manner, media or system in which such information is retained.  All 
such information received, stored or viewed by the parties shall be kept in the strictest 
confidence by the parties as required by law. 

 
5.8 Corporate Compliance.  ROSE HEART recognizes that it is essential to the core values 

of UMC that its contractors conduct themselves in compliance with all ethical and legal 
requirements.  Therefore, in performing its services under this contract, ROSE HEART 
agrees at all times to comply with all applicable federal and state laws and regulations 
in effect during the te1m hereof and further agrees to use its good faith efforts to comply 
with the relevant compliance policies of UMC, including its corporate compliance 
program and Code of Ethics, the relevant portions of which are available to ROSE 
HEART upon request. 

 
5.9 Disagreements/Arbitration.  All matters involving the performance of ROSE HEART’s 

duties, as set forth in this Agreement, shall be determined jointly by ROSE HEART and 
UMC’s Administrator.   Any disagreement between ROSE HEART and UMC’s 
Administrator shall be resolved according to the following procedures: 

 
a. In all matters concerning the adequacy of coverage and the performance of ROSE 

HEART’s duties set forth in the Agreement, the decision of UMC’s 
Administrator shall be binding upon both parties unless the same is appealed to 
UMC’s Governing Board within ten (10) days after the decision of UMC’s 
Administrator is announced. The determination of UMC’s Governing Board 
shall be final with respect to such matters. 

 
b. All disputed matters pertaining to UMC’s Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws, Rules 

and Regulations shall be addressed through the mechanisms and procedures 
adopted and established by the Bylaws, Rules and Regulations of UMC’s Medical 
and Dental Staff. 

 
c. All other matters concerning the application, interpretation or construction of the 

provisions of this Agreement shall be submitted to binding arbitration.  
Arbitration shall be initiated by either party making a written demand for 
arbitration on the other party.  Each party, within fifteen (15) days of said notice, 
shall choose an arbitrator, and the two selected arbitrators shall then choose a 
third arbitrator.  The panel of three (3) arbitrators shall then proceed in 
accordance with the applicable provisions of the Nevada Revised Statutes, with 
the third arbitrator ultimately responsible for arbitrating the matter.  Either party 
to the arbitration may seek judicial review by way of petition to the Eighth 
Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada to confirm, correct or vacate an 

Page 255 of 349 



Page 6 of 16 
 

arbitration award in accordance with the requirements of the Nevada Revised 
Statutes and the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure. 

 
5.10 Entire Agreement.  This document constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties, 

whether written or oral, and as of the effective date hereof, supersedes all other 
agreements between the parties which provide for the same services as contained in this 
Agreement.  Excepting modifications or amendments as allowed by the terms of this 
Agreement, no other agreement, statement, or promise not contained in this Agreement 
shall be valid or binding. 

 
5.11 False Claims Act. 

 
a. The state and federal False Claims Act statutes prohibit knowingly or recklessly 

submitting false claims to the Government, or causing others to submit false 
claims.  Under the False Claims Act, a provider may face civil prosecution for 
knowingly presenting reimbursement claims: (1) for services or items that the 
provider knows were not actually provided as claimed; (2) that are based on the 
use of an improper billing code which the provider knows will result in greater 
reimbursement than the proper code; (3) that the provider knows are false; (4) 
for services represented as being performed by a licensed professional when the 
services were actually performed by a non-licensed person; (5) for items or 
services furnished by individuals who have been excluded from participation in 
federally-funded programs; or (6) for procedures which the provider knows were 
not medically necessary.   

 
b. Violation of the civil False Claims Act may result in fines for each false claim, 

treble damages, and possible exclusion from federally-funded health programs. 
Accordingly, all employees, volunteers, medical staff members, vendors, and 
agency personnel are prohibited from knowingly submitting to any federally or 
state funded program a claim for payment or approval that includes fraudulent 
information, is based on fraudulent documentation or otherwise violates the 
provisions described in this paragraph.  

 
c. UMC is committed to complying with all applicable laws, including but not 

limited to Federal and State False Claims statutes.  As part of this commitment, 
UMC has established and will maintain a Corporate Compliance Program, has a 
Corporate Compliance Officer, and operates an anonymous 24-hour, seven-day-
a-week compliance Hotline.  Provider is expected to immediately report to 
UMC’s Corporate Compliance Officer directly at 702-383-6211, through the 
Hotline 1 -888-691-0772, or in writing, any actions by a medical staff member, 
UMC vendor, or UMC employee which ROSE HEART believes, in good faith, 
violates an ethical, professional or legal standard.  Hospital shall treat such 
information confidentially to the extent allowed by applicable law, and will only 
share such information on a bona fide need to know basis. UMC is prohibited by 
law from retaliating in any way against any individual who, in good faith, reports 
a perceived problem. 

 
5.12 Federal, State, Local Laws.  ROSE HEART will comply with all federal, state and local 

laws and/or regulations relative to its activities in Clark County, Nevada. 
 
5.13 Financial Obligation.  ROSE HEART shall incur no financial obligation on behalf of 

Page 256 of 349 



Page 7 of 16 
 

UMC without prior written approval of UMC or the Board of Hospital Trustees. 
 
5.14 Fiscal Fund Out Clause.  This Agreement shall terminate and UMC’s obligations under 

it shall be extinguished at the end of any of UMC's fiscal years in which UMC’s 
governing body fails to appropriate monies for the ensuing fiscal year sufficient for the 
payment of all amounts which could then become due under this Agreement.  UMC 
agrees that this section shall not be utilized as a subterfuge or in a discriminatory fashion 
as it relates to this Agreement.    In the event this section is invoked, this Agreement will 
expire on the 30th day of June of the current fiscal year.  Termination under this section 
shall not relieve UMC of its obligations incurred through the 30th day of June of the fiscal 
year for which monies were appropriated. 

 
5.15 Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be liable for any delays or failures in performance 

due to circumstances beyond their control. 
 
5.16 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the 

laws of the State of Nevada. 
 

5.17 Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996.  ROSE HEART shall use 
its best efforts to preserve the confidentiality of Protected Health Information it receives 
from UMC, and shall be permitted only to use and disclose such information to the extent 
that UMC is permitted to use and disclose such information pursuant to the Health 
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (42 U.S.C.  1320d-1329d-8; 42 
U.S.C.  1320d-2) (“HIPAA”), regulations promulgated thereunder (“HIPAA 
Regulations”) and applicable state law. 

 
5.18 Indemnification. 

 
a. ROSE HEART shall indemnify and hold harmless, UMC, its officers and 

employees from any and all claims, demands, actions or causes of action, of any 
kind or nature, arising out of the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of 
ROSE HEART, its employees, representatives, successors or assigns.  ROSE 
HEART shall resist and defend at its own expense any actions or proceedings 
brought by reason of such claim, action or cause of action. 

 
b. ROSE HEART’s obligation to indemnify and/or defend UMC shall survive the 

termination of this Agreement if the incident requiring such indemnification or 
defense occurred during the Agreement term, or any extension thereof, and 
directly or indirectly relates to ROSE HEART's obligations or performance under 
the terms of this Agreement. 

 
5.19 Independent Contractor.  UMC and ROSE HEART are independent entities and nothing 

contained in this Agreement shall be construed or be deemed to create a relationship of 
employer and employee or principal and agent or any relationship other than that of 
independent parties contracting with each other solely for the purpose of carrying out 
the provisions of this Agreement. 

 
5.20 Interpretation.  Each party hereto acknowledges that there was ample opportunity to 

review and comment on this Agreement.  This Agreement shall be read and interpreted 
according to its plain meaning and any ambiguity shall not be construed against either 
party.  It is expressly agreed by the parties that the judicial rule of construction that a 

Page 257 of 349 



Page 8 of 16 
 

document should be more strictly construed against the draftsperson thereof shall not 
apply to any provision of this Agreement. 

 
5.21 Non-Discrimination.   Neither party shall discriminate against any person on the basis 

of age, color, disability, gender, handicapping condition (including AIDS or AIDS related 
conditions), national origin, race, religion, sexual orientation or any other class protected 
by law or regulation. 

 
5.22 Notices.  All notices required under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall either 

be served personally or sent by certified mail, return receipt requested.  All mailed notices 
shall be deemed received three (3) days after mailing.  Notices shall be mailed to the 
following addresses or such other address as either party may specify in writing to the 
other party at its address listed in the signature blocks below, or at such other address as 
indicated by written notice to the other party. 

 
5.23 Publicity.  Neither UMC nor ROSE HEART shall cause to be published or disseminated 

any advertising materials; either printed or electronically transmitted which identify the 
other party or its facilities with respect to this Agreement without the prior written consent 
of the other party. 

 
5.24 Performance. Time is of the essence in this Agreement. 

 
5.25 Severability.  In the event any provision of this Agreement is rendered invalid or 

unenforceable, said provision(s) hereof will be immediately void and may be renegotiated 
for the sole purpose of rectifying the error.  The remainder of the provisions of this 
Agreement not in question shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
5.26 Third Party Interest/Liability.  This Agreement is entered into for the exclusive benefit 

of the undersigned parties and is not intended to create any rights, powers or interests in 
any third party.  UMC and/or ROSE HEART, including any of their respective officers, 
directors, employees or agents, shall not be liable to third parties by any act or omission 
of the other party. 

 
5.27 Waiver.  A party’s failure to insist upon strict performance of any covenant or condition 

of this Agreement, or to exercise any option or right herein contained, shall not act as a 
waiver or relinquishment of said covenant, condition or right nor as a waiver or 
relinquishment of any future right to enforce such covenant, condition or right. 

 
5.28 Warranties.  Each party represents and warrants that it is not an Excluded Provider.  For 

purposes of this Section, the term “Excluded Provider” means a person or entity that 
either (1) has been convicted of a crime related to health care, or (ii) is currently listed 
by a federal agency as debarred, excluded or otherwise ineligible for participation in 
federally funded programs (including without limitation federally-funded health care 
programs such as Medicare and Medicaid). Further, each party agrees to immediately 
disclose to the other party any debarment, exclusion or other event that makes the party 
or any individual employed by the party an Ineligible Person with respect to participation 
in any federal health care program, upon which disclosure the other party may, without 
penalty, immediately terminate this Agreement. 

 
 
 

Page 258 of 349 



Page 259 of 349 



Page 10 of 16 
 

EXHIBIT 1  

FEE SCHEDULE 

 

Code: 99281  Pt offered the FSE and declines to the exam.  Cost:  $407.55 
 
Code:  99283 Pt offered the FSE and accepts,  Exam Completed with no imaging required.   Cost 
$1196.00 
 
Code:  99284  Pt Offered the FSE and accepts, Exam Completed with imaging required.  Cost $2392.00 
 
If a patient comes in and leaves without being seen, then there will be no charge.   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 260 of 349 



Page 11 of 16 
 

EXHIBIT 2 
“EQUIPMENT” 

 

Logitech Speakers x 2 
Anatomic maniquines 
 File Folder 
Anatomic Body Parts 
Various Sexual Assault Books 
Brown  Desk  
Cabinet Locked  
Card Reader 
Photographs Various 
Large Calander with magnet changeable Months and dates 
Computer Dell, Inspiron Service Tag:  4N4Q704 
Computer Screens x 4   
Copy machine  
Crime Light x 2   
Crime Light Glassess x 2 
4 Port UISB KVM Switch  
Staple Remover 
16 GB SD Cards for Camera 
Canon  70 D Camera with Pelican caring case 
Canon EOS R with Flash lamp with Pelican Caring Case 
Canon  EOS 50 Camera with flash lamp with Pelican Caring Case 
Battery Chargers x 6 
Flashlight x3 
Forensic Rulers  Multiple Sizes   
Lab Guard specimen bag 
Light Staining Microscope   
Microscope Slide 
Otascope Camera Depstech 
Battery's for Various Camera's   
Plevic Pillow x 2 
Tripods x 2 
Pen 
SanDisk 4 GB SanDisk 
Sart Smart/Medical Hx & Assault Information  
Various Paper and pen and pencil products 
Secured Digital Forenisc Imaging , Storage, Program  
Slings Carrying case for tripods x 2 
AA Lithium Batteries 
State of Nevada Sexual Assault Evidence Collection Kit 
Stethascope  
123 Lithim Batteries 
Food and Drink  Various snacks   

Page 261 of 349 



Page 12 of 16 
 

Light Staining Microscope slide taken from the cervical 
Footpedals for camera x 3 
Strangulation Maniquin Heads 
Anatomic Strangulation Forms 
Ledger Sheets 
Log    
Various Phone chargers,  Apple, Samsung, Fast chargers  
Computer Camara to connect with Testifying in Court Remotely   

 

  

Page 262 of 349 



Page 13 of 16 
 

EXHIBIT 3  
MEDICAL FACILITY: 

 
1. UMC, as the participating medical facility, shall provide an examination/treatment area that will 

ensure the privacy of the victim/survivor and be conducive to interviewing. Evidence collection 
kits and all supplies necessary for the collection of evidence shall be kept in a locked area. UMC’s 
emergency room physician will examine the victim, as needed, after the physical evidence 
collection has been completed by the Nurse Examiner. The medical facility will make available all 
lab findings and other pertinent information to the Medical Director of ROSE HEART or his/her 
designee. 

 
2. The participating medical facility shall provide minimal storage space for needed supplies and 

provide all instruments/equipment required for the collection of medical evidence in a locked 
room. ROSE HEART and UMC security personnel shall have access. 

 
3. The participating medical facility shall advise the jurisdictional law enforcement agency that an 

assault has occurred, if the law enforcement agency has not already been notified. 
 

4. The participating medical facility shall be responsible for the physical well-being of the victim 
and medical treatment, if necessary. 

 
MEDICAL FACILITY PHYSICIAN: 

 
Under usual circumstances, the Nurse Examiner will evaluate and collect evidence from the sexually 
assaulted victim.  If the victim has sustained injuries, needing treatment beyond the scope of the 
Nurse Examiner, the participating Medical Facility Physician will: 

 
1. Evaluate and treat the sexually assaulted victim. 

 
2. Perform the vaginal examination and rectal examination. 

 
3. Order the necessary labs and blood analysis. 

 
4. The Medical Facility Physician will complete the hospital report of the sexually assaulted victim, 

if admitted through the emergency room. 
 

5. A victim/survivor in need of immediate emergency medical care will be treated as any other 
medical emergency. The attending Medical Facility Physician will determine at which point 
the victim will be available for the sexual assault examination. 

 
6. The following conditions require immediate medical treatment and physician referral. 

 
a. Severe bleeding from the vaginal or rectal area or any body orifice. 

Page 263 of 349 



Page 14 of 16  

 
b. Possible fractures. 
c. Lacerations requiring sutures. 
d. Head injury or history of loss of consciousness. 
e. Severe physical complaints such as chest pains or abdominal pains. 
f. Any other condition the SANE feels may warrant medical evaluation. 

 
7. If history indicates, the Medical Facility Physician will complete the pertinent 

inflammation in the sexual assault kit. 
 

SART (SEXUAL ASSAULT RESPONSE TEAM) MEDICAL DIRECTOR: 
 

The Medical Director of ROSE HEART, or his/her designee, will give prophylaxis for the prevention of 
sexually transmitted diseases and/or pregnancy and prescribe any other prophylaxis drugs deemed 
necessary. 

 
PROTOCOL FORMAT: 

 
1. The SANE, functioning within the framework of the Nurse Practice Act and the guidelines 

set forth by the Office of Criminal Justice Planning will provide a complete medical/legal 
examination and evidence collection for victims of sexual assault.  This may be performed 
without the direct supervision of a M.D. 

 
a. GENERAL PROCEDURE: 

 
(1) Initiate contact with sexual assault crisis counselor to assist in 

providing emotional support to the victim. 
 

(2) Assist investigating law enforcement agency with interview and 
subsequent physical evidence collection from the victim. 

 
(3) Provide the victim, as required by the State of Nevada, information 

and referrals for follow-up for pregnancy prophylaxis and STD testing. 
 

(4) Documentation as required by the Office of Criminal Justice 
Planning on forms of sexual assault kits. 

 
(5) Maintenance of all forms and evidentiary items as required by the 

Clark County Sheriff’s Crime Lab, the Clark County District Attorney’s 
Office, and the investigating law enforcement agencies.

Page 264 of 349 



Page 15 of 16  

b. SEXUAL ASSAULT EVIDENCE COLLECTION PROCEDURE: 
 

(1) Document pertinent data as required on the sexual assault kit. 
(2) Collect external physical evidence. 
(3) Assess and document physical findings on the body. 
(4) Scan with Omni Light and collect findings as indicated. 
(5) Perform gross visual perineal exam. 
(6) Perform examination with the colposcope: 

(a) Photograph injuries. 
(b) Collect physical findings. 

(7) Perform pelvic exam and rectal exam if indicated. 
(8) Following chain of custody requirements, package all clothing and 

evidentiary items. 
(9) Complete documentation on sexual assault kits. 

SANE (SEXUAL ASSAULT NURSE EXAMINER): 

1. The SANE will collect the physical evidence from the sexually assaulted victim. Victims sixteen 
(16) years and younger will require parental or legal guardian consents. 

 
2. All sexual assault Nurse Examiners will have been oriented to the Sheriff’s Crime Lab 

procedures and oriented to the Medical Protocol for Examination of Sexual Assault Victims. 
 

3. Nurse Examiners are available on-call twenty-four (24) hours per day. They will have a 
response time of thirty (30) minutes. 

 
4. Immediate supervision is not required by a physician. The medical/legal examination and 

evidence collection would be considered an independent nursing function and will be conducted 
as such. 

 
5. Nurse Examiners are notified by the law enforcement agency when a crime has occurred. 

6. Nurse Examiner/director is responsible for overseeing the training process and scheduling of 
Nurse Examiners. 

 
7. Nurse Examiner will respond to the hospital for the collection of evidence from the sexual 

assault victim and/or the suspect if necessary. 
 

8. Nurse Examiner will obtain and fully document as complete a medical history as 
possible. 

 
9. Nurse Examiner will inform the officer of any information that is relevant to the 

investigative process and the evidence collection. 
 

10. If requested, the Nurse Examiner will assist the law enforcement officer in the taking of 
photographs of the victim’s injuries. 

 
11. Nurse Examiner is responsible for the collection of evidence from the victim’s person. The 

Page 265 of 349 



Page 16 of 16  

evidence is to be collected and documented, in accordance with State protocol and laws of 
evidence. 

 
12. Nurse Examiner shall prepare the victim for physical examination by the physician, if history 

indicates. 
 

13. Nurse Examiner gives the evidence collected directly to the officer, noting chain of 
evidence procedure. 

 
14. Nurse Examiner is responsible for accurate documentation on sexual assault forms. 

 
15. Nurse Examiner distributes copies of sexual assault forms appropriately. 

 
16. Nurse Examiner will obtain all necessary blood specimens from the sexually assaulted victim 

and victims will be notified of results by established “call-back” procedures of UMC’s 
emergency room. 

 
17. Nurse Examiner will obtain consent for prophylaxis and all other necessary consents 

connected with the collection of the evidence. 
 

18. Nurse Examiner may collect the necessary vaginal swabs. 
 

19. Nurse Examiner will collect the rectal swabs from the victim. 
 

20. If history indicates, the Nurse Examiner may visually observe the victim for injuries and relay 
this information to the Medical Facility Physician. 

21. Nurse Examiner will refer the victim, if patient chooses, to a family physician if victim has one.  
If the victim does not have a family physician, victim will be referred to Clark County Health 
Department’s Community Action Against Rape or for immediate complications, victim may be 
referred to the hospital emergency room. 

 

Page 266 of 349 



Page 267 of 349 



Page 268 of 349 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 26, 2025 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

15 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Amendment Two to Brightview Landscape Services Inc.  
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 
Amendment Two to Agreement for Landscaping Services with Brightview Landscape 
Services Inc. and exercise any extension options; or take action as deemed appropriate. 
(For possible action)  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number: 5420.000        Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center: 3000846000     Funded Pgm/Grant: N/A 
Description: Landscape Services        
Bid/RFP/CBE: NRS 450.525 Membership in Hospital Purchasing Group 
Term: June 1, 2024 – May 31, 2025  Amendment (2) Two – Add funds and crew hours 
Amount: Amendment (2) Two – additional $608,658.72; Total aggregate $2,991,766.72    
Out Clause:  Thirty (30)-day written notice w/o cause 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 

This request is for approval of Amendment (2) Two to the Agreement for Landscape Services with Brightview 
Landscape Services, Inc. This Amendment (2) will increase the annual landscaping maintenance and porter 
services to include additional work to be performed. The new annual cost will be $608,658.72. The new not to 
exceed amount is $2,991,766.72. 
 
UMC’s Director of Environmental Services has reviewed and recommends approval of this Amendment.  This 
Amendment has been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
This Amendment was review was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their 
February 19, 2025 meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 
 
 Brightview currently holds an active Clark County business license. 

Page 269 of 349 



SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

 
This Second Amendment (“Amendment”) to the Landscape Services Agreement, is effective as of June 1, 
2024 (“Second Amendment Effective Date”), and is by and between University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada, a publicly owned and operated hospital created by virtue of Chapter 450 of the Nevada 
Revised Statutes, having its principal place of business at 1800 W Charleston Blvd, Las Vegas, NV 
89102, (“HOSPITAL”), and Brightview Landscape Services Inc., having its principal place of business 
at 4021 W Carey Ave, North Las Vegas, NV 89032, (“COMPANY”). 
 
WHEREAS, HOSPITAL and COMPANY have agreed to that certain Landscaping Services, (the 
“Agreement”); and 
 
WHEREAS, HOSPITAL and COMPANY wish to amend the Agreement in certain respects as provided in 
this First Amendment. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, HOSPITAL and COMPANY hereby agree as follows: 

1. SECTION II: COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT  

A. Compensation. Section A of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with 

the following: 

HOSPITAL agrees to pay COMPANY for the performance of services described in the Scope 

of Work (Exhibit A) and a Landscaping Master Plan (currently in progress) for the first of two 

option years in an amount of  $608,658.72 for a new not to exceed amount of $2,991,766.72for 

the Initial Term plus the first option year. HOSPITAL’s obligation to pay COMPANY cannot 

exceed not-to-exceed amount for the option year. It is expressly understood that the entire work 

defined in Exhibit A must be completed by COMPANY and it shall be COMPANY’s 

responsibility to ensure that hours and tasks are properly budgeted so the services are completed 

for the said fee. 

2. EXHIBIT A SOPE OF WORK / DELIVERABLES is hereby amended to make the following 
changes: 

• Replace the original HOSPITAL locations list at the specified corresponding rates with the 
following updated locations list with corresponding monthly rates, total annual crew hours, 
shifts, and total annual price: 
- Total Crew Hours 6,206 – Thru May 31, 2025 
- Shifts- 7 days a week: 5am-1pm/ 7am-3:30pm /11am-7pm/7pm-3am- Times and days vary 

based on site 
- Total Annual Price: $608,658.72 

I. Emergency Services 
  

• Contractor is on call 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. The phone number provided to the 
Owner/client in the event of an emergency. A minimum charge may apply depending on the 
nature of the work. Any amount of resources needed for an after- hours emergency is available. 
Emergency services are designated to be services not listed in current scope of work but not 

Page 270 of 349 



limited to, acts of god, weather, irrigation, or  vandalism that is a safety Hazzard deemed by 
the Owner/Client. Non emergency services are items listed in current scope of work 

Item Location Landscape 
Maintenance

/ Trash/ 
porter 

Price Per 
Month 

Total 
Crew 
Hours 

Annually 

Shifts (Day & Time) Full Time 
Employees 

Total Annual Price 

1 1800 W. 
Charleston 
Blvd., Las 
Vegas, NV 
89102 Main 
Campus 

$26,633.00 

 

$12,480.00 

8320 

 

4160 

Day 7:00am - 3:30pm 
Swing 3:00am - 
11:30pm 
Grave 10:30PM-
7:00AM 

4 (FT) 

 

2 (FT) 

$319,596.00 
 
 
$149,760.00 
 

 

2 2231 W. 
Charleston Las 
Vegas, NV 

$653.00 104 5:30AM-2:30PM 

Times vary 

2(FTE) $7,836.00 

3 Lied Pediatric 
Center 

$1,423.00 260 5:30AM-2:30PM 

Times vary 

2(FTE) $17,076.00 

4 Enterprise 
Quick Care 

$1,858.00 338 5:30am-2:30pm  

(times vary) 

2(FTE) $22,296.00 

5 Peccole Ranch 
Quick Care 

$739.00 135 5:30AM-2:30PM 

Times vary 

2(FTE) $8,868.00 

6 Rancho Quick 
Care 

$1,553.00 286 5:30AM-2:30PM 

Times vary 

2(FTE) $18,636.00 

7 Summerlin 
Quick & 
Primary Care 

$820.00 156 5:30AM-2:30PM 

Times vary 

2(FTE) $9,840.00 

8 Sunset Quick 
& Primary 
Care 

$1,344.00 247 5:30AM-2:30PM 

Times vary 

2(FTE) $16,128.00 

9 5575 E. 
Charleston 
Blvd, Las 
Vegas, NV 
89142 

$538.52 78 5:30AM-2:30PM 

Times vary 

2(FTE) $6,462.24  

10 5409 E. Lake 
Mead Blvd., 
Las Vegas, NV 
89156 

$535.61 78 5:30AM-2:30PM 

Times vary 

2(FTE) $6,427.32 

11 820 S. Rancho 
Ln., Las 
Vegas, 
NV89106 

$1,070.33 156 5:30AM-2:30PM 

Times vary 

2(FTE) $12,843.96  

12 710 S. 
Tonopah Dr. 

$538.52 78 5:30AM-2:30PM 1(FTE) $6,462.24 

Page 271 of 349 



Las Vegas, NV 
89106 Times vary 

13 2055 W. 
Charleston 
Blvd., Las 
Vegas, NV 
89102 - Empty 
Lot 
(Charleston 
and Tonopah) 

$535.58 52 5:30AM-2:30PM 

Times vary 

2(FTE) $6,426.96 

 Total Monthly  

$50,721.56 

 

 

1,204 

Monthly 

 

14,448 

Annually 

Times and days vary 
based on site 

7 DAYS A WEEK -
Monday – Sunday  

5am-1pm 

7am-3:30pm 

11am-7pm 

7pm-3am 

29 FTEs  

 Total Annual $608,658.72   29 FTEs  $608,658.72 

 

• Add item 4 to Section 1 General (a1) Scope of Work: 4. Power washing to be completed to 
Main UMC campus on an as needed basis. 

• Add 2 Full Time Employees for the included 3 shifts:  
- Day –              7:00am – 3:30pm 
- Swing –          3:00pm – 11:30pm 
- Grave Yard – 10:30pm – 7:00am 

* All new sites added will be provided standard landscaping services based on current Scope of Work 

 

3. In the event of the addition of new location(s), the funding amount may increase by up to 20%, 
subject to mutual agreement and dependent on the scope and requirements of the added locations.   
 

4. This Amendment does not and shall not be construed to modify any term or condition of the 
Agreement other than those specific terms and conditions expressly referenced herein. Capitalized 
terms not otherwise defined herein shall be as defined in the Agreement. In all other respects, the 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. In the event of any inconsistency or discrepancy 
between the Agreement and this Amendment, the terms and conditions set forth in this Amendment 
in this Amendment shall control. This Amendment may be executed in multiple counterparts, each 
of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
document.  
 

 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

 
 

Page 272 of 349 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Second Amendment on the dates set forth below. 
 
Brightview Landscape Service. University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 
Signature:_______________________________ 

 
Signature:___________________________________ 

 
Printed Name:      

 
Printed Name: Mason Van Houweling 

 
Title:        

 
Title: Chief Executive Officer 

 
Date:       

 
Date:        
 

 

Page 273 of 349 

Mobile User
Enrico Marogna

Mobile User
SVP SoCal

Mobile User
2/12/2025



Page 274 of 349 



Page 275 of 349 



Page 276 of 349 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 26, 2025 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

16 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Accept the appointment of Dr. John Fildes to serve on the Governing 

Board as an Ex-Officio member. 
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason VanHouweling,  Chief Executive Officer  
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board accept the appointment of Dr. John Fildes to serve on the 
Governing Board as an Ex-Officio member; and take action as deemed appropriate. (For 
possible action) 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None    
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

Pursuant to section 5.4 of the UMCSN Governing Board Bylaws, the Chairman of the Governing 
Board may appoint other Ex-Officio, non-voting members as reasonably helpful to properly exercise 
the duties of the Governing Board. 

 

Page 277 of 349 



1 
 

 

 

John Fildes, MD, FACS, FCCM, FPCS (Hon) 
 
Dr. John Fildes MD, FACS, FCCM, FPCS (Hon) is an Acute Care Surgeon, the combination of 
trauma, surgical critical care, and emergency general surgery. He served as the University Medical 
Center (UMC) Medical Director for the Trauma Center and Chief of the Department of Trauma and 
Burns (1996-2019). In addition, he served on the Medical Executive Committee (1996-2019) and was 
the Vice Chief of Staff and Interim Chief of Staff (2010-2016). Under his leadership, UMC became 
Nevada’s only Level 1 Trauma Center, only Pediatric Trauma Center, and only verified Burn Center. 
Dr. Fildes established the first American Association for the Surgery of Trauma (AAST) approved 
Acute Care Surgery Fellowship in the nation and was its program director for over a decade. He is an 
internationally renowned trauma surgeon, researcher, educator, and administrator in the fields of 
medicine, surgery, and medical education. 

A leader of the medical response to the 1 October 2017 shootings in Las Vegas, Dr. Fildes and his 
surgical team were commended by President Donald Trump for their care of the shooting victims. He 
continues to be a 1 October spokesperson at the regional, national, and international level. In 
addition, he was a consultant to DHS, FEMA, CDP, HHS, OS, ASPR, and EMMO -- agencies 
developing a disaster-training program for the medical response to a no-notice, overwhelming, large-
scale, mass shooting event. 

Dr. Fildes is also an Emeritus Professor of Surgery at the Kirk Kerkorian School of Medicine at UNLV. 
He was the inaugural chair of surgery and the former associate dean for external affairs at UNLV. Dr. 
Fildes also served as the school’s interim dean from September 2019 through April 2020. 

His research has appeared in 67 peer-reviewed publications, including the American Journal of 
Surgery, the Journal of Trauma and Acute Care Surgery, Critical Care Medicine, Academic 
Emergency Medicine, Plastic and Reconstructive Surgery, Journal of Surgical Research, Cancer 
Medicine, and Circulatory Shock. In addition, he has authored 72 invited publications and book 
chapters. 

Dr. Fildes is the recipient of several honors and awards. He received the Las Vegas Chamber of 
Commerce's Achievement Award (1998), was named Nevada’s Distinguished Physician (2006), 
Healthcare Hero (2012), Best Doctors of Southern Nevada six times (2013-2018), and honored by the 
Mayor of Las Vegas who proclaimed May 12th as Dr. John Fildes Day in the city of Las Vegas 
(2017). He also received the Dean’s Distinguished Service Award (2007), Foundation Professor 
Award (2012), and was named an Outstanding Teacher/Professor on numerous occasions by 

Page 278 of 349 



2 
 

medical students, residents, and fellows from several training programs. Dr. Fildes is the recipient of 
certificates of appreciation from the White House Medical Unit (1998, 2017), the Centers for Disease 
Control (2009, 2012), and the U.S. Air Force (USAF) (2016). 

He received his BS degree, cum laude, in biomedical engineering from Union College in 
Schenectady, NY (1973-1977). He received his MD degree, meritissimus (top 2%), from the 
University of Santo Tomas in Manila (1978-1982). Dr. Fildes completed his residency in general 
surgery at the Bronx-Lebanon Hospital in Bronx, NY (1982-1987). He completed his fellowship in 
trauma, burns, and surgical critical care at the Cook County Hospital in Chicago, IL (1988-1989). 

An American College of Surgeons (ACS) Fellow since 1990, Dr. Fildes made significant contributions 
to the creation of the National Trauma Data Bank® (NTDB®) and the Trauma Quality Improvement 
Project® (TQIP®). In the wake of the 9/11 terrorist attacks on the U.S., Dr. Fildes was asked to testify 
before the U.S. Senate on the readiness of the nation’s trauma centers. He was appointed National 
Chair of the ACS Committee on Trauma (COT) (2006-2010) and was promoted to ACS Medical 
Director of Trauma Programs in the Division of Research and Optimal Patient Care (2010-2014). He 
served as ACS Governor for the state of Nevada (2015-2018). Dr. Fildes received the Trauma 
Achievement Award (2018) for exceptionally meritorious service and lifetime achievement from the 
ACS and COT. 

Dr. Fildes has been a member of the AAST since 1994. He served as AAST Chair of the Injury 
Assessment and Outcome Committee (2004-2006). He also served as the chair of the Acute Care 
Surgery Committee (2010-2013) where he made significant contributions to the growth and 
development of acute care surgery as a new surgical specialty. He also served as the national chair 
of the Acute Care Surgery Program Directors Group (2013-2019). 

For more than two decades, Dr. Fildes has collaborated with the United States Air Force. He was a 
senior visiting surgeon and consultant at Landstuhl Regional Medical Center in Germany and at 
Bagram and Kandahar Air Bases in Afghanistan (2008). He embedded active-duty residents into 
general surgery and emergency medicine residencies at the Kerkorian School of Medicine and 
University Medical Center. Dr. Fildes collaborated and led the efforts to establish the STARS-P 
(Sustainment of Trauma and Resuscitation Skills – Program) and more recently the SMART 
(Sustained Medical and Readiness Training) programs to sustain and improve the readiness of 
attending surgeons and medical personnel for battlefield medicine. 

Dr. Fildes was a committee member for the Southern Nevada Health District from 1996 to 2020. He 
served on the Medical Advisory Board (MAB) (1996-2005) and served twice as the chair of the 
Regional Trauma Advisory Board (RTAB) (2006-2008, 2017-2020). The RTAB is responsible for 
oversight of the Southern Nevada Trauma System (SNTS). He was selected to chair the Needs 
Based Assessment Taskforce (NBAT), a community wide stakeholder group, to determine the need 
for new trauma centers in the SNTS (2016-2017). Dr. Fildes was invited to address these issues at 
the joint meeting of the Clark County Board of Commissioners, Las Vegas City Council, and Southern 
Nevada Board of Health in 2024.  

 

Page 279 of 349 



John Fildes, M.D. Page 1 of 21  Revised 8/27/2021 

`  
CURRICULUM VITAE 

JOHN FILDES, MD, FACS, FCCM, FPCS (Hon) 
 
Current Position: Professor Emeritus in Surgery, Kirk Kerkorian School of Medicine at University of 

Nevada Las Vegas (KKSOM UNLV), 2022- present 
 
Past Positions:  Associate Dean for External Affairs, 2020- 2022 
 Professor and Inaugural Chair, Department of Surgery 2017- 2022  
 1701 W Charleston Blvd, Suite 490  
 Las Vegas, NV 89102  
 Office phone: (702) 671-2201 
 Email: john.fildes@unlv.edu 
 
Past Positions:  Interim Dean, UNLV School of Medicine 9/2019 to 4/2020 
 Chair, University of Nevada Reno (UNR) Department of Surgery 2015-17 
 Vice Chair, UNR Department of Surgery 2002-15 
 Chief, Division of Acute Care Surgery 1996-2018 
 Program Director for the General Surgery residency 2002-13 
 Program Director for the Surgical Critical Care fellowship 2004-13 

Program Director for the Acute Care Surgery fellowship 2007-19 
 

Medical Director of Trauma Services at the University Medical Center (UMC) of 
Southern Nevada, Las Vegas 1996-2019  

 Chair, Department of Trauma and Burns at UMC 1996-2019 
 
Education:  BS, cum laude, in Biomedical Engineering 1977  
 Union College, Schenectady, NY  
 
 MD, meritisimus* 1982 
 University of Santo Tomas, Manila, Philippines  
 (*8 of 350)  
 
Internship & Residency:  Intern in General Surgery 1982-83  
 Resident in General Surgery 1983-87  
 Chief Resident in General Surgery 1986-87  
 Bronx-Lebanon Hospital, Bronx, NY  
 
Fellowship Training:  Fellow in General Surgery 1987-88  
 Bronx-Lebanon Hospital, Bronx, NY  
 
 Fellow in Surgical Critical Care, Burns, & Trauma 1988-89  
 Cook County Hospital, Chicago, IL  
 
Professional Development: Financial Management for Clinical Chairs, June 2021 
 Led by Clayton Tellers, ECG Management Consultants, San Diego, CA 
 
 Executive Development Seminar for Deans, Jan 2020 
 Association of Medical Colleges, Washington, DC 
 

CultureSync Leadership Program, 2018-2019 
Led by Dave Login author of Tribal Leadership, Los Angeles, CA 

 
 Program for Chiefs of Clinical Services, Jan 2013 
 Harvard School of Public Health, Boston, MA 

Page 280 of 349 

mailto:john.fildes@unlv.edu


John Fildes, M.D. Page 2 of 21  Revised 8/27/2021 

 
  
Professional Development (cont.): ULEAD Executive Leadership Training, 2013 
 GE Healthcare and the American College of Surgeons, Chicago, IL 
  
 Medical Executive Committee Institute, Jan 2014 
 The Greeley Corporation, Danvers, MA 
 

Physicians in Management Seminar (PIMS), July 2012 
Essentials of Healthcare Law, July 2014 
American Association for Physician Leadership, Tampa, FL   
 

Licensure:  Nevada is active (7717) 
 New York & Illinois are inactive       
 
Board Certification:  Certified in General Surgery 1988-2027 
 Re-Certification in General Surgery 1998, 2008, and 2017 
 
 Certified in Surgical Critical Care 1990-2024 
 Re-Certification in Surgical Critical Care 2000, 2010, and 2021 
 
Fellowships: Fellow in the American College of Surgeon, FACS, 1990 
 Fellow in the American College of Critical Care Medicine, FCCM, 1995 
 Honorary Fellow in the Philippine College of Surgeons, FPCS (Hon), 2012 
 Fellow, Academy of the Asian Collaboration for Trauma, 2021 
 
Academic Appointments:  Assistant Professor of Surgery 1989-1995  
 University of Illinois College of Medicine at Chicago 
 
 Lecturer in General Surgery 1990-1992 
 Visiting Assistant Professor in General Surgery 1992-1995 
 Assistant Professor in General Surgery 1995-1996 
 Rush Medical College, Chicago, IL 
 
 Lecturer in Health Sciences and Professional Studies 1992-1996 
 Malcolm X College, City Colleges of Chicago 
 
 Professor of Surgery 1996 
 Tenure granted 2001 

Foundation Professor 2012 
 University of Nevada Reno (UNR) School of Medicine 
 
 Adjunct Professor 2016 

Professor with tenure of title 2017 
 University of Nevada Las Vegas (UNLV) School of Medicine 
    
Hospital Appointments:  Attending Surgeon in Trauma and Critical Care 1989-1996  
 Cook County Hospital, Chicago, IL  
 
 Attending Surgeon in General Surgery 1989-1996  
 University of Illinois Hospital, Chicago, IL  
 
 Attending Surgeon in Trauma, Critical Care, and General Surgery 1996-2022 
 University Medical Center (UMC) of Southern Nevada, Las Vegas, NV  
 

Page 281 of 349 



John Fildes, M.D. Page 3 of 21  Revised 8/27/2021 

Professional Societies:    
Current American Association for the Surgery of Trauma 
 American College of Critical Care Medicine, Fellow since 1995 
 American College of Surgeons, Fellow since 1990  
 American Surgical Association   
 Eastern Association for the Surgery of Trauma  
 International Association for Trauma Surgery and Intensive Care (IATSIC) 
 International Society of Surgery (ISS)   
 Society of Critical Care Medicine  
 Western Surgical Association 
 Western Trauma Association 
 
Past & Honorary Societies: American Association for Physician Leaders 
 American Burn Association 
 American Medical Association 
 American Hernia Society 

American Trauma Society 
American Society Parenteral and Enteral Nutrition  
Association for Academic Surgery  
Biologic Photographic Association  
Chicago Surgical Society 
Illinois Surgical Society  
Karl Meyer Surgical Society (Cook County Hospital Alumni) 
Mackenzie Society (Oregon Heath & Science University) 
Philippine College of Surgeons 
 Honorary Fellow since 2012 
Society of Laparoscopic Surgeons 

 Society of Surgical Chairs 
 Southwest Surgical Congress 

Society of Philippine Surgeons in America 
Warren H. Cole Society (University of Illinois Chicago Alumni) 
 

Professional Society Leadership Positions:  
 Chicago Metropolitan Trauma Society 
  Secretary/Treasurer 1990-1992 
  Board of Directors 1991-1996 
  President (2 terms) 1992-1994 

Metropolitan Chicago Committee on Trauma of the American College of Surgeons 
  Regional ATLS Director 1993-1996 
  Vice Chair 1994-1996 

 Metropolitan Chicago Chapter of the American College of Surgeons   
  Executive Council 1994-1996 
  Interim Vice Chair 1995-1996  
 Nevada Committee on Trauma of the American College of Surgeons 
  Regional ATLS Director 1996-2001   
  Vice Chair 1996-1997 
  Chair 1997-2001 
 Nevada Chapter of the American College of Surgeons 
  Council Member 1997-2004  
  Secretary/Treasurer 2004-2006 

Vice President 2006-2008  
President 2008-2010 
Governor 2015-2018 

 Southwest Surgical Congress  
  State Councilor 1998-2003  

Page 282 of 349 



John Fildes, M.D. Page 4 of 21  Revised 8/27/2021 

Professional Society Leadership Positions (cont.): 
 American College of Surgeons (ACS) Committee on Trauma 
  Chair, National Trauma Data Bank Committee 2001-2006 

Site Visitor for the Verification Review Committee 
  National Chair, ACS Committee on Trauma 2006-2010 
 American Association for the Surgery of Trauma  
  Chair, Injury Assessment and Outcome Committee 2004-2006  
  Chair, Committee on Acute Care Surgery 2010-2013 
  Chair, Program Directors in Acute Care Surgery 2014-2019 
 American Board of Surgery 
  Trauma, Burns, Critical Care Advisory Council 2006-2010 
  Associate Examiner for the Certifying Examination 2012 and 2017 
 American College of Surgeons 

Medical Director, Trauma Programs in the Division of Research and Optimal 
Patient Care 2010-2014 

 
Other Professional Activities:  Hektoen Institute for Medical Research, Chicago, IL 
  Director, Trauma Basic Science Research Laboratory 1989-1996 

National Center for Advanced Medical Education (formerly the Cook County 
Graduate School of Medicine), Chicago, IL  

  Faculty 1989-1996 
 Advanced Trauma Life Support 
  Instructor 1989 
  State Faculty 1994 
  National Faculty 2006- Present  
 Advanced Burn Life Support 
  Instructor 1990-2001 
 Department of Surgery, Cook County Hospital, Chicago, IL 
  Coordinator, Post Graduate Medical Education 1991-1995  
  Department of Trauma, Cook County Hospital, Chicago, IL 
  Chief, Division of Trauma Education & Research1991-1996 
  Program Director of the Trauma Fellowship 1991-1996 
 Department of Surgery, Rush-Presbyterian-St. Luke's Medical Center, Chicago, IL  
  Surgical Research Committee 1994-1996 
  Residency Program Advisory Committee 1996 
 University of Nevada School of Medicine 
  Graduate Medical Education Committee, 2002-2019 
  Department of Surgery 
   Program Director in General Surgery 2002-2013 

Associate Program Director in General Surgery 2013-2015 
   Program Director in Surgical Critical Care 2004-2013 
   Program Director in Acute Care Surgery 2007-2019 
   Chief, Division of Trauma & Surgical Critical Care 1996-2007 
   Chief, Division of Acute Care Surgery 2007-2019 
   Vice Chair, Department of Surgery 2002-2016 
   Chair, Department of Surgery 2016-2022  

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, Las Vegas, NV 
Hospital-Wide Performance Improvement Committee 1996-2016 
Medical Executive Committee 1996-2020 

  Vice Chief of Staff 2010-2016  
 Southern Nevada Health District, Las Vegas, Clark County, NV 
  Medical Advisory Board for EMS 1996-2005 
  Quality Assurance Committee for EMS 1996-1999  
  Regional Trauma Advisory Board (RTAB) for system oversight 2006-2020 
   Chair in 2006 and 2018 

Page 283 of 349 



John Fildes, M.D. Page 5 of 21  Revised 8/27/2021 

  Trauma Medical Audit Committee (TMAC) for system PI 2006-2020 
  Trauma Procedure/Protocol Review Committee 2012-2015 

Chair, Needs Based Assessment Taskforce (NBAT) to determine the need 
for new trauma centers in the trauma system 2016-2017 

State of Nevada Department of Health and Human Services  
 Injury Prevention Task Force 2001-2006 
Nevada State Health Division’s Office of Emergency Medical Services 

Committee on Emergency Medical Services (NRS 450B.151-154) 2001-2019 
 Fundamentals of Laparoscopic Surgery 
  Provider 2009-2012 
 Fundamental Critical Care Support   
  Instructor candidate 2010 
 Practice Plan of the University of Nevada Reno (UNR) School of Medicine 
  Practice Plan Executive Committee, 2010-2014 
  Compliance and QA Committee of the Practice Plan, 2012-2014 
  Southern Regional Executive Committee (SREC)  
   Board member, 2012-2014 & 2016-2017 
  Medical School Associates South 
   Vice President, 2016-2017 
 Centers for Disease Control, Atlanta, GA 

Served on the National Expert Panel on Field Triage that created the 
Guidelines for Field Triage of Injured Patients in 2005 and again in 2012. 
These were published in the MMWR January 13, 2012 / 61(RR01);1-20 

 National Center for Health Statistics  
   Panel member of the national steering committee, Jan 2011 

Senior Visiting Surgeon 
Sponsored by the American Association for the Surgery of Trauma, 
American College of Surgeons, and the Department of Defense.  

Landsthul Regional Medical Center, Germany October 2008 
Base Hospitals in Bagram and Kandahar, Afghanistan October 2008 

 STARS-P (Sustainment of Trauma and Resuscitation Skills – Program)  
I partnered with the US Air Force at Nellis Air Force Base to stand up a 
STARS-P program that embeds medical personnel into our trauma service 
to maintain critical wartime readiness skills. This required a change in NV 
state statute before operationalization. 2010-2014  

Joint Service Graduate Medical Education (JSGME) selection board 
As the civilian program director who directs the training of active duty 
residents from the USAF I have been invited to serve on this selection 
board. It matches military medical students with residencies, 2010-2013 

 National Quality Forum  
Panel member for the steering committee on Regionalization of Emergency 
Care, 2011-2012 

SMART (Sustained Medical and Readiness Training - Program) 
I was the civilian director for this new program where USAF Surgeons. The 
Air Force will rotate surgeons and surgical teams at the University of 
Nevada and the University Medical Center to sustain and improve their 
readiness for battlefield medicine. 2015 

American Board of Surgery, Associate Examiner in the Certifying Exam, in  
  2012 and 2017 
 Medical Response to a Large-Scale Event at the FEMA Center for Domestic 

preparedness, Noble Training Facility in Anniston. AL, 2018-2019 
I served as an invited consultant to evaluate and plan disaster-training 
programs for DHS, FEMA, CDP, HHS, OS, ASPR, EMMO. 

Department of Defense, Joint Trauma System Consultation. May 2023 
 I served as an invited consultant to evaluate the military trauma system. 

Page 284 of 349 



John Fildes, M.D. Page 6 of 21  Revised 8/27/2021 

  
Honors & Awards:  Resident Paper Competition Award 1984 
   Presented by the Bronx Chapter of the  
   American College of Surgeons 
  The Olga Jonasson Award 1991  

  Presented by the surgical residents of the University  
  of Illinois and Cook County Hospital for exceptional  
  personal commitment to resident education in surgery,  
  academic and clinical excellence, and enthusiastic  
  personal support of resident surgical research  

 The Stergios Award 1992  
  Presented by the Department of Surgery of the  
  University of Illinois for excellence in basic research  
 Excellence in Teaching Award 1993  
  Presented by the emergency medicine residents of  
  the Cook County Hospital  
 Plaque of Appreciation 1994  
  Presented by the Philippine College of Surgeons  
  and the Department of Health, Republic of the  
  Philippines, for invaluable contributions to the  
  National Trauma Prevention and Management  
  Program of the Republic of the Philippines  
 Affiliated Surgical Attending of the Year Award 1995  
  Presented by the surgical residents of Rush-  
  Presbyterian-St. Luke's Medical Center in recognition  
  of outstanding contributions to resident education  
 Safe Community Partnership Award 1997  
  Presented by the Clark County Safe Community  
  Partnership for continued dedication to public safety  
  within the field of emergency medicine  
 Outstanding Full-Time Clinical Professor 1998  
  Presented by the University of Nevada School of  
  Medicine Class of 1998 in tribute to the pursuit of  
  excellence and dedication to teaching.  
 White House Medical Unit 1998  
  Certificate of Appreciation for outstanding support  
  provided during the President's visit to Las Vegas  
 Las Vegas Chamber of Commerce's Achievement Award 1998  

For professional service as Director of the Trauma Unit at University 
Medical Center  

 Outstanding Teaching Award 1999  
 Presented by the Surgical Residents of the  
 Department of Surgery, University of Nevada  
 School of Medicine in recognition of outstanding  
 contributions to resident education  

The ACS COT Millennium Commitment Award 2000  
Presented by the American College of Surgeons  

  Committee on Trauma in recognition of exceptional  
dedication and service to the Committee on Trauma  
 and the care of the injured  

 Outstanding Clinical Teacher 2001  
  Presented by the University of Nevada School of  
  Medicine Class of 2001 in honor and appreciation  
  for the time, commitment, and knowledge to the  
  teaching and mentoring of medical students  

Page 285 of 349 



John Fildes, M.D. Page 7 of 21  Revised 8/27/2021 

Honors & Awards (cont.): Honorary Fire Chief, Las Vegas Fire Department 2001  
  The highest honor given by the fire department for  
  outstanding service in saving the life of Captain  
  Nathan Pechacek  
 Most Outstanding Alumnus in Academic Achievement 2001  
  Presented by the University of Santo Tomas Medical  
  Alumni Association in America 
 Nevada’s Distinguished Physician 2006 

Awarded by the Nevada State Medical Association in recognition of 
outstanding service to the Nevada medical community 

Most Influential Person in Healthcare 2006 
Awarded by In Business Las Vegas Magazine for work as Director of the 
Level-One Trauma Center, University Medical Center 

Dean’s Distinguished Service Award 2007 
University of Nevada School of Medicine award bestowed annually to 
recognize special friends of the School of Medicine who have supported 
the philosophy and goals of the medical school and have made significant 
contributions to the healthcare field in Nevada. 

Heart of Community Award, 2007 
Presented during the American Heart Association’s 2007 Heart of Gold Ball 
for care administered to Roy Horn, of Siegfried & Roy, after his October 
2003 stroke following a tiger bite onstage, and for continuing service to the 
community. 

 Most Outstanding Alumni of the Medical School class of 1982, December2007 
Each year the Dean of the University of Santo Tomas Faculty of Medicine & 
Surgery chooses the most outstanding alumni from the class celebrating its 
25th reunion from medical school. The criteria include academic 
achievement and service. As a result, I was invited to deliver the 26th Dr 
Mariano Alimurung Memorial Lecture on the “Global Burden of Injury” 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention Certificate of Appreciation March, 2009 

Presented for leadership as Chair of the American College of surgeon 
Committee on Trauma in forging collaborations with the Centers for 
Disease Control and Prevention, resulting in the Morbidity and Mortality 
weekly report: Recommendations and Reports “Guidelines for Field Triage 
of Injured Patients: Recommendations of the National Expert Panel on Field 
Triage.”  

  American Academy of Nurse Practitioners, June 2009 
State Award for Excellence for increasing awareness and acceptance of 
Nurse Practitioners,   

 First Annual Strategic Highway Safety Plan Awards, 2011 
Presented in conjunction with the Safe Community Partnership Awards; 
honoring dedication to improving the safety of Nevada residents and for 
willingness to lend time and expertise for education/outreach and media 
events. 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention Certificate of Appreciation, January, 2012.  

Presented for leadership, expertise and contributions as a member of the 
National Expert Panel on Field Triage of Injured Patients. 

  Foundation Professor 2012 
Presented by the University of Nevada, Reno as one of the highest honors 
bestowed on a tenured professor. I am only the second physician selected 
for this award in its 34-year history. 
 
  

Page 286 of 349 



John Fildes, M.D. Page 8 of 21  Revised 8/27/2021 

Honors & Awards (cont.): Election to the Alpha Omega Alpha, National Medical Honor Society, April 2012 
Recognition by students, residents, and faculty for excellence in scholarship 
and the highest ideals in the profession of medicine. 

Nevada Healthcare Hero in Technology & Research, August 2012 
Selected by peers for this statewide award from the Nevada Business 
Magazine and Blue Cross and Blue Shield Nevada. 

 American College of Surgeons, March 2014 
For your commitment, service, and dedication as medical director to the 
Trauma Programs of the American College of Surgeons 2010-2014. 

American College of Surgeons Committee on Trauma, March 2014 
Recognition and thanks for nineteen years of dedicated service and 
leadership to the Committee on Trauma. 

2016 Top Doc in Trauma by University Medical Center 
 The Graduating Class of the University of Nevada School of Medicine, June 2016 
  Outstanding Full-Time Professor in Las Vegas 
 U.S Air Force 99th Medical Group at Nellis Air Force Base, Nevada, June 2016 

Presented for exceptional service and in appreciation for the efforts and 
dedication to support the USAF Surgeon General’s Sustained Medical And 
Readiness Training (SMART) Program 

Proclaimed May 12th as Dr. John Fildes Day in the City of Las Vegas 2017 
Proclaimed by Mayor Carolyn G. Goodman in recognition of his 20 years of 
service to the care of the injured people of Las Vegas. 

White House Medical Unit, October 2017 
For outstanding achievement in support of the White House Medical Unit 
and the President of the United States during the One October Shootings in 
Las Vegas 

American College of Surgeons Committee on Trauma, Trauma Achievement Award, 
March 9, 2018 

For exceptionally meritorious service and lifetime achievement as a member 
of a regional committee on trauma. 

Best Doctors of Southern Nevada by the Desert Companion and the National Public 
Radio, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 
Outstanding Service Recognition 2019 

Awarded by the leadership, faculty and staff of the school of medicine for 
outstanding service to UNLV Medicine.  

Healthcare Hero for Lifetime Achievement by the Nevada Business Magazine, 2020 
Awarded to one physician each year in Nevada for lifetime achievement in 
their field of medicine.  

The President’s Award for Lifetime Achievement from the Clark County Medical 
Society, 2020 

Awarded to one physician each year in Clark County for unselfishly giving 
back to Southern Nevada. 

Norman McSwain Leadership Award 2021 
Awarded to one physician at the 2021 World Trauma Symposium for lifetime 
contributions to trauma care as a surgeon, a pioneer in education, and 
development in the trauma field, an advocate for prehospital care, as an 
educator teaching and mentoring prehospital care providers, as a trauma 
spokesperson at the regional, national, and international stage, as an 
author, and for significant contributions to the creation of the National 
Trauma Data Bank® (NTDB®) and the Trauma Quality Improvement Project® 
(TQIP®). 

 Most Outstanding Alumnus of the Year, July 2022 
 Presented by the University of Santo Tomas (UST) Medical Alumni Association to 

one physician each year. It is inscribed “A distinguished physician who has led 

Page 287 of 349 



John Fildes, M.D. Page 9 of 21  Revised 8/27/2021 

locally and nationally in the field of Trauma Surgery. He has exemplified the highest 
virtues of a Thomasinong Manggagamot (translation: a UST Physician)." 

 Thomasian Outstanding Medical Alumni (THOMAS) Award for Medical Education, Dec 2022.  
 The Faculty of the University of Santo Tomas School of Medicine selects one 

medical school alumni to receive this award for outstanding contributions and 
lifetime achievement in medical education. 

Past Manuscript Reviewer:   
 Joint Commission Journal on Quality and Patient Safety  
 Journal of the American College of Surgeons 
 Journal of Trauma and Acute Care Surgery 
 Critical Care Medicine 
 World Journal of Surgery 
  The Western Journal of Medicine 
 Medical Journal of Brunei 
 
Invited Presentations (partial list):  

1. Yemeni College of Surgeons, 1994 
2. Philippine College of Surgeons 51st Annual Clinical Congress, 1995 
3. Institute of Medicine, The Future of Emergency Care, 2006 
4. Royal Australasian College of Surgeons Annual Scientific Congress, May 2007 
5. University of Santo Tomas, invited to deliver the 26th Dr Mariano Alimurung Memorial Lecture, Dec 

2007 Royal College of Surgeons of Thailand, July 2008 
6. Philippine College of Surgeons 64th Annual Clinical Congress, December 2008 
7. Institute of Medicine, Regionalization of Emergency Care, May 2009 
8. The 8th Jonathan Hiatt, MD Trauma & Critical Care Lectureship, Cedars-Sinai Medical Center, May 

2009 
9. Pan American Trauma Congress in Brazil, November 2009 
10. The Presidential Invited Lecturer of the American Society for Reconstructive Microsurgery, January 

2010 
11. The Office of National Drug Control Policy at the White House, April 2010 
12. Dartmouth Medical Center, April 2010 
13. American College of Emergency Physicians, July 2010 
14. Rush Medical Center, November 2011 
15. National Association of EMS Physicians, January 2012 
16. Duke University, June 2012 
17. The 1st World Trauma Congress in Brazil, August 2012 
18. The Emergency General Surgery Research Agenda at the AAST, October 2012  
19. NCTC/DHS/FBI/Las Vegas Joint Counterterrorism Awareness Workshop, Las Vegas, NV, October 

2012 
20. Report on the Committee on Trauma, Board of Regents of the American College of Surgeons, June 

2013 
21. American College of Osteopathic Surgeons Clinical Congress, November 2013 
22. Moderator of the Trauma Quality Improvement Program (TQIP) national annual meeting, 

November 2013 
23. Report on the Committee on Trauma, Board of Regents of the American College of Surgeons, 

February 2014 
24. Pediatric Trauma III global webcast, February 2014 
25. The 41st Annual Preston A. Wade Lectureship, Weill Cornell Medical College and New York-

Presbyterian/Weill Cornell Medical Center, April 2014 
26. The 2nd Annual Kasian A. Lim Memorial Lecture, University of Santo Tomas, Manila, Philippines, 

December 2016 
27. Philippine College of Surgeons 72nd Annual Clinical Congress, December 2016 
28. University of Florida, Jacksonville, September 2017 
29. American College of Surgeons Clinical Congress, October 2017 
30. Stanford University Combined Trauma & Emergency Medicine Grand Rounds, January 2018 

Page 288 of 349 



John Fildes, M.D. Page 10 of 21  Revised 8/27/2021 

31. SSAT/AAST/SAGES Winter Conference Keynote Speaker, January 2018 
32. ATLS 40th Anniversary Celebration Keynote Speaker, March 2018 
33. Healthcare Response to a No-Notice Incident: Las Vegas, ASPR & TRACIE (Assistant Secretary for 

Preparedness and Response & ASPR’s Technical Resources, Assistance Center, and Information 
Exchange), March 2018 

34. Conference Medical Disaster Management in the Netherlands, April 2018 
35. European Society for Trauma & Emergency Surgery in Valencia, Spain, May 2018 
36. Australasian College of Surgeons in Sydney, Australia, May 2018 
37. Union College Distinguished Alumni Lecture, May 2018 
38. Albany Medical College Grand Rounds, May 2018 
39. The Olga Jonasson Lecture at the University of Illinois Chicago, June 2018 
40. Scripps Clinic in La Jolla, CA Grand Rounds, June 2018 
41. The Freeark Lecture at Loyola University in Chicago, June 2018 
42. The Peter Mucha Lecture at the Mayo Clinic, Rochester, MN, August 2018 
43. The Donald Trunkey Lecture at Oregon Health Sciences University, September 2018 
44. The Use of Registries for Maintenance of Certification at the American Board of Medical Specialties, 

September 2018 
45. The Maj. John Pryor, MD, FACS Lecture at the Pennsylvania Trauma System Foundation, October 

2018 
46. Keynote speaker at the 15th Annual ADVOCATE Trauma Symposium in Chicago, November 2018 
47. Visiting Professor at the University of Toronto, February 2019 
48. American Academy of Orthopedic Surgeons panel on disaster management, March 2019 
49. Trauma Center Association of America annual meeting, April, 2019 
50. NYU Department of Surgery Grand Rounds, May 2019 
51. Opening speaker for the International Association for Trauma and Critical Care Surgery (IATSIC) at 

the World Congress of Surgery in Krakow, Poland, August 2019  
52. Keynote Speaker at the 75th Annual Clinical Congress of the Philippine College of Surgeons, Manila, 

November 2019 
53. Speaker for the Trauma Association of Canada Multi-Center Grand Rounds, March 2021 
54. Opening Speaker at the Asian Collaboration for Trauma, October 2021 
55. Reflections on the Impact of the Committee on Trauma 100th Anniversary. As a Past Chairs I spoke 

on Quality Initiatives. March 2022  
56. Responding to the National Rise in Violence, The American Trauma Society annual meeting. April 

2022 
57. The University of Santo Tomas Alumni Annual Meeting. June 2022 
58. Inova Health’s Emergency General Surgery, Surgical Critical Care, & Trauma Symposium. April 2024 
59. Clark County Commission, Las Vegas City Council, and the Southern Nevada Health District Joint 

Meeting. September 2024 
60. Advocate Health Annual Trauma Symposium. November 2024 

 
Grants:   

1. Co-Investigator. A prospective randomized comparison of surgical versus percutaneous tracheostomies in critically 
ill, mechanically ventilated patients. Cook Medical Products. 1991-1992  

 
2. Principal Investigator. A prospective, randomized, multi-center trial of Dexon II versus conventional sutures in the 

development of wound infection.  Davis & Geck. 1991-1993  
 

3. Principal Investigator. Teaching surgical skills for trauma care with cadavers.  Lederle Labs. 1991-1993  
 

4. Principal Investigator. A prospective, randomized, multicenter comparison of ampicillin/sulbactam versus cefoxitin 
as early empiric therapy following penetrating and blunt abdominal trauma.  Pfizer Pharmaceutical. 1991-1995  

 
5. Co-Investigator. Open label trial of Centoxin (HA-1A) treatment of presumed gram negative sepsis.  Centocor, Inc. 

1992-1993  
 

Page 289 of 349 



John Fildes, M.D. Page 11 of 21  Revised 8/27/2021 

6. Principal Investigator. Hypotensive resuscitation in an uncontrolled hemorrhage model.  Hektoen Institute for 
Medical Research, Chicago, IL. 1992-1994  

 
7. Co-Investigator. Randomized, placebo-controlled trial of E5 monoclonal  antibody in patients with severe sepsis.  

Pfizer Pharmaceuticals. 1993-1994 
 

8. Principal Investigator. The use of diaspirin cross-linked hemoglobin in the hospital management of hemorrhagic 
hypovolemic shock.  Baxter Healthcare. 1994-1995  

 
9. Principal Investigator. Multicenter study to evaluate the safety and effectiveness of PEG-superoxide dismutase in 

severe closed head injury. Sterling Winthrop Pharmaceuticals. 1994-1995  
 

10. Co-Investigator. To develop and conduct two educational training programs to improve identification and 
documentation of domestic violence occurrences in Clark County. Office of the Attorney General, State of Nevada. 
1996  

 
11. Principal Investigator. The efficacy trial of diaspiril cross-linked hemoglobin (DCLHB) in the treatment of severe 

traumatic hemorrhagic shock. Baxter Healthcare 1996-1997  
 

12. Co-Principal Investigator. Crash Outcome Data Evaluation System (CODES). Develop linkages of statewide databases 
to evaluate crash outcome data for the State of Nevada. ($257,000)  National Highway Traffic Safety Administration 
1997-2000  

 
13. Co-Principal Investigator. Domestic Violence Data Initiative. Perform an epidemiological analysis of Nevada using 

probabilistic linkage methodology to join existing databases to identify patterns of domestic violence. ($123,000)  
State of Nevada Office of the Attorney General 1997-1998  

 
14. Co-Principal Investigator. Nevada CODES Project. Continuation and a Demonstration of Expanded Crash File 

Electronic Capture. Provide accurate compilation and analysis of traffic crash data collected from multiple sources 
throughout Nevada. ($75,000)  State of Nevada Department of Motor Vehicle and Public Safety, Office of Traffic 
Safety 1998-2000  

 
15. Co-Principal Investigator. Nevada Emergency Medical Services for Children Data Collection and Information Solidify 

and institutionalize the emerging Nevada EMSC infrastructure ($95,500) Health Resources and Services 
Administration (HRSA), Maternal and Child Health Bureau 1998-2000  

 
16. Co-Principal Investigator. Suicide Research Prevention Center. Formation of an injury control center. Will focus on 

data driven evaluation of suicide occurrence, its epidemiology and prevention. ($1,500,000)  Centers for Disease 
Control and Injury Prevention 1998-2001  

 
17. Co-Principal Investigator. Domestic Violence Data Initiative. To continue  data efforts to take existing electronic 

databases to create an epidemiological baseline for incidence of domestic violence in Nevada. ($75,000)  State of 
Nevada Office of the Attorney General 1998-2001  

 
18. Co-Principal Investigator. Nevada EMSC Partnership.  For Infrastructure, Data and Education. Continue to 

institutionalize the emerging Nevada EMSC infrastructure; further refine and standardize EMS data collection and 
develop a pre-hospital computer-based distance learning strategy. ($97,600)  Health Resources and Services 
Administration (HRSA), Maternal and Child Health Bureau 2000-2003  

 
19. Co-Director.  National Trauma Data Bank. To support the data accrual and quality efforts of the NTDB. ($170,000)  

National Highway Traffic Safety Administration 2001. 
 

20. Co-Principal Investigator. Emergency Medical Services for Children Trauma/EMS Systems Assessment. Initiate 
efforts to create a statewide strategic plan for trauma care systems by gathering data to document systems and 
challenges with the State of Nevada; coordinate and complete a standardized trauma system needs assessment - 

Page 290 of 349 



John Fildes, M.D. Page 12 of 21  Revised 8/27/2021 

statewide. ($45,000) Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA), Maternal and Child Health Bureau 
2001-2002  

 
21. Co-Principle Investigator. Nevada CODES Data Network. Collaborative effort among NHTSA, state and local agencies 

to continue the expansion and maintenance of the CODES linked data. ($94,000)  National Highway Transportation 
Safety Administration 2001-2003 

 
22. Co-Investigator. Suicide Prevention Research Center. Conduct, evaluate and publish suicide prevention research; 

identify, design, implement and evaluate suicide prevention programs with primary geographic focus in the inter-
mountain west. ($1,200,000)  Center for Disease Control and Prevention/DHHS Grant # U49\CCU915983-06.  2001-
2005  

 
23. Co-Director.  National Trauma Data Bank. To support the NTDB data accrual through the development of trauma 

registry software conversion programs. ($200,000)  National Highway Traffic Safety Administration 2003 
 

24. Co-Director.  National Trauma Care Data Standardization Project. To develop a minimum trauma care dataset that 
state trauma systems can adopt to enhance the quality of national trauma care data and preparedness. ($99,700)  
Health Resources Services Administration 2003-2005 

 
25. Co-Principal Investigator. Nevada EMSC Partnership Grant for Date and Disaster Preparedness Activities.  Solidify 

and institutionalize Nevada EMSC infrastructure, assess state guidelines, develop a pediatric disaster training 
handbook, refine EMS data collection in Nevada. ($300,000) Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA), 
Maternal and Child Health Bureau 2003-2007 

26. Co-Director.  National Trauma Care Data Standardization Project and NTDB Online. To continue work on the data 
standardization project and enhance the dissemination of the NTDB information over the Internet. ($99,100) Health 
Resources Services Administration 2004-2005 

 
27. Co-Director.  NTDB National Sample Project.  To develop a nationally and regionally representative sample of data 

collected on patients treated in US trauma centers.  ($99,080)  Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 2005 
 

28. Co-Director.  National Trauma Care Data Standardization Project and NTDB Online. To promote use of the standard 
dataset among state trauma registries and individual trauma centers, and to develop software for the collection of 
the dataset.  ($99,375)  Health Resources Services Administration 2005-2006 

 
29. Co-Director. NTDB National Sample Project. To continue the sample project through the recruitment of sample 

centers and support of a case definition survey. ($75,000)  Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 2005-2006 
 

30. Co-Principal Investigator. High Speed Blood and Fluid Transfusion Equipment. Research and development of a 
lightweight, portable, and minimal power requirement high speed blood and fluid transfusion device. ($1,500,000) 
Office of Naval Research 2005-2006 

 
31. Co-Principal Investigator. High Speed Blood and Fluid Transfusion Equipment. Research and development of a 

lightweight, portable, and minimal power requirement high speed blood and fluid transfusion device. ($2,011,000) 
Office of Naval Research 2007-2010 

 
32. Principal Investigator, Browder, T, Faculty Mentor, Fildes, JJ: The Effect of Induced Hypothermia on Hepatic and 

Pulmonary Apoptosis during Hemorrhagic Shock ($35,850.00) The American Association for the Surgery of Trauma 
Research Scholarship, 2008-2009 

 
33. Principal Investigator, Center for Traffic Safety Research. Linkage of crash records and trauma records to create a 

database that includes crash scene data and trauma information. ($390,000)  Nevada Office of Traffic Safety, 2008 -
2011 

 

Page 291 of 349 



John Fildes, M.D. Page 13 of 21  Revised 8/27/2021 

34. Principal Investigator. High Speed Blood and Fluid Transfusion Equipment. Research and development of a 
lightweight, portable, and minimal power requirement high speed blood and fluid transfusion device. ($3,088,200) 
Office of Naval Research 2010-2013 

 
35. Co-Principal Investigator: Center for Traffic Safety Research. ($90,000.00 annually) Nevada Office of Traffic Safety, 

Department of Public Safety 2011–2013 
 

36. Co-Investigator: Portable Body Temperature Conditioner, Phase I. ($2,096,000.00) US Army Medical Research ACQ 
Acquisition Activity/US Army Research 2011–2014 

 
BIBLIOGRAPHY  
Peer Reviewed Publications 
 

1. Gerst PH; Fildes JJ; Baylor P; Zonszein J: Long-acting B-adrenergic antagonists as preparation for surgery in 
thyrotoxicosis. Arch Surg 1986; 121:838-840.  

 
2. Fildes JJ; Narvaez GP; Baig KA; Pai N; Gerst PH: Pulmonary tumor embolization after peritoneovenous shunting for 

malignant ascites. Cancer 1988; 61:1973-1976.  
 

3. Gerst PH; Fildes JJ; Rosario PG; Schorr JB: Risk of human immunodeficiency virus infection in patients and health 
care personnel. Crit Care Med 1990; 18:1440-1448.  

 
4. Fildes JJ, Bannon MP, Barrett J.: Soft-tissue infections after trauma. Surg. Clin. North Am. 1991, 71(2):371-84  

 
5. Fildes JJ; Reed LL; Jones N; Martin M; Barrett JA: Trauma: Leading cause of maternal mortality.    J Trauma 1992; 

32:643-645.  
 

6. Fildes JJ; Sheaff C; Barrett J: Very hot intravenous fluid used in the treatment of hypothermia.         J Trauma 1993; 
35:683-687.  

 
7. Nagy KK; Davis J; Duda J; Fildes JJ; Roberts R; Barrett J: A comparison of pentastarch and lactated Ringer's solution 

in the resuscitation of patients with hemorrhagic shock. Circ Shock 1993; 40:289-294.  
 

8. Nagy KK; Massad M; Fildes JJ; Reyes H: Missel embolization revisited: A rationale for selective management. Am 
Surg 1994; 60:975-979.  

 
9. Fildes JJ; Betlej TM; Manglano R; Martin M; Rodgers F; Barrett JA: Limiting cardiac evaluation in patients with 

suspected myocardial contusion. Am Surg 1995;61:832-835.  
 

10. Nagy KK; Fildes JJ; Sloan E; Kim DO; Smith RF; Roberts RR; Krosner SM; Joseph K; Barrett JA: Aspiration of free 
blood from the peritoneal cavity does not mandate immediate laparotomy. Am Surg 1995;61:790-795.  

 
11. Inabnet WB; Fildes JJ; Barrett JA: Perfusion patterns in uncontrolled hemorrhagic shock and limited resuscitation. 

Surgical Forum 1995.  
 

12. Fildes JJ; Betleg TM; Barrett JA: Buckshot colic: Case report and review of the literature. J Trauma 1995;39:1181-
1184.  

 
13. Sheaff CM; Fildes JJ; Keogh P; Smith RF; Barrett JA: Safety of 65°C/149°F intravenous fluid for the treatment of 

hypothermia. Am J Surg 1996;172:52-55.  
 
14. Nagy KK; Fildes JJ; Mahr C; Roberts RR; Krosner SM; Joseph KT; Barrett JA: Experience with three prosthetic 

materials in temporary abdominal wall closure. Am Surg 1996;62:331-335.  
 

Page 292 of 349 



John Fildes, M.D. Page 14 of 21  Revised 8/27/2021 

15. Friedman Y; Fildes JJ; Mizock B; Patel S; Samuel J; Appavu S; Roberts RR; O'Neill CM: Comparison of percutaneous 
and surgical tracheostomies. Chest 1996;110:480-485.  

 
16. Nagy KK; Gilkey SH; Roberts RR; Fildes JJ: Computed tomography screens stable patients at risk for penetrating 

cardiac injury. Academic Emergency Medicine 1996;3/11:1024-1027.  
 

17. Friedman Y, Fildes JJ, Mizock B, Patel S, Samuel J, Appavu S, Roberts RR, O'Neill CM: Comparison of percutaneous 
and surgical tracheostomies. Chest 1996;110:480-485.  

 
18. Sheaff CM, Fildes JJ, Keogh P, Smith RF, Barrett JA: Safety of 65°C/149°F intravenous fluid for the treatment of 

hypothermia. Am J Surg 1996;172:52-55.  
 

19. Mahr CC; Fildes JJ; Becker EJ; Nagy KK; Krosner SM; Roberts RR; Smith RF; Joseph K; O'Neill, CM; Barrett JA: 
Recovery rate of candidiasis in critically ill trauma patients with unresolved sepsis. Complications in Surgery 1997; 
16(4)  

 
20. Nagy KK, Brenneman FD, Krosner SM, Fildes JJ, Roberts RR, Joseph KT, Smith RF, Barrett J.: Routine preoperative 

“one-shot” intravenous pyelography is not indicated in all patients with penetrating abdominal trauma. J Am Col 
Surgery 1997: 185:530-533  

 
21. Fildes JJ, Fisher S, Sheaff CM, Barrett JA: Effects of short heat exposure on human red and white blood cells. J 

Trauma, 1998;45:479-84.  
 

22. Rogers FB, Rozycki GS, Osler TM, Shackford SR, Fildes JJ, et al: A multi-institutional study of factors associated with 
fetal death in injured pregnant patients. Arch Surg, 1999, 134:1274-7.  

 
23. Nagy KK, Perez F, Fildes JJ, Barrett J: Optimal prosthetic for acute replacement of the abdominal wall. J Trauma, 

1999;47:529-32  
 

24. Fildes JJ, Inabnet WB, Barrett JA: Perfusion patterns in uncontrolled hemorrhagic shock and resuscitation. Brunei 
International Medical Journal, 1999; 1:139-146.  

 
25. Mazolewski PJ, Curry JD, Fildes JJ: Computed tomography can be used for surgical decision making in zone II 

penetrating neck injuries. J Trauma, 2001; 51:315-9  
 

26. Cohen M, Morales R, Fildes JJ, Barrett J: Staged reconstruction after gun shot wounds to the abdomen. Plast. 
Reconstr. Surg. 2001; 108: 83-92.  

 
27. Curry JD, Recine CA, Snavely E, Orr M, Fildes JJ: Periaortic hematoma on abdominal CT as an indicator of thoracic 

aortic rupture in blunt trauma. J Trauma, 2002;52:699-702.  
 
28. Ikossi DG, Lazar AA, Morabito D, Fildes J, Knudson MM: Profile of mothers at risk: an analysis of injury and 

pregnancy loss in 1,195 trauma patients. J Am Col Surg. 2005 Jan;2005(1):49-56. 
 

29. Steljes TP, Fullerton-Gleason L, Kuhls D, Shires GT, Fildes J: Epidemiology of suicide and the impact on Western 
trauma centers. J Trauma. 2005 Apr;58(4):772-7. 

 
30. Kuhls, DA, Rathmacher ,JA, Musngi, MD, Frisch, DA, Nielson, J, Barber, A, MacIntyre, AD, Coates, JE, Fildes, JJ: Beta-

hydroxy-beta-methylbutyrate supplementation in critically ill trauma patients. J Trauma 2007. Jan;62(1):125-
31;discussion 131-2. 

 
31. MacIntyre A, Markarian MK, Carrison D, Coates J, Kuhls DA, Fildes JJ: Three-Step Emergency Cricothyroidotomy. 

Military Meducube, 172, 12:1228. 2007 
 

Page 293 of 349 



John Fildes, M.D. Page 15 of 21  Revised 8/27/2021 

32. Shafi S, Nathens AB, Parks J, Cryer HM, Fildes JJ, Gentilello LM. Trauma Quality Improvement Using Risk-Adjusted 
Outcomes: J Trauma, 2008 Mar;64(3):599-604; discussion 604-6 

 
33. Markarian MK, MacIntyre DA, Cousins BJ, Fildes JJ, Malone A: Adolescent pneumopericardium and 

pneumomediastinum after motor vehicle crash and ejection. Am J Emerg Med., 2008 May;26(4):515.el-2. 
 

34. Shafi S, Nathens AB, Parks, J, Cryer, HM, Fildes JJ, Gentilello LM: Trauma Quality Improvement Using Risk-Adjusted 
Outcomes. J Trauma, 2008;64:599-606 

 
35. Kortbeek JB, Fildes JJ, along with 56 other authors. Advanced Trauma Life Support, 8th Edition, The Evidence for 

Change. J Trauma, 2008;64(6):1638-1650 
 

36. Davis AK, Kuhls DA, Wulff R, Fildes JJ, MacIntyre AD, Coates JE, Zamboni WA: Heterotopic Ossification After Blunt 
Abdominal Trauma. J Trauma. 2008;65:1536-1539 

 
37. Tinkoff G, Esposito TJ, Reed J, Kilgo P, Fildes J, Pasquale M, Meredith JW. AAST Organ Injury Scale I:spleen, liver, 

and kidney, validation based on the NTDB. J Am Coll Surg. 2008 Nov;207(5):646-55. 
 

38. Goble, S, Neal, M, Clark, DE, Nathens, AB, Annest, JL, Faul, M, Sattin, RW, Li, L, Levy, PS, Mann, NC, Guice, K, 
Cassidy, LD, Fildes, JJ, Creating a nationally representative sample of patients from trauma centers. J Trauma. 2009 
Sep;67(3):637-42; discussion 642-4 

 
39. Moore EE, Knudson MM, Jurkovich GJ, Fildes JJ, Meredith JW: Emergency traumatologist or trauma and acute care 

surgeon: decision time. J Am Coll Surg. 2009 Sep;209(3):394-5.  
 

40. Khoie, B, Kuhls, DA, Agrawal, R, Fildes, JJ: Penetrating vertebral artery pseudoaneurysm: a novel endovascular 
stent graft treatment with artery preservation. Injury, Infection, and Critical Care. J Trauma. 2009 Sept; 67:3 

 
41. Shafi S, Nathens AB, Cryer HG, Hemmila MR, Pasquale MD, Clark DE, Neal M, Goble S, Meredith JW, Fildes JJ.  The 

Trauma Quality Improvement Program of the American College of Surgeons Committee on Trauma. J Am Coll Surg. 
2009 Oct; 209(4):521-530. 

 
42. Hemmila MR, Nathens AB, Shafi S, Calland JF, Clark DE, Cryer HG, Goble S, Hoeft CJ, Meredith JW, Neal ML, 

Pasqual MD, Pomphrey MD, Fildes JJ, The Trauma Quality Improvement Program: Pilot Study and Initial 
Demonstration of Feasibility. J Trauma. 2010 February: 68:2 

 
43. Shafi S, Ahn C, Parks J, Nathens AB, Cryer HM, Gentilello LM, Hemmila M, Fildes JJ. Quality of Care Within a 

Trauma Center is not altered by Injury type, J Trauma. 2010 Mar;68(3):716-20 
 

44. Shafi S, Parks J, Ahn C, Gentilello LM, Nathens AB, Hemmila MR, Pasquale MD, Meredith JW, Cryer HG, Goble S, 
Neil M, Price C, Fildes, JJ.  Centers for Medicare and Medicaid services quality indicators do not correlate with risk-
adjusted mortality at trauma centers. J Trauma.2010 Apr;68(4):771-7. 

 
45. Chua C, Wisniewski T, Ramos A, Schlepp M, Fildes, JJ, Kuhls DA. Multidisciplinary Trauma Intensive Care Unit 

Checklist: Impact on Infection Rates. J Trauma Nurs. 2010 Jul-Sep;17(3):163-6. 
 

46. Fildes JJ, Weireter LJ Jr. Experience in Haiti allows college to be better prepared for future crises. Bull Am Coll Surg. 
2010 Sept;95(9):15-7.  

 
47. Shafi S, Barnes S, Nicewander D, Ballard D, Nathens AB, Ingraham AM, Hemmila M, Goble S, Neal M, Pasquale M, 

Fildes JJ, Gentilello LM. Healthcare reform at trauma centers—mortality, complications, and length of stay. J 
Trauma 2010 Dec;69(6):1367-71. 

 
48. Nathens AB, Cryer HG, Fildes JJ. The American College of Surgeons Trauma Quality Improvement Program. Surg 

Clin North Am. 2012 Apr;92(2):441-54.   

Page 294 of 349 



John Fildes, M.D. Page 16 of 21  Revised 8/27/2021 

49. Calland JF, Nathens AB, Young JS, Neal ML, Goble S, Abelson J, Fildes JJ, Hemmila MR. The effect of dead-on-arrival 
and emergency department death classification on risk-adjusted performance in the American College of Surgeons 
Trauma Quality Improvement Program. J Trauma Acute Care Surg. 2012 Nov;73(5):1086-1092. 

 
50. Morris JA Jr, Fildes J, May AK, Diaz J, Britt LD, Meredith JW. A research agenda for emergency general surgery: 

health policy and basic science. J Trauma Acute Care Surg. 2013 Jan;74(1):322-8. 
 
51. Morris JA Jr, Diaz J, Fildes J, May AK, Britt LD, Meredith JW. A research agenda for emergency general surgery: 

clinical trials.  J Trauma Acute Care Surg. 2013 Jan;74(1):329-33. 
 

52. Esposito TJ, Tinkoff G, Reed J, Shafi S, Harbrecht B, Thomas C, Fildes J. American Association for the Surgery of 
Trauma Organ Injury Scale (OIS): Past, present, and future. J Trauma Acute Care Surg. 2013 Apr;74(4):1163-74.  

 
53. Newgard CD, Fildes JJ, Wu L, Hemmila MR, Burd RS, Neal M, Mann NC, Shafi S, Clark DE, Goble S, Nathens AB. 

Methodology and Analytic Rationale for the American College of Surgeons Trauma Quality Improvement Program. 
J Am Coll Surg. 216.1 (2013): 147-157 

 
54. Dente, Christopher J., Therese M. Duane, Gregory J. Jurkovich, L. D. Britt, J. Wayne Meredith, and John J. Fildes. 

"How much and what type: Analysis of the first year of the acute care surgery operative case log." Journal of 
Trauma and Acute Care Surgery 76, no. 2 (2014): 329-339. 

 
55. Fillmore, P. R., B. Armstrong, M. Johnson, S. Tsuda, T. Browder, and J. Fildes. "Fast Track Management of 

Cholecystitis with Same Day Surgery Reduces Hospital Length of Stay and Health Care Costs." Journal of Surgical 
Research 186, no. 2 (2014): 608-609. 

 
56. Duane TM, Dente CJ, Fildes JJ, Davis KA, Jurkovich GJ, Meredith JW, Britt LD. Defining the acute care surgery 

curriculum. J Trauma Acute Care Surg. 2015 Feb;78(2):259-63; discussion 263-4. doi: 
10.1097/TA.0000000000000522. PubMed PMID: 25757109. 

 
57. Chestovich PJ, Browder TD, Morrissey SL, Fraser DR, Ingalls NK, Fildes JJ. Minimally invasive is maximally effective: 

Diagnostic and therapeutic laparoscopy for penetrating abdominal injuries. J Trauma Acute Care Surg. 2015 
Jun;78(6):1076-83; discussion 1083-5. doi: 10.1097/TA.0000000000000655. PubMed PMID: 26151506. 

 
58. Shafi S, Barnes S, Ahn C, Hemmila MR, Cryer HG, Nathens A, Neal M, Fildes J. Characteristics of ACS Verified Level II 

and II Trauma Centers: A Study Linking Trauma Center Verification Review Data and the National Trauma Data 
Bank of the American College of Surgeons Committee on Trauma. J Trauma Acute Care Surg. 2016 May 27. [Epub 
ahead of print] PubMed PMID: 27257710. 

 
59. Catapano JS, Chapman AJ, Horner LP, Lu M, Fraser DR, Fildes JJ. Pre-injury polypharmacy predicts mortality in 

isolated severe traumatic brain injury patients. Am J Surg. 2016 Aug 10. Pii: S0002-9610(16)30389-0. 
doi:10.1016/j.amjsurg. 2016.07.010. (Epub ahead of print) PubMed PMID: 27596800. 

 
60. Heller D, Heller A, Moujaes S, Williams SJ, Hoffmann R, Sarkisian P, Khalili K, Rockenfeller U, Browder TD, Kuhls DA, 

Fildes JJ.  Research: Testing of a Novel Portable Body Temperature Conditioner Using a Thermal Manikin. Biomed 
Instrum Technol. 2016 Sep-Oct;50(5):336-48. doi: 10.2345/0899-8205-50.5.336. PubMed PMID:27632039. 

 
61. Ferrada P, Ivatury RR, Spain DA, Davis KA, Aboutanos M, Fildes JJ, Scalea TM. Internationa rotations: A valuable 

source to supplement operative experience for acute-care surgery, trauma and surgical critical care fellows.  J 
Trauma Acute Care Surg. 2017 Jan;82(1):51-57. Doi: 10.1097/TA.0000000000001307. PubMed PMID:27779594. 

 
62. Burlew CC, Davis KA, Fildes JJ, Esposito TJ, Dente CJ, Jurkovich GJ. Acute Care Surgery fellowship graduates’ 

practice patterns: The additional training is an asset. J Trauma Acute Care Surg. 2017 Jan;82(1):208-210.doi: 
10.1097/TA.0000000000001309. PubMed PMID: 27779596. 

 

Page 295 of 349 

http://0-www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov.innopac.library.unr.edu/pubmed/23117375
http://0-www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov.innopac.library.unr.edu/pubmed/23117375
http://0-www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov.innopac.library.unr.edu/pubmed/23117375


John Fildes, M.D. Page 17 of 21  Revised 8/27/2021 

63. Evaluating the traditional day and night shift in an acute care surgery fellowship: Is the swing shift a better choice? 
Chestovich PJ, McNicoll CF, Ingalls NK, Kuhls DA, Fraser DR, Morrissey SL, Fildes JJ. J Trauma Acute Care Surg. 2018 
Jan;84(1):165-169. doi: 10.1097/TA.0000000000001704. 

 
64. Implementation of a CT Scan Practice Guideline for Pediatric Trauma Patients Reduces Unnecessary Scans Without 

Impacting Outcomes. McGrew PR, Chestovich PJ, Fisher JD, Kuhls DA, Fraser DR, Patel PP, Katona CW, Saquib S, 
Fildes JJ. J Trauma Acute Care Surg. 2018 May 4. doi: 10.1097/TA.0000000000001974.  

 
65. Selective use of pericardial window and drainage as sole treatment for hemopericardium from penetrating chest 

trauma. Chestovich PJ, McNicoll CF, Fraser DR, Patel PP, Kuhls DA, Clark E, Fildes JJ. Trauma Surg Acute Care Open. 
2018 Aug 30;3(1):e000187. doi: 10.1136/tsaco-2018-000187.  
 

66. Effect of prehospital tourniquets on resuscitation in extremity arterial trauma. McNickle AG, Fraser DR, Chestovich 
PJ, Kuhls DA, Fildes JJ. Trauma Surg Acute Care Open. 2019;4(1):e000267. PubMed PMID: 30793036; PubMed 
Central PMCID: PMC6350723.  

 
67. Triage, Trauma, and Today's Mass Violence Events. Hick JL, Nelson J, Fildes J, Kuhls D, Eastman A, Dries D. J Am Coll 

Surg. 2019 Nov 14. pii: S1072-7515(19)32171-4. doi: 10.1016/j.jamcollsurg.2019.10.011. [Epub ahead of print] 
PMID: 31734388 

 
68. Too Big, Too Small or Just Right? Why the 28 French Chest Tube Is the Best Size. Chestovich PJ, Jennings CS, Fraser 

DR, Ingalls NK, Morrissey SL, Kuhls DA, Fildes JJ.J Surg Res. 2020 Jul 28;256:338-344. doi: 0.1016/j.jss.2020.06.048. 
Online ahead of print.PMID: 32736062 

 
69. The Las Vegas military-civilian partnership: An origin story and call to action. Kilburn JP, Streit S, Degoes JJ, 

Andersen A, Gardner M, Fraser DR, Fildes J. J Trauma Acute Care Surg. 2022 Aug 1;93(2S Suppl 1):S169-S173. doi: 
10.1097/TA.0000000000003701. Epub 2022 May 23. PMID: 35617460 

 
Editor 
 

1. National Trauma Data BankTM Annual Reports for 2001, 2002, 2003, 2004, and 2005. Published by the American 
College of Surgeons. 

 
Invited Publications 
 

1. Fildes JJ, Bannon MP, and Barrett JA: Soft-tissue infections after trauma. Surg Clin N Am April 1991.  
 

2. Fildes JJ: Contributing Editor for Trauma. Parrillo JE, Balk RA, Calvin JE, Franklin CM, and Shapiro BA eds. Year Book 
of Critical Care Medicine® 1995. St. Louis, Mosby-Year Book, Inc. 1995.  

 
3. Fildes JJ: Contributing Editor for Critical Care. Economou SG, Deziel DJ, Witt TR, Bines SD, Saclarides TJ, Staren ED, 

Velasco JM eds. Rush University Review of Surgery, 2nd Edition. WB Saunders Company. 1994  
 

4. Fildes JJ: Should Sunrise Hospital be allowed to build a trauma center?  Las Vegas Sun, June 20, 2004. 
 

5. Fildes JJ: Forward for Advanced Trauma Life Support 8th edition. American College of Surgeons, 2004 
 

6. Fildes JJ:  Neurosurgeons Play Role on ACS Committee on Trauma. Neurotrauma & Critical Care News, Fall 2006. 
 

7. Fildes JJ, Markarian MK, MacIntyre DA: Review of the Emergency Surgical Airway – Cricothyroidotomy.  Published in 
Touch Briefings’ Emergency Medicine and Critical Care Review, 2006. 

 
8. Fildes J, Fantus RJ:  NTDB Standardizes Trauma Data.  Surgery News, July 2006 

 

Page 296 of 349 

http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/30793036/
http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC6350723/


John Fildes, M.D. Page 18 of 21  Revised 8/27/2021 

9. Fildes JJ: Comentary on the chapter entitled “Injury Severity Scoring and Outcomes Research” by Kilgo P, Meredith 
JW, Osler TM in Trauma 6th edition. Feliciano D, Mattox K, Moore E editors. McGraw Hill. 2007. 

 
10. Donatelli L, Fildes JJ. Commentary on the chapter entitled “Lower Gastrointestinal Bleeding”, by Bennett KG, 

Schwaitzberg S in Acute Care Surgery: Evidence-Based Practice, 2nd edition. Cohn SM editor. Informa, 2012 
11. Kwon E, Browder T, Fildes JJ. Surgical Management of Fulminant Diverticulitis. Current Surgical Reports. Dec 2013, 

2:40 
 

12. Deborah A. Kuhls, MD, FACS, FCCM, John Fildes, MD, FACS, Matthew Johnson, MD, Sean D. Dort, MD, FACS, 
Lenworth M. Jacobs, JR., MD, MPH, FACS, Alexander Eastman, MD, MPH, FACS, Robert Winchell, MD, FACS, Ronald 
Stewart, MD, FACS. Southern Nevada Trauma System uses proven techniques to save lives after 1 October shooting. 
Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 103, 3:39 March 1, 2018 

 
Other Publications 
 

1. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ: How national is the trauma data bank? Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 88, 5:37, 
2003. 

 
2. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ: Who pays for trauma care?  Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 88, 6:34, 2003. 

 
3. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ: How do trauma centers compare?  Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 88, 7:53, 2003. 

 
4. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ: The blunt majority?  Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 88, 8:42, 2003. 

 
5. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ: The critical aspect of blunt trauma.  Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 88, 9:43, 

2003. 
 

6. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ: The driving Force behind injury.  Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 88, 10:32, 2003. 
 

7. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ: To drive or not to drive?  Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 88, 11:43, 2003. 
 

8. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ: To ride or not to ride.  Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 88, 12:51, 2003. 
 

9. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ: Same cover, but new version 3.0.  Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 89, 1:50, 2004. 
 

10. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ: The Graying of America.  Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 89, 2:32, 2004. 
 

11. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ: “I didn’t mean to”.  Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 89, 3:43, 2004. 
 

12. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ: “The Lethality of Intent”.  Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 89, 4:70, 2004. 
 

13. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ: “Easy Rider”.  Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 89, 5:43, 2004. 
 

14. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ: “I’ll drink to that”.  Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 89, 6:49, 2004. 
 

15. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ: “Small package, big problem”.  Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 89, 7:61, 2004. 
 

16. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “Water and alcohol don’t mix”.  Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 89, 8:53, 2004 
 

17. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “Trauma data to the third power”.  Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 89, 9:64, 2004 
 

18. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “A is for airways”.  Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 89, 10:38, 2004 
 

19. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “Study this”.  Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 89, 11:31, 2004 
 

Page 297 of 349 



John Fildes, M.D. Page 19 of 21  Revised 8/27/2021 

20. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “Head over wheels”.  Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 89, 12:49, 2004  
 

21. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “NTDB Breaks the 1 million record mark”. Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 90, 
1:39, 2005 

 
22. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “Can we insure the future of trauma?”. Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 90, 2:33, 

2005 
 

23. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “Winter wonderland”. Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 90, 3:44, 2005 
 

24. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “The bank’s window”. Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 90, 4:52, 2005 
 

25. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “Click-click you’re dead?” Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 90, 5:44, 2005 
 

26. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “One on every corner”. Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 90, 6:34, 2005 
 

27. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “It’s in the bag”. Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 90, 7:63, 2005 
 

28. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “I’ve fallen and I can’t get up.” Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 90, 8:43, 2005 
 

29. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “Down on the farm”. Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 90, 9:63, 2005 
 

30. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “Alcohol is no industrial accident.” Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 90, 10:52, 
2005 

 
31. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ: “A-hunting we will go”.  Bulletin of the American College of surgeons, 90, 11:44, 2005 

 
32. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “Who needs rehab?” Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 90, 12:43,  2005 

 
33. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “Annual report 2005, dataset version 5.0”. Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 91, 

1:64, 2006 
 

34. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “The National Sample Project: A new application of the NTDB”. Bulletin of the American College 
of Surgeons, 91, 2:44, 2006 

 
35. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “For whom the bell tolls?” Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 91, 3:55, 2006 

 
36. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “Come fly with me”. Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 91, 4:69, 2006 

 
37. Fantus RJ, Fantus J, Fildes JJ:  “What I learned in school” Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 91, 5:55, 

2006 
 

38. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “Deposit the bull’s-eye”. Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 91, 6:58, 2006 
 

39. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “The red, white and blue” Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 91, 7:71, 2006 
 

40. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “Who let the dogs out?” Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 91, 8:52, 2006 
 

41. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “Trauma season”. Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 91, 9:58, 2006 
 

42. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “Peds 2: Twice as large”. Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 91, 10:42, 2006 
 

43. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ: “Horse sense” Bulletin of the American College of Surgeons, 91, 11:67, 2006 
 

44. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ:  “Zeus on the 18th hole”.  Bulletin of the American College of surgeons, 91, 12:34, 2006 

Page 298 of 349 



John Fildes, M.D. Page 20 of 21  Revised 8/27/2021 

 
45. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ: “Can we insure the future of trauma?” Journal of Health Disparities Research and Practice, 

Volume 1, Number 3, Summer 2007, p 89-92 
 

46. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ: “NTDB data points: Annual Report 2008: Don’t overlook the appendix, Bulletin of the American 
College of Surgeons, 94, 3:55, 2009 

 
47. Fantus RJ, Fildes JJ, Nathens, AB, NTDB data points: Another national chapter, Bulletin of the American College of 

Surgeons,  95, 5:42, 2010 
 

48. Fildes J, Weireter LJ Jr. Experience in Haiti allows college to better prepare for future crises. Bull Am Coll Surg. 2010 
Sep;95(9):15-7.  

 
49. Fildes JJ, Fantus, RJ, “NTDB data points: The working wounded”, 96, 6:62, 2011 

 
Books and Book Chapters  
 

1. Fildes JJ: Histological structure of the female reproductive system - a photo atlas. 1980. Hardbound volume 
containing color photomicrographs and text.  

 
2. Fildes JJ and Robin AP: Preoperative and Postoperative Care. Condon RE and Nyhus LM eds. Manual of Surgical 

Therapeutics, 8th edition, Boston, Little, Brown and Company, 1992.  
 

3. Fildes JJ: Critical Care and Physiologic Monitoring. Economou SG, Bines SD, Deziel DJ, and Witt TR eds. Rush 
University Review of Surgery, 2nd edition. Philadelphia, WB Saunders, 1993. 

 
4. Fildes JJ: Assessment of Abdominal Trauma. Nyhus LM, Vitello JM, and Condon RE eds. Abdominal Pain - A Guide to 

Rapid Diagnosis. Norwalk, Appleton & Lange, 1995.  
 

5. Fildes JJ: Traumatic Diaphragmatic Hernia. Nyhus LM and Condon RE eds. Hernia, 4th edition. Philadelphia, JB 
Lippincott, 1995.  

 
6. Fildes JJ: and Robin AP: Preoperative and Postoperative Care. Condon RE and Nyhus LM eds. Manual of Surgical 

Therapeutics, 9th edition. Boston, Little, Brown and Company, 1996.  
 

7. Fildes JJ: and Browder T: Trauma in Pregnancy. Demetriades, D and Asencio, JA eds. Trauma Management. Landes 
Bioscience, 2000.  

 
8. Fildes JJ: Trauma Registry. Resource for Optimal Care of the Injured Patient. Committee on Trauma, American 

College of Surgeons 2006. 
 

9. Nessen S, Fildes JJ: Scoring Systems for Injury & Emergency General Surgery. Britt LD, Barie PS, Jurkovich GJ, 
Peitzman AB eds. Acute Care Surgery. Elsevier, 2012 

 
10. Kwon E, Fildes JJ: Scoring for Injury and Emergency Surgery.  Pietzman AB ed. The Trauma Manual: Trauma and 

Acute Care Surgery / Edition 4. Lippincott Williams & Wilkins, 2012 
 

11. McNickle A, Fildes JJ: Chapter 39 - Surgeon of the Modern Hospital. Latifi, R ed. The Modern Hospital: Patients 
Centered, Disease Based, Research Oriented, Technology Driven. Springer, 2018 

 
Photographs and Videos:   
 

1. Fildes JJ: Contributed slides and photographs to the fifth edition of the American College of Surgeons Advanced 
Trauma Life Support® course, 1993, 1997, 2000, 2008, and 2012.  

 

Page 299 of 349 

http://0-www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov.innopac.library.unr.edu/pubmed/21449286


John Fildes, M.D. Page 21 of 21  Revised 8/27/2021 

2. Fildes JJ; Krosner S; Simon R: Resuscitative thoracotomy: Procedural principles in surgical techniques, presented at 
the Trauma Motion Picture Session, 1994 Clinical Congress of the American College of Surgeons. Included in the 
American College of Surgeons - Davis & Geck Surgical Video Library. This video was selected and re-presented in 
2004 in a session for the Best Videos of all time. 

 
3. Fildes JJ: Contributed slides and photographs on trauma in pregnancy to Color Atlas of Emergency Medicine, Kevin 

Knoop (ed), McGraw-Hill.  
 

4. Gies WP; Salvino C; Fildes JJ: Formal diagnostic exploratory laparoscopy for trauma. Presented at the Trauma 
Motion Picture Session, 1995 Clinical Congress of the American College of Surgeons. 

 
5. Fildes JJ: Contributed slides and photographs on trauma in pregnancy to EMT In Action, McGraw-Hill Higher 

Education, Dubuque, Iowa. 

Page 300 of 349 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 26, 2025 

 
 

Agenda Item #  

17 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Education – NV Energy Recognition 
 

 
Back-up: 
      
  

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer  
  

 
Clerk Ref. # 
 
  

 
Recommendation: 
 

That the Governing Board receive recognition from Tony Sanchez, Executive Vice 
President of Business Delopment and External Relations at NV Energy, recognizing UMC 
for is partcipation in two energy efficiency projects in 2024; and direct staff accordingly.  
(For possible action)  
  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None    
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

The Governing Board will receive recognition for energy saving initiatives at UMC. 

Page 301 of 349 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 26, 2025 

 
 

Agenda Item #  

18 
 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Wellhub Program at UMC 
 

 
Back-up: 
      
  

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer  
  

 
Clerk Ref. # 
 
  

 
Recommendation: 
 

That the Governing Board receive an educational presentation from Marsha AlSayeh, 
Employee Experience Program Manager, regarding Wellhub at UMC; and direct staff 
accordingly.  (For possible action)  
  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None    
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

The Governing Board will receive a presentation regarding Wellhub, a  new wellness benefit 
program at UMC. 

Page 302 of 349 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 26, 2025 

 
 

Agenda Item #  

19 
 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: 2025 Governing Board Action Plan   
 

 
Back-up: 
      
  

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer  
  

 
Clerk Ref. # 
 
  

 
Recommendation: 
 

That the Governing Board review and discuss the Governing Board 2025 Action Plan, to 
include an informational presentation from Deb Fox, Chief Nursing Officer, regarding the 
S.A.N.E. services at UMC; and take any action deemed appropriate.  (For possible action)  
  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None    
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

The Governing Board will receive a presentation from Deb Fox, CNO, regarding activities related to 
the S.A.N.E. program at UMC. 

Page 303 of 349 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 26, 2025 

 
 

Agenda Item #  

20 
 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Report from Governing Board Clinical Quality and Professional 

Affairs Committee  
 

 
Back-up: 
      
  

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer  
  

 
Clerk Ref. # 
 
  

 
Recommendation: 
 

That the Governing Board receive a report from the Governing Board Clinical Quality 
and Professional Affairs Committee; and take any action deemed appropriate.  (For 
possible action)  
  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None    
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

The Governing Board will receive a report on the December Governing Board Clinical Quality and 
Professional Affairs Committee meeting. 

Page 304 of 349 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 26, 2025 

 
 

Agenda Item #  

21 
 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Report from Governing Board Strategic Planning Committee  
 

 
Back-up: 
      
  

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer  
  

 
Clerk Ref. # 
 
  

 
Recommendation: 
 

That the Governing Board receive a report from the Governing Board Strategic Planning 
Committee; and take any action deemed appropriate.  (For possible action)  
  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None    
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

The Governing Board will receive a report on the December Governing Board Strategic Planning 
Committee meeting. 

Page 305 of 349 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 26, 2025 

 
 

Agenda Item #  

22 
 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Report from Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee  
 

 
Back-up: 
      
  

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer  
  

 
Clerk Ref. # 
 
  

 
Recommendation: 
 

That the Governing Board receive a report from the Governing Board Audit and Finance 
Committee; and take any action deemed appropriate.  (For possible action)  
  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None    
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

The Governing Board will receive a report on the January Governing Board Audit and Finance 
Committee meeting. 

Page 306 of 349 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 26, 2025 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

23 
 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
  

 
Issue: Monthly Financial Reports for January FY25 Update 
  

 
Back-up: 
      
  

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer  
  

 
Clerk Ref. # 
 

 
Recommendation: 
  

That the Governing Board receive an update on the monthly financial report for January 
FY25; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None 
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

The Governing Board will receive an update on the January FY2025 financial reports from Jennifer 
Wakem, Chief Financial Officer of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada. 

Page 307 of 349 



GB Meeting

January 2025
Financials

Page 308 of 349 



KEY INDICATORS – JAN

2

Current Month Actual Budget Variance % Var Prior Year Variance % Var
APDs 19,888 19,394 493 2.54% 18,919 968 5.12%

Total Admissions 2,164 1,915 249 13.02% 1,838 326 17.74%

Observation Cases 724 822 (98) (11.92%) 822 (98) (11.92%)

AADC (Hospital) 610 597 13 2.15% 584 26 4.47%

ALOS (Admits) 5.87 6.53 (0.66) (10.16%) 6.85 (0.98) (14.31%)
ALOS (Obs) 0.92 1.42 (0.50) (35.14%) 1.42 (0.50) (35.14%)
Hospital CMI 1.82 1.84 (0.02) (1.09%) 1.84 (0.02) (1.09%)

Medicare CMI 2.22 2.05 0.17 8.31% 2.05 0.17 8.31%

IP Surgery Cases 816 827 (11) (1.33%) 768 48 6.25%

OP Surgery Cases 718 676 42 6.21% 604 114 18.87%

Transplants 13 11 2 18.18% 11 2 18.18%

Total ER Visits 9,564 9,216 348 3.78% 9,035 529 5.86%

ED to Admission 14.38% - - - 12.02% 2.36% -

ED to Observation 7.08% - - - 11.28% (4.20%) -

ED to Adm/Obs 21.46% - - - 23.30% (1.84%) -

Quick Cares 20,446 20,509 (63) (0.31%) 19,161 1,285 6.71%

Primary Care 8,108 8,014 94 1.18% 7,476 632 8.45%

UMC Telehealth - QC 620 732 (112) (15.34%) 718 (98) (13.65%)

OP Ortho Clinic 2,522 2,183 339 15.51% 2,032 490 24.11%

Deliveries 137 122 15 11.93% 120 17 14.17%
Page 309 of 349 



SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENT – JAN

3

REVENUE Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

  Total Operating Revenue $90,384,358 $87,364,386 $3,019,972 3.46%

Net Patient Revenue as a % of Gross 18.51% 18.27% 0.23%

EXPENSE Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

  Total Operating Expense $89,375,468 $88,426,704 ($948,764) (1.07%)

INCOME FROM OPS Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

Total Inc from Ops $1,008,890 ($1,062,318) $2,071,209 194.97%

Add back: Depr & Amort. $4,162,432 $3,820,454 ($341,977) (8.95%)

Tot Inc from Ops plus Depr & Amort. (EBITDA) $5,171,322 $2,758,136 $2,413,186 87.49%

Operating Margin (w/Depr & Amort.) 5.72% 3.16% 2.56%

Page 310 of 349 



SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENT – YTD JAN

4

REVENUE Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

  Total Operating Revenue $611,461,960 $590,082,980 $21,378,980 3.62%

Net Patient Revenue as a % of Gross 18.32% 18.15% 0.17%

EXPENSE Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

  Total Operating Expense $623,277,679 $597,258,167 ($26,019,511) (4.36%)

INCOME FROM OPS Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

Total Inc from Ops ($11,815,719) ($7,175,188) ($4,640,531) (64.67%)

Add back: Depr & Amort. $28,848,280 $28,410,745 ($437,535) (1.54%)

Tot Inc from Ops plus Depr & Amort. (EBITDA) $17,032,561 $21,235,557 ($4,202,996) (19.79%)

Operating Margin (w/Depr & Amort.) 2.79% 3.60% (0.81%)

Page 311 of 349 



SALARY & BENEFIT EXPENSE – JAN

5

Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

  Salaries $37,507,758 $37,256,663 ($251,094) (0.67%)

  Benefits $15,590,463 $16,411,614 $821,151 5.00%

  Overtime  $598,317 $1,184,132 $585,815 49.47%

  Contract Labor $1,951,054 $1,701,679 ($249,375) (14.65%)

  TOTAL  $55,647,592 $56,554,089 $906,497 1.60%

Page 312 of 349 



EXPENSES – JAN

6

Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

   Professional Fees $2,372,177 $2,333,076 ($39,101) (1.68%)

   Supplies $17,303,617 $15,961,727 ($1,341,889) (8.41%)

   Purchased Services $7,224,807 $6,973,065 ($251,743) (3.61%)

   Depreciation $2,517,979 $2,258,046 ($259,933) (11.51%)

   Amortization $1,644,453 $1,562,409 ($82,044) (5.25%)

   Repairs & Maintenance $992,683 $962,242 ($30,441) (3.16%)

   Utilities $386,035 $578,151 $192,116 33.23%

   Other Expenses $1,126,182 $1,090,757 ($35,426) (3.25%)

   Rental $159,943 $153,142 ($6,801) (4.44%)

   Total Other Expenses $33,727,876 $31,872,615 ($1,855,261) (5.82%)

Page 313 of 349 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

Issue: Kirk Kerkorian School of Medicine Dean’s Update 
 

Back-up: 

Petitioner: Mason VanHouweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

Clerk Ref. # 

Recommendation: 

That the Governing Board receive an update on the Kirk Kerkorian School of 
Medicine at UNLV; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 

The Governing Board will receive an update from Dr. Marc Kahn, Dean of the Kirk Kerkorian 
School of Medicine at UNLV. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 24, 2025 

 
 

Agenda Item # 

24 
Page 314 of 349 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

Issue: CEO Update 
 

Back-up: 

Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

Clerk Ref. # 

Recommendation: 

That the Governing Board receive the Hospital CEO update; and take any action deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 

The Governing Board will receive the CEO update. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 26, 2025 

 
 

Agenda Item # 

25 

Page 315 of 349 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 26, 2025 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

26 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Amendment to Bylaws of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason VanHouweling, Chief Executive Officer  
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 

Recommend to the Board of Hospital Trustees for University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada an amendment to the Bylaws of University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada; and direct staff accordingly. (For possible action)   

 
 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
None  
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

The Board of Hospital Trustees are required to review the Bylaws of University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada at least every other year.  Upon review, it is recommended that the Bylaws of University Medical 
Center of Southern Nevada be amended.  The proposed amendments primarily relate standards of compliance 
and hospital accreditation; the role of the Joint Conference/Leadership Committee; and updated terminology 
to be consistent hospital governing documents. 
   
The UMC Governing Board recommends the approval of the proposed amendments to the Bylaws of 
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada by the Board of Hospital Trustees.   

 

Page 316 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised TO BE DETERMINED) 
Page 1 

 BYLAWS 
 
 UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
 
 
 STATEMENT OF OWNERSHIP AND PURPOSE 
 
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (“UMC”) is an enterprise fund owned by Clark 
County, and operated within the required health care license/certification/permit to serve the 
community both as a County and as a public hospital within the meaning of the current Nevada 
Revised Statutes (NRS) and the provisions stated herein.  Pursuant to NRS 450.090, the Clark 
County Board of Commissioners is the ex officio UMC Board of Hospital Trustees (the “Board of 
Trustees”). The role and purpose of UMC is to provide an organization and facility supporting 
qualified medical professionals in providing quality health care to patients treated at UMC.  The 
primary responsibility and goal of the Board of Trustees is to further the role and purpose of UMC 
by providing oversight and advice to UMC, thereby facilitating the establishment of policies, 
providing for necessary resources for the maintenance of quality patient care and patient safety 
and the provision of organizational management and planning all in a manner that is responsive to 
the needs of UMC’s primary service areas.   
 
 
 PREAMBLE 
 
For the more orderly conduct of the business of UMC, the Board of Trustees, adopts the following 
as the Bylaws of UMC: 
 
 
 ARTICLE I 
 
 
 BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
A. POWERS 
 
Subject to limitations of Nevada law and subject to the duties of the Board of Trustees as prescribed 
in these Bylaws, all corporate powers relating to UMC shall be exercised by or under the authority 
of the Board of Trustees, and the business and affairs of UMC shall be controlled by the Board of 
Trustees. 
 
It is hereby expressly declared that the Board of Trustees shall have the power to conduct, manage 
and control the affairs and business of UMC, including creating committees of the Board of 
Trustees e.g. The University Medical Center of Southern Nevada Governing Board (the 
“Governing Board") , with formally delegated responsibilities as authorized or permitted to do, 
within the scope of the Articles herein, as well as applicable state, federal or other laws. 
 
 

Page 317 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised TO BE DETERMINED) 
Page 2 

B. BUDGET 
 
The Board of Trustees shall annually review and adopt a budget in accordance with NRS 450.230 
and Chapter 354 of Nevada Revised Statutes also known as the Local Government Budget and 
Finance Act. 
 
C. NUMBER, ELECTION AND TERM OF OFFICE 
 
The Board of Trustees shall consist of the Clark County Commissioners serving pursuant to NRS 
450.090 for the term of office set forth in NRS 244.030.  The Board of Trustees members shall 
have the qualifications set forth in NRS 244.020.  All members shall be voting members. 
 
D. VACANCIES 
 
Vacancies on the Board of Trustees by reason of death, resignation or other cause shall be filled 
in accordance with Nevada law.  Appointees shall hold office until the next following general 
election in the usual manner. 
 
E. QUORUM 
 
At all meetings of the Board of Trustees, four members shall constitute a quorum for the 
transaction of business. A smaller number of Trustees may, for lack of a quorum, adjourn any 
meeting of the Board of Trustees to a future date. 
 
F. MEETINGS 
 
Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be held on the first and third Tuesday of each 
month at 9:00 a.m. at the County Government Center, 500 South Grand Central Parkway, Las 
Vegas, Nevada.  If said meeting falls on a designated holiday, the meeting shall be held on the next 
succeeding business day thereafter or as determined by the Board of Trustees.  Notice of any 
meeting of the Board of Trustees shall be given in accordance with Chapter 241 of the Nevada 
Revised Statutes. 
 
Special emergency meetings of the Board of Trustees for any purpose(s) shall be held whenever 
called by the Chairperson, or if the Chairperson is absent and/or unable to be present, then by the 
Vice-Chairperson, or by any five members of the Board of Trustees in accordance with the 
procedures for noticing an emergency meeting contained in Chapter 241 of the Nevada Revised 
Statutes. 
 
G. OFFICERS 
 
An appointed Clark County Commissioner shall serve as the Chairperson of the Board of Trustees 
(the “Chairperson”) and Vice-Chairperson of the Board of Trustees (the “Vice-Chairperson”). The 
County Clerk shall serve as Secretary of the Board of Trustees (the “Secretary”).  The Treasurer 
of the County of Clark shall also serve as Treasurer of the Board of Trustees (the “Treasurer”), as 
specified in the Nevada Revised Statutes. 

Page 318 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised TO BE DETERMINED) 
Page 3 

 
Responsibilities of the Officers are as follows: 
 

1. CHAIRPERSON 
 

An appointed Clark County Commissioner shall serve as the Chairperson of the Board of 
Trustees and shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Trustees.  The Chairperson shall 
have the powers to perform such acts as may be assigned by the Board of Trustees and 
these Bylaws, as well as such duties incident to the Office of the Chairperson and as from 
time to time may be prescribed respectively by the Board of Trustees, these Bylaws, the 
Bylaws of the Medical and Dental Staff and the Medical and Dental Staff’s Rules and 
Regulations. 

 
2. VICE-CHAIRPERSON 

 
In the absence or disability of the Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson shall perform all the 
duties of the Chairperson, and when so acting shall have the powers of, and be subject to 
all the restrictions upon the Chairperson.  The Vice-Chairperson shall have such other 
duties incident to the Office of the Vice-Chairperson and as from time to time may be 
prescribed respectively, by the Board of Trustees, these Bylaws, the Bylaws of the Medical 
and Dental Staff and the Medical and Dental Staff’s Rules and Regulations. 

 
3. SECRETARY 

 
The Secretary shall keep, or cause to be kept, a book of minutes, at the principal office or 
such other place as the Board of Trustees may order.  Minutes shall include the date, time 
and place of all meetings of the Board of Trustees, whether regular meeting or special, and 
if special, how authorized, the notice thereof given, and the names of those present at the 
Board of Trustees meetings.  The Board of Trustees has designated the County Clerk as 
the ex officio Secretary. 

 
4. TREASURER 

 
The Treasurer, in accordance with the laws of Nevada, shall keep, or cause to be kept, full 
and accurate accounts of the receipts and disbursements in books to be kept for that 
purpose. The Treasurer shall receive and disburse, or cause to be disbursed, all monies and 
other valuables of the organization in the name of and to the credit of UMC, in such 
depositories as may be designated by the Board of Trustees.  The Treasurer shall render, 
or cause to be rendered, to the Board of Trustees, whenever they may require, accounts of 
all transactions as Treasurer and of the financial condition of the organization.  All such 
duties, as well as others designated by the Board of Trustees, shall be subject to the Board 
of Trustees’ direction and approval.   

 
A vacancy in any office of the Board of Trustees (except that of Treasurer) because of 
death, resignation, removal, disqualification or any other cause will be filled according to 
law and these Bylaws. 

Page 319 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised TO BE DETERMINED) 
Page 4 

 
H. ATTENDANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
Members of the Board of Trustees shall comply with the attendance requirements established by 
Chapter 283 of the Nevada Revised Statutes. 
 
I. GOVERNING BOARD 
 
The Board of Trustees has the authority pursuant to NRS 450.175 to appoint a board which shall 
exercise powers and duties delegated by the Board of Trustees.   Pursuant to Chapter 3.74 of the 
Clark County Code, the Board of Trustees has appointed the UMC Governing Board.  The 
Governing Board’s responsibilities are determined by Chapter 3.74 of the Clark County Code, as 
may be amended from time to time. 
 
J. OTHER COMMITTEES 
 
The Chairperson of the Board of Trustees, subject to the approval of the Board of Trustees, shall 
appoint other committees as deemed necessary.  Such committees shall be subject at all times to 
the control of the Board of Trustees.  The Medical and Dental Staff Committees shall be appointed 
in accordance with the provisions of the UMC Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws and Rules and 
Regulations.   
 
K. COMPENSATION 
 
A Trustee may receive compensation for services rendered in attending to the business and affairs 
of UMC as may be permitted by any applicable provisions of the Nevada Revised Statutes. 
 
L. INDEMNIFICATION 
 
In accordance with NRS 41.0349, UMC shall indemnify and hold harmless each member of the 
Board of Trustees, the Governing Board and the Medical Executive Committee (each, a 
“Member”) against any and all expenses, including attorney’s fees and court costs, actually and 
necessarily incurred by him/her in connection with the defense of any action, suit or proceeding to 
which a Member is made a party by reason of his/her being a Member, except in relations to 
matters as to which he/she shall be adjudged in such action, suit or proceedings to be liable for 
gross negligence or misconduct in the performance of his/her duties as a Member.  Indemnification 
shall include reimbursement of amounts paid in settlement and expenses actually and necessarily 
incurred by such Member in connection therewith, but such indemnification shall be provided only 
if UMC is advised by its counsel that, in his/her opinion: 
 

1. Such settlement is for the best interest of UMC; and 
 
2. The Member to be indemnified has not been guilty of gross negligence or 

misconduct in respect of any matter covered by such settlement. 
 
Such right of indemnification shall not be deemed exclusive of any right, or rights, to which the 
Member might be entitled under these Bylaws, any applicable agreements or otherwise. 

Page 320 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised TO BE DETERMINED) 
Page 5 

 
M. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
The members of the Board of Trustees and members of the Governing Board shall comply with 
the provisions of both the Nevada Ethics in Government Law contained in Chapter 281A of the 
Nevada Revised Statutes and the Ethics in Government Policy adopted by and applicable to the 
Clark County Board of County Commissioners. 
 
N. DISCHARGE OF DUTIES 
 
The members of the Board of Trustees and members of the Governing Board shall discharge all 
duties required of the Board of Trustees members or Governing Board members by virtue of 
applicable law, including but not limited to the obligations set forth in Chapter 450 of the Nevada 
Revised Statutes.  The members of the Board of Trustees or the Governing Board shall act in 
accordance with their duties relative to health care cost containment set forth in Chapter 439B of 
the Nevada Revised Statutes.  Failure to discharge these duties shall be resolved in accordance 
with Chapter 283 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, as applicable. 
  
 

ARTICLE II 
 
 

BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
  
A. LIAISON 
 
By virtue of the representation from the Medical Staff, the Governing Board, and Administration, 
the Board of Trustees shall serve as, or provide for, the medico-administrative liaison between the 
Board of Trustees, Administration and Medical Staff. The Board of Trustees shall establish and 
maintain a systematic and effective mechanism for communication between members of the Board 
of Trustees, Governing Board, Administration, Medical Staff and the governing bodies and 
management of any health care delivery organization that is corporately and functionally related 
to UMC. The Chief of the Medical Staff and UMC’s Chief Executive Officer shall be primarily 
responsible for communications between the Medical Staff and Administration, and also between 
the Medical Staff, Governing Board, and the Board of Trustees.  The Chief Executive Officer shall 
be primarily responsible for communications between and among the Administration, the 
Governing Board, the Board of Trustees and any outside, but related health care delivery 
organization.  The Board of Trustees is ultimately accountable for quality of care, service and 
treatment. 
 
B. STANDARDS COMPLIANCE 
 
The Board of Trustees shall oversee the acquisition and maintenance of hospital accreditation by 
an appropriate body approved by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (“CMS”).  It shall 
require that appropriate evidence based standards be used in a review of UMC’s ongoing 
compliance with accreditation standards. 

Page 321 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised TO BE DETERMINED) 
Page 6 

  
 
C. INSTITUTIONAL PLANNING 
 
The Board of Trustees shall designate the UMC Administration to develop long range strategic 
plans to meet the health demands of the people of Clark County. Administration, the Medical and 
Dental Staff leadership, the Nursing Department, other departments/services, and appropriate 
advisers shall be assigned to participate in the planning process. 
 
D. DISASTER PLANNING 
 
The Board of Trustees shall oversee the development and maintenance of UMC’s Emergency 
Operations Plan. The Emergency Operations Plan shall provide for the protection and care of 
UMC’s patients and others at the time of internal and external disaster, adequately reflect the 
anticipated role of UMC in the event of disasters in nearby communities, and be rehearsed by key 
personnel at least twice yearly.  
 
E. ORGANIZATIONAL PLANNING 
 
The Board of Trustees shall oversee the process of organizational planning. 
 

1. FEATURES OF THE ORGANIZATIONAL PLANNING PROCESS 
 
 The organizational planning process shall include the following minimum features:  
 

a. Development of an operating budget by the Chief Executive Officer and 
submitted for approval by the Board of Trustees. 

 
b. Development of a capital expenditure plan that identifies the objectives of 

and the anticipated sources of financing for each proposed capital 
expenditure in excess of $25,000. 

 
c. Review and update of the overall plan and budget at least annually. 

 
d. Establishment of a Performance Improvement and Patient Safety planning 

processes within UMC through which areas of patient care needs are 
defined and analyzed, general goals related to each need are established, 
and specific objectives to meet those goals are set.  In addition, alternative 
courses of action to meet those goals will be identified.  The Board shall 
oversee the implementation of the Performance Improvement and Patient 
Safety plans and evaluation of the effect of the actions taken. 

 
e. Establishment of a Conflict Resolution policy(s) which will be inclusive of 

Governing Board, UMC staff, directed by UMC’s Administration, and the 
Medical Staff, directed by the Leadership inclusive of the Chief of Staff.  
Leadership is defined as a structure to support operations and the provision 
of care.  This structure is formed by three leadership groups Governing 

Page 322 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised TO BE DETERMINED) 
Page 7 

Body, Senior Managers, Organized Medical Staff. 
 
f. Oversight to the implementation of the Performance Improvement and 

Patient Safety approved performance matrix. 
 

2. The Administration, the Medical Staff, the Nursing Service, other 
departments/services, and outside advisors shall participate in the planning and 
decision-making structures and processes as appropriate.   

 
3. UMC’s scope of services shall be defined in the Leadership Plan for Patient Care, 

Treatment, and Services and shall be approved by the Board of Trustees. 
 
F. PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT AND PATIENT SAFETY 
 

1. RESOURCES AND SUPPORT SYSTEMS 
 
The Board of Trustees shall provide for resources and support systems for a Board 
approved UMC-wide Performance Improvement and Patient Safety Programs.  The 
programs shall include activities and mechanisms implemented through the Medical Staff 
and staffs of the departments/services of UMC, with the support of the Chief Executive 
Officer.  The program shall also include education of UMC’s leaders concerning the 
approach and methods of continuous quality improvement and the reduction of patient care 
/serious adverse events.  At least annually, a report to the Board of Trustees shall be 
presented regarding the proactive measures taken to reduce the risk of patient safety 
incidents and errors and any actual medical/healthcare errors. 

 
2. IMPLEMENTATION AND REPORTING 

 
The Performance Improvement and Patient Safety plans shall require participants to 
implement and report on the activities and mechanism for proactive planning to improve 
patient care, monitoring and evaluating the quality and safety of patient care, for identifying 
opportunities to improve patient care, for identifying and resolving problems and 
evaluating staffing levels for serious patient care events. 

 
3. SAME LEVEL OF CARE 

 
The Performance Improvement and Patient Safety plans shall establish mechanisms 
designed to assure that all patients with the same health problem are receiving the same 
level of care at UMC.   

 
4. COMPETENCY 

 
The Performance Improvement plan in concert with Leadership and Human Resources 
shall establish a process or processes designed to assure that all individuals who provide 
patient care services, including those who are not subject to the medical staff privilege 
delineation process, are competent to provide such services.  Without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, such process or processes shall be designed to assure that all 

Page 323 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised TO BE DETERMINED) 
Page 8 

individuals responsible for the assessment, treatment or care of patients are competent in 
providing care as appropriate to the ages and needs of the patients served.  

 
5. PATIENT SAFETY PROGRAM 

 
The Board of Trustees shall ensure that a Patient Safety Program is implemented 
throughout the organization.   

 
G. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Board of Trustees shall provide for resources and support systems for the risk management 
functions related to patient care and safety.  To the extent permitted by restrictions designed to 
protect patient confidentiality and the peer review privilege, there shall be operational linkages 
between the risk management functions related to the clinical aspects of patient care and safety 
and the performance improvement and patient safety function.  Existing information from risk 
management activities that may be useful in identifying opportunities to improve the quality of 
patient care and/or resolve clinical problems are accessible to the performance improvement and 
patient safety function.  The Medical Staff shall actively participate, as appropriate, in the risk 
management activities related to the clinical aspects of patient care and safety.   
 
H. ENVIRONMENT OF CARE 
 
The Board of Trustees shall strive to assure a safe environment for patients, personnel and visitors 
by requiring and supporting the establishment and maintenance of effective Environment of Care 
programs.  The eight components comprised in the program include Safety Management, Security 
Management, Hazardous Materials & Waste Management, Hazardous Rounds, PI Projects, Utility 
Management, Fire/Life Safety Management, and Medical Equipment Management. 
 
I. DEPARTMENTAL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
The Board of Trustees shall require the Medical Staff, Hospital Leadership, staff of 
departments/services, and others as appropriate to review and revise all department service policies 
and procedures when warranted.  The period between reviewed shall not exceed three (3) years. 
 
J. ORIENTATION AND EVALUATIONS 
 

1. The Board of Trustees and the Governing Board, acting through the Chief 
Executive Officer and staff, shall provide resources necessary to enable all 
members of the Board of Trustees to understand and fulfill their responsibilities.  
An orientation program for all new Board of Trustees’ members shall be conducted 
as well as relevant continuing education programs as may be appropriate from time 
to time.   

 
 

2. The Board of Trustees shall review and evaluate its own performance on an annual 
basis. 

 

Page 324 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised TO BE DETERMINED) 
Page 9 

 
3. The Board of Trustees shall require UMC to annually evaluate its performance in 

relation to UMC’s mission, vision, values, and goals for the Performance 
Improvement Program, Patient Safety Program, Environment of Care Plans, and 
the Infection Control Program.  The Infection Control Program is put into place to 
help reduce the possibility of acquiring and transmitting infections.  The design and 
scope of the program are determined by the specific risks faced by location, the 
population(s) served, and the types of services provided. 

 
K. EMERGENCY MEDICAL TREATMENT AND ACTIVE LABOR ACT 
 
 1.   The Board of Trustees shall require UMC to comply with the Emergency 

Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act of 1985 (EMTALA) and Nevada Revised 
Statutes 439B.410, et seq., including medical screening, examination and 
evaluation of patients by a qualified medical person (QMP).  QMP shall include:  
Licensed Independent Practitioner (LIP), Nurse Practitioner, Physician Assistant 
(PA), and Labor and Delivery Registered Nurse with neonatal resuscitation 
training. 

 
 2. Each QMP, with the exception of an LIP, shall be supervised by a qualified 

member of the Medical Staff to the extent required under applicable law.    
 

 
ARTICLE III 

 
 
 HOSPITAL ADMINISTRATION 
 
A. SELECTION  
 
The Governing Board shall select and appoint a Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Hospital, 
who shall be responsible to the Board of Trustees and Governing Board for the overall 
management and direction of UMC in accordance with the Chief Executive Officer’s employment 
agreement and with the Board of Trustees’ policies.  
 
B. RESPONSIBILITIES AND AUTHORITY 
 
The Chief Executive Officer’s responsibilities shall be inclusive of establishing internal controls 
to effectively operate the organization by establishing and maintaining information and support 
systems, recruiting and retaining staff, and conserving physical and financial assets. The Chief 
Executive Officer shall act as the duly authorized representative of the Board of Trustees in all 
matters in which the Board of Trustees has not formally designated another representative, and 
shall be empowered to perform all acts and to execute all documents necessary to make effective 
the actions taken by the Board of Trustees.  The Governing Board shall periodically review the 
performance of the Chief Executive Officer for compliance with the Chief Executive Officer’s 
employment agreement and with the Board of Trustees’ policies. 
 

Page 325 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised TO BE DETERMINED) 
Page 10 

The Chief Executive Officer shall appoint and employ such subordinates as may be necessary for 
the proper and efficient operation of the Hospital, in accordance with the directions and policies 
of the Board of Trustees. In the absence of the Chief Executive Officer a qualified designee(s) 
shall be designated to perform the duties.  The Chief Executive Officer shall serve as liaison officer 
and channel of communication between the Board of Trustees, Governing Board and the Medical 
Staff, and between the Board of Trustees, and any auxiliary or foundation. The Chief Executive 
Officer shall make periodic reports to the Board of Trustees concerning both business and 
professional matters, sufficient to enable the Board of Trustees to properly discharge its functions 
and responsibilities. 
 
The Chief Executive Officer or his/her designee shall report to the Board of Trustees regarding the 
operation of UMC, and as a part of this report, shall educate and orient the Board of Trustees in 
regard to UMC operations and any special matters which may at the time be affecting the hospital 
industry in general.  The Chief Executive Officer will bring all matters requiring Board approval 
to the Board of Trustees at its regularly scheduled meetings. 
 
Neither the Medical and Dental Staff, Governing Board, or the Board of Trustees may unilaterally 
amend, alter, add to, delete from, or otherwise change any portion of the Bylaws of the Medical 
and Dental Staff or the Medical and Dental Staff’s Rules and Regulations.  Changes to these may 
only be made following mutual approval of these Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws by majority of 
both the Medical and Dental Staff and the Board of Trustees and if necessary utilizing the Conflict 
Management Policy process.   
 
  

ARTICLE IV 
 
 
 MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF 
 
A. DEFINITION 
 
For the purpose of these Bylaws, “Medical and Dental Staff” is defined as doctors of medicine, 
doctors of osteopathy, doctors of dental surgery and dentistry, and advanced practice registered 
nurses who have met the requirements for membership set forth in the Bylaws of UMC’s Medical 
and Dental Staff, and who have been approved as members thereof. 
 
B. PRIVILEGES, APPOINTMENTS AND REAPPOINTMENTS 
 
Acting upon the advice of the Medical and Dental Staff, the Board of Trustees, or its designee, 
may appoint a Medical and Dental Staff composed of physicians, dentists, and advanced practice 
registered nurses, who are graduates of recognized professional schools, and shall see that they are 
organized into a responsible administrative unit and adopt such bylaws, and/or associated manuals 
for government of practice at UMC as the Board of Trustees deems to be of the greatest benefit to 
the care of patients within UMC.  All appointments to the Medical Staff shall be for a period of up 
to two years or until the next biennial reappointment period, whichever occurs first.  The Board of 
Trustees hereby delegates to the Governing Board, in collaboration with the Medical Staff, the 
authority to approve all appointments and reappointments of practitioners to the Medical and 

Page 326 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised TO BE DETERMINED) 
Page 11 

Dental Staff; approve all credentialing and re-credentialing of eligible individuals requesting  
 
clinical privileges; and review adverse recommendations and decisions of the Medical Executive 
Committee pursuant to this Article and the UMC Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws.  
 

1. PROCEDURE FOR APPOINTMENT 
 

All appointments, reappointments or additions to the Medical Staff shall be made in the 
following manner: 

 
a. At any regular scheduled meeting of the Governing Board, the Governing 

Board shall officially approve eligible individuals for Medical and Dental 
Staff membership based on the specific recommendations of the Medical 
Executive Committee.  

 
b. At the time of appointment the Governing Board shall delineate clinical 

privileges for each eligible individual.  
 

2. REAPPOINTMENTS 
 

The Governing Board shall reappoint the members of the Medical & Dental Staff as 
recommended by the Medical Staff. 

 
3. ADVERSE RECOMMENDATIONS AND DECISIONS 

 
A party that is aggrieved by a final decision of the Medical Executive Committee that is an 
adverse decision or recommendation as defined in the Bylaws of the Medical and Dental 
Staff is entitled to review of that decision in accordance with the Fair Hearing Plan 
approved and adopted by this Board of Trustees.   

 
C. CONFLICT RESOLUTIONS 
 
The Board of Trustees provides for a system for resolving conflicts among Administration, 
Governing Board, and/or Medical Staff and the individuals under their leadership. These 
differences may include recommendations concerning Medical Staff appointments, 
reappointments, termination of appointments, and the granting or revision of clinical privileges 
within a reasonable time frame.   
 
 
D. MEDICAL STAFF BYLAWS AND RULES AND REGULATIONS 
 
The Medical and Dental Staff’s Bylaws and Rules and Regulations setting forth its organization 
and governance, shall be recommended by the Medical and Dental Staff and approved by the 
Governing Board and Board of Trustees.  In the event of inconsistency of Medical Staff and Dental 
Staff’s Bylaws with these Bylaws, the latter shall prevail to the extent allowable by state and 
Federal law. 
 

Page 327 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised TO BE DETERMINED) 
Page 12 

E. REVIEW OF GOVERNING DOCUMENTS 
 
The Medical and Dental Staff shall periodically review the Bylaws and Rules and Regulations of 
the Medical and Dental Staff and make recommendations to the Board of Trustees regarding 
necessary revisions.  The Board of Trustees and the Governing Board shall review and approve 
the Bylaws and Rules and Regulations of the Medical and Dental Staff following receipt of 
recommendations from the Medical Staff relating to those reviews and revisions. 
 
F. EXCLUSION FROM FEDERAL OR STATE HEALTH CARE PROGRAM 
 
Any individual or entity who is excluded from any Federal or State Health Care program, 
including, but not limited to, Medicare or Medicaid or any other health care program administered 
by the Department of Health and Human Services or any State or Federal health regulatory agency, 
shall not be allowed to admit patients or perform procedures within the UMC system.  Whenever 
membership is terminated pursuant to this section, the Attending Physician, Chief of Staff and/or 
the terminated member’s Department Chairperson shall take all necessary steps to ensure that the 
care of any patient currently under the terminated member’s care at UMC is transferred to another 
appropriate practitioner.  The wishes of the patient shall be considered, where feasible, in choosing 
a substitute practitioner. 
 
G. PROFESSIONAL CARE - ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 
In the professional care of patients, the attending physician appointed to the Medical and Dental 
Staff shall have full authority subject only to the policies stated by the Board of Trustees.  In 
administrative matters, the Medical and Dental Staff, as an organized body, shall act in an advisory 
capacity.  The Medical Staff shall have the opportunity to contribute to the planning, budgeting, 
safety management, and overall performance-improvement activities of the organization.  The 
Medical Staff shall comply with the following administrative procedures: 
 
 

1. Only a member of the Medical and Dental Staff with admitting privileges shall 
admit patients to UMC. 

 
2. Only an appropriately licensed practitioner with clinical privileges shall be directly 

responsible for a patient’s diagnosis and treatment within the area of his/her 
privileges and each patient’s general medical condition is the responsibility of a 
physician or dental member of the Medical and Dental Staff. 

 
3. Medical care of patients provided by Advanced Practice Professionals shall be 

under the appropriate degree of supervision by a designated licensed practitioner 
with clinical privileges. 

 
4. Create and participate with Conflict Management Policy and Code of Conduct. 

 
 
H. EVALUATION OF PROFESSIONAL CARE 
 

Page 328 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised TO BE DETERMINED) 
Page 13 

The Medical Staff shall conduct a continuing review and appraisal of the quality of professional 
care rendered at UMC.  If professional care is rendered by students or professional graduate 
education programs, the students must be supervised by a physician member of the medical staff 
with appropriate privileges.  The Medical Staff policies must define the level of supervision for 
students of professional graduate education programs.  Professional graduate education 
committee(s) and the medical staff will regularly communicate about the safety and quality of 
patient care provided by and the supervisory needs of the students.  The professional graduate 
education committee(s) and the Board of Trustees, as needed, will periodically communicate about 
the educational needs and performance of the participants in the program.   
 
I. MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The Medical Executive Committee shall be required to make recommendations related to the 
structure and organization of the Medical Staff to the Governing Board for ultimate approval by 
the Board of Trustees. At a minimum, such recommendations include the following: 
 

1. the structure of the medical staff; 
 

2. the procedure used to review credentials and to delineate individual clinical 
privileges; 

 
3. the organization of the performance improvement and patient safety activities as 

well as the procedure used to conduct, evaluate, and revise such activities; 
 

4. the procedure by which membership on the medical staff may be terminated; and  
 

5. the procedure for Fair Hearings. 
 
Notwithstanding the preceding, and in accordance with the Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws and 
Rules and Regulations approved by the Board of Trustees, the Medical Executive Committee shall 
make recommendations to the Governing Board for items which have been delegated to it from 
the Board of Trustees.  At a minimum such recommendations include the following: 
 

1. recommendations of individuals for the addition to or removal from the medical 
staff membership in accordance with all applicable requirements; 

 
2. recommendations for delineated clinical privileges for each eligible individual; 

 
Any such recommendations, and the processes pertaining thereto, shall be set forth in the UMC 
Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws and Rules and Regulations, as approved by the Board of 
Trustees.   

 
 
 

J. PHYSICIANS IN EMPLOYMENT OR UNDER CONTRACT  
 
Physicians who are employed by UMC or who are on a contract of employment with UMC shall 

Page 329 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised TO BE DETERMINED) 
Page 14 

be subject to removal from their positions with UMC in accordance with the terms of the 
employment or the contract.  Continued Medical Staff privileges and membership on the Medical 
and Dental Staff shall be a matter to be determined by the Medical Staff in accordance with the 
Bylaws and Rules and Regulations of the Medical and Dental Staff of UMC.  
 
K. EMPLOYMENT OF PHYSICIANS 
 
The Board of Trustees, in accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes 450.180, shall have the 
authority to employ physicians and residents, either full-time or part-time and to fix their 
compensation, qualifications and duties.  This authority may be exercised by the Board of Trustees, 
Governing Board, or delegated by the Board of Trustees or Governing Board to the Chief 
Executive Officer from time to time, as the Board of Trustees deems necessary. 
 
L. BYLAWS AND RULES AND REGULATIONS OF UMC’S MEDICAL AND 

DENTAL STAFF 
 
Upon approval of membership, each member of UMC’s Medical and Dental Staff shall sign an 
agreement to abide by the Bylaws and Rules and Regulations of the Medical and Dental Staff in 
implementation of the Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws, including a pledge that the member shall 
observe all ethical principles of his/her profession.  Newly credentialed and reappointed members 
of the Medical and Dental Staff are provided with a copy of the Code of Conduct. 
 
M. ADVANCED PRACTICE PROFESSIONALS 
 
In accordance with UMC Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws and Rules and Regulations, the Board 
of Trustees recognizes the existence of Advanced Practice Professionals. Advanced Practice 
Professionals consist of Advance Practice Registered Nurses, Physician Assistants, physicians 
serving short locum tenens positions, telemedicine physicians, house staff such as residents 
moonlighting in the hospital, Allied Health Professionals or others deemed appropriate by the 
MEC and Governing Board. Advanced Practice Professionals shall be subject to the UMC Medical 
and Dental Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations, and applicable UMC and Medical Staff policies.  
Except for those practitioners licensed as an Advanced Practice Registered Nurse, Advanced 
Practice Professionals may not be members of the Medical and Dental Staff regardless of their 
credentialing path.  The Board of Trustees delegates to UMC’s Administration in collaboration 
with the Medical and Dental Staff the authority to promulgate rules and regulations for the 
governing of the practice of Advance Practice Professionals at UMC. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ARTICLE V 
 
 

 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Page 330 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised TO BE DETERMINED) 
Page 15 

 
 
A. PRINCIPAL OFFICE 
 
The principal office for the transaction of the business of UMC is hereby fixed and located at 1800 
West Charleston Boulevard, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada. 
 
B. FOUNDATION 
 
The Board of Trustees recognizes the role of a foundation to support the purposes of UMC.  A 
foundation may be formally organized to further the role and purpose of UMC. 
 
C. VOLUNTEER SERVICES 
 
The Board of Trustees recognizes and values the formation of organized volunteer services to 
promote quality care and to meet the needs and comfort of UMC patients, families and visitors.  
Those needs may be met by an organized volunteer service of individuals and groups under the 
direction of a designated UMC employee or by the establishment of a self-governing auxiliary.  
When individuals or organized groups perform volunteer services at UMC, a mechanism for 
oversight of their activities shall be established through a designated, responsible UMC employee.   
 
Oversight of volunteers and individuals shall be conducted as necessary to satisfy UMC 
accreditation standards and to assure that activities of such organizations and individuals are 
compatible with the goals and purposes of UMC.   
 
D. ADOPTION OF BYLAWS 
 
The Bylaws of UMC, upon adoption at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees, shall repeal 
any previous Bylaws and shall become effective on and after the date adopted, and shall be equally 
binding on the Board of Trustees, the Governing Board, the Medical and Dental Staff, and the 
Administration of UMC. 
 
These Bylaws shall be supplemented by administrative bulletins and memoranda, issued from time 
to time as required; such supplemental material shall not be in conflict with the Bylaws, but shall 
be equally binding. 
 
 
E. AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS 
 
Except as otherwise provided from time to time by law, these Bylaws, or any thereof, may be 
amended, altered or repealed and new provisions added thereby by the affirmative vote of a 
quorum at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Trustees, if notice of the proposed 
alteration, amendment, repeal or addition is distributed to each member of the Board of Trustees a 
minimum of one week prior to the meeting at which the proposed change(s) are to be presented, 
and that notice is given in accordance with Chapter 241 of the Nevada Revised Statutes. 
 
F. NON-DISCRIMINATION 

Page 331 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised TO BE DETERMINED) 
Page 16 

 
It is the firm policy of UMC not to discriminate on the basis of national origin, race, gender, 
religion, race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, sexual orientation, gender identity or 
expression, genetic information, marital status, or disability,  in the appointment of members of 
the Medical and Dental Staff, the employment of UMC personnel and the admission of patients.  
All Medical Staff members, Board members, and UMC personnel shall adhere to such policy.   
 
G. REVIEW OF BYLAWS 
 
The Bylaws shall be reviewed at least every other year by the Board of Trustees commencing with 
the first meeting in October of 1981 and then revised as necessary. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
REVISION APPROVED this             day of                                  , 2025. 
 
 
 

                                                                                               
     William McCurdy II, Chairperson 

Board of Hospital Trustees 
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

 
 
 

                                                                                               
     Tick Segerblom, Vice-Chair  

Board of Hospital Trustees 
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

 

Page 332 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised July 2020 TO BE DETERMINED) 

Page 1 

 BYLAWS 

 

 UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 

 

 

 STATEMENT OF OWNERSHIP AND PURPOSE 

 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (“UMC”) is an enterprise fund owned by Clark 

County, and operated within the required health care license/certification/permit to serve the 

community both as a County and as a public hospital within the meaning of the current Nevada 

Revised Statutes (NRS) and the provisions stated herein.  Pursuant to NRS 450.090, the Clark 

County Board of Commissioners is the ex officio UMC Board of Hospital Trustees (the “Board of 

Trustees”). The role and purpose of UMC is to provide an organization and facility supporting 

qualified medical professionals in providing quality health care to patients treated at UMC.  The 

primary responsibility and goal of the Board of Trustees is to further the role and purpose of UMC 

by providing oversight and advice to UMC, thereby facilitating the establishment of policies, 

providing for necessary resources for the maintenance of quality patient care and patient safety 

and the provision of organizational management and planning all in a manner that is responsive to 

the needs of UMC’s primary service areas.   

 

 

 PREAMBLE 

 

For the more orderly conduct of the business of UMC, the Board of Trustees, adopts the following 

as the Bylaws of UMC: 

 

 

 ARTICLE I 

 

 

 BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

A. POWERS 

 

Subject to limitations of Nevada law and subject to the duties of the Board of Trustees as prescribed 

in these Bylaws, all corporate powers relating to UMC shall be exercised by or under the authority 

of the Board of Trustees, and the business and affairs of UMC shall be controlled by the Board of 

Trustees. 

 

It is hereby expressly declared that the Board of Trustees shall have the power to conduct, manage 

and control the affairs and business of UMC, including creating committees of the Board of 

Trustees e.g. The University Medical Center of Southern Nevada Governing Board (the 

“Governing Board") , with formally delegated responsibilities as authorized or permitted to do, 

within the scope of the Articles herein, as well as applicable state, federal or other laws. 

 

 

Page 333 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised July 2020 TO BE DETERMINED) 

Page 2 

B. BUDGET 

 

The Board of Trustees shall annually review and adopt a budget in accordance with NRS 450.230 

and Chapter 354 of Nevada Revised Statutes also known as the Local Government Budget and 

Finance Act. 

 

C. NUMBER, ELECTION AND TERM OF OFFICE 

 

The Board of Trustees shall consist of the Clark County Commissioners serving pursuant to NRS 

450.090 for the term of office set forth in NRS 244.030.  The Board of Trustees members shall 

have the qualifications set forth in NRS 244.020.  All members shall be voting members. 

 

D. VACANCIES 

 

Vacancies on the Board of Trustees by reason of death, resignation or other cause shall be filled 

in accordance with Nevada law.  Appointees shall hold office until the next following general 

election in the usual manner. 

 

E. QUORUM 

 

At all meetings of the Board of Trustees, four members shall constitute a quorum for the 

transaction of business. A smaller number of Trustees may, for lack of a quorum, adjourn any 

meeting of the Board of Trustees to a future date. 

 

F. MEETINGS 

 

Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be held on the first and third Tuesday of each 

month at 9:00 a.m. at the County Government Center, 500 South Grand Central Parkway, Las 

Vegas, Nevada.  If said meeting falls on a designated holiday, the meeting shall be held on the next 

succeeding business day thereafter or as determined by the Board of Trustees.  Notice of any 

meeting of the Board of Trustees shall be given in accordance with Chapter 241 of the Nevada 

Revised Statutes. 

 

Special emergency meetings of the Board of Trustees for any purpose(s) shall be held whenever 

called by the Chairperson, or if the Chairperson is absent and/or unable to be present, then by the 

Vice-Chairperson, or by any five members of the Board of Trustees in accordance with the 

procedures for noticing an emergency meeting contained in Chapter 241 of the Nevada Revised 

Statutes. 

 

G. OFFICERS 

 

An appointed Clark County Commissioner shall serve as the Chairperson of the Board of Trustees 

(the “Chairperson”) and Vice-Chairperson of the Board of Trustees (the “Vice-Chairperson”). The 

County Clerk shall serve as Secretary of the Board of Trustees (the “Secretary”).  The Treasurer 

of the County of Clark shall also serve as Treasurer of the Board of Trustees (the “Treasurer”), as 

specified in the Nevada Revised Statutes. 

Page 334 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised July 2020 TO BE DETERMINED) 

Page 3 

 

Responsibilities of the Officers are as follows: 

 

1. CHAIRPERSON 

 

An appointed Clark County Commissioner shall serve as the Chairperson of the Board of 

Trustees and shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Trustees.  The Chairperson shall 

have the powers to perform such acts as may be assigned by the Board of Trustees and 

these Bylaws, as well as such duties incident to the Office of the Chairperson and as from 

time to time may be prescribed respectively by the Board of Trustees, these Bylaws, the 

Bylaws of the Medical and Dental Staff and the Medical and Dental Staff’s Rules and 

Regulations. 

 

2. VICE-CHAIRPERSON 

 

In the absence or disability of the Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson shall perform all the 

duties of the Chairperson, and when so acting shall have the powers of, and be subject to 

all the restrictions upon the Chairperson.  The Vice-Chairperson shall have such other 

duties incident to the Office of the Vice-Chairperson and as from time to time may be 

prescribed respectively, by the Board of Trustees, these Bylaws, the Bylaws of the Medical 

and Dental Staff and the Medical and Dental Staff’s Rules and Regulations. 

 

3. SECRETARY 

 

The Secretary shall keep, or cause to be kept, a book of minutes, at the principal office or 

such other place as the Board of Trustees may order.  Minutes shall include the date, time 

and place of all meetings of the Board of Trustees, whether regular meeting or special, and 

if special, how authorized, the notice thereof given, and the names of those present at the 

Board of Trustees meetings.  The Board of Trustees has designated the County Clerk as 

the ex officio Secretary. 

 

4. TREASURER 

 

The Treasurer, in accordance with the laws of Nevada, shall keep, or cause to be kept, full 

and accurate accounts of the receipts and disbursements in books to be kept for that 

purpose. The Treasurer shall receive and disburse, or cause to be disbursed, all monies and 

other valuables of the organization in the name of and to the credit of UMC, in such 

depositories as may be designated by the Board of Trustees.  The Treasurer shall render, 

or cause to be rendered, to the Board of Trustees, whenever they may require, accounts of 

all transactions as Treasurer and of the financial condition of the organization.  All such 

duties, as well as others designated by the Board of Trustees, shall be subject to the Board 

of Trustees’ direction and approval.   

 

A vacancy in any office of the Board of Trustees (except that of Treasurer) because of 

death, resignation, removal, disqualification or any other cause will be filled according to 

law and these Bylaws. 

Page 335 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised July 2020 TO BE DETERMINED) 

Page 4 

 

H. ATTENDANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 

Members of the Board of Trustees shall comply with the attendance requirements established by 

Chapter 283 of the Nevada Revised Statutes. 

 

I. GOVERNING BOARD 
 

The Board of Trustees has the authority pursuant to NRS 450.175 to appoint a board which shall 

exercise powers and duties delegated by the Board of Trustees.   Pursuant to Clark County 

Ordinance No.4145, adopted as Chapter 3.74 of the Clark County Code, the Board of Trustees 

has appointed the UMC Governing Board.  The Governing Board’s responsibilities are 

determined by Clark County Ordinance No. 4145 adopted as Chapter 3.74 of the Clark County 

Code, as may be amended from time to time.. 

 

J. OTHER COMMITTEES 
 

The Chairperson of the Board of Trustees, subject to the approval of the Board of Trustees, shall 

appoint other committees as deemed necessary.  Such committees shall be subject at all times to 

the control of the Board of Trustees.  The Medical and Dental Staff Committees shall be appointed 

in accordance with the provisions of the UMC Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws and Rules and 

Regulations.   

 

K. COMPENSATION 

 

A Trustee may receive compensation for services rendered in attending to the business and affairs 

of UMC as may be permitted by any applicable provisions of the Nevada Revised Statutes. 

 

L. INDEMNIFICATION 

 

In accordance with N.R.S. NRS 41.0349, UMC shall indemnify and hold harmless each member 

of the Board of Trustees, the Governing Board and the Medical Executive Committee (each, a 

“Member”) against any and all expenses, including attorney’s fees and court costs, actually and 

necessarily incurred by him/her in connection with the defense of any action, suit or proceeding to 

which a Member is made a party by reason of his/her being a Member, except in relations to 

matters as to which he/she shall be adjudged in such action, suit or proceedings to be liable for 

gross negligence or misconduct in the performance of his/her duties as a Member.  Indemnification 

shall include reimbursement of amounts paid in settlement and expenses actually and necessarily 

incurred by such Member in connection therewith, but such indemnification shall be provided only 

if UMC is advised by its counsel that, in his/her opinion: 

 

1. Such settlement is for the best interest of UMC; and 

 

2. The Member to be indemnified has not been guilty of gross negligence or 

misconduct in respect of any matter covered by such settlement. 

 

Such right of indemnification shall not be deemed exclusive of any right, or rights, to which the 

Page 336 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised July 2020 TO BE DETERMINED) 

Page 5 

Member might be entitled under these Bylaws, any applicable agreements or otherwise. 

 

M. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 

The members of the Board of Trustees and members of the Governing Board shall comply with 

the provisions of both the Nevada Ethics in Government Law contained in Chapter 281A of the 

Nevada Revised Statutes and the Ethics in Government Policy adopted by and applicable to the 

Clark County Board of County Commissioners. 

 

N. DISCHARGE OF DUTIES 

 

The members of the Board of Trustees and members of the Governing Board shall discharge all 

duties required of the Board of Trustees members or Governing Board members by virtue of 

applicable law, including but not limited to the obligations set forth in Chapter 450 of the Nevada 

Revised Statutes.  The members of the Board of Trustees or the Governing Board shall act in 

accordance with their duties relative to health care cost containment set forth in Chapter 439B of 

the Nevada Revised Statutes.  Failure to discharge these duties shall be resolved in accordance 

with Chapter 283 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, as applicable. 

  

 

ARTICLE II 

 

 

BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

  

A. LIAISON 

 

By virtue of the representation from the Medical Staff, the Governing Board, and Administration, 

the Board of Trustees shall serve as, or provide for, the medico-administrative liaison between the 

Board of Trustees, Administration and Medical Staff. The Board of Trustees shall establish and 

maintain a systematic and effective mechanism for communication between members of the Board 

of Trustees, Governing Board, Administration, Medical Staff and the governing bodies and 

management of any health care delivery organization that is corporately and functionally related 

to UMC. The President (Chief) of the Medical Staff and UMC’s Chief Executive Officer shall be 

primarily responsible for communications between the Medical Staff and Administration, and also 

between the Medical Staff, Governing Board, and the Board of Trustees.  The Chief Executive 

Officer shall be primarily responsible for communications between and among the Administration, 

the Governing Board, the Board of Trustees and any outside, but related health care delivery 

organization.  The Board of Trustees is ultimately accountable for quality of care, service and 

treatment. 

 

B. STANDARDS COMPLIANCE 

 

The Board of Trustees shall oversee the acquisition and maintenance of hospital accreditation by 

The Joint Commission (“TJC”) or another such accreditation bodyan appropriate body approved 

by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (“CMS”).  It shall require that TJC Standards, 

Page 337 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised July 2020 TO BE DETERMINED) 

Page 6 

and Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (“CMS”) Guidelines, CMS – Approved 

Accrediting Organization standards and other that appropriate evidence based standards be used 

in a review of UMC’s ongoing compliance with accreditation standards. 

  

 

C. INSTITUTIONAL PLANNING 

 

The Board of Trustees shall designate the UMC Administration to develop long range strategic 

plans to meet the health demands of the people of Clark County. Administration, the Medical and 

Dental Staff leadership, the Nursing Department, other departments/services, and appropriate 

advisers shall be assigned to participate in the planning process. 

 

D. DISASTER PLANNING 

 

The Board of Trustees shall oversee the development and maintenance of UMC’s Emergency 

Operations Plan. The Emergency Operations Plan shall provide for the protection and care of 

UMC’s patients and others at the time of internal and external disaster, adequately reflect the 

anticipated role of UMC in the event of disasters in nearby communities, and be rehearsed by key 

personnel at least twice yearly.  

 

E. ORGANIZATIONAL PLANNING 

 

The Board of Trustees shall oversee the process of organizational planning. 

 

1. FEATURES OF THE ORGANIZATIONAL PLANNING PROCESS 

 

 The organizational planning process shall include the following minimum features:  

 

a. Development of an operating budget by the Chief Executive Officer and 

submitted for approval by the Board of Trustees. 

 

b. Development of a capital expenditure plan that identifies the objectives of 

and the anticipated sources of financing for each proposed capital 

expenditure in excess of $25,000. 

 

c. Review and update of the overall plan and budget at least annually. 

 

d. Establishment of a Performance Improvement and Patient Safety planning 

processes within UMC through which areas of patient care needs are 

defined and analyzed, general goals related to each need are established, 

and specific objectives to meet those goals are set.  In addition, alternative 

courses of action to meet those goals will be identified.  The Board shall 

oversee, via the Joint Conference/Leadership Committee,  the 

implementation of the Performance Improvement and Patient Safety plans 

and evaluation of the effect of the actions taken. 

 

e. Establishment of a Conflict Resolution policy(s) which will be inclusive of 

Page 338 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised July 2020 TO BE DETERMINED) 

Page 7 

Governing Board, UMC staff, directed by UMC’s Administration, and the 

Medical Staff, directed by the Leadership inclusive of the Chief of Staff.  

Leadership is defined as a structure to support operations and the provision 

of care.  This structure is formed by three leadership groups Governing 

Body, Senior Managers, Organized Medical Staff. 

 

f. Oversight to the implementation of the Performance Improvement and 

Patient Safety approved performance matrix. 

 

2. The Administration, the Medical Staff, the Nursing Service, other 

departments/services, and outside advisors shall participate in the planning and 

decision-making structures and processes as appropriate.   

 

3. UMC’s scope of services shall be defined in the Leadership Plan for Patient Care, 

Treatment, and Services and shall be approved by the Board of Trustees. 

 

F. PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT AND PATIENT SAFETY 

 

1. RESOURCES AND SUPPORT SYSTEMS 

 

The Board of Trustees shall provide for resources and support systems for a Board 

approved UMC-wide Performance Improvement and Patient Safety Programs.  The 

programs shall include activities and mechanisms implemented through the Medical Staff 

and staffs of the departments/services of UMC, with the support of the Chief Executive 

Officer.  The program shall also include education of UMC’s leaders concerning the 

approach and methods of continuous quality improvement and the reduction of patient care 

/serious adverse events.  At least annually, through the Joint Conference Committee a 

report to the Board of Trustees shall be presented regarding the proactive measures taken 

to reduce the risk of patient safety incidents and errors and any actual medical/healthcare 

errors. 

 

2. IMPLEMENTATION AND REPORTING 

 

The Performance Improvement and Patient Safety plans shall require participants to 

implement and report on the activities and mechanism for proactive planning to improve 

patient care, monitoring and evaluating the quality and safety of patient care, for identifying 

opportunities to improve patient care, for identifying and resolving problems and 

evaluating staffing levels for serious patient care events. 

 

3. SAME LEVEL OF CARE 

 

The Performance Improvement and Patient Safety plans shall establish mechanisms 

designed to assure that all patients with the same health problem are receiving the same 

level of care at UMC.   

 

4. COMPETENCY 

 

Page 339 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised July 2020 TO BE DETERMINED) 

Page 8 

The Performance Improvement plan in concert with Leadership and Human Resources 

shall establish a process or processes designed to assure that all individuals who provide 

patient care services, including those who are not subject to the medical staff privilege 

delineation process, are competent to provide such services.  Without limiting the 

generality of the foregoing, such process or processes shall be designed to assure that all 

individuals responsible for the assessment, treatment or care of patients are competent in 

providing care as appropriate to the ages and needs of the patients served.  

 

5. PATIENT SAFETY PROGRAM 

 

The Board of Trustees shall ensure that a Patient Safety Program is implemented 

throughout the organization.   

 

G. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

The Board of Trustees shall provide for resources and support systems for the risk management 

functions related to patient care and safety.  To the extent permitted by restrictions designed to 

protect patient confidentiality and the peer review privilege, there shall be operational linkages 

between the risk management functions related to the clinical aspects of patient care and safety 

and the performance improvement and patient safety function.  Existing information from risk 

management activities that may be useful in identifying opportunities to improve the quality of 

patient care and/or resolve clinical problems are accessible to the performance improvement and 

patient safety function.  The Medical Staff shall actively participate, as appropriate, in the risk 

management activities related to the clinical aspects of patient care and safety.   

 

H. ENVIRONMENT OF CARE 

 

The Board of Trustees shall strive to assure a safe environment for patients, personnel and visitors 

by requiring and supporting the establishment and maintenance of effective Environment of Care 

programs.  The eight components comprised in the program include Safety Management, Security 

Management, Hazardous Materials & Waste Management, Hazardous Rounds, PI Projects, Utility 

Management, Fire/Life Safety Management, and Medical Equipment Management. 

 

I. DEPARTMENTAL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

 

The Board of Trustees shall require the Medical Staff, Hospital Leadership, staff of 

departments/services, and others as appropriate to review and revise all department service policies 

and procedures when warranted.  The period between reviewed shall not exceed three (3) years. 

 

J. ORIENTATION AND EVALUATIONS 

 

1. The Board of Trustees and the Governing Board, acting through the Chief 

Executive Officer and staff, shall provide resources necessary to enable all 

members of the Board of Trustees to understand and fulfill their responsibilities.  

An orientation program for all new Board of Trustees’ members shall be conducted 

as well as relevant continuing education programs as may be appropriate from time 

to time.   

Page 340 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised July 2020 TO BE DETERMINED) 

Page 9 

 

 

2. The Board of Trustees shall review and evaluate its own performance on an annual 

basis. 

 

 

3. The Board of Trustees shall require UMC to annually evaluate its performance in 

relation to UMC’s mission, vision, values, and goals for the Performance 

Improvement Program, Patient Safety Program, Environment of Care Plans, and 

the Infection Control Program.  The Infection Control Program is put into place to 

help reduce the possibility of acquiring and transmitting infections.  The design and 

scope of the program are determined by the specific risks faced by location, the 

population(s) served, and the types of services provided. 

 

K. EMERGENCY MEDICAL TREATMENT AND ACTIVE LABOR ACT 
 

 1.   The Board of Trustees shall require UMC to comply with the Emergency 

Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act of 1985 (EMTALA) and Nevada Revised 

Statutes 439B.410, et seq., including medical screening, examination and 

evaluation of patients by a qualified medical person (QMP).  QMP shall include:  

Licensed Independent Practitioner (LIP), Nurse Practitioner, Physician Assistant 

(PA), and Labor and Delivery Registered Nurse with neonatal resuscitation 

training. 

 

 2. Each QMP, with the exception of an LIP, shall be supervised by a qualified 

member of the Medical Staff to the extent required under applicable law.    

 
 

ARTICLE III 
 

 

 HOSPITAL ADMINISTRATION 
 

A. SELECTION  

 

The Governing Board shall select and appoint a Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Hospital, 

who shall be responsible to the Board of Trustees and Governing Board for the overall 

management and direction of UMC in accordance with the Chief Executive Officer’s employment 

agreement and with the Board of Trustees’ policies.  

 

B. RESPONSIBILITIES AND AUTHORITY 

 

The Chief Executive Officer’s responsibilities shall be inclusive of establishing internal controls 

to effectively operate the organization by establishing and maintaining information and support 

systems, recruiting and retaining staff, and conserving physical and financial assets. The Chief 

Executive Officer shall act as the duly authorized representative of the Board of Trustees in all 

matters in which the Board of Trustees has not formally designated another representative, and 

Page 341 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised July 2020 TO BE DETERMINED) 

Page 10 

shall be empowered to perform all acts and to execute all documents necessary to make effective 

the actions taken by the Board of Trustees.  The Governing Board shall periodically review the 

performance of the Chief Executive Officer for compliance with the Chief Executive Officer’s 

employment agreement and with the Board of Trustees’ policies. 

 

The Chief Executive Officer shall appoint and employ such subordinates as may be necessary for 

the proper and efficient operation of the Hospital, in accordance with the directions and policies 

of the Board of Trustees. In the absence of the Chief Executive Officer a qualified designee(s) 

shall be designated to perform the duties.  The Chief Executive Officer shall serve as liaison officer 

and channel of communication between the Board of Trustees, Governing Board and the Medical 

Staff, and between the Board of Trustees, and any auxiliary or foundation. The Chief Executive 

Officer shall make periodic reports to the Board of Trustees concerning both business and 

professional matters, sufficient to enable the Board of Trustees to properly discharge its functions 

and responsibilities. 

 

The Chief Executive Officer or his/her designee shall report to the Board of Trustees regarding the 

operation of UMC, and as a part of this report, shall educate and orient the Board of Trustees in 

regard to UMC operations and any special matters which may at the time be affecting the hospital 

industry in general.  The Chief Executive Officer will bring all matters requiring Board approval 

to the Board of Trustees at its regularly scheduled meetings. 

 

Neither the Medical and Dental Staff, Governing Board, or the Board of Trustees may unilaterally 

amend, alter, add to, delete from, or otherwise change any portion of the Bylaws of the Medical 

and Dental Staff or the Medical and Dental Staff’s Rules and Regulations.  Changes to these may 

only be made following mutual approval of these Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws by majority of 

both the Medical and Dental Staff and the Board of Trustees and if necessary utilizing the Conflict 

Management Policy process.   

 

  

ARTICLE IV 

 

 

 MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF 
 

A. DEFINITION 

 

For the purpose of these Bylaws, “Medical and Dental Staff” is defined as doctors of medicine, 

doctors of osteopathy, doctors of dental surgery and dentistry, and advanced practice registered 

nurses who have met the requirements for membership set forth in the Bylaws of UMC’s Medical 

and Dental Staff, and who have been approved as members thereof. 

 

B. PRIVILEGES, APPOINTMENTS AND REAPPOINTMENTS 

 

Acting upon the advice of the Medical and Dental Staff, the Board of Trustees, or its designee, 

may appoint a Medical and Dental Staff composed of physicians, dentists, and advanced practice 

registered nurses, who are graduates of recognized professional schools, and shall see that they are 

organized into a responsible administrative unit and adopt such bylaws, and/or associated manuals 

Page 342 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised July 2020 TO BE DETERMINED) 

Page 11 

for government of practice at UMC as the Board of Trustees deems to be of the greatest benefit to 

the care of patients within UMC.  All appointments to the Medical Staff shall be for a period of up 

to two years or until the next biennial reappointment period, whichever occurs first.  The Board of 

Trustees hereby delegates to the Governing Board, in collaboration with the Medical Staff, the 

authority to approve all appointments and reappointments of practitioners to the Medical and 

Dental Staff; approve al all credentialing and re-credentialing of eligible individuals requesting  

 

clinical privileges; and review adverse recommendations and decisions of the Medical Executive 

Committee pursuant to this Article and the UMC Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws.  

 

1. PROCEDURE FOR APPOINTMENT 

 

All appointments, reappointments or additions to the Medical Staff shall be made in the 

following manner: 

 

a. At any regular scheduled meeting of the Governing Board, the Governing 

Board shall officially approve eligible individuals for Medical and Dental 

Staff membership based on the specific recommendations of the Medical 

Executive Committee.  

 

b. At the time of appointment the Governing Board shall delineate clinical 

privileges for each eligible individual.  

 

2. REAPPOINTMENTS 

 

The Governing Board shall reappoint the members of the Medical & Dental Staff as 

recommended by the Medical Staff. 

 

3. ADVERSE RECOMMENDATIONS AND DECISIONS 

 

A party that is aggrieved by a final decision of the Medical Executive Committee that is an 

adverse decision or recommendation as defined in the Bylaws of the Medical and Dental 

Staff is entitled to review of that decision in accordance with the Fair Hearing Plan 

approved and adopted by this Board of Trustees.   

 

C. CONFLICT RESOLUTIONS 

 

The Board of Trustees provides for a system for resolving conflicts among Administration, 

Governing Board, and/or Medical Staff and the individuals under their leadership. These 

differences may include recommendations concerning Medical Staff appointments, 

reappointments, termination of appointments, and the granting or revision of clinical privileges 

within a reasonable time frame.   

 

 

D. MEDICAL STAFF BYLAWS AND RULES AND REGULATIONS 

 

The Medical and Dental Staff’s Bylaws and Rules and Regulations setting forth its organization 

Page 343 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised July 2020 TO BE DETERMINED) 

Page 12 

and governance, shall be recommended by the Medical and Dental Staff and approved by the 

Governing Board and Board of Trustees.  In the event of inconsistency of Medical Staff and Dental 

Staff’s Bylaws with these Bylaws, the latter shall prevail to the extent allowable by state and 

Federal law. 

 

E. REVIEW OF GOVERNING DOCUMENTS 

 

The Medical and Dental Staff shall periodically review the Bylaws and Rules and Regulations of 

the Medical and Dental Staff and make recommendations to the Board of Trustees regarding 

necessary revisions.  The Board of Trustees and the Governing Board shall review and approve 

the Bylaws and Rules and Regulations of the Medical and Dental Staff following receipt of 

recommendations from the Medical Staff relating to those reviews and revisions. 

 

F. EXCLUSION FROM FEDERAL OR STATE HEALTH CARE PROGRAM 

 

Any individual or entity who is excluded from any Federal or State Health Care program, 

including, but not limited to, Medicare or Medicaid or any other health care program administered 

by the Department of Health and Human Services or any State or Federal health regulatory agency, 

shall not be allowed to admit patients or perform procedures within the UMC system.  Whenever 

membership is terminated pursuant to this section, the Attending Physician, Chief of Staff and/or 

the terminated member’s Department Chairperson shall take all necessary steps to ensure that the 

care of any patient currently under the terminated member’s care at UMC is transferred to another 

appropriate practitioner.  The wishes of the patient shall be considered, where feasible, in choosing 

a substitute practitioner. 

 

G. PROFESSIONAL CARE - ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

 

In the professional care of patients, the attending physician appointed to the Medical and Dental 

Staff shall have full authority subject only to the policies stated by the Board of Trustees.  In 

administrative matters, the Medical and Dental Staff, as an organized body, shall act in an advisory 

capacity.  The Medical Staff shall have the opportunity to contribute to the planning, budgeting, 

safety management, and overall performance-improvement activities of the organization.  The 

Medical Staff shall comply with the following administrative procedures: 

 

 

1. Only a member of the Medical and Dental Staff with admitting privileges shall 

admit patients to UMC. 

 

2. Only an appropriately licensed practitioner with clinical privileges shall be directly 

responsible for a patient’s diagnosis and treatment within the area of his/her 

privileges and each patient’s general medical condition is the responsibility of a 

physician or dental member of the Medical and Dental Staff. 

 

3. Medical care of patients provided by Advanced Practice Professionals shall be 

under the appropriate degree of supervision by a designated licensed practitioner 

with clinical privileges. 

 

Page 344 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised July 2020 TO BE DETERMINED) 

Page 13 

4. Create and participate with Conflict Management Policy and Code of Conduct. 

 

 

H. EVALUATION OF PROFESSIONAL CARE 

 

The Medical Staff shall conduct a continuing review and appraisal of the quality of professional 

care rendered at UMC.  If professional care is rendered by students or professional graduate 

education programs, the students must be supervised by a physician member of the medical staff 

with appropriate privileges.  The Medical Staff policies must define the level of supervision for 

students of professional graduate education programs.  Professional graduate education 

committee(s) and the medical staff will regularly communicate about the safety and quality of 

patient care provided by and the supervisory needs of the students.  The professional graduate 

education committee(s) and the Board of Trustees, as needed, will periodically communicate about 

the educational needs and performance of the participants in the program.   

 

I. MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

The Medical Executive Committee shall be required to make recommendations related to the 

structure and organization of the Medical Staff to the Governing Board for ultimate approval by 

the Board of Trustees. At a minimum, such recommendations include the following: 

 

1. the structure of the medical staff; 

 

2. the procedure used to review credentials and to delineate individual clinical 

privileges; 

 

3. the organization of the performance improvement and patient safety activities as 

well as the procedure used to conduct, evaluate, and revise such activities; 

 

4. the procedure by which membership on the medical staff may be terminated; and  

 

5. the procedure for Fair Hearings. 

 

Notwithstanding the preceding, and in accordance with the Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws and 

Rules and Regulations approved by the Board of Trustees, the Medical Executive Committee shall 

make recommendations to the Governing Board for items which have been delegated to it from 

the Board of Trustees.  At a minimum such recommendations include the following: 

 

1. recommendations of individuals for the addition to or removal from the medical 

staff membership in accordance with all applicable requirements; 

 

2. recommendations for delineated clinical privileges for each eligible individual; 

 

Any such recommendations, and the processes pertaining thereto, shall be set forth in the UMC 

Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws and Rules and Regulations, as approved by the Board of 

Trustees.   

 

Page 345 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised July 2020 TO BE DETERMINED) 

Page 14 

 

 

J. PHYSICIANS IN EMPLOYMENT OR UNDER CONTRACT IN A MEDICAL 

ADMINISTRATIVE POSITION 

 

Physicians who are employed by UMC or who are on a contract of employment with UMC shall 

be subject to removal from their administrative positions with UMC in accordance with the terms 

of the employment or the contract.  Continued Medical Staff privileges and membership on the 

Medical and Dental Staff shall be a matter to be determined by the Medical Staff in accordance 

with the Bylaws and Rules and Regulations of the Medical and Dental Staff of UMC.  

 

K. EMPLOYMENT OF PHYSICIANS 

 

The Board of Trustees, in accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes 450.180, shall have the 

authority to employ physicians and residents, either full-time or part-time and to fix their 

compensation, qualifications and duties.  This authority may be exercised by the Board of Trustees, 

Governing Board, or delegated by the Board of Trustees or Governing Board to the Chief 

Executive Officer from time to time, as the Board of Trustees deems necessary. 

 

L. BYLAWS AND RULES AND REGULATIONS OF UMC’S MEDICAL AND 

DENTAL STAFF 

 

Upon approval of membership, each member of UMC’s Medical and Dental Staff shall sign an 

agreement to abide by the Bylaws and Rules and Regulations of the Medical and Dental Staff in 

Iimplementation of the Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws, including a pledge that the member shall 

observe all ethical principles of his/her profession.  Newly credentialed and reappointed members 

of the Medical and Dental Staff are provided with a copy of the Code of Conduct. 

 

M. ADVANCED PRACTICE PROFESSIONALS 

 

In accordance with UMC Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws and Rules and Regulations, the Board 

of Trustees recognizes the existence of Advanced Practice Professionals. Advanced Practice 

Professionals consist of Advance Practice Registered Nurses, Physician Assistants, physicians 

serving short locum tenens positions, telemedicine physicians, house staff such as residents 

moonlighting in the hospital, Allied Health Professionals or others deemed appropriate by the 

MEC and Governing Board. Advanced Practice Professionals shall be subject to the UMC Medical 

and Dental Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations, and applicable UMC and Medical Staff policies.  

Except for those practitioners licensed as an Advanced Practice Registered Nurse, Advanced 

Practice Professionals may not be members of the Medical and Dental Staff regardless of their 

credentialing path.  The Board of Trustees delegates to UMC’s Administration in collaboration 

with the Medical and Dental Staff the authority to promulgate rules and regulations for the 

governing of the practice of Advance Practice Professionals at UMC. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 346 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised July 2020 TO BE DETERMINED) 

Page 15 

 

 

ARTICLE V 

 

 

 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 

 

A. PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

 

The principal office for the transaction of the business of UMC is hereby fixed and located at 1800 

West Charleston Boulevard, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada. 

 

B. FOUNDATION 

 

The Board of Trustees recognizes the role of a foundation to support the purposes of UMC.  A 

foundation may be formally organized to further the role and purpose of UMC. 

 

C. VOLUNTEER SERVICES 

 

The Board of Trustees recognizes and values the formation of organized volunteer services to 

promote quality care and to meet the needs and comfort of UMC patients, families and visitors.  

Those needs may be met by an organized volunteer service of individuals and groups under the 

direction of a designated UMC employee or by the establishment of a self-governing auxiliary.  

When individuals or organized groups perform volunteer services at UMC, a mechanism for 

oversight of their activities shall be established through a designated, responsible UMC employee.   

 

Oversight of volunteers and individuals shall be conducted as necessary to satisfy UMC 

accreditation standards and to assure that activities of such organizations and individuals are 

compatible with the goals and purposes of UMC.   

 

D. ADOPTION OF BYLAWS 

 

The Bylaws of UMC, upon adoption at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees, shall repeal 

any previous Bylaws and shall become effective on and after the date adopted, and shall be equally 

binding on the Board of Trustees, the Governing Board, the Medical and Dental Staff, and the 

Administration of UMC. 

 

These Bylaws shall be supplemented by administrative bulletins and memoranda, issued from time 

to time as required; such supplemental material shall not be in conflict with the Bylaws, but shall 

be equally binding. 

 

 

E. AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS 

 

Except as otherwise provided from time to time by law, these Bylaws, or any thereof, may be 

amended, altered or repealed and new provisions added thereby by the affirmative vote of a 

Page 347 of 349 



UMC Bylaws (Revised July 2020 TO BE DETERMINED) 

Page 16 

quorum at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Trustees, if notice of the proposed 

alteration, amendment, repeal or addition is distributed to each member of the Board of Trustees a 

minimum of one week prior to the meeting at which the proposed change(s) are to be presented, 

and that notice is given in accordance with Chapter 241 of the Nevada Revised Statutes. 

 

F. NON-DISCRIMINATION 

 

It is the firm policy of UMC not to discriminate on the basis of national origin, race, gender, 

religion, race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, sexual orientation, gender identity or 

expression, genetic information, marital status, or disability,  in the appointment of members of 

the Medical and Dental Staff, the employment of UMC personnel and the admission of patients.  

All Medical Staff members, Board members, and UMC personnel shall adhere to such policy.   

 

G. REVIEW OF BYLAWS 

 

The Bylaws shall be reviewed at least every other year by the Board of Trustees commencing with 

the first meeting in October of 1981 and then revised as necessary. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REVISION APPROVED this             day of                                  , 20250. 

 

 

 

                                                                                               

     Lawrence WeeklyWilliam McCurdy II, Chairperson 

Board of Hospital Trustees 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

 

 

 

                                                                                               

     Tick Segerblom, Vice-Chair  

Board of Hospital Trustees 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 

Page 348 of 349 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 26, 2025 

 
 

Agenda Item #  

27 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Emerging Issues 
  

 
Back-up: 
      
  

 
Petitioner: Mason VanHouweling, Chief Executive Officer  
  

 
Clerk Ref. # 
 
  

 
Recommendation: 
  

That the Governing Board identifies emerging issues to be addressed by staff or by the 
Board at future meetings; and direct staff accordingly. (For possible action)  
  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None    
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

None.  

Page 349 of 349 


	Cover Page
	AGENDA
	Governing Board - Agenda 2025.02.26 - Final.pdf

	SECTION 1.   OPENING CEREMONIES
	CALL TO ORDER
	1.   Public Comment
	2.   Approval of Minutes
	Governing Board -DRAFT -Minute January 29, 2025.pdf

	3.   Approval of Agenda

	SECTION 2: CONSENT ITEMS
	4. Credentialing 
	Agenda Item - Credentialing.pdf
	February Credentialing.pdf

	5. Policies and Procedures
	Agenda Item - Policies and Procedures.pdf
	Board December 2024.pdf
	Board January 2025.pdf

	6. Optum360, LLC
	Agenda Item - Optum.pdf
	a. Master Service Agreement - signed.pdf
	b. Product Schedule _Redacted.pdf
	c. Disclosure of Ownership 25.02.12.pdf

	7. Masimo Americas, Inc.
	Agenda Item - Masimo.pdf
	a. Deferred Equipment Agreement.pdf
	b. HPG Sourcing Letter.pdf
	c. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	8. Optimum Healthcare Solutions, LLC
	Agenda Item - Optimum Healthcare.pdf
	a. Contingent Placement Agrmt .pdf
	b.  Disclosure of Ownership Form.pdf

	9. Intuitive Surgical, Inc.
	Agenda Item - Intuitive Surgical.pdf
	a. Da Vinci Xi 4 Service Agreement.pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	10. Champion Health - Renal Payer Solutions, Inc.
	Agenda Item - Champion.pdf
	a. Provider Service Agreement_[Redacted].pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	11. Aargon Agency, Inc.
	Agenda Item - Aargon.pdf
	a. Aargon - 2024-15 RFP - Bad Debt Collections Service Agreement.pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	12. Abbott Laboratories, Inc.
	Agenda Item - Abbott Laboratories Inc..pdf
	a. Agreement_Redacted.pdf
	b. HPG Sourcing Letter.pdf
	c. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	13. Advance Imaging Services
	Agenda Item - Advanced Imaging Services.pdf
	a. Agreement - RFP 2024-11.pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	14. Rose Heart, Inc.
	Agenda Item - Rose Heart.pdf
	a. Rose Heart - SANE Agreement.pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	15. Brightview Landscape Services, Inc.
	Agenda Item - Brightview.pdf
	a. Landscaping Service - 2nd Amendment.pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownershiop.pdf


	SECTION 3:  BUSINESS ITEMS
	16. John Fildes, M.D. - Appointment
	Agenda Item - Appointment of Ex-officio John Fildes.pdf
	a. John Fildes Bio .pdf
	b. Fildes_CV.pdf

	17. NV Energy Presentation
	Agenda Item - NV Energy - Recognition.pdf

	18. Education - Wellhub
	Agenda Item - Wellhub at UMC.pdf

	19. Education - S.A.N.E Services
	Agenda Item - Governing Board Action Plan - SANE Program.pdf

	20. Clinical Quality and Professional Affairs Committee Update
	Agenda Item - Clinical Quality.pdf

	21. Strategic Planning Committee Update
	Agenda Item - Strategic Planning.pdf

	22. Audit and Finance Committee Update
	Agenda Item - Audit and Finance.pdf

	23. January FY25 Financial Report
	Agenda Item - Financial Report.pdf
	FY25 Jan 2025.pdf

	24. Kirk Kerkorian School of Medicine Update
	Agenda Item - KKSOM UNLV Update.pdf

	25. CEO Update
	Agenda Item - CEO Update.pdf

	26. UMC Hospital Bylaws
	Agenda Item - Board of Hospital Trustees Bylaws.pdf
	2025  UMC Board of Hospital Trustee Bylaws (Clean).pdf
	2025  UMC Board of Hospital Trustee Bylaws (Redline).pdf


	SECTION 4: EMERGING ISSUES
	27. Emerging Issues
	Agenda Item - Emerging Issues .pdf





